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Based on our foundation of credit risk evaluation and expertise, Radian offers products and services
through three business segments: mortgage insurance, financial guaranty and financial services:

— Qur mortgage insurance business provides credit protection for mortgage lenders and other
financial services companies on residential mortgage assets through traditional mortgage
insurance as well as other mortgage-backed structured products.

— Our financial guaranty business insures and reinsures credit-based risks and provides synthetic
credit protection on various asset classes through the use of credit default swaps.

— Our financial services business consists primarily of our 46% ownership interest in Credit-Based
Asset Servicing and Securitization LLC (C-BASS) — a mortgage investment and servicing firm
specializing in acquiring, servicing and securitizing sub-prime mortgage assets — and our
34.58% ownership interest in Sherman Financial Services Group LLC (Sherman Financial) —

a leading purchaser of distressed consumer assets.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

(in millions of $)

As of December 31, 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
Assets $ 7,230.6 $ 7,000.8 $ 6,445.8 $5,393.4 $ 4,438.6
Net premiums earned $ 1,018.7 $1,029.5 $ 1,008.2 $ 8471 $ 715.9
Stockholders’ equity $3,662.9 $ 3,689.1 $3,2258  $2,753.4  $2,306.3
Market capitalization $ 4,864.9 $ 4,913.0 $ 4,583.1 $ 3,475.5 $ 4,036.5
Net income $ 5229 $ 5187 % 3859 $ 4272 § 3604
DILUTED NET INCOME PER SHARE (in $)° BOOK VALUE
Net income CAGR of 20.7% from 1999 through 2005 Per-share amounts
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+ See “Net Income Per Share” in Note 2 to our Consolidated Financial Statements for a calculation of basic and diluted net income per share.
* Inciudes shares underlying contingently convertible debt that was redeemed August 1, 2005. The impact of including these shares in the calculations
was a reduction of $0.13 for December 31, 2005, $0.18 for 2004 and $0.13 for 2003.
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TO OUR STOCKHOLDERS:

THE VEAR 2005 WAS SIGNIFICANT 1K RADIANPS DEVELOPMENT. THE COMPARY STEARIE AND SUCCESSAULLY

PROCRESSED THROUEGH IMPORTANT TRANSITIONS 169 NMANAGEMENT AND BUSINESS FOCUS, WIHILE

MANTAINING ITS RECORD OF DELVERING STRONE FNANCIAL RESULTS = AND VALE TO YOU, GUR

STOCKAGLDERS. (0§ MY FIRST LETTER TO YOU AS RADIAN’S CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER, | WHLL REVIEW RADIAK S

PERFORMMANCE FOR 2005 AND OUTLOOK FOR THE FUTURE AS WELL AS DEFAIL CUR VISION AND STRATEEY:

Importantly, Radian, in 2005, clarified its strategic
vision as a global credit risk management company
delivering a range of mortgage insurance (MI)
solutions and spectalized financial guaranty (FG)
solutions, as well as unique services that are found
at the intersection of our two traditional businesses.
In delivering value to our clients in the acquisition,
management, distribution and mitigation of credit
risk, we clearly have established Radian as more
than a mortgage insurance company and more than
a financial guarantor. This distinction is important
because it opens Radian to a world of new business
opportunities with clients requiring risk management
solutions that extend beyond insurance.

Our focus embodies the unique characteristics and
capabilities that define us and distinguish Radian
from other companies.

+ Our MI and FG businesses, which are very strong
in their own right, are integral components of our
strategy going forward.

— We are one of the top participants in MI. We like
the business. We are good at it. Our customer
segmentation strategy, which we initiated in
2005 to better allocate resources and increase
accountability, will enhance our ability to
capitalize on attractive opportunities.

— We are a AA player in an FG business that is
dominated by AAA participants. This is a unique
and vibrant market niche that we believe has the
potential to provide attractive growth opportunities.

— We are leveraging the advantages that come
from having strong capabilities at the point
where MI and FG intersect. This enables Radian
to be a market leader in delivering unique
risk management solutions.

— Radian is using this unique expertise in effectively
and prudently managing our own mortgage risk.

— The company is building a strong leadership team
able to continue Radian’s established position in
both MI and FG, while growing the business at
the intersection — Radian’s “sweet spot.”

— We are preserving and enhancing a corporate
culture that emphasizes individual accountability,
new ideas and smart risk-taking, while building a
strong sense of team.

We have the right strategy. We are implementing it at
the right pace. And we are seeing the desired results.

I am proud of the strategy that has been developed
and embraced by Radian. After discussing our
financial results, I will provide greater detail on our
vision; the tangible steps we are taking to support it;
the positive developments that already are evident;
and the areas of anticipated growth.
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2005 Financial Review

The year was a success for Radian — especially
considering challenging market conditions — as
the company achieved record net income of $522.9
million, up slightly from 2004’ net income of
$518.7 million.

Among other measures:

+ Our diluted net income per share grew 11% to
$5.91 from $5.33 in 2004

» Book value per share grew 10% to $44.11

* Our return on equity (ROE), another important
metric we use to evaluate our business, was
14.7%, which was at the upper end of our target
range of 12% to 15%

Qur strong performance is an important validation
of our vision and strategy. It also underscores the
fact that Radian continues to be well diversified in
our sources of revenue and earnings — which
strongly positions us for the future.

RETURN ON EQUITY

25%

20.0% 19,59,

20%
" 17.6%

15.0% 14.7%

0
15% 12.9%

10%

5%

1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005

Review of Operations

Mortgage Insurance

Radian’s traditional MI business had net income

in 2005 of $268.6 million, or about 51% of our
overall net income. This achievement was especially
noteworthy as our performance was affected by
several market-driven factors, including low
persistency (the amount of business that stays on
our books for more than 12 months), which ended
the year at 58.2%, compared with 58.8% a year
earlier. Other factors included continued interest in
piggyback or combination loans and other non-MI
products. Despite this, we achieved significant new
client wins in 2005, including several of the nation’s
largest mortgage lenders.

Financial Guaranty

Radian’s financial guaranty business had net

income of $118.1 million in 2005; this constituted
about 23% of the company’s overall net income.

As the industry’s only AA financial guarantor, we
continued our disciplined approach to managing risk
and return, not writing business simply to achieve
growth, but instead to carefully manage our book of
business and portfolio mix.

It was a year of significant and successful transition
for our financial guaranty business. We made
management changes, placed the trade credit line of
business into run-off, improved expense management
and further strengthened the credit risk infrastructure.

As a demonstration of the viability of the AA niche,
total gross par insured increased for all product
lines, totaling $24.7 billion, up 73% from $14.3
billion in 2004.

Financial Services

Our strategic investment activities contributed
$136.2 million, or about 26%, of our overall net
income. These activities include our 46% interest

in C-BASS, which is in the business of acquiring,
servicing and securitizing sub-prime mortgage assets,
and our 34.58% interest in Sherman Financial, which
is a leading purchaser of distressed consumer assets.

“OUR STRONG

PERFORMANCE IS

AN IMPORTANT

VALIDATION OF OUR

VISION AND STRATEGY.

ITALSO UNDERSCORES

THE FACT THAT RADIAN

CONTINUES TO BE WELL

DIVERSIFIED IN OUR

SOURCES OF REVENUE

AND EARNINGS.”
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“RADIAN, IN BRINGING

FG EXPERTISE TO THE

M1 BUSINESS, 1S HELPING
ITS CLIENTS AT NUMEROUS
POINTS OF INTERSECTION
BETWEEN THE TWGO

AXES. THAT'S A UNIQUE
POSITION NOT HELD BY
ANY OTHER COMPANY.

(T'S JUST US.”

In holding board seats at each company, Radian
maintains an active involvement in strategic activities
at both C-BASS and Sherman Financial. We believe
both companies have outstanding prospects and we
are actively exploring new opportunities with each.

Each of these companies possesses positive earnings
track records, and they continue to be important
drivers of Radian’s performance. It is important to
note that net income attributable to C-BASS and
Sherman historically has remained steady, without
significant market-related vacillations. We expect
these businesses to continue to serve as a source of
strong, recurring annuity streams for Radian.

Capital Management

Our performance in 2005 also reflects our capital
management activities, which nicely complemented
our operating results. During 2005, we repurchased
a total of 10.8 million shares, or approximately 12%
of our outstanding shares at December 31, 2004, at
a cost of $533.9 million. We were pleased to deliver
this value to you, our stockholders, and I believe our
ability to buy back shares at this level demonstrates
our focus on capital management in striking the right
balance between maintaining appropriate capital and
investing in the business.

Strategy Review and Update

Radian’s 2005 performance reflects positively on

our key strategies, which I mentioned briefly earlier.
One of the characteristics that distinguishes Radian

is the large number of experienced professionals here,
myself included, who have been clients. As a result,
our strategies, discussed in additional detail below,
are based upon what we know to be the changing
challenges and needs of Radian’s customers.

Our four-point strategy is as follows:

» Jo continue to leverage our existing financial
guaranty expertise with our mortgage
insurance business.

This important initiative — which we believe will be
a key growth driver for Radian going forward — is
worthy of additional explanation.

As you know, Radian operates two traditional
businesses — mortgage insurance and financial
guaranty — each of which has its own characteristics
in terms of growth, challenges, market conditions
and even competitors. At first glance, it would be
easy to view MI and FG as very separate and
parallel businesses.

A more accurate representation would be to view
these businesses as the two axes on a graph. Radian,
in bringing FG expertise to the MI business, is
helping its clients at numerous points of intersection
between the two axes. That’s a unique position not
held by any other company. It’s just us.

It’s what makes us unique, different and exciting, and
more successful than our competition. We blend the
capabilities, expertise and knowledge from these two
businesses into an exciting and new third opportunity.
For Radian, this is not simply the addition of a new
business; it represents a meaningful expansion of our
products and services.

We are focused on growing this business at the
intersection, and we are doing just that. Our
expertise in deal structuring and our ability to
transact in various ways — ranging from credit
default swaps (CDS), to traditional mortgage
insurance policies, to second-to-pay pool policies,
or to a credit enhancement on net interest margin
securities (NIMs) — provides Radian with an
advantage over competitors that may not be able to
offer such customized solutions. We understand
mortgage risk better, which enables us to bring an
unmatched level of expertise to all of these blended
products — because they all use mortgages as the
underlying asset.

It is important to make a key point here: Going
forward, we fully intend to support and drive each
of our traditional businesses, just as in the past, and
capitalize on the vertical opportunities in each of
those businesses. We have been strengthening and
positioning our FG business for strong performance
and we continue to focus on winning successes in
our traditional MI business. They both continue to
be very important.
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+ 1o utilize our blended MI-FG expertise to more
effectively manage — and sometimes distribute —
our own mortgage risk.

Traditionally, Radian took MI risks and held onto
them. Now, we have the option to take those risks
and distribute them — through vehicles such as our
Smart Home solution — into the secondary market,
thus protecting Radian from catastrophic downside
risk, protecting our book value and improving our
risk profile. Smart Home, which we first used in
2004, does not mean we will lose our discipline when
we underwrite non-prime deals. On the contrary, we
will remain as disciplined as we would if we were to
hold those risks.

* 70 continute to build a very strong, strategic
leadership team, focused on creating value — with
the right balance between emphasizing profitability,
controlling expenses, developing and pursuing
growth opportunities and foremost, given the nature
of our business, prudently managing risk.

Suzanne Hammett, our Executive Vice President and
Chief Risk Officer, joined us during the year from
J.P. Morgan Chase & Co. In this critical new position,
Suzanne lends her extensive risk-management
expertise to each of our business functions, as well

as to corporate oversight.

Stephen Cooke, who served Radian as Executive
Vice President and Chief Legal Counsel of our

FG business, was promoted in July 2005 to President
of that business. In this role, Steve is responsible for
overseeing the structured finance, public finance

and financial guaranty reinsurance businesses.

Mark Casale, previously the head of our strategic
investments and then capital markets business,

was appointed in March 2006 to President of our
domestic M1 business. Mark, who sits on the boards
of C-BASS and Sherman Financial, has the additional
responsibility of driving growth for the mortgage
credit risk business. Mark is one of several members
of Radian’s management team who formerly worked
at a client company and, thus, brings an important
added perspective to the company.

Roy Kasmar, who has led the growth of Radian’s

MI business since 1999, in November 2005, was
appointed President, Strategic Initiatives and
International Mortgage. These important activities
complement our core business of residential mortgage
credit risk management, leveraging Roy’s experience
and talent to build new opportunities both in domestic
and international markets.

These four individuals — along with our existing
team of Bob Quint, Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer; Howard Yaruss, Executive
Vice President and General Counsel, and Rob Croner,
Senior Vice President, Human Resources — comprise
the Radian senior management team. [ believe it is as
talented, focused and visionary as any in our business,
and I have great confidence in our team’s ability to
guide us toward our objectives.

* To remain focused on preserving and enhancing
the culture that sets Radian apart from other
companies.

We have been, and will continue to be, dedicated to
building a company that is an exciting place for all

of us to come to; that respects and recognizes people’s
dignity; and which offers an environment where we
are both challenged and rewarded, and where the
culture exemplifies a personal touch.

Outlogk for the Future

Although there always is a lag between implementing
a strategy and seeing the results, I am confident in
stating that Radian entered 2006 as a much stronger
company than it was a year before.

Our strategies — collectively and individually —

are driving our growth. Some of it will be organic,
where we build upon our existing portfolio of
high-performing core and complementary businesses,
and some will be opportunistic, where we identify
new products and relationships that build on our

core expertise.

“WE HAVE BEEN, AND
WILL CONTINUE TO BE,
DEDICATED TO BUILDING
A COMPANY THAT IS AN
EXCITING PLACE FOR ALL

OF USTO COMETO.”
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“AS | STATED EARLIER:

> WE HAVE DEVELOPED
THE RIGHT STRATEGY.

> WE ARE IMPLEMENTING
IT AT THE RIGHT PACE.

> AND WE ARE SEEING
THE DESIRED RESULTS.

| LOOK FORWARD TO
SHARING THE EXPERIENCE
WITH YOU.”

Our plans for prudent and selective international
expansion fall within the opportunistic category.
In 2005, for example, we completed two notable
transactions in Germany and Denmark, with total
risk written of $7.3 billion. We are optimistic that
our relationship with Standard Chartered Bank of
Hong Kong will present additional opportunities.
International expansion is an important component
of our growth strategy. It is important to note,
however, that we do not expect to see meaningful
results from these activities in the near term.

Capital management also will continue to be
important. In 2005, we again demonstrated our
commitment to managing capital efficiently: finding
the right balance between maintaining sufficient
capital to cover risk, and being disciplined in
achieving capital efficiency. This will continue to

be our guiding premise in 2006.

In the mortgage insurance business, we will remain
flexible, smart and opportunistic, and we expect
growth in 2006 to come from non-prime, traditional
and structured mortgage products. We continue to see
positive results from our decision to implement a
customer segmentation strategy for our MI team in
2005, where we divided resources by channel —
making the company more financially accountable,
and both client- and solutions-driven (see page 9 for
more detail on our four MI channels).

The MI business is a good long-term business that
we are committed to and aggressively pursuing.
Our segmentation strategy strongly positions us to
benefit — and grow revenues — from opportunities
in this market.

In financial guaranty, we anticipate growth in existing
product lines, both in structured finance and public
finance, as well as expansion into new product lines.
We will continue to strive to improve return on
equity levels by leveraging our opportunities in niche
market sectors.

While spreads may remain tight, we believe they
will at some point revert to more normal levels.

At that time, we believe Radian will benefit greatly
from our distinctive AA focus.

Our strategic investment activities, as stated earlier,
also will continue to be important. C-BASS, which is
well positioned to perform strongly through diverse
economic scenarios, complements Radian’s capital
markets channel in accessing the sub-prime markets.
Sherman Financial, meanwhile, further diversified
its revenue stream in 2005 through the acquisition
of CreditOne, making it an originator of sub-prime
credit card receivables. Radian will continue to
explore opportunities to leverage these relationships
in the future.

Our commitment to the highest standards of
corporate governance also stands us in good stead
for the future. Our separation of the Chairman role,
which manages the Board, and the Chief Executive
role, which manages the business, is a very tangible
example. I also am very proud to note that Radian
in November 2005 earned an excellent Corporate
Governance Quotient from Institutional Shareholder
Services (ISS). According to ISS, Radian’s corporate
governance practices outperformed 99.6% of
companies within the banking industry and 98.9%
within the S&P 400 Index.

I am delighted with this opportunity to share with
you Radian’s achievements and progress in 2005.
Moving through a transition period is never easy, but
Radian is doing so with vision, enthusiasm and great
discipline. I am pleased at our performance, [ am
thankful for the support you, our stockholders, have
shown us, and I am confident about the future.

As 1 stated earlier:

* We have developed the right strategy.

* We are implementing it at the right pace.

* And we are seeing the desired results.

[ look forward to sharing the experience with you.

Thank you.

S.AL Sbeadlin,

S. A. IBRAHIM
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
APRIL 2006
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EXECUTIVE Q&A

S. A. IBRAHIM, CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Qo In your letter, you clarified Radian’s vision as
a global credit risk management company. Can you
expand on that vision?

Ao For years, Radian has provided a range of
mortgage insurance and specialized financial
guaranty products. We know and understand our
markets, and our clients trust us. Nothing there has
changed. What our vision does is help us to focus
on Radian’s “sweet spot” — the intersection of these
two capabilities where we can offer expertise and

solutions that are ahead of the competition.

Qo What are some of the products that lie at
the intersection of financial guaranty and mortgage
insurance?

Ao Products such as credit default swaps, second-
loss pool insurance, net interest margin securities

and our own Smart Home solution are good examples
of how we can blend our strong capabilities to

add real value for our clients. And because we
understand mortgage risk better, we’re able to

bring an unmatched level of expertise to all of these
blended products — because they use mortgages as
the underlying asset.

Qo What is Radian focusing on in 20067

Ao We are focused on four key strategies:

1) To continue to leverage our financial guaranty

expertise within our mortgage insurance business;

2) To utilize our blended MI-FG expertise to more
effectively manage — and sometimes distribute —

our own mortgage risk;

3) To continue to build a strong, strategic leadership
team, focused on creating value; and

4) To preserve and enhance the culture that sets Radian
apart from other companies.

We have the right strategy. We are implementing it at
the right pace. And we are seeing the desired results.

Qa Where will Radian’s growth come from in 2006?

Ao The strategies I mentioned earlier are driving
our growth, Some of it will be organic, where we
will build upon our existing portfolio of high-
performing core and complementary businesses

such as traditional and non-traditional MI products
and structured solutions in both MI and FG. And
some of our growth will be opportunistic, where we
identify new products and relationships that build on
our core expertise — and leverage the intersection of

our businesses.

“WHAT OUR VISION

DOES IS HELP US TO

FOCUS ON RADIAN’S

‘SWEET SPOT".....”
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SUMMARY OF RADIAN CORPORATE STRUCTURE

FINANCIAL GUtARANTY

Radian Asset
Assurance Inc.t
(AA/AaB/N\\)

Radian Asset Radian Financial

irroducts Ltd

Assurance Ltd:*
(AA/NR/AA)

2005 Contribution to Net Income**

23%

Segment Equity at 12/31/05

$1,251 MM

RADIAN
1 MORTGAGE INSURANCE

Radian Guaranty Inct
{AAfAQ3/AR)

FINANCIAL SERVICES

C-BASS

Sherman

46% Interest 34.58% Interest

Radian
Insurance Inc¥
(AAfAQ3/AA)

$2,081 MM

Radian Mortgage
Services Ltd*

$331 MM

T For more information regarding the financial strength ratings assigned to our rated insurance subsidiaries, see “Management s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Business Summary — Financial Guaramy " beginning on page 19,

* International entities

** A summary of financial information for each of our operating segments and a disctission of net premiums earned auriburable 10 our domestic and internasional
operations for each of the last three fiscal years is included in "Segment Reporting ™ in Note 2 10 our Consolidated Financial Statements.,

HIGHLIGHTS OF RADIAN’S HISTORY

1977 — Commonwealth Mortgage Assurance

Company (CMAC), Radian’s predecessor
company, is founded.

1992 — CMAC goes public.

1999 — CMAC and Amerin merge, forming

Radian and its Ml subsidiary.

2001 — Radian acquires Enhance Financiat
Services Group, including strategic interests in

(-BASS and Sherman Financial.

2002 — Principal operating entities unite

under the Radian brand.

2003 — Radian receives authorization by U.K’s
Financial Services Authority to create subsidiary,
Radian Asset Assurance Limited.

2004 — Radian receives authorization by the
U.Ks Financial Services Authority to create
subsidiary, Radian Financial Products Limited.

Financial Guaranty subsidiaries, Radian
Reinsurance and Radian Asset Assurance,
merge into Radian Asset Assurance Inc.

2005 — Radian forms relationship with
Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited.
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Business Direct
(Regional Lenders)

Strategic Accounts
(National Accounts)

Capltal Markes
bull, poel, secands,
Nis, 2nd credh
default swags)

integnational
(Simuetured znd flow
Ml outside of the U.S:)

©
wnm

Regional lenders, builders,
credit unions, state
housing authorities

{e.g., regional banks)

National lenders, GSEs
{e.g., top national lenders)

Non-prime originators,
aggregators, Wall St.
(e.g., sub-prime lenders)

Non-U.S. domiciled
lenders, offshore subs
{e.g., major Asian bank)

MORTGAGE CREDIT RISK STRATEGIES FOR SUCCESS

Prime M, sales and
underwriting support,
training

Customization,
innovative risk-sharing

structures

Best execution,
innovative structures

Capital relief,
innovative products

Expand sales and support
coverage and offer
appropriate new proclucts

" Provide tailored solutions,

| fast response, and offer

proactive ideas (Ml and FG)
to improve execution

Offer unique FG solutions;
be highly selective and
share risks/rewards

Offer broad mortgage
and FG capabilities
(nat limited to MI)

Tailored Lender-Paid

:

i

Mortgage Insurance
(LPMI), butk deals

Innovative FG structure led
to increased revenue and
market share, offsetting
drop in traditional Ml

Smart Home, NIMs,
Credit Default Swaps

Hong Kong relationship,

; Credit Default Swaps

MORTGAGE INSURANCE

Our mortgage insurance business provides credit-related insurance coverage, primarily
private mortgage insurance, and risk management services to mortgage lenders in the
United States and select countries overseas. Mortgage insurance serves several important
purposes: protecting lenders from default-related losses on residential first-lien mortgages,
facilitating the sale of low-downpayment mortgages in the secondary market and helping
consumers with limited savings to achieve homeownership.

Radian offers several products and services outside of traditional mortgage insurance,
including pool insurance; insurance on second-lien mortgages; credit enhancement on
net interest margin securities and domestic credit default swaps.
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FINANCIAL GUARANTY STRATEGIES FOR SUCCESS

Domestic
Public
Finance

Structured Finance

Reinsurance

Relnstiange]

S DITE z . et

Municipal Bond
Issuers and Obligors

Financial Institutions

Triple-A Monoline
Financial Guaranty
Insurers

WELDS

Cost-effective access

- to capital markets

Synthetic capital
. markets solution

for credit risk
portfalio relief

; Capacity relief

Strong underlying

credits in niche markets

Credit default swaps
on CDOs of synthetic
corporate and/or

Leading insurer for
rural health care
providers

i Radian-designed

portfolios of corporate

. debt with triple-A

asset-backed obligations

Increased focus on
facultative reinsurance

attachment point

New business profitability

FINANCIAL GUARANTY

Radian’s financial guaranty insurance provides an unconditional and irrevocable guaranty
to the holder of a financial obligation of full and timely payment of scheduled principal
and interest when due. Our financial guaranty business offers the following products:

* Insurance of municipal obligations, including tax-exempt and taxable indebtedness
of states, counties, cities and special service districts, and for enterprises such as
airports, private education, and health care facilities;

* Insurance of structured finance transactions including CDOs and asset-backed securities.
consisting of funded and non-funded (synthetic) executions that are payable from or tied
to the performance of a specific pool of assets;

* Financial solutions products, including guaranties of securities exchanges, excess-SIPC
insurance for brokerage firms and excess-FDIC insurance for banks; and

* Reinsurance of public finance bonds, including those issued by sovereign and
sub-sovereign entities, as well as structured finance transactions, financial solutions
and trade credit obligations.

10
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FINANCIAL SE

)
Inn)
)
=
(@)
vy

S STRATEGIES FOR SUCCESS

Sravs S 508 S SL0lEEss
Purchases, services and securitizes ‘ Capitalizes on ownership of Strong earnings growth,
credit-sensitive residential i top-rated special servicer, which ROE and cash flow
mortgage assets enhances the value of its assets

Built servicing partfolio to
Complements Radian’s capital more than $43 billion
markets channel in accessing

the sub-prime markets Net income for 2005

of $241 miltion

Sherman Fnancial Purchases and services distressed Originator of subprime credit card

j Strong earnings growth,
consumer debt i receivables through the acquisition } ROE and cash flow
of CreditOne in March 2005 j

‘g 2005 revenue of $830 miltion;
" netincome of $288 million

Assets of $979 million

FINANCIAL SERVICES

Our financial services segment includes the credit-based businesses conducted
through our affiliates, C-BASS and Sherman Financial, in which we own 46% and
34.58% interests, respectively.

C-BASS is a mortgage investment and servicing firm specializing in acquiring, servicing
and securitizing sub-prime mortgage assets. By using sophisticated analytics, C-BASS
seeks to take advantage of what it believes to be the mispricing of credit risk for certain
assets in the marketplace. Sherman Financial is a consumer asset and servicing firm

{ specializing in charged-off and bankruptcy plan consumer assets, as well as charged-off

! high loan-to-value (LTV) mortgage receivables that it generally purchases at deep discounts
from national financial institutions and major retail corporations and subsequently
collects upon those receivables.

11
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SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following table sets forth our selected financial data. This information should be read in conjunction
with our Consolidated Financial Statements, the related Notes thereto and the information included in
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.”

2005 2004 2003 2002 2001(1)
(In millions, except per-share amounts and ratios)

Condensed Consolidated Statements of Income

Net premiums WItten . . ... ..ovvetveneernnen $1,100.7 $1,0825 $1,1105 $ 9549 $ 783.6
Netpremiumsearned ............... ... ........ $1,0187 $1,029.5 $1,0082 $ 8471 $ 7159
Net investment income . .. ...........oouveernn... 208.4 204.3 186.2 178.8 147.5
Net gains on sales of investments ................ 36.6 50.8 17.4 10.5 6.8
Change in fair value of derivative instruments ...... 9.2 47.1 4.1 (13.0) 5.8
Otherincome ............itiriiiiinnanan.. 25.2 32.3 63.3 44 4 42.5
Total revenues .......... ... . .. 1,298.1 1,364.0 1,279.2 1,067.8 906.9
Provision forlosses ........................... 390.6 456.8 476.1 243.4 208.1
Policy acquisition costs and other operating

EXPEISES . ot vttt e e 341.9 327.5 339.6 276.1 216.8
Interestexpense ............. ... .. ... ... 43.0 34.7 375 28.8 17.8
Equity in net income of affiliates . ................ 217.7 180.6 105.5 81.8 41.3
Pretaxincome ... ...... ... ... .. ... .. . . . 740.3 725.6 531.5 601.3 505.5
Netineome . ...t e 5229 518.7 385.9 427.2 360.4
Diluted net income per share (2) ................. $ 591 $ 533 §$ 395 $§ 427 $ 388
Cash dividends declared per share ................ $ .08 % 08 $ 08 $ .08 $§ 075
Average shares outstanding-diluted . .............. 88.7 97.9 98.5 99.5 92.0
Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets
Total @SSets .. ..ot $7230.6 $7,000.8 $6,4458 $5,393.4 $4,4386
Totalinvestments ................ .. i, 5,513.7 5,470.1 5,007.4 4,200.3 3,369.5
Unearned premiums . ...........oveeuunenen ... 849.4 770.2 718.6 618.1 5139
Reserve for losses and loss adjustment expenses . . . . . 801.0 801.0 790.4 624.6 588.6
Short-term and long-termdebt .. ................. 747.5 717.6 717.4 544.1 324.1
Redeemable preferred stock ............. ... . ... — — — — 40.0
Stockholders” equity . .......... ... ... .. ... ... 3,662.9 3,689.1 3,225.8 2,753.4 2,306.3
Book valuepershare .......................... $ 4411 $ 3998 $ 3431 $ 2942 $§ 2454
Selected Ratios—Mortgage Insurance (3)
LOSSratio . ..oviv i i e e e 44.5% 49.2% 40.7% 29.4% 29.4%
Expenseratio ............... ... iiia.. 26.7 26.6 25.8 26.6 253
Combinedratio ........ ... ... ..o 71.2% 75.8% 66.5% 56.0% 54.7%
Selected Ratios—Financial Guaranty (3)
LOSSTatio ...t e 14.9% 26.0% 67.1% 26.2% 27.2%
Expenseratio .............. ... 0. 55.7 45.9 38.8 33.0 40.8
Combinedratio .......... ... ... 70.6% 71.9% 105.9% 59.2% 68.0%
Other Data—Mortgage Insurance
Primary new insurance written .. ................. $ 42592 $ 44820 $ 68362 $ 48,767 $ 44,754
Direct primary insurance in force ................ 109,684 115,315 119,887 110,273 107,918
Direct primary riskinforce ..................... 25,729 27,012 27,106 26,273 26,004
Total poolriskinforce . ....... ... ... ... ... ..., 2,711 2,384 2,415 1,732 1,571
Total otherrisk inforce (4) .. ................... 9,709 1,205 1,053 475 348
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2005 2004 2003 2002 2001(1)
(In millions, except per-share amounts and ratios)

Other Data—Financial Guaranty (5)

Net premiums Written .. .........uunernneeno... § 223§ 216 $ 369 $ 286 § 143
Netpremiumsearned ........................... 212 214 249 187 106
Netparoutstanding ............. .. c.iiiiiian.. 76,652 66,720 76,997 66,337 59,544
Net debt service outstanding .. ................... 110,344 101,620 117,900 104,756 97,940

(1) On February 28, 2001, we acquired Enhance Financial Services Group Inc. The results for 2001 include the
results of operations for Enhance Financial Services Group Inc. from the date of acquisition. See Note I to
our Consolidated Financial Statements.

(2) Diluted net income per share and average share information per Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 128, “Earnings Per Share.” Amounts reflect the inclusion of shares underlying contingently
convertible debt, which was redeemed on August 1, 2005. See Note 2 to our Consolidated Financial
Statements.

(3) Calculated on a GAAP basis using provision for losses to calculate the loss ratio and policy acquisition costs
and other operating expenses to calculate the expense ratio as a percentage of net premiums earned.

(4) Consists mostly of international insurance risk, second-lien mortgage insurance risk and other structured
mortgage-related insurance risk.

(5) Amounts for 2005 and 2004 reflect the recapture of previously ceded business by one of the primary insurer
customers of our financial guaranty business in the first quarter of 2005 and 2004. See Note 2 to our

Consolidated Financial Statements.

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following analysis of our financial condition and results of operations should be read in conjunction
with our Consolidated Financial Statements, the related Notes thereto and the information detailed in the “Risk

Factors™ section of this report.

Overview

We provide credit protection products and financial services to mortgage lenders and other global financial
institutions. As a holder of credit risk, our results are subject to macroeconomic conditions and specific events
that impact the credit performance of the underlying insured assets. We experienced good results for 2003,
although the business production environment for mortgage insurance and financial guaranty insurance continued
to present challenges. The results of our mortgage insurance business were generally good in 2005, but revenues
decreased slightly from the prior year due mainly to a continued high level of refinancings. An increase in new
structured transactions and non-traditional products has partially offset the effects of the continuing
unprecedented refinance wave, This refinance wave has caused continued high cancellation rates which, along
with production challenges due to the increased popularity of alternatives to mortgage insurance products, has
negatively impacted insurance in force. Positively, credit performance was strong as mortgage insurance claims
were very low in 2005, but this was offset by an increase in delinquencies, which is a leading indicator of future
claims. The mortgage insurance mix of business has continued to include a higher percentage of lower credit
profile business such as Alternative A (“Alt-A”) and A minus mortgages and new unproven products such as
interest-only loans. This is considered a growth area of the market as some of the prime mortgage market
continues to be absorbed by “80-10-10" arrangements and other hybrid products that do not typically include
mortgage insurance. We expect to continue to increase our insurance of new and emerging products that we have
less experience with both domestically and internationally, which adds to the uncertainty of future credit
performance. However, premiums received for these products are higher than more traditional products and often
have structuring features such as deductibles that benefit our risk position. As has been the case for the last
several years, much of our business has not yet reached its peak claim period. In the financial guaranty business,
new business production generally continued to be challenged by tight credit spreads, which impacted premium
rates more than it did our ability to close transactions. Direct public finance production remained strong and




credit performance was generally good. We have also been writing more of our structured business in a super
senior, more remote risk area. For 2005, the financial services segment showed another period of strong earnings
and return on investment, which was, in part, a result of the low interest rate and favorable credit environment
and a strong demand from investors in asset-backed securities.

We believe that our diversified credit enhancement and prudent capital management strategies are sound,
and we intend to continue to implement these strategies. We see a continued convergence between the mortgage
insurance and financial guaranty markets, with an emphasis on structured credit enhancement products, including
credit default swaps, becoming more common in the mortgage credit enhancement market. In the mortgage
insurance business, we are hopeful that stability in the housing and job markets can continue to positively impact
credit performance and that modestly rising interest rates will help reduce cancellation rates, although these
macroeconomic factors remain outside of our control. We will continue to be challenged to solidify our unique
AA financial guaranty business platform by continuing to demonstrate the ability to diversify cur products, and
to grow and write quality business, which will in turn solidify our franchise. This may be difficult in a
competitive, tight credit-spread environment. We have begun to slowly see some success in our efforts to
increase our presence in the global markets for both mortgage and financial guaranty business. This will allow us
to take advantage of our core competencies of credit risk analysis and capital allocation to write profitable
business in Europe and Asia, although we don’t expect this to be a significant source of earnings for several
years.

During 2005, Hurricanes Katrina, Rita and Wilma struck and caused extensive property damage to the
U.S. Gulf Coast in Alabama, Louisiana, Mississippi, Florida and Texas. Our total exposure in affected counties
and parishes designated by FEMA for individual assistance as of January 2006 (“FEMA-designated areas”) is as
follows:

*  Mortgage Insurance. Our mortgage insurance primary and pool exposure to first- and second-lien
mortgages is approximately $2.5 billion of risk in force on approximately $13.5 billior of insurance in
force. This exposure represents approximately 8.4% of our total mortgage insurance risk in force as of
December 31, 2005. Approximately 35% of this exposure is on non-prime loans. Under our master
policy of insurance, we are permitted to adjust a claim where the property underlying a mortgage in
default is subject to unrestored physical damage.

e Public Finance. Our total public finance exposure to FEMA-designated areas is approximately $581
million in direct net par exposure and $899 million in assumed net par exposure (including $17.8
million in assumed net par exposure to the city of New Orleans) through reinsurance from several
Aaa/AAA rated monoline financial guarantors. This total net par exposure represents about 3.1% of our
total net par public finance exposure as of December 31, 2005. In the event of a claim, we typically are
obligated under our public finance insurance policies to continue making regularly scheduled payments
of debt service as and when due; and therefore, we are not initially responsible for, and may never
become liable for, the entire amount of such obligation. We believe that certain obligations in the
affected areas will require principal and interest advances although the ultimate losses, if any, from such
obligations are uncertain.

e Structured Finance. Our total structured finance exposure to FEMA-designated areas is approximately
$140.3 million, including $56.9 million in direct net par exposure and $83.4 million in assumed net par
exposure to insured asset-backed and mortgage-backed obligations. In addition, we also are exposed to
direct pooled corporate obligations and/or obligations of asset-backed securities; however, we believe
there is significant diversification of assets, both as to type and geographical dispersion of the collateral
in these pools, and as a result, we view our exposure in these structures to the affected arecas as
immaterial. We also reinsure pooled corporate obligations that include corporate credits affected by the
hurricanes. Defaulis of these credits would not likely result in a material claim against us given the
degree of credit protection beneath our exposure.
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Since August 29, 2005, we have paid approximately $0.1 million in claims on insurance written in
FEMA-designated areas. While we have experienced an increase in defaults in mortgage insurance in FEMA-
designated areas—approximately 6,700 defaults (3,700 related to Katrina) as of December 31, 2005—it is too
early to tell how many claims we ultimately may have to pay on these defaults. There are many factors that are
contributing to the uncertainty surrounding these defaults. The organizations servicing these loans are reporting
defaults, in some cases, despite the existence of forbearance agreements that permit homeowners to defer
mortgage payments on these loans. In addition, we anticipate, but cannot be certain, that aid (both from private
organizations and from federal, state and local governments) and payments from property and casualty insurers
will help to reduce the number of potential claims in these areas by providing a direct source of cash to
homeowners and also serving as an economic stimulus in these areas. Limitations also exist in our master policy
of insurance that could prevent us from paying all or part of a claim. For example, we are permitted to adjust a
claim where the property underlying a mortgage in default is subject to unrestored physical damage. The level of
damage being reported in the areas where the defaulting loans are located varies significantly from region to
region.

Until we have a better understanding of how many of the hurricane-related defauits are likely to result in
claims, we intend to reserve for these mortgage insurance defaults as we would for any other non-hurricane-
related delinquencies. We therefore, have not taken a view that these loans will perform better or worse than any
other delinquencies. As of December 31, 2005, we had established a related mortgage insurance loss reserve of
$58.5 million related to the 6,700 hurricane-related defaults, including a reserve of $27.6 million for the 3,700
defaults associated with Hurricane Katrina.

As part of our own comprehensive relief program initiated in response to these hurricanes, we are
supporting more flexible mortgage payment terms in order to accommodate the financial needs of homeowners
in affected areas.

Business Summary

Our principal business segments are mortgage insurance, financial guaranty and financial services. The
following table shows the percentage contributions to net income and equity allocated to each segment for the
year ended December 31, 2005:

Net Income  Equity

Mortgage INSUrance . .......... .. .. i 51% 57%
Financial Guaranty ... ... ... . . e 23% 34%

Financial Services .. ..o i 26% 9%

Mortgage Insurance

Our mortgage insurance business provides credit-related insurance coverage, principally through private
mortgage insurance, and risk management services to mortgage lending institutions located throughout the
United States and select countries overseas. We provide these products and services through our wholly-owned
subsidiaries, Radian Guaranty Inc., Amerin Guaranty Corporation and Radian Insurance Inc. (which we refer to
as “Radian Guaranty,” “Amerin Guaranty” and “Radian Insurance”). Private mortgage insurance protects
mortgage lenders from all or a portion of default-related losses on residential first mortgage loans made mostly to
home buyers who make down payments of less than 20% of the home’s purchase price. Private mortgage
insurance also facilitates the sale of these mortgage loans in the secondary mortgage market, some of which are
sold to the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp. (“Freddie Mac™) and the Federal National Mortgage Association
(“Fannie Mae”). We sometimes refer to Freddie Mac and Fannie Mae collectively as “Government Sponsored
Enterprises™ or “GSEs.”

Our mortgage insurance business, through Radian Guaranty, offers primary and pool private mortgage
insurance coverage on residential first-lien mortgages. At December 31, 2005, primary insurance on first-lien
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mortgages made up 90% of our total first-lien mortgage insurance risk in force, and pool insurance on first-lien
mortgages made up 10% of our total first-lien mortgage insurance risk in force. We use Radian Insurance to
provide credit enhancement for mortgage-related capital market transactions and to write credit insurance on
mortgage-related assets that monoline mortgage guaranty insurers are not permitted to insure, including net
interest margin securities (“NIMs”), international insurance transactions, second-lien mortgages, home equity
loans and credit default swaps (collectively, we refer to the risk associated with these transactions as “other risk
in force”). We also insure second-lien mortgages through Amerin Guaranty. At December 31, 2005, other risk in
force was 25.5% of our total mortgage insurance risk in force.

We carefully review and assess international markets for opportunities to expand our mortgage insurance
operations. During 2005, we increased the level of mortgage insurance business that we have been writing
internationally. On several occasions, we have provided credit protection on pools of mortgages in the United
Kingdom (“U.K.”) and in the Netherlands, and we have applied for authorization to conduct mortgage insurance
operations in the U.K. In 2004 and early in 2005, we entered into two mortgage reinsurance transactions in
Australia, and in the fourth quarter of 2005, we wrote $7.3 billion in notional value of credit protection in credit
default swap form on two large AAA tranches of mortgage-backed securities, one in Germany and one in
Denmark. We’ve also recently entered into a relationship with one of the largest mortgage lenders in Hong Kong
to serve as its exclusive provider of mortgage insurance. We are in the process of applying for branch
authorization in Hong Kong.

Premium rates for our mortgage insurance business are determined on a risk-adjusted basis that includes
borrower, loan and property characteristics. We use proprietary default and prepayment models to project the
premiums we should charge, the losses and expenses we should expect to incur and the capital we need to hold in
support of our risk. Pricing is established in an amount that we expect will allow a reasonable return on allocated
capital. We generally cannot cancel or elect not to renew the mortgage insurance that we provide and, because
we generally establish premium rates for the life of the policy when issued, we cannot adjust renewal premiums
or otherwise adjust premiums over the life of the policy to mitigate the effect of adverse developments.

Our mortgage insurance business depends on a small number of lenders for a substantial portion of its
business. Our top 10 mortgage insurance customers measured by primary risk in force were responsible for
44.6% of the direct primary risk in force at December 31, 2005. The top 10 customers were also responsible for
57.3% of primary new insurance written in 2005. The largest single mortgage insurance customer (including
branches and affiliates of such customer), measured by new insurance written, accounted for 10.6% of new
insurance written during 2005, compared to 9.6% in 2004 and 10.4% in 2003. The concentration of business with
our mortgage insurance customers may increase or decrease as a result of many factors. These customers may
reduce the amount of business currently done with us or cease doing business with us altogether. Our master
policies and related lender agreements do not, and by law cannot, require lenders to do business with us. The loss
of business from a major lender could have a materially adverse atfect on our business and financial results. We
expect customer concentration to continue as a result of the ongoing consolidation in the financial services
industry in general and the mortgage industry in particular.

In 2005, in an effort to more appropriately align our mortgage insurance business to meet the needs of a
changing business environment resulting from lender consolidation, centralization, and a movement toward a
more capital markets risk-based approach, we reorganized our sales and marketing efforts to focus on four
separate channels of customers: Business Direct, Strategic Accounts, Capital Markets and International.
Customers are grouped into the above categories and they are serviced by four separate business units. Each
channel has a business manager with profit and loss responsibility and accountability. In addition, each channel
has adopted a specific and focused approach to sustaining profitable growth. In each channel, there is a priority
of maximizing return on capital, enhancing top line and bottom line growth, and an ongoing pursuit of achieving
efficiencies through cost reductions and increased productivity.
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We and other companies in the mortgage insurance industry participate in reinsurance arrangements with
mortgage lenders commonly referred to as “captive reinsurance arrangements.” Under captive reinsurance
arrangements, a mortgage lender typically establishes a reinsurance company that assumes part of the risk
associated with that lender’s mortgages that are insured by a mortgage insurer on an individual,
mortgage-by-mortgage basis (as compared to mortgages insured in structured transactions, which typically are
not eligible for captive reinsurance arrangements). In return for the reinsurance company’s assumption of a
portion of the risk, the mortgage insurer cedes a portion of its mortgage insurance premiums to the reinsurance
company. In most cases, the risk assumed by the reinsurance company is an excess layer of aggregate losses that
would be penetrated only in a situation of adverse loss development, such as losses brought on by national or
regional downturns in the real estate market.

Because of many factors, including the incentives for mortgage lenders to funnel relatively higher-quality
loans through the captive reinsurer, we continue to evaluate the level of revenue sharing against risk sharing on a
customer-by-customer basis as part of our customer profitability analysis. We believe that all of our captive
reinsurance arrangements transfer risk to the captive reinsurer at a premium rate that is commensurate with the
risk. For 2005, premiums ceded under captive reinsurance arrangements were $92.9 million or 11.5% of total
premiums earned during the period, compared to $87.3 million or 11.3% of total premiums earned for the same
period of 2004 and $73.6 million or 10.0% for 2003. New primary insurance written under captive reinsurance
arrangements for 2005 was $12.2 billion or 28.7% of total primary new insurance written, compared to $17.8
billion or 39.7% of total primary new insurance written for 2004 and $21.9 billion or 32.1% for 2003. These
percentages can be volatile as a result of increases or decreases in the volume of structured transactions, which
are not typically eligible for captive reinsurance arrangements. We and other mortgage insurers have faced
private lawsuits alleging, among other things, that our captive reinsurance arrangements constitute unlawful
payments to mortgage lenders under the anti-referral fee provisions of the Real Estate Settlement Practices Act of
1974 (“RESPA”). We also have been subject to inquiries from the New York insurance department relating to
our captive reinsurance arrangements.

We have delegated underwriting programs with a significant number of our customers. Our delegated
underwriting programs allow lenders to commit us to insure loans that meet agreed-upon underwriting
guidelines. Delegated loans are submitted to us in various ways—fax, electronic data interchange and through the
Internet. Our delegated underwriting programs currently include only lenders that are approved by our risk
management area, and we routinely audit loans submitted under this program. Once we accept a lender into our
delegated underwriting program, however, we generally insure all loans submitted to us by that lender even if the
lender has not followed our specified underwriting guidelines. Although we have not experienced this to date, a
lender could commit us to insure a material number of loans with unacceptable risk profiles before we discover
the problem and terminate that lender’s delegated underwriting authority. We mitigate this risk through periodic,
on-site reviews of selected delegated lenders. As of December 31, 2005, approximately 28% of the insurance in
force on our books was originated on a delegated basis, compared to 30% as of December 31, 2004. To date,
there have been no significant issues with loans originated on a delegated basis.

Our mortgage insurance business also utilizes its underwriting skills to provide an outsourced underwriting
service to its customers known as contract underwriting. For a fee, we underwrite loan files for secondary market
compliance, while concurrently assessing the file for mortgage insurance if applicable. We give recourse to our
customers on loans we underwrite for compliance. If we make a material error in underwriting a loan, we agree
to provide a remedy of repurchasing or placing additional mortgage insurance coverage on the loan or
indemnifying the customer against loss. For 2005, loans written via contract underwriting accounted for 11.7% of
applications, 11.4% of commitments, and 10.1% of certificates issued by our mortgage insurance business,
compared to 20.6%, 19.7% and 17.9%, respectively, for 2004 and 26.8%, 25.8% and 22.6%, respectively, for
2003. From time to time, we sell, on market terms, loans we have purchased under contract underwriting
remedies to our affiliate, Credit-Based Asset Servicing and Securitization LLC (“C-BASS”). During 2005, we
sold $1.6 million of loans sold to C-BASS compared to $4.3 million of loans to C-BASS during 2004.
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Financial Guaranty

We entered the financial guaranty business through our acquisition in 2001 of Enhance Financial Services
Group Inc. (“EFSG”), a New York-based holding company that mainly provides financial guaranty insurance
and reinsurance. Financial guaranty insurance generally provides an unconditional and irrevocable guaranty to
the holder of a financial obligation of full and timely payment of principal and interest when due.

Our financial guaranty business offers the following products:

* insurance of municipal obligations, which include tax-exempt and taxable indebtedness of states,
counties, cities, utility districts and other political subdivisions, bonds issued by sovereign and
sub-sovereign entities and financings for enterprises such as airports, public and private higher
education and health care facilities, where the issuers of such obligations are typically rated investment
grade (BBB-/Baa3 or higher);

* insurance of structured finance transactions, consisting of funded and non-funded or “synthetic” asset-
backed obligations that are payable from or tied to the performance of a specific pool of assets and that
offer a defined cash flow. Examples include residential and commercial mortgages, a variety of
consumer loans, corporate loans and bonds, equipment receivables, real and personal property leases
and collateralized corporate debt obligations, including obligations of counterparties under derivative
transactions and credit default swaps. The insured obligations in our financial guaranty business are
generally rated investment-grade, without the benefit of our insurance;

» financial solutions products included in our structured direct business consisting of guaranties of
securities exchanges, excess-Securities Investor Protection Corporation (“SIPC”) insurance for
brokerage firms and excess-Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”) insurance for banks; and

» reinsurance of public finance, structured finance, financial solutions and trade credit obligations in
which we generally rely on the underwriting performed by the primary insurer.

In October 2005, we announced that we would be exiting the trade credit reinsurance line of business.
Accordingly, this line of business has been placed into run-off and we have ceased initiating new trade credit
reinsurance contracts going forward. We expect that our existing trade credit reinsurance business, including
claims paid, will take several years to run off, although we expect that the bulk of the remaining premiums will
be earned and losses incurred over the next two years. Management does not consider the trade credit line of
business to be core to our financial guaranty business, and we do not expect that our move to exit the trade credit
reinsurance line of business will materially impact the overall profitability or business position of our financial
guaranty business. However, in the short-term, our decision to exit the trade credit reinsurance line of business
will likely have a negative impact on certain financial measures for our financial guaranty business as this
business line continues to run off. Trade credit insurance protects sellers of goods under certain circumstances
against non-payment of their receivables, and covers receivables where the buyer and seller are in the same
country, as well as cross-border receivables. In the latter instance, the coverage sometimes extends to certain
political risks (foreign currency controls, expropriation, etc.) that potentially could interfere with the payment
from the buyer. In 2005, trade credit reinsurance accounted for 15.7% of financial guaranty’s net premiums
written, down from 27.4% of financial guaranty’s net premiums written in 2004.

In our financial guaranty business, the issuer of an insured obligation generally pays the premiums for our
insurance either in full at the inception of the policy or, in the case of most structured finance transactions, in
monthly, quarterly, semi-annual or annual installments from the cash flow of the related collateral. Premiums for
synthetic credit protection are generally paid in monthly, quarterly, semi-annual or annual installments, but
occasionally all or a portion of the premium is paid upfront at the inception of the protection. However, in
synthetic credit protection transactions, payment is due directly from our counterparty and is generally not
restricted to the cash flows from the underlying obligation or collateral supporting the obligation. Since we
depend on the corporate creditworthiness of our counterparty rather than the cash flows from the insured
collateral for payment, we generally have a right to terminate synthetic credit protection without penalty to us if
our counterparty fails to pay amounts owed to us when due under the terms of the synthetic credit protection.
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For public finance transactions, premiums are typically paid upfront and premium rates typically are stated
as a percentage of debt service, which includes total principal and interest. For structured finance transactions,
premiums are paid in installments over time and premium rates typically are stated as a percentage of the total
principal. Premiums are generally non-refundable. Premiums paid in full at inception are recorded as revenue
“earned” over the life of the insured obligation (or the coverage period for such obligation if shorter). Premiums
paid in installments are generally recorded as revenue in the accounting period in which coverage is provided.
This long and relatively predictable premium earnings pattern from our public finance transactions provides us
with a relatively predictable source of future revenues. The establishment of a premium rate for a transaction
reflects some or all of the following factors:

* issuer-related factors, such as the issuer’s credit strength and sources of income;

» servicer-related factors, such as the ability of our counterparty or third-party servicer to manage the
underlying collateral and the servicer’s credit strength and sources of income;

» obligation-related factors, such as the type of issue, the type and amount of collateral pledged, the
revenue sources and amounts, the existence of structural features designed to provide additional credit
enhancement should collateral performance not meet original expectations, the nature of any restrictive
covenants and the length of time until the obligation’s stated maturity; and

» insurer- and market-related factors, such as rating agency capital charges, competition, if any, from
other insurers and the credit spreads in the market available to pay premiums.

The majority of insured public finance and structured finance transactions are guaranteed by triple-A rated
financial guaranty insurers. As a AA/Aa3-rated company, our financial guaranty business mainly targets distinct
niches in the capital markets. There is generally a greater interest cost savings to an issuer by using triple-A rated
credit enhancement as compared to our AA/Aa3 rated credit enhancement. However, financial guaranty
insurance provided by a lower-rated provider also can provide significant value over uninsured executions in
markets where the triple-A rated financial guaranty insurance is unavailable or uneconomical. In some markets,
issuers and other counterparties receive no additional rating agency credit or regulatory relief from triple-A rated
enhancement than they do with our AA/Aa3 enhancement, so our enhancement in these markets may be more
economical.

On April 27, 2005, Fitch affirmed the “AA” insurance financial strength rating of Radian Asset Assurance
Inc. (“Radian Asset Assurance”), our principal financial guaranty operating subsidiary, and Radian Asset
Assurance Limited (“RAAL”), a subsidiary of Radian Asset Assurance that is authorized to conduct insurance
business in the UK., but revised its ratings outlook for the two entities to Negative from Stable. Fitch’s ratings
for us and our other rated subsidiaries are unchanged. None of the primary insurance customers of our financial
guaranty business have any recapture rights as a result of this ratings action by Fitch.

Effective June 1, 2004, EFSG’s two main operating subsidiaries, Radian Asset Assurance and Radian
Reinsurance Inc. (“Radian Reinsurance”) were merged, with Radian Asset Assurance as the surviving company.
Through this merger, the financial guaranty reinsurance business formerly conducted by Radian Reinsurance was
combined with the direct financial guaranty business conducted by Radian Asset Assurance. The merger also
combined the assets, liabilities and stockholders’ equity of the two companies. Prior to the merger, Moody’s
Investor Service (“Moody’s”) downgraded the insurance financial strength rating of Radian Reinsurance from
Aa? to Aa3.

As a result of this downgrade, two of the primary insurer customers of our financial guaranty reinsurance
business had the right to recapture previously written business ceded to our financial guaranty reinsurance
business. Effective February 28, 2005, one of these customers recaptured approximately $7.4 billion of par in
force that it had ceded to us, including $54.7 million of written premiums as of February 28, 2005, $4.5 million
of which was recorded as an immediate reduction of premiums earned at the time of the recapture, which
represents the difference between statutory accounting requirements (“STAT”) and accounting principles

20




generally accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”) unearned premiums. This return of unearned
premiums resulted in an increase in policy acquisition costs of $1.7 million. The aggregate result was a reduction
in pre-tax income of $6.2 million, or approximately $0.04 per share after tax on a GAAP basis. The amount of
future lost premiums due to this recapture will be approximately $129.7 million, which consists of the unearned
premium balance and the value of future installment premiums. Based on the February 28, 2005 recapture date
the total approximate reduction in pre-tax income for 2005, including the immediate impact, was approximately
$12.3 million or approximately $0.08 per share after tax.

The sum of the above adjustments related to this recapture is summarized as follows:

GAAP Initial

Cash Paid Book Gain
(Received) Basis (Loss)
(In thousands)
Unearned Premilms . . ..o oottt e e e e e e e e $ 54,742  $ 50,204 $(4,538)
ACQUISITION COSS .\ v\ttt et e e e e (17,097) (18,791) (1,694)
TO@L © e e e $37,645 $31413 $(6,232)

Despite the recapture, this primary insurer customer renewed its reinsurance treaty with us for 2005 and
again recently for 2006 on substantially the same terms as in 2004 prior to the May 2004 downgrade. In March
2005, without cost to or concessions by us, this customer waived all of its remaining recapture rights with respect
to the May 2004 downgrade by Moody’s. The other customer with recapture rights as a result of the May 2004
downgrade agreed, without cost to or concessions by us, to waive its recapture rights. There are no remaining
recapture rights with respect to the May 2004 Moody’s downgrade of Radian Reinsurance. The combined
company is now rated Aa3 (with a stable outlook) by Moody’s, AA (with a negative outlook) by Standard and
Poor’s Insurance Rating Service (“S&P”) and AA (with a negative outlook) by Fitch Rating Service (“Fitch”).

In October 2002, S&P downgraded the insurer financial strength rating of Radian Reinsurance from AAA to
AA. As a result of this downgrade, effective January 31, 2004, one of the primary insurer customers of our
financial guaranty reinsurance business exercised its right to recapture approximately $16.4 billion of par in force
ceded to our financial guaranty reinsurance business, including $96.4 million of net premiums written with a
GAAP carrying value of approximately $71.5 million. The entire impact of this recapture was reflected as a
reduction of net premiums written in the first quarter of 2004. Because, in accordance with GAAP, we already
had reflected $24.9 million of these recaptured net premiums written as having been earned, we were required to
record the entire $24.9 million reduction in net premiums earned in the first quarter of 2004. Also in connection
with the recapture in the first quarter of 2004, we were reimbursed for policy acquisition costs of approximately
$31.0 million for which the carrying value under GAAP was $21.3 million. In addition, the recapture included
approximately $11.5 million that had been recorded as case reserves under GAAP. Finally, we took a charge of
$0.8 million for mark-to-market adjustments related to certain insurance policies associated with the recapture.
The sum of the above adjustments related to this recapture resulted in an immediate reduction of pre-tax income
of $15.9 million. We estimate that the recapture of reinsurance business reduced 2004 pre-tax income by
approximately $37.8 million or approximately $0.26 per share after tax, $0.11 per share of which was a result of
the immediate impact of the recapture, and the balance was a result of recaptured net premiums written that
would have been earned over time and estimated losses.
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The sum of the above adjustments related to this recapture is summarized as follows:

GAAP Initial
Cash Paid Book Gain
(Received) Basis (Loss)
(In thousands)
Unearned Premium . ... ... e $96,417 $ 71,525 $(24,892)
Acquisition COStS . . oottt (31,023  (21,257) 9,766
Case RESEIVES . . . o i i e 11,488 11,488 —
Receivable from Unrealized Credit Derivatives Gain . .................... — (791) (791)
TOtalS e $ 76,882 $ 60,965 $(15,917)

Without cost to or concessions by us, the remaining primary insurer customers with recapture rights agreed
not to exercise those rights with respect to the October 2002 downgrade by S&P. None of the primary insurer
customers of our financial guaranty reinsurance business have any remaining recapture rights as a result of prior
downgrades of Radian Asset Assurance’s or Radian Reinsurance’s financial strength ratings from any of the
three major ratings agencies.

Through RAAL, we have additional opportunities to write financial guaranty insurance in the UK. and,
subject to compliance with the European passporting rules, in other countries in the European Union. In
particular, we expect that RAAL will continue to build its structured products business in the U.K. and
throughout the European Union. RAAL accounted for $3.5 million of direct premiums written in 2005 (or 2.4%
of financial guaranty’s 20035 direct premiums written), which is a $3.3 million increase from the $0.2 million of
direct premiums written in 2004. In September 2004, the Financial Services Authority (the “FSA”) authorized
Radian Financial Products Limited (“RFPL”), another subsidiary of Radian Asset Assurance, to transact as a
Category A Securities and Futures Firm permitting it to act as a principal on credit default swap risk. Following
receipt of this authorization, management decided that RFPL should focus its core business on arranging credit
default swap risk for RAAL and Radian Asset Assurance. Accordingly, we expect to use RFPL solely for
negotiating and arranging credit default swaps with counterparties located in the U.K. or other European
countries with portions of the risk being assumed by RAAL and Radian Asset Assurance. As a result, we are in
the process of lowering the category of authorization for RFPL commensurate with this more limited purpose.

Until September 30, 2004, our financial guaranty business also included our ownership interest in Primus
Guaranty, Ltd. (“Primus”), a Bermuda holding company and parent to Primus Financial Products, LLC, a
provider of credit risk protection to derivatives dealers and credit portfolio managers on individual investment-
grade entities. In September 2004, Primus issued shares of its common stock in an initial public offering. We
sold a portion of our shares in Primus as part of this offering. As a result of our reduced ownership and influence
over Primus after the initial public offering, we reclassified our investment in Primus to our equity securities
portfolio. Accordingly, beginning with the fourth quarter of 2004, we began recording changes in the fair value
of the Primus securities as other comprehensive income rather than recording income or loss as equity in net
income of affiliates. In 2005 and during the first quarter of 2006, we sold all of our remaining shares of Primus
common stock, recording a pre-tax gain of $2.8 million in 2005 and a pre-tax gain of $21.4 million in the first
quarter of 2006.

Financial Services

The financial services segment includes the credit-based businesses conducted through our affiliates,
C-BASS and Sherman Financial Group LLC (“Sherman”). We own a 46% interest in C-BASS and a 34.58%
interest in Sherman. C-BASS is a mortgage investment and servicing firm specializing in subprime, single-family
residential mortgage assets and residential mortgage-backed securities. By using sophisticated analytics, C-BASS
essentially seeks to take advantage of what it believes to be the mispricing of credit risk for certain of these assets
in the marketplace. Sherman is a consumer asset and servicing firm specializing in charged-off and bankruptcy
plan consumer assets and charged-off high LTV mortgage receivables that it generally purchases at deep
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discounts from national financial institutions and major retail corporations and subsequently collects upon these
receivables. In March 2005, Sherman acquired CreditOne, a credit card bank that provides Sherman with the
ability to originate subprime credit card receivables.

On June 24, 2005, we entered into agreements to restructure our ownership interest in Sherman. Before the
restructuring, Sherman was owned 41.5% by us, 41.5% by Mortgage Guaranty Insurance Corporation (“MGIC”)
and 17% by an entity controlled by Sherman’s management team. As part of the restructuring, we and MGIC
each agreed to sell a 6.92% interest in Sherman to a new entity controlled by Sherman’s management team,
thereby reducing our ownership interest and MGIC’s ownership interest to 34.58% for each of us. In return, the
new entity controlled by Sherman’s management team paid approximately $15.65 million (which resulted in a
$3.3 million loss) to us and the same amount to MGIC. Regulatory approval for this transaction was received in
August 2005, retroactive to May 1, 2005. Effective June 15, 2005, Sherman’s employees were transferred to the
new entity controlled by Sherman’s management team, and this entity agreed to provide management services to
Sherman. Sherman’s management team also agreed to reduce significantly its maximum incentive payout under
its annual incentive plan for periods beginning on or after May 1, 2005. This has resulted in Sherman’s net
income now being greater than it would have been without a reduction in the maximum incentive payout.
Following the restructuring, we expect that our and MGIC’s share of Sherman’s net income will be similar to our
respective shares before the restructuring because, although our percentage interest in Sherman is smaller than it
was before the restructuring, Sherman’s net income is greater than it would have been if the restructuring had not
occurred.

In connection with the restructuring, we and MGIC each also paid $1 million for each of us to have the right
to purchase, on July 7, 2006, a 6.92% interest in Sherman from the new entity controlled by Sherman’s
management team for a price intended to approximate current fair market value. If either we or MGIC exercise
our purchase right but the other fails to exercise its purchase right, the exercising party also may exercise the
purchase right of the non-exercising party. Our and MGIC’s representation on Sherman’s board of managers
would not change regardless of which party or parties exercise the purchase right.

Prior to January 1, 2003, we owned a 45.5% interest in Sherman. Effective January 1, 2003, Sherman’s
management exercised its rights to acquire additional ownership of Sherman, reducing our ownership interest in
Sherman from 45.5% to 41.5%. We recorded a $1.3 million loss on this transaction.

The financial services segment formerly included the operations of RadianExpress.com Inc.
(“RadianExpress™). In December 2003, we announced that we would cease operations of RadianExpress. Our
decision followed our receipt in July 2003 of a decision by the California Commissioner of Insurance sustaining
a California cease and desist order applicable to the offering of our Radian Lien Protection product. During the
first quarter of 2004, RadianExpress, which was the entity through which Radian Lien Protection sales would
have been processed, ceased processing new orders. RadianExpress completed the final processing of all
remaining transactions in the first quarter of 2005 and was dissolved in the last quarter of 2005.
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Results of Operations — Consolidated
Year Ended December 31, 2005 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2004

The following table summarizes our consolidated results of operations for 2005 and 2004 (in thousands):

Year Ended
December 31 % Change
2005 2004 2005 vs. 2004

NEtINCOME . o oottt e e $ 522,854 $ 518,653 0.8%
Net premiums WIitten . ... ...t 1,100,687 1,082,487 1.7
Netpremiums earned ... ...t 1,018,670 1,029,484 (L.
Net investment iNCOIME . .. v oottt et et e e e 208,422 204,349 2.0
Net gains on sales of investments . .............c.curvriianenr... 36,638 50,799 27.9)
Change in fair value of derivative instruments ..................... 9,170 47,135 (80.5)
Other INCOME . . ..ot e e e e et 25,251 32,286 (21.8)
Provision forlosses . ... ... e 390,633 456,834 (14.5)
Policy acquisition costs and other operating expenses ............... 341,828 327,517 4.4
Interestexpense . ... ... 43,043 34,660 24.2
Equity in net income of affiliates ............ ... ... ... ... ... ... 217,692 180,550 20.6
Provision for income taxes . .......... ittt e 217,485 206,939 5.1

Net Income. Net income for 2005 was $522.9 million or $5.91 per share (diluted), compared to $518.7
million or $5.33 per share (diluted) for 2004. Diluted net income per share reflects the inclusion of 2.2 million and
3.8 million shares, respectively, for 2005 and 2004, underlying our contingently convertible debt, which was
redeemed in its entirety on August 1, 2005. Including these shares in the calculation of diluted net income per share
resulted in a reduction in diluted net income per share of $0.13 for 2005 and $0.18 for 2004. The results for 2005
reflect an immediate reduction in net income of $4.1 million or $0.04 per share (diluted) related to the first quarter
of 2005 recapture of business previously ceded to us by one of the primary insurer customers of the financial
guaranty segment. The results for 2004 reflect an immediate reduction in net income of $10.3 million or $0.11 per
share (diluted) related to the first quarter of 2004 recapture of business previously ceded to us by another primary
insurer customer of the financial guaranty segment. Also affecting net income for 2005 was a decrease in the
provision for losses, partially offset by a decrease in earned premiums, an increase in operating expenses and a
reduction in both net gains on sales of investments and the change in fair value of derivative instruments.

Net Premiums Written and Earned. Consolidated net premiums written for 2005 were $1,100.7 million, an
$18.2 million, or 1.7% increase from $1,082.5 million for 2004. Consolidated net premiums earned for 2005
were $1,018.7 million, a $10.8 million or 1.1% decrease from $1,029.5 million reported for 2004. The amount of
net premiums written for 2005 reflects a reduction of $54.7 million related to the recapture of business by one
primary insurer customer of our financial guaranty business in the first quarter of 2005, which also reduced 2005
net premiums earned by $4.5 million. The amount of net premiums written reported for 2004 reflects a reduction
of $96.4 million related to the recapture of business by one primary insurer customer of our financial guaranty
business in the first quarter of 2004, which also reduced 2004 net premiums earned by $24.9 million. Net
premiums written and earned for both years also reflect changes in the mix of business written, substantial
cancellations in the mortgage insurance business and a challenging new production environment for our
structured business due to tight credit spreads.

Net Investment Income. Net investment income for 2005 was $208.4 million, a $4.1 million or 2.0%
increase from $204.3 mitlion for 2004. This increase was mainly due to an increase in the yield on bonds in our
investment portfolio as a result of a net increase in average investable funds and higher interest rates, partially
offset by a liquidation of investments in the portfolio to fund the repurchase of approximately 10.8 million shares
of our common stock at a purchase price of $533.9 million.

Net Gains on Sales of Investments and Change in Fair Value of Derivative Instruments. Net gains on sales
of investments for 2005 were $36.6 million (pre-tax), compared to $50.8 million (pre-tax) for 2004. The net
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gains on sales of investments in 2005 include a $3.3 million loss on the sale of a partial interest in Sherman and a
$3.2 million loss from a complete write-down of our investment in SBF Participacoes Ltda., a Brazilian insurer
that we acquired in connection with our acquisition of EFSG in 2001. The 2004 amount includes a significant
amount of gains from changes in asset allocation and investment execution strategies. For 2005, the change in
fair value of derivative instruments was a gain of $9.2 million (pre-tax), compared to a gain of $47.1 million
(pre-tax) for the change in fair value of derivatives instruments for 2004. We account for derivatives under
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS™) No. 133, which often results in volatility from period to
period as reported on our consolidated statements of income. In the fourth quarter of 2005, we refined our
mark-to-market of derivatives model to use active market spreads by individual name, when available, as
compared to our previous version of the model which used the average spread on similarly rated names. While
application of the new model resulted in minimal changes for most of our derivative transactions, one synthetic
collateralized debt obligation showed a large difference due to greater spread volatility in the underlying high-
yield corporate names included in this transaction. At December 31, 2005, our refined model indicated that a
$50.8 million loss should be recognized on this transaction, which was included on our list of intensified
surveillance credits at December 31, 2005. On March 2, 2006, Radian Asset Assurance and its counterparty to
this transaction terminated this transaction and amended the one other derivative financial guaranty contract
insured by Radian Asset Assurance with this same counterparty. See “Results of Operations—Financial
Guaranty—Year Ended December 31, 2005 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2004—Provision for
Losses” below. In 2005, we sold convertible securities with embedded gains, which increased net gains on sales
of investments and reduced the favorable change in the fair value of derivative instruments. In addition, the
financial guaranty segment experienced favorable gains in the fair value of derivative instruments in 2005, in
large part due to the general tightening of credit spreads on the synthetic collateralized corporate debt obligation
business.

Other Income. Other income decreased to $25.3 million for 2005 from $32.3 million for 2004, mainly due
to lower income from contract underwriting.

Provision for Losses. The provision for losses for 2005 was $390.6 million, a decrease of $66.2 million or
14.5% from $456.8 million reported for 2004. Our mortgage insurance business experienced a decrease in the
provision for losses as claims paid declined. These decreases were partially offset by an increase in delinquencies.
Our financial guaranty business experienced a decrease in the provision for losses in 2005 as a result of generally
favorable loss development, including a reduction in the prior year’s reserves for trade credit reinsurance business
and a lower volume of business in trade credit reinsurance, which generally carries a higher loss ratio.

Policy Acquisition Costs and Other Operating Expenses. Policy acquisition costs were $115.8 million for
2005, a decrease of $6.0 million or 4.9% from $121.8 million reported for 2004. The amortization of policy
acquisition costs in the mortgage insurance segment in 2005 was lower due to an $11.6 million acceleration of
deferred policy acquisition cost amortization in 2004 coinciding with the cancellation of business in our
mortgage insurance segment, which reduced the base asset that was subject to amortization. The amount reported
for 2005 includes approximately $5.1 million of acceleration of deferred policy acquisition cost amortization in
mortgage insurance. The amortization of policy acquisition costs reported for 2005 reflects an increase of $1.7
million related to the recapture of business by one of the primary insurer customers of our financial guaranty
segment in the first quarter of 2005. The amortization of policy acquisition costs reported for 2004 reflects a
reduction of $9.8 million related to the recapture of business by one of the primary insurer customers of our
financial guaranty business in the first quarter of 2004. The business recaptured in the first quarter of 2004
included business originated before the acquisition of EFSG that carried a lower amount of deferred acquisition
costs as a result of purchase accounting adjustments.

Other operating expenses increased to $226.0 million for 2005 from $205.7 million for 2004. Other
operating expenses in 2005 include increases in employee costs and software expenses, as well as the write-off of
debt insurance costs from the redemption of the $220 million of senior convertible debentures in 2005. Other
operating expenses in 2005 compared to 2004 included higher information technology (“IT”) expenditures and
the amortization of IT projects that were placed into service in 2004, as well as increased compliance costs,
including Sarbanes-Oxley compliance.
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Interest Expense. Interest expense of $43.0 million for 2005 increased $8.3 million or 24.2% from $34.7
million for 2004, in most part due to the issuance of $250 million of senior notes in June 2005 and a lower
positive impact from interest-rate swaps that we entered into in the second quarter of 2004. These swaps
effectively convert the interest rate on our 5.625% Senior Notes due 2013 to a variable rate based on a spread
over the London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”). The increase in interest expense in 2005 was partially offset
by the redemption of $220 million of senior convertible debentures in August 2005.

Equity in Net Income of Affiliates. Equity in net income of affiliates increased to $217.7 million for 2005,
up $37.1 million or 20.6% from $180.6 million for 2004. Equity in net income of affiliates includes the results of
C-BASS, Sherman and, until September 30, 2004, Primus. This increase resulted from a continuation of very
strong growth in earnings at both C-BASS and Sherman in 2005.

Provision for Income Taxes. The consolidated effective tax rate was 29.4% for 2005, compared to 28.5%
for 2004, reflecting a lower proportion of tax-exempt income to total income.

Year Ended December 31, 2004 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2003

The following table summarizes our consolidated results of operations for 2004 and 2003 (in thousands):

Year Ended
December 31 % Change
2004 2003 2004 vs. 2003

NEtINCOME . oottt e e $ 518,653 § 385,901 34.4%
Net premiums WIIteN .. ...ttt i e 1,082,487 1,110,477 2.5)
Net premiums earned . .........vvit it 1,029,484 1,008,183 2.1
Net InveStmMent INCOME . . . .. ottt e e et e 204,349 186,163 9.8
Net gains on sales of investments ... ..............cvuiuvnene... 50,799 17,387 n/m
Change in fair value of derivative instruments ..................... 47,135 4,139 n/m
Other inCOmME . ... ... e e 32,286 63,322 (49.0)
Provision for 10Sses .. ... i 456,834 476,054 4.0)
Policy acquisition costs and other operating expenses ............... 327,517 339,595 (3.6)
Interest EXPEeNSe . . o .ottt 34,660 37,542 7.7
Equity in net income of affiliates . ............ .. .. ... ... .. ... 180,550 105,476 71.2
Provision for inCOmMe taxes . ...ttt it 206,939 145,578 42.1

n/m = not meaningful

Net Income. Net income for 2004 was $518.7 million or $5.33 per share (diluted) compared to $385.9
million or $3.95 per share (diluted) for 2003. Net income per share for both periods reflects the inclusion of
3.8 million shares underlying our contingently convertible debt. The impact of including these shares in the
calculation of diluted net income per share was a reduction of $0.18 in diluted net income per share for 2004 and
$0.13 in diluted net income per share for 2003. The results for 2004 reflect an immediate reduction in net income
of $10.3 million or $0.11 per share related to the first quarter of 2004 recapture of business previously ceded to
us by one of the primary insurer customers of our financial guaranty segment. Net income for 2004 includes an
increase of $76.4 million compared to 2003 due to net gains on sales of investments and the change in fair value
of derivative instruments. Net income for 2004 also reflects a $19.3 million reduction in the provision for losses
in 2004 compared to 2003, mostly due to the inclusion of a $111.0 million charge in 2003 for an insurance policy
related to manufactured housing loans originated by Conseco Finance Corp. Also included in 2003 was a $13.0
million charge to other operating expenses in the fourth quarter of 2003 for the cessation of operations at
RadianExpress.

Net Premiums Written and Earned. Consolidated net premiums written for 2004 were $1,082.5 million,
compared to $1,110.5 million for 2003. The amount of net premiums written in 2004 reflects a reduction of
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$96.4 million related to the recapture of business by one primary insurer customer of our financial guaranty
business in the first quarter of 2004, which also reduced net premiums earned by $24.9 million. Net premiums
earned for 2004 were $1,029.5 million, an increase of $21.3 million or 2.1% from $1,008.2 million recorded in
2003.

Net Investment Income. Net investment income of $204.3 million for 2004 increased $18.1 million or
9.8% from $186.2 million in 2003, mainly due to growth in the investment portfolio funded by positive operating
cash flows.

Net Gains on Sales of Investments and Change in Fair Value of Derivative Instruments. Net gains on sales
of investments for 2004 were $50.8 million (pre-tax), compared to $17.4 million (pre-tax) for 2003. The 2004
amount includes a significant amount of gains as a result of changes in asset allocation and investment execution
strategies. The change in fair value of derivative instruments was $47.1 million (pre-tax) for 2004, compared to
$4.1 million (pre-tax) for change in fair value of derivatives instruments for 2003.

Other Income. Other income decreased to $32.3 million in 2004 from $63.3 million in 2003, mainly due to
the cessation of operations at RadianExpress.

Provision for Losses. The provision for losses was $456.8 million for 2004, a decrease of $19.3 million or
4.0% from $476.1 million in 2003. The decrease in the provision for losses in 2004 resulted mainly from the
$111.0 million charge attributable to Conseco Finance Corp. in 2003, partially offset by a $91.7 million increase
in the provision for losses in 2004 to support the $93.2 million increase in claims paid by our mortgage insurance
segment in 2004.

Policy Acquisition Costs and Other Operating Expenses. Policy acquisition costs for 2004 were $121.8
million, down $6.7 million or 5.2% from $128.5 million in 2003. The amortization of policy acquisition costs
reported in 2004 reflects a reduction of $9.8 million related to the recapture of business by one of the primary
insurer customers of our financial guaranty segment in the first quarter of 2004. The amount reported in 2004
also inclades an $11.6 million acceleration of deferred policy acquisition cost amortization coinciding with the
cancellation of business in our mortgage insurance segment, which reduced the base asset that was subject to
amortization.

Other operating expenses of $2035.7 million for 2004 decreased $5.4 million or 2.6% from $211.1 million in
2003. Other operating expenses in 2004 included higher IT expenditures and the amortization of IT projects that
were placed into service in 2004, as well as increased compliance costs, including Sarbanes-Oxley compliance.
Other operating expenses for 2003 included the $13.0 million charge for the cessation of operations at
RadianExpress, as well as normal operating expenses of RadianExpress of $25.7 million. The $13.0 million
charge includes the write-off of the carrying cost of the investment of $7.2 million and provisions for severance,
leasehold commitments and other charges of $5.8 million.

Interest Expense. Interest expense of $34.7 million for 2004 decreased $2.8 million from $37.5 million in
2003 due to the positive impact of the interest-rate swaps that we entered into in the second quarter of 2004.

Equity in Ner Income of Affiliates. Equity in net income of affiliates increased to $180.6 million in 2004
from $105.5 million in 2003. Equity in net income of affiliates includes the results of C-BASS, Sherman and,
until September 30, 2004, Primus.

Provision for Income Taxes. The consolidated effective tax rate was 28.5% and 27.4% for 2004 and 2003,

respectively. The lower effective tax rate for 2003 reflects a higher proportion of tax-exempt income to total
income resulting from the overall decline in 2003 earnings as a result of the charge for Conseco Finance Corp.
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Results of Operations — Mortgage Insurance
Year Ended December 31, 2005 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2004

Although home purchase transactions have remained at strong levels, the mortgage insurance industry did
not fully benefit from this in 2005 due to a loss of business to alternative mortgage executions that exclude
mortgage insurance, particularly “80-10-10” arrangements or other variations of simultaneous second-lien
mortgage loans. In addition, refinance activity, which often results in the elimination of the need for mortgage
insurance on the refinanced loan, remained high during 2005, reducing the volume of loans requiring mortgage
insurance in 2005. These items negatively impacted the flow business, but were somewhat offset by the
continued increase in demand for structured transactions and non-traditional products. Primary new insurance
written by our mortgage insurance business during 2005 was $42.6 billion, a $2.2 billion or 4.9% decrease from
$44.8 billion written in 2004. In addition, we increased the prices of some of our products, particularly investor
loans, effective in the first quarter of 2005, which led to a decrease in demand for our insurance on those specific
products and, indirectly, on other products as well. For 2005, our mortgage insurance business wrote $25.6
billion in flow business and $17.0 billion in structured transactions, compared to $36.3 billion in flow business
and $8.5 billion in structured transactions for 2004. Also in 2005, our mortgage insurance business wrote $569
million of pool risk compared to $304 million in 2004 and $9.0 billion of other risk in 2005 compared to $427
million in 2004.

An increase in the level of structured transactions, which sometimes take the form of pool insurance, was
the primary cause of the increase in pool risk written. Other risk written included a higher level of second-lien
mortgage insurance, insurance written internationally and an increase in other new products, such as credit
default swaps, both domestically and internationally. Our participation in structured transactions is likely to vary
significantly from period to period because we compete with other mortgage insurers, as well as capital market
executions, for these transactions. However, the overall level is expected to rise over time. Included in the
approximate $9.0 billion of other risk written in 2005 is $511 million of risk written related to a single
transaction that is a AAA wrap on a large portfolio that was written in the first quarter of 2005. In addition, $7.3
billion of other risk written in 2005 was in the form of credit default swaps written as AAA tranches of
mortgage-backed securities in Germany and Denmark, which were written late in the fourth quarter of 2005.
Because of the remote nature of the risk associated with these transactions, premiums are low as a percentage of
exposure.

The highest state concentration of risk in force at December 31, 2005, was Florida at 9.5%, compared to
9.1% at December 31, 2004. California had the highest state concentration of total direct primary and pool
insurance in force at December 31, 2005. At December 31, 2005, California accounted for 10.4% of the
mortgage insurance segment’s total direct primary insurance in force, compared to 12.4% at December 31, 2004,
and 12.3% of the mortgage insurance segment’s total direct pool risk in force, compared to 14.7% for 2004.
California also accounted for 13.8% of the mortgage insurance segment’s direct primary new insurance written
for 2005 and 2004. The percentage of risk in force in California has been falling due to the high cancellation rate
as compared to new business written.

Volume in 2005 continued to be impacted by lower interest rates that affected the entire mortgage insurance
industry. The continued low interest-rate environment caused refinancing activity to remain high, which was
similar to the comparable period of 2004. Refinancing activity as a percentage of our primary new insurance
written was 41% for 2005, compared to 40% for 2004. The persistency rate, which is defined as the percentage of
insurance in force that remains on our books after any 12-month period, was 58.2% for the twelve months ended
December 31, 2005, compared to 58.8% for the twelve months ended December 31, 2004. This decrease in the
persistency rate reflects a higher level of cancellations in the twelve months ended December 31, 2005. In the
second quarter of 2005, $3.6 billion of primary insurance in force from one structured transaction was canceled,
which reduced the persistency rate in 2005 by approximately three percentage points. We expect the persistency
rates to slowly rise throughout 2006, influenced by relatively stable or slowly rising interest rates.

In addition to insuring prime mortgages, we also insure non-prime mortgages, including mainly Alt-A and A
minus loans. Alt-A borrowers generally have a similar credit profile as the borrowers under the prime loans that
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we insure, with Fair Isaac and Company (“FICO”) credit scores of 620 and higher, but Alt-A loans are
underwritten with reduced documentation and verification of information. We consider Alt-A business to be
riskier than prime business because of the reduction or elimination of documentation supporting the loans. Alt-A
loans also tend to have higher balances than other loans that we insure. We typically charge a higher premium
rate for Alt-A business, particularly Alt-A loans to borrowers with FICO credit scores below 660, and we have
measures in place to limit our exposure to these lower-FICO Alt-A loans. We previously had disclosed our intent
to reduce our insurance in force for lower FICO Alt-A business and we have done so, but we continually
re-evaluate this decision and will only increase our participation in this business if we believe we can do so at
acceptable levels of risk and return. The A minus loans that we insure typically have non-traditional credit
standards that are less stringent than standard credit guidelines and include loans to borrowers with FICO scores
ranging from 575 to 619. We receive a significantly higher premium for insuring A minus loans.

During 2005, non-prime business accounted for $17.8 billion or 41.7% of new primary insurance written by
our mortgage insurance business, compared to $16.4 billion or 36.6% for 2004. Of the $17.8 billion of non-prime
business written for 2005, $11.2 billion or 63.3% was Alt-A. The relatively high amount of non-prime business is
a result of the relatively high level of structured business written in 2005, which tends to be more concentrated in
non-prime loans.

In 2004, we developed an approach for reinsuring our non-prime risk. The arrangement, which we refer to
as “Smart Home,” effectively transfers risk from our portfolio to investors in the capital markets. Each
transaction begins with the formation of an unaffiliated, offshore reinsurance company. We then enter into an
agreement with the Smart Home reinsurer pursuant to which we agree to cede to the reinsurer a portion of the
risk (and premium) associated with a portfolio of non-prime residential mortgage loans insured by us. The Smart
Home reinsurer is funded in the capital markets through the issuance to investors of a series of separate classes of
credit-linked notes. Each class relates to the loss coverage levels on the reinsured portfolio and is assigned a
rating by one or more of the three major rating agencies. We typically retain the risk associated with the first-loss
coverage levels, and we may retain or sell, in a separate risk transfer agreement, the risk associated with the
AAA-rated or most remote coverage level. Holders of the Smart Home credit-linked notes bear the risk of loss
from losses paid to us under the reinsurance agreement. The Smart Home reinsurer invests the proceeds of the
notes in high-quality short-term investments approved by the rating agencies. Income earned on those
investments and a portion of the reinsurance premiums that we pay are applied to pay interest on the notes as
well as certain of the Smart Home reinsurer’s expenses. The rate of principal amortization of the credit-linked
notes approximates the rate of principal amortization of the underlying mortgages.

Since August of 2004, we have completed three “‘Smart Home” arrangements. Details of these transactions
are as follows:

Risk Ceded to Notes Sold to
Pool of Non-prime Mortgages Reinsurer Investors
Date of Transaction (Par Value) (Par Value) (Principal Amount)
December2005(1) ....... ..o $6.27 billion $ 1.69 billion  $304.5 million
February 2005 ... ... ... .. ... ... ... $1.68 billion $495.6 million  $ 98.5 million
August2004 ... $ 882 million $332.1 million § 86.1 million

(1) $172.9 million in principal amount of credit-linked notes was issued in December 2005. An additional
$131.6 million in principal amount was issued in February 2006.

Smart Home allows us to continue to take on more non-prime risk and the higher premiums associated with
insuring these types of products. As a result, we consider Smart Home arrangements to be important to our
ability to effectively manage our risk profile and to remain competitive in the non-prime market. Approximately
13% of our non-prime risk in force is currently reinsured through Smart Home arrangements. We intend to
increase this percentage substantially in 2006. Because the Smart Home arrangement ultimately depends on the
willingness of investors to invest in Smart Home securities, we cannot be certain that Smart Home will always be
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available to us or will be available on terms that are acceptable to us. If we are unable to continue to use Smart
Home arrangements, our ability to participate in the non-prime mortgage market could be limited, which could
have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and operating results.

Premiums written (ceded) in 2005 and 2004 include $3.5 million and $1.0 million, respectively, related to
the Smart Home transactions. There were no ceded losses in 2005 or 2004 as a result of the Smart Home
transactions.

Direct primary insurance in force was $109.7 billion at December 31, 2005, compared to $115.3 billion at
December 31, 2004. In the second quarter of 2005, $3.6 billion of primary insurance in force from one structured
transaction was canceled. At December 31, 2005, non-prime insurance in force was $34.7 billion or 31.7% of
total primary mortgage insurance in force, compared to $35.7 billion or 31.0% at December 31, 2004. Of the
$34.7 billion of non-prime insurance in force at December 31, 2005, $21.2 billion or 61.1% was Alt-A. We
anticipate that the proportion of non-prime mortgage insurance business and non-traditional products could
continue to grow as a result of structural changes, competitive pricing differentials and competitive products in
the mortgage lending and mortgage insurance businesses.

Pool risk in force was $2.7 billion at December 31, 2005, compared to $2.4 billion at December 31, 2004. In
2005, we wrote a significant amount of pool risk where we are in a second-loss position, and will therefore only
pay claims if pool losses are greater than any applicable deductible or stop-loss.

Other risk in force was $9.7 billion at December 31, 2005, compared to $1.2 billion at December 31, 2004.
The increase in other risk in force at December 31, 2005, was in large part due to the two large international
mortgage securitizations comprising $7.3 billion of risk, in which we provided credit enhancement at a AAA
level in credit default swap form. Also included in other risk in force at December 31, 2005, was a single
structured transaction that is a AAA wrap that was done in credit default swap form in the first quarter of 2005.
Because of the remote nature of the risk associated with these transactions, premiums are low as a percentage of
exposure.

The default and claim cycle in the mortgage insurance business begins with our receipt of a default notice
from the insured. Generally, our master policy of insurance requires the insured to notify us of a default within
15 days after the loan has become 60 days past due. The total number of loans in default increased from 48,940 at
December 31, 2004, to 57,088 at December 31, 2005. The average loss reserve per default decreased from
$11,435 at the end of 2004 to $10,444 at December 31, 2005. The loans in default at December 31, 2005,
included approximately 6,700 defaults related to Hurricanes Katrina, Rita and Wilma. As discussed above, it is
too early to tell how many claims we may ultimately have to pay on these defaults. Primary and pool defaults
also included approximately 300 and 2,400 defaults, respectively, on loans with deductibles in excess of any
required reserve. The loss reserve as a percentage of risk in force was 1.6% at December 31, 2005, compared to
1.8% at December 31, 2004. The decline in the reserve per default and reserve as a percentage of risk in force is
partially due to the higher mix of defaults in the early stage of delinquency and loans with deductibles in excess
of any required reserve and the significant increase in risk in force relating to business in a remote loss position.
We also do not establish reserves on our derivative financial guaranty products.

Defaults in the non-prime mortgage insurance business, which has experienced a consistent increase in the
number of defaults in the past few years, appear to have leveled off for Alt-A loans, but are still increasing for A
minus and below loans. Although the default rate on this business is higher than on prime business, higher
premium rates charged for non-prime business are expected to compensate for the increased level of expected
losses associated with this business. However, we cannot be certain that the increased premiums charged on
non-prime business will compensate for the ultimate losses on this business.

The number of non-prime loans in default at December 31, 2005, was 23,525, which represented 53% of the
total primary loans in default, compared to 21,017 non-prime loans in default at December 31, 2004, which
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represented 52% of the total primary loans in default. The default rate on the Alt-A business was 6.4% at
December 31, 2005, compared to 6.5% at December 31, 2004. The combined default rate on the A minus and
below loans was 15.8% at December 31, 2005, compared to 12.1% at December 31, 2004. The default rate on the
prime business was 3.6% at December 31, 2005, compared to 3.2% at December 31, 2004. The default rate on
non-prime business increased to 10.7% at December 31, 2005 from 9.0% at December 31, 2004, as a result of
that business seasoning.

Claim activity is not spread evenly throughout the coverage period of a book of business. Relatively few
claims on prime business are received during the first two years following issuance of a policy and on non-prime
business during the first year. Historically, claim activity on prime loans has reached its highest level in the third
through fifth years after the year of policy origination, and on non-prime loans, this level is expected to be
reached in the second through fourth years. Approximately 76.5% of the primary risk in force and approximately
38.6% of the pool risk in force at December 31, 2005, had not yet reached its highest claim frequency years.
Because it is difficult to predict both the timing of originating new business and the run-off rate of existing
business, it also is difficult to predict, at any given time, the percentage of risk in force that will reach its highest
claim frequency years on any future date. The combined default rate for both primary and pool insurance,
excluding second-lien mortgage insurance coverage, was 3.8% at December 31, 2005, compared to 3.3% at
December 31, 2004, while the default rate on the primary business was 5.6% at December 31, 2005, compared to
4.8% at December 31, 2004.

Direct claims paid for 2005 were $320.3 million, compared to $364.4 million for 2004. The average claim
paid has fluctuated over the past few years mostly due to deeper coverage amounts, larger loan balances and
mitigation efforts. In addition, a change in real estate values may also affect the amount of the average claim
paid. The average claim paid in 2005 included a larger than normal amount of recoveries and reflects increased
loss mitigation efforts. Alt-A loans have a higher average claim payment due to higher loan balances. Claims
paid on second-lien mortgages decreased in 2005 compared to 2004 as a result of an increase in recoveries,
partially offset by the increase in the volume of business written over the past few years on which we have begun
paying claims. During the third quarter of 2004, we announced our intent to limit the amount of second-lien
mortgage business we would originate in the future, especially where we would be in a first-loss position. We
continue to evaluate this decision and may increase our participation in second-lien mortgage business if we
believe we can do so at acceptable levels of risk and return. For the majority of risk written on second-lien
mortgage business in 2005, we are in a second- or shared-loss position, meaning that the insured must incur
losses on the loan above a specified amount or deductible before any claim payments under the policy will be
made. In reviewing our claims inventory, we expect that paid claims will be relatively flat in the first quarter of
2006 and will increase modestly after that.

A disproportionately higher incidence of claims in Georgia is directly related to what our risk management
department believes to be questionable property value estimates performed by outside agencies in that state.
Several years ago, our risk management department put into place several property valuation checks and balances
to mitigate the risk of this issue recuiring, and now applies these same techniques to all mortgage insurance
transactions. We expect this higher incidence of claims in Georgia to continue until loans originated in Georgia
before the implementation of these preventive measures become sufficiently seasoned. A higher level of claim
incidence in Texas resulted, in part, from unemployment levels that were higher than the national average and
from lower home price appreciation. We believe that claims in the Midwest and Southeast have been rising and
will continue to rise due to the weak industrial sector of the economy. We also believe that increased claims in
Michigan and North Carolina are a result of declining economic conditions in those areas, and that in Colorado,
increased claims are a result of a significant decline in property values in that area.
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The following table summarizes our mortgage insurance segment’s results of operations for the years ended
December 31, 2005 and 2004 (in thousands):

Year Ended
December 31 % Change
2005 2004 2005 vs. 2004

NELINCOME . o ottt et e e e e e $268,606 $271,882 (1.2%)
Net premiums WIItten . ... ..ottt e 877,632 866,051 1.3
Net premiums €arned . ... ...ttt i 806,897 814,553 0.9
Net INVESIMENT INCOIMIE .+« « v v v vt e e e e et e et e e e 118,325 118,694 0.3
Net gains on sales of investments .. ...... ... .. . oo, 27,649 44,380 B37.7)
Change in fair value of derivative instruments ........................ 4,110 11,940 (65.6)
Other INCOME . . .. . it e et et e e e 19,008 24,247 (21.6)
Provision for 1oSSes .. ..ot i e 359,116 400,936 (10.4)
Policy acquisition costs and other operating eXpenses . ................. 215,583 216,618 0.5)
INterest @XPeMSE . . ottt e 24,191 20,138 20.1
Provision for inCOME taXes . ... oot e e e 108,493 104,240 4.1

Ner Income. Our mortgage insurance segment’s net income for 2005 was $268.6 million, a decrease of
$3.3 million or 1.2% from $271.9 million in 2004. This decrease was mainly due to a decrease in net gains on
sales of investments, change in fair value of derivative instruments and other income, partially offset by
decreases in the provision for losses and policy acquisition costs.

Net Premiums Written and Earned. Net premiums written for 2005 were $877.6 million, an $11.5 million
or 1.3% increase from $866.1 million for the comparable period of 2004. Net premiums earned for 2005 were
$806.9 million, a $7.7 million or 0.9% decrease compared to $814.6 million for 2004. Net premiums earned
reflect a decrease of $29.1 million in premiums earned from non-traditional products such as second-lien
mortgages and NIMs business. Premiums earned from non-traditional products were $96.6 million in 2005,
compared to $125.7 million in 2004 due to significant run-off in NIMs business and, until late in the year, a low
volume of second-lien mortgage business written. Partially offsetting the 2005 decline in earned premiums was
an increase of $21.4 million in premiums earmned from the primary insurance business as a result of a change in
the product mix to higher premium rate products and the acceleration of premiums earned in the third and fourth
quarters resulting from the cancellation of policies contained within a large, single premium structured
transaction. Premiums earned will fluctuate as the mix of premiums written changes. For 2005, the mix included
a higher percentage of non-prime business, which has higher premium rates compared to the prime business
because the level of expected loss associated with this type of insurance is higher than the expected loss
associated with prime business. We intend to increase the percentage of non-prime risk that is reinsured through
Smart Home arrangements in 2006. To the extent we are able to accomplish this, our earned premiums for 2006
would be affected commensurate with the amount of premiums ceded.

Net Investment Income. Net investment income attributable to our mortgage insurance business for 2005
was $118.3 million, compared to $118.7 million for 2004. Investment income for 2005 reflects a higher level of
investment expenses and a decrease in dividend income offset by an increase in interest income on bonds.

Net Gains on Sales of Investments and Change in Fair Value of Derivative Instruments. Net gains on sales
of investments in our mortgage insurance business were $27.6 million for 2005, compared to $44.4 million for
2004. This decrease was principally related to the unusually high net gains on sales of investments recorded in
2004 as a result of changes in asset allocation and investment execution strategies. The change in the fair value of
derivatives was a gain of $4.1 million for 2003, compared to a gain of $11.9 million for 2004, mainly due to the
sale of convertible securities with mark-to-market gains in 2005 and changes in the fair value of embedded
options in convertible securities held in the investment portfolio due to market conditions. When convertible
securities with embedded options carried at unrealized gains are sold, it has the effect of reclassifying the
unrealized gain from the change in fair value of derivative instruments to realized gains on sales of investments.
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Other Income. Other income for 2005 was $19.0 million, a $5.2 million or 21.6% decrease from $24.2
million in 2004. Other income mostly includes income related to contract underwriting services. Therefore, the
decrease in 2005 mainly reflects a decrease in contract underwriting services. Included in the 2004 amount is a
settlement received related to underwriting services and an allocation of other income from the parent company.

Provision for Losses. The provision for losses for 2005 was $359.1 million, compared to $400.9 million
for 2004. Our mortgage insurance business experienced a significant decrease in claims paid in 2005; however,
there was an approximate 10% increase in delinquencies at December 31, 2005, compared to December 31,
2004, which is mainly related to the large number of hurricane-related delinquencies, as discussed above.

Policy Acquisition Costs and Other Operating Expenses. Policy acquisition costs represent the
amortization of expenses that relate directly to the acquisition of new business. The amortization of these
expenses is related to the recognition of gross profits over the life of the policies and is influenced by such factors
as persistency and estimated loss rates. Policy acquisition costs were $62.9 million for 2005, compared to $75.5
million for 2004. This change was mainly the result of a reduction in the acceleration of the amortization of
policy acquisition costs for 2005 to $5.1 million compared to an $11.6 million acceleration of the amortization of
policy acquisition costs in 2004. The accelerations related to prior years’ books of business that had canceled
more quickly than anticipated due to repayments and pay-offs of the underlying mortgages and resulted in a
reduction in the base asset that was subject to amortization.

Other operating expenses consist mostly of contract underwriting expenses, overhead and administrative
costs, some of which are allocated to our various business segments. Other operating expenses were $152.7
million for 2005, an increase of $11.6 million or 8.2% compared to $141.1 million for 2004. For 2005, other
operating expenses included increases in employee costs, depreciation expense, outside services and the write-off
of debt issuance costs, partially offset by a decrease in the reserve for contract underwriting remedies. During
2005, we processed requests for remedies on less than 1% of loans underwritten. In 2004, as a result of increased
underwriting in the previous two years, which significantly increased our exposure to underwriting errors, an
increase in the contract underwriting reserve for remedies was necessary. Provisions for contract underwriting
remedies were $8.0 million in 2005 compared to $11.9 million in 2004. Contract underwriting expenses for 2005
and 2004, including the impact of reserves for remedies included in other operating expenses, were $35.7 million
and $46.8 million, respectively. During 2005, loans underwritten via contract underwriting accounted for 11.7%
of applications, 11.4% of commitments for insurance and 10.1% of insurance certificates issued compared to
20.6%, 19.7% and 17.9%, respectively, in 2004.

Interest Expense. Interest expense attributable to our mortgage insurance business for 2005 was $24.2
million compared to $20.1 million for 2004. Both periods include interest on our long-term debt that was
allocated to the mortgage insurance segment as well as the impact of interest-rate swaps.

Provision for Income Taxes. The effective tax rate for 2005 was 28.8% compared to 27.7% in 2004. The
difference between the effective tax rate and the statutory rate of 35% reflects our significant investment in
tax-advantaged securities.

Year Ended December 31, 2004 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2003

Primary new insurance written during 2004 was $44.8 billion, a 34.5% decrease from $68.4 billion written
in 2003. The decrease in primary new insurance written in 2004 was principally due to a smaller overall market,
which led to a large decrease in insurance written both through flow business and structured transactions. During
2004, we wrote $8.5 billion in structured mortgage transactions compared to $18.9 billion in 2003. The amount
originated in 2003 included a large structured transaction for one customer composed of prime mortgage loans
originated throughout the United States. In 2004, we wrote $304 million of pool insurance risk compared to
$933 million in 2003. The large transaction in 2003 referred to above also included a portion of risk written as
pool insurance coverage.
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Our top 10 mortgage insurance customers, measured by primary risk in force were responsible for 42.2% of
the direct primary risk in force at December 31, 2004 and for 46.7% of primary new insurance written in 2004.
The largest single mortgage insurance customer (including branches and affiliates of such customer), measured
by new insurance written, accounted for 9.6% of new insurance written during 2004, compared to 10.4% in 2003.

The highest state concentration of risk at December 31, 2004, was California at 13.0%. At December 31,
2004, California also accounted for 12.4% of our total direct primary insurance in force and 13.8% of our direct
primary new insurance written for 2004,

Volume in 2004 was impacted by lower interest rates that affected the entire mortgage insurance industry.
The low interest-rate environment caused refinancing activity to remain relatively high, although not as high as
in 2003. Refinancing activity, as a percentage of primary new insurance written, was 40% for 2004 compared to
50% for 2003. The persistency rate was 58.8% for the 12 months ended December 31, 2004, compared to 46.7%
for the 12 months ended December 31, 2003. This increase in the persistency rate reflects a decline in refinancing
activity during 2004.

Direct primary insurance in force was $115.3 billion at December 31, 2004, compared to $119.9 billion at
December 31, 2003. Total pool risk in force was $2.4 billion at December 31, 2004, and at December 31, 2003.
Other risk in force was $1.2 billion at December 31, 2004, and $1.1 billion at December 31, 2003.

During 2004, non-prime business accounted for $16.4 billion or 36.6% of new primary mortgage insurance
written compared to $27.4 billion or 40.1% for 2003. Of the $16.4 billion of non-prime business written in 2004,
$10.2 billion or 61.9% was Alt-A. At December 31, 2004, non-prime insurance in force was $35.7 billion or
31.0% of total primary insurance in force, compared to $37.8 billion or 31.5% for 2003. Of the $35.7 billion of
non-prime insurance in force at December 31, 2004, $22.1 billion or 61.9% was Alt-A.

Approximately 80.4% of the primary risk in force and approximately 30.4% of the pool risk in force at
December 31, 2004, had not yet reached its highest claim frequency years. The combined default rate for both
primary and pool insurance, excluding second-lien insurance coverage, was 3.3% at December 31, 2004,
compared to 3.2% at December 31, 2003, while the default rate on the primary business alone was 4.8% at
December 31, 2004, compared to 4.7% at December 31, 2003,

The total number of loans in default decreased from 50,080 at December 31, 2003, to 48,940 at
December 31, 2004. The average loss reserve per default increased from $10,253 at the end of 2003 to $11,435 at
December 31, 2004. The loss reserve as a percentage of risk in force was 1.8% at December 31, 2004, compared
to 1.6% at December 31, 2003. The number of non-prime loans in default at December 31, 2004, was 21,017,
which represented 52% of the total primary loans in default, compared to 19,840 non-prime loans in default at
December 31, 2003, which represented 47% of the total primary loans in default. The default rate on the Alt-A
business was 6.5% at December 31, 2004, compared to 5.3% at December 31, 2003. The default rate on the A
minus and below loans was 12.1% at December 31, 2004, compared to 11.4% at December 31, 2003. The default
rate on the prime business was 3.2% and 3.5% at December 31, 2004, and December 31, 2003, respectively. The
default rate on non-prime business was 9.0% at December 31, 2004, compared to 8.0% at December 31, 2003, as
a result of that business seasoning. The default rate on the prime business was 3.16% at December 31, 2004
compared to 3.53% at December 31, 2003.

Direct claims paid for 2004 were $364.4 million compared to $271.2 million for 2003. The average claim
paid has increased in 2004 due mostly to deeper coverage amounts and larger loan balances. In addition, claims
paid in 2004 were impacted by the rise in delinquencies in 2002 and 2003 that proceeded to foreclosure. Claims
paid on second-lien mortgages increased year-over-year as a result of the increase in the volume of business
written in 2003, for which we began paying claims in 2004.
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The following table summarizes our mortgage insurance segment’s results of operations for the years ended
December 31, 2004 and 2003 (in thousands):

Year Ended
December 31 % Change
2004 2003 2004 vs. 2003

NetinCOmME . .. . $271,882 $279,813 (2.8%)
Net premiums WIIHEN ... ..ottt e e 866,051 741,840 16.7
Net premiums earmned . ........c.ut ettt 814,553 759,620 7.2
Net Investment INCOIMIE . . ..ottt ittt et 118,694 107,690 10.2
Net gains on sales of investments . .................iiiiinunnnn. . 44,380 8,123 n/m
Change in fair value of derivative instruments . ....................... 11,940 3,275 n/m
Otherincome ................coivvin... e 24,247 32,003 (24.2)
Provision forlosses . ................... e 400,936 309,272 29.6
Policy acquisition costs and other operating expenses .................. 216,618 196,146 104
Interest €Xpense . .. ... ... e 20,138 21,467 (6.2)
Provision for inCOME tAXES .. . ..o vttt et e e e e 104,240 104,013 0.2

n/m = not meaningful

Net Income. Our mortgage insurance segment’s net income for 2004 was $271.9 million, a decrease of
$7.9 million or 2.8% from $279.8 million in 2003. This decrease in 2004 compared to 2003, was due to increases
in the provision for losses, policy acquisition costs and other operating expenses, as well as a decrease in other
income, partially offset by an increase in earned premiums, net investment income, net gains on sales of
investments and change in fair value of derivative instruments.

Net Premiums Written and Earned. Net premiums written for 2004 were $866.1 million, a $124.3 million
or 16.7% increase from $741.8 million for the comparable period of 2003. Net premiums earned in 2004 were
$814.6 million, a $55.0 million or 7.2% increase from $759.6 million for 2003. The net premiums earned in 2004
reflect an increase in premiums from non-traditional products, such as second-lien mortgages and NIMs.
Premiums earned from non-traditional products were $125.7 million in 2004, compared to $89.5 million in 2003.
During 2003 and continuing into 2004, we also experienced a change in the mix of new insurance written. The
mix includes a higher percentage of non-prime business, which has higher premium rates.

Net Investment Income. Net investment income attributable to our mortgage insurance business for 2004
was $118.7 million, an increase of $11.0 million or 10.2% compared to $107.7 million for 2003. This increase
was the result of continued growth in invested assets, in large part due to positive operating cash flows and the
allocation of interest income to our mortgage insurance segment.

Net Gains on Sales of Investments and Change in Fair Value of Derivative Instruments. Net gains on sales
of investments were $44.4 million for 2004 compared to $8.1 million in 2003. This increase principally related to
the sales of investments as a result of changes in asset allocation and investment execution strategies. Change in
the fair value of derivative instruments was $11.9 million for 2004 compared to $3.3 million for 2003, mainly
due to changes in the fair value of embedded options in convertible securities held in the investment portfolio.

Other Income. Other income, which mainly includes income related to contract underwriting services, was
$24.2 million for 2004, compared to $32.0 million in 2003. This resulted from a decrease in contract
underwriting services in 2004 compared to 2003, reflecting a decreased demand for contract underwriting
services as a result of lower volumes of new insurance written.

Provision for Losses. The provision for losses was $400.9 million for 2004, an increase of $91.6 million or
29.6% from $309.3 million in 2003. This increase was mainly to support an increase in claims paid and a higher
mix of non-prime insured loans in default that have a higher probability of going to claim. The seasoning of this
higher mix of non-prime insured loans resulted in an increase in claims coupled with higher delinquency (or
default) rates.
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Policy Acquisition Costs and Other Operating Expenses. Policy acquisition costs and other operating
expenses were $216.6 million in 2004, an increase of $20.5 million or 10.4% compared to $196.1 million for
2003. Policy acquisition costs were $75.5 million in 2004, an increase of $5.3 million or 7.5% from $70.2 million
in 2003. During the third and fourth quarters of 2004, we accelerated $11.6 million of the amortization of policy
acquisition costs due to the substantial run-off in prior years’ books of business, which impacted the projected
future gross profits. Much of the amortization in 2004 represents costs that were incurred in 2003 or the effects of
the acceleration.

Other operating expenses were $141.1 million for 2004, an increase of $15.2 million or 12.1% from $125.9
million for 2003, mainly as a result of increased depreciation on IT projects that were put into service in the latter
part of 2003 and during 2004 and costs related to our capital market reinsurance transactions with Smart Home.
In 2004, other operating expenses also included an increase in the reserve for contract underwriting remedies.
Provisions for contract underwriting remedies were $11.9 miltion in 2004 compared to $2.9 million in 2003.
Contract underwriting expenses for 2004, including the impact of reserves for remedies for 2004 included in
other operating expenses, were $46.8 million, compared to $55.7 million in 2003. During 2004, loans written via
contract underwriting accounted for 20.6% of applications, 19.7% of commitments, and 17.9% of certificates
issued by our mortgage insurance segment, compared to 26.8%, 25.8% and 22.6%, respectively, in 2003. From
time to time, we sell, on market terms, loans we have purchased under contract underwriting remedies to our
affiliate, C-BASS. During 2004, loans sold to C-BASS had an aggregate principal balance of $4.3 million,
compared to $12.5 million during 2003.

Interest Expense. Interest expense for 2004 was $20.1 million compared to $21.5 million for 2003. This
represents the allocation of interest on long-term debt to the mortgage insurance segment and includes the impact
of the interest-rate swaps relating to our 5.625% unsecured Senior Notes dues 2013.

Provision for Income Taxes. The effective tax rate for 2004 was 27.7% compared to 27.1% in 2003. The
difference between the effective tax rate and the statutory tax rate of 35% reflects our significant investment in
tax-advantaged securities.

The following table provides selected information as of and for the periods indicated for our mortgage
insurance segment. Blank spaces in the following tables represent certain information that is not available to us.

Year Ended December 31
2005 2004 2003

($ thousands, unless
specified otherwise)

Provision for 10SSES . .. oot $359,116 $400,936 $309,272

RESEIVE TOT 10SSES © . v ottt e e e e $596,210 $559,632 $513,473

Reserve for losses by category:
PrimeE . e $179,152 $165,936 $153,398
Al A 137,430 160,815 148,662
Aminusand below . ... 190,312 147,604 136,450
Poolinsurance .......... . . i 44,135 43,023 39,771
Seconds .. ... e 35,876 37,547 35,192
NIMS/Other . ... 9,305 4,707 —

Total .. $596,210 $559,632 $513,473

Default Statistics

Primary Insurance:

Flow

Prime

Number of insured loans ............ ... .. . . . . 508,117 553,688 584,270
Numberof loansindefault . ......... .. ... .. .. .. ... . .. 18,045 17,477 20,602
Percentage of total loans indefault .............................. 3.55% 3.16% 3.53%
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Number of insured loans

A minus and below
Number of insured loans
Number of loans in default
Percentage of total loans in default

Number of insured loans
Number of loans in default
Percentage of total loans in default

Number of insured loans

Number of insured loans
Number of loans in default
Percentage of total loans in default

A minus and below
Number of insured loans
Number of loans in default
Percentage of total loans in default

Total Structured
Number of insured loans
Number of loans in default
Percentage of total loans in default
Total Primary Insurance

Number of insured loans
Number of loans in default
Percentage of total loans in default

Number of insured loans
Number of loans in default
Percentage of total loans in default

A minus and below
Number of insured loans
Number of loans in default
Percentage of loans in default

Total Primary
Number of insured loans
Number of loans in default
Percentage of loans in default
Direct claims paid:

A mim.]é andbelow .....................................
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Year Ended December 31

2005 2004 2003
($ thousands, unless
specified otherwise)
67,339 83,264 82,943
4,946 6,006 6,214
7.34% 7.21% 7.49%
54,066 58,635 57,896
7,543 6,755 6,761
13.95% 11.52% 11.68%
629,522 695,587 725,109
30,534 30,238 33,577
4.85% 4.35% 4.63%
59,457 56,792 56,508
2,640 1,957 1,554
4.44% 3.45% 2.75%
50,997 44,746 55,628
2,564 2,333 1,129
5.03% 5.21% 2.03%
47,348 46,037 52,158
8,472 5,923 5,736
17.89% 12.87% 11.00%
157,802 147,575 164,294
13,676 10,213 8,419
8.67% 6.92% 5.12%
567,574 610,480 640,778
20,685 19,434 22,156
3.64% 3.18% 3.46%
118,336 128,010 138,571
7,510 8,339 7,343
6.35% 6.51% 5.30%
101,414 104,672 110,054
16,015 12,678 12,497
15.79% 12.11% 11.36%
787,324 843,162 889,403
44210 40,451 41,996
5.62% 4.80% 4.72%
$121,297 $140,822 $120,150
79,371 85,124 56,203
85,980 95,438 71,655
33,699 42,969 23,148
$320,347 $364.353 $271,156




Year Ended December 31

2005

2004

2003

($ thousands, unless
specified otherwise)

Average claim paid:

PrimeE . $ 241
Al A e 36.5
Aminusand below .. ... .. 27.0
SECONAS . oo 22.0
0 1 $ 269
States with highest claims paid:
RS ottt i e e e $33,312
GEOTZIA . . .o e 28,548
MiChigan . .. ..o e 26,728
North Carolina . ........ . . e 22,326
Colorado . ...t 20,889
Percentage of total claims paid:
T EXaS it e e e 10.4%
GEOTZIA . . ottt e e 8.9
Michigan . .. ... . e 83
NorthCarolina . ... ... i i e e e e 7.0
Colorado . ... i 6.5
Risk in force: ($ millions)
Florida .. ... .. $ 2,437
California . ... 2,408
TEXaS o e e 1,558
New YOIk ... e 1,433
GEOTgIA . .ot 1,226
Total risk In fOrCe: .. . $25,729
Percentage of total risk in force:
Florida ... ... ... 9.5%
California .. ... ... . e 94
FEXaAS oo e 6.1
New YorK ..o e e e 5.7
GEOTgIa . .. ot 4.8
38

$ 241
386
27.1
27.0

$ 277

$32,783
31,874
18,480
21,127
18,681

9.0%
8.8
5.1
5.8
5.1

$ 2,448
3,514
1,477
1,551
1,253

$27,012

9.1%
13.0
5.5
5.7
4.6

$ 242
40.1
26.1
26.0

$ 27.1

$19,870
26,552
11,500
13,153
9,949

7.3%
9.8
42
4.9
3.7

$ 2,264
3,988
1,443
1,630
1,246

$27,106

8.4%
14.7
53
6.0
4.6



Year Ended December 31

2005 2004 2003
Primary new insurance written (“NIW”")
($ millions)

Flow ... oo $25,596 60.1% $36,358 81.1% $49.488 72.4%

Structured . ... .. .. 16,996 399 8,462 189 18,874 276
Total Primary .. ...... ... .o, $42,592 100.0% $44,820 100.0% $68,362 100.0%
Flow

Prime . ... $19,177 749% $24,765 68.1%

Alt-A 4,093 16.0 8,429 232

Aminusandbelow .......... ... ... ... ..., 2,326 9.1 3,164 8.7
Total Flow . ... .. e $25,596 100.0% $36,358 100.0% $49,488 100.0%
Structured

Prime ... $ 5,657 333% $ 3,626 429%

Alt-A 7,147  42.0 1,748  20.7

Aminusandbelow ........... ... ... .. .... 4,192 247 3,088 364
Total Structured . . ... oo i i e $16,996 100.0% $ 8,462 100.0% $18,874 100.0%
Total

Prime . ... $24,834  58.3% $28,391 63.4% $40,940 59.9%

Alt-A 11,240 264 10,177 227 20,026  29.3

Aminusandbelow ........................ 6,518 153 6,252 139 7,396 10.8
Total Primary . ....... ... i $42,592 100.0% $44,820 100.0% $68,362 100.0%
Total Primary New Insurance Written by FICO(a)

Score ($ millions)

Flow

<=619 ... PRI $ 1,489 58% $ 2,216 6.1%

620-679 . ... 7,680  30.0 11,678 32.1

680-739 ... 9,322 364 13,556 373

>S=TA0 7,105 278 8,908 245
Total Flow ... .o $25,596 100.0% $36,358 100.0% $49,488 100.0%
Structured

<=019 . $ 4207 248% $ 3,087 36.5%

620-679 .. 5,302  31.2 3,094 36.6

680-739 .. 4833 284 1,612 19.0

>=T40 e 2,654 156 669 7.9
Total Structured . . ... .. $16,996 100.0% $ 8,462 100.0% $18,874 100.0%
Total

<=6019 . $ 5606 134% $ 5303 11.8% $ 6,435 9.4%

620-679 ... 12,982  30.5 14,772  33.0 19,763 28.9

680-730 ... 14,155 33.2 15,168 338 24,806 363

S=T40 9,759 229 9,577 214 17,358 25.4
Total Primary . .. ... $42.592 100.0% $44,820 100.0% $68,362 100.0%

39



Year Ended December 31

2005 2004 2003
Percentage of primary new insurance
written
Monthlies . ............ .. ... ... .... 90% 93% 88%
Refinances ............. ... ......... 41% 40% 50%
95.01% LTV® andabove ............. 10% 11%
ARMS
LessthanSyears .................. 35% 32% 26%
Syearsand longer ................. 16% 10% 5%
Primary risk written ($ millions)
Flow ... ... $ 6,384 68.3% $ 9,179 78.9% $ 11,965 70.0%
Structured ........... . . 2,961 31.7 2,455 21.1 5.137 30.0
Total ... . . . . $ 9345 100.0% $ 11,634 1000% $ 17,102 100.0%
Primary insurance in force ($ millions)
Flow ... ... ... . $ 82,700 75.4% $ 89,741 77.8% $ 91,709 76.5%
Structured . .......... ... . ... ... ... 26,984 24.6 25,574 22.2 28,178 23.5
Total Primary .. ......................... $109,684 100.0% $115,315 100.0% $119,887 100.0%
Prime ........... i $ 74,940 68.3% $ 79,628 69.0% $ 82,096 68.5%
Alt-A 21,223 19.4 22,092 19.2 23,710 19.8
Aminusandbelow .................. 13,521 12.3 13,595 11.8 14,081 11.7
Total Primary . .. ........... ... .. ....... $109.684 100.0% $115,315 100.0% $119,887 100.0%
Primary risk in force ($ millions)
Flow . ... ..o $ 20,330 79.0% $ 21,991 81.4% $ 22,261 82.1%
Structured ............ ... ... .. ... 5,399 21.0 5,021 18.6 4,845 17.9
Total Primary . .......................... $ 25,729  100.0% $ 27,012 100.0% $ 27,106 100.0%
Flow
Prime ........... .. . ... $ 15,630 76.9% $ 16,317 742% $ 16,577 74.4%
Alt-A 3,131 15.4 3,972 18.1 4,044 18.2
Aminusandbelow .................. 1,569 7.7 1,702 77 1,640 7.4
Total Flow ......... .00, $ 20,330 100.0% $ 21,991 100.0% $ 22,261 100.0%
Structured
Prime .......... ... .. .. .. ... ....... $ 2,208 40.9% $ 2,105 419% $ 1,872 38.6%
Alt-A L 1,358 25.1 1,174 23.4 1,209 25.0
Aminusandbelow .................. 1,833 34.0 1,742 34.7 1,764 364
Total Structured . .. ...... ... ... ... ...... $ 5399 100.0% $ 5,021 100.0% $ 4,845 100.0%
Total
Prime ...... ... $ 17,838 693% $ 18,422 68.2% $ 18,449 68.0%
Alt-A 4,489 17.5 5,146 19.1 5,253 194
Aminusandbelow .................. 3,402 13.2 3,444 12.7 3,404 12.6
Total Primary . .. ....... ..ot $ 25,729  100.0% $ 27,012 100.0% $ 27,106 100.0%
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Year Ended December 31

2005 2004 2003
Total Primary Risk in Force by FICO Score
($ millions)

Flow

<=619 .. .. $ 1,321 65% $ 1,546 7.0% $ 1,737 7.8%

620-679 ... 6,352 31.2 7,045 32.0 7,120 32.0

680-739 .. 7,459 36.7 8,109 36.9 8,167 36.7

>=T40 e 5,198 25.6 5,291 24.1 5,237 23.5
Total Flow . ....... ... ... .. .. $20,330  100.0% $21,991 100.0% $22,261  100.0%
Structured

<=619 ... $ 1,833 34.0% $ 1,750 349% $ 1,771 36.6%

620-679 ... 1,957 36.2 1,805 35.9 1,653 34.1

680-739 . . 1,111 20.6 992 19.8 930 19.2

>=T740 L 498 9.2 474 94 491 10.1
Total Structured .. ........... ... ... ... .... $ 5399 100.0% $ 5,021 100.0% $ 4,845 100.0%
Total

<=619 .. $ 3,154 12.3% $ 3,296 12.2% S 3,508 12.9%

620-679 ... 8,309 323 8,850 32.8 8,773 32.4

680-739 ... 8,570 333 9,101 33.7 9,097 33.6

S=T40 o 5,696 22.1 5,765 213 5,728 21.1
Total Primary .. ........coviiiienn.. $25,729  100.0% $27,012 100.0% $27,106 100.0%
Percentage of primary risk in force

Monthlies .......... ... ... ... ... .. .... 91% 92%

Refinances ............... ... ... ... 37% 37%

95.01% LTV and above ................. 14% 13%

ARMs

LessthanSyears ..................... 23% 23%
Syearsandlonger .................... 9% 8%
Year Ended December 31
2005 2004 2003

Total primary risk in force by LTV ($ millions)

95.01% andabove ...................... $ 3,599 14.0% $ 3,429 12.7% $ 3,067 11.3%

90.01%t095.00% ....... ... .. 8,616 335 9,822 36.4 10,184 37.6

8501%1t090.00% .............c.uuun.. 9,551 37.1 10,290 38.1 10,024 37.0

85.00% and below . ..................... 3,963 15.4 3,471 12.8 3,831 14.1
Total Primary ... ... $25.729 100.0% $27,012 100.0% $27,106 100.0%
Total primary risk in force by policy year

($ millions)

2001l andprior ........ ... i $ 2,669 10.4% $ 4,202 15.6% $ 7,837 28.9%

2002 .. 1,989 7.7 3,410 12.6 6,198 229

2003 .. 5,511 21.4 9,046 33.5 13,071 48.2

2004 .. 7,091 27.6 10,354 38.3 — —

2005 .. 8,469 329 — — — —
Total Primary . ............ ... ... ... ... $25,729  100.0% $27,012 100.0% $27,106 100.0%
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Alt-A Information
Primary new insurance written by FICO score
($ millions)

<=619
620-659
660-679
680-739
>=740

Primary risk in force by FICO score ($ millions)
<=619
620-659
660-679
680-739
>=740

Primary risk in force by LTV ($ millions)
95.01% and above
90.01% to 95.00
85.01% to 90.00%
85.00% and below

Primary risk in force by policy year ($ millions)
2001 and prior
2002
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Year Ended December 31

2005 2004 2003
$ 34 03%% 93 09%% 101 0.5%
1,903 169 1,854 182 3,466 173
1,513 135 1,855 182 3,147 157
4990 444 4475 440 8280 414
2,800 249 1,900 18.7 5,032 251
$11,240 100.0% $10,177 100.0% $20,026 100.0%
$ 44 1.0%% 70 1.4%$ 102 1.9%
936 209 1,110 216 1,331 253
767 170 919 1738 886 169
1,903 424 2,157 419 2,064 393
839 187 890 17.3 870 16.6
$ 4489 100.0%$ 5,146 100.0%$ 5,253 100.0%
$ 190 42%% 370 72%$ 467 8.9%
1,425 317 1,816 353 1,823 347
1,938 432 2,191 426 2,121 404
936 209 769 149 842 16.0
$ 4,489 100.0%$ 5,146 100.0%$ 5253 100.0%
$ 192 43%% 372 72%%$ 780 14.8%
328 7.3 653 127 1,414 269
8714 195 1,758 342 3,059 583
1,432 319 2,363 459 — —
1,663 370 — — — —
$ 4,489 100.0%$ 5,146 100.0%$ 5253 100.0%




Year Ended December 31

2008 2004 2003
Pool risk written ($ millions) ................. $ 569 $ 304 $ 933
Pool risk in force ($ millions)
Prime ..........0. i $§ 2,098 774% $ 1946 81.6% S 1,876 71.7%
Alt-A 272 10.0 263 110 393 163
Aminusandbelow .......... ... ... ..., 341 126 175 7.4 146 6.0
Total Pool ... ..o e $§ 2711 1000% $ 2,384 1000% $ 2415 100.0%
Pool insurance
Number of insured loans . ................ 651,051 583,568 599,140
Number of loans indefault .. .............. 10,194 6,749 5,738
Percentage of loans in default ............. 1.57% 1.16% 0.96%
Other risk written ($ millions)
Seconds
ISU10SS oo $ 97 $ 80
2M 088 e 571 74
NIMS ..o 99 100
International
15t loss-Hong Kong primary mortgage
INSUIANCE .+ oot e v 271 —_
Reinsurance ...............covevrnnnn.. 9 24
Credit defaultswaps ..................... 7,303 149
Other
Domestic credit default swaps ............. 180 —
Financial guaranty wrap . ................. 511 —
Total other risk written .. ..................... $ 9,041 $ 427
Year Ended December 31
2005 2004 2003
Other risk in force ($ millions)
Seconds
L 1 O 3 391 $ 598 % 725
M 08 L L e e e 638 75 —
NIMIS . oot e e 261 318 328
International
1stloss-Hong Kong primary mortgage insurance . .. ................. 271 — —
Reinsurance . ........ . ... . . e 29 25 —
Credit default swaps . ... ot 7,469 189 —
Other
Domestic credit default swaps ......... ... ... i 180 —_ —
Financial guaranty wrap . ... 270 — —
Total other risk In TOrCe . . . ..ot e e e $ 9,709 $ 1,205 $ 1,053
Net premiums written ($ thousands)
Primary and Pool Insurance . ........ ... ..o i, $746,483 $751,604 $654,660
Seconds . ... e 61,803 62,480 47,688
NIV .o e 40,318 48,421 39,334
International . ... ... ... .. 25,612 3,546 158
Domestic credit default swaps ......... ... ... .. ... ... .. 3,132 — —
Financial guaranty WIap . ....... vttt in i 284 — —
Net premiums WIHEN . .. oo oottt ettt e it $877,632 $866,051 $741,840
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Year Ended December 31

2005 2004 2003
Net premiums earned ($ thousands)
Primary and Pool InSurance ...ttt $710,361 $688.875 $670,098
SeCOnAS . o 52,220 64,777 40,970
NIMS . e 39,877 59,555 48,394
International . ... ... . ... e 3,338 1,346 158
Domestic credit default swaps ......... .. ... ... o 817 — —
Financial guaranty wrap .. ... ... i 284 — —
Net premiums earmned . . ...ttt $806,897 $814,553 $759,620
Captives
Premiums ceded to captives ($ millions) .......................... $ 929 $ 873 $ 736
o OF tOTal PIEMIUMS . . ..ttt it e e e e e e e 11.5% 11.3% 10.0%
NIW subject to captives ($ millions) ...........c.viviiiinen ... $ 12221 $ 17,777 $ 21,939
Dof primary NIW . ... o 28.7% 39.7% 32.1%
IIF © Subject to Captives . . o« vttt e 38.6% 33.2% 29.2%
RIF @ subject to Captives .. ... 35.6% 34.9% 31.3%

(a) FICO credit scoring model.

(b) Loan-to-value ratios. The ratio of the original loan amount to the value of the property.
(¢) Insurance in force.

(d) Riskin force.

Results of Operations - Financial Guaranty
Year Ended December 31, 2005 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2004

The following table summarizes the results of operations for our financial guaranty business for the years
ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 (in thousands):

Year Ended
December 31 % Change
2008 2004 2005 vs. 2004

NEUINCOME . oottt et et e e e e $118,054 $134,232 (12.0%)
Net premiums WIitten . ... ...... .. i 223,055 216,436 3.1
Net premiums €arned . ... ...ttt 211,773 214,931 (1.5)
Net Investment inCOME . . .. ..ttt e e e e 89,977 85,557 5.2
Net gains on sales of investments ............ .. ... ... ... .. ... 10,737 3,995 n/m
Change in fair value of derivative instruments ........................ 5,245 34,989 (85.0)
Other inCoMmMe . ... ..ot e e 939 2,050 (54.2)
Provision for I0Sses . ... ot 31,517 55,898 (43.6)
Policy acquisition costs and other operating exXpenses .................. 117,977 98,670 19.6
Interest eXpense . ... 15,105 12,022 25.6
Equity in net income of affiliates ............ ... ... L. (361) 1,422 n/m
Provision for iInCOmME taxes . ...t 35,657 42,122 (15.3)

n/m = not meaningful

Net Income.  Our financial guaranty segment’s net income for 2005 was $118.1 million, a $16.1 million or
12.0% decrease from $134.2 million for 2004. Net income for 2005 reflects a negative $40.1 million
mark-to-market adjustment included in change in fair value of derivative instruments related to one high-yield
synthetic obligation, as discussed below, although the net change in fair value of derivative instruments was a
positive $5.2 million for the year, as well as an increase in policy acquisition costs and other operating
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expenses of $19.3 million. This was offset by an improvement in the provision for losses of $24.4 million. Net
income for 2005 also includes a $4.1 million immediate after-tax reduction as a result of the first quarter 2005
recapture of business by one of our primary insurer customers. Net income for 2004 reflects a $10.3 million
immediate after-tax reduction as a result of the first quarter 2004 recapture of business by another of our primary
insurer customers.

Net Premiums Written and Earned. Net premiums written and earned for 2005 were $223.1 million and
$211.8 million, respectively, compared to $216.4 million and $214.9 million, respectively, for 2004. Included in
net premiums written and earned for 2005 and 2004 is the impact of business recaptured by one primary insurer
in 2005 and another in 2004. Net premiums written and earned in 2005 were negatively impacted by these
recaptures as well as by a reduction in trade credit reinsurance, which offset increases in our direct business.
Also, included in net premiums written and earned for 2005 were $50.5 million and $59.1 million, respectively,
of other credit enhancement fees on derivative financial guaranty contracts, compared to $66.1 million and $50.3
million, respectively, for 2004.

The financial guaranty segment derives a substantial portion of its premiums written from a small number of
direct primary insurers. In 2005, one primary insurer accounted for $43.3 million or 19.3% of the financial
guaranty segment’s gross written premiums. Excluding the recapture impact in 2005, two primary insurers
accounted for $74.9 million or 26.8% of the financial guaranty segment’s gross written premiums. In 2004, two
primary insurers accounted for $82.1 million or 37.2% of the financial guaranty segment’s gross written
premiums. Excluding the recapture in 2004, two primary insurers accounted for 25.9% of the financial guaranty
segment’s gross written premiums. No other primary insurer accounted for more than 10% of the financial
guaranty segment’s gross written premiums in either 2005 or 2004.

Our financial guaranty segment will continue to face several challenges in its direct business lines in 2006
and beyond, including competition from other financial guaranty companies and competition from other products
such as credit derivatives. In addition, continued compression in credit spreads between insured and uninsured
executions may limit our ability to write profitable new business. Notwithstanding these challenges, in 2005 our
public finance direct insured par increased by 62.9% compared to 2004 and our average premium rate on this
business remained steady at 152 basis points in 2005 as compared to 153 basis points in 2004, The 2005 direct
insured par and average premium rate includes $306 million of international public finance par insured in the
U.K. The growth in our domestic public finance business was assisted by a 13.2% increase in new domestic
municipal bond issuance, reaching $407.7 billion in 2005 compared to $360.2 billion in 2004. This growth in
2005 issuance served to mitigate the impact of the challenges faced by our financial guaranty segment in 2005.

Net Investment Income. Net investment income attributable to our financial guaranty business was $89.9
million for 2005, compared to $85.6 million for 2004. This increase was a result of continued growth in invested
assets and improved investment yields over 2004.

Net Gains on Sales of Investments and Change in Fair Value of Derivative Instruments. Net gains on sales
of investments were $10.7 million for 2005, compared to $4.0 million for 2004. This increase is mostly related to
sales of convertible bonds that were in a gain position. Included in 2005, is a $3.2 million loss on the write-down
of our interest in SBF Participacoes Ltda. Change in the fair value of derivative instruments was a gain of $5.2
million for 2005 compared to a gain of $35.0 million for 2004. This decrease is principally related to our
application in the fourth quarter of 2005 of a refined model for valuing corporate collateralized debt obligations.
In the fourth quarter of 2005, we refined our mark-to-market model to reflect actual credit spreads by individual
name, when available, as compared to our previous version of the model, which used average spreads for
similarly rated names. While application of the new model resulted in minimal changes for most of our derivative
transactions, one high-yield synthetic obligation showed a large difference due to greater spread volatility in the
high-yield corporate names included in this transaction. At December 31, 2005, our refined model indicated that
we had incurred a $50.8 million loss on this transaction, which was included on our list of intensified
surveillance credits at December 31, 2005. On March 2, 2006, Radian Asset Assurance and its counterparty to
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this transaction agreed to terminate this transaction and to amend the one other derivative financial guaranty
contract that we have insured with this same counterparty. See “Provision for Losses” below. The change in fair
value of derivatives for 2005 and 2004 also reflects a general tightening of spreads on credit derivatives. The
amount reported in 2004 included a $0.8 million loss related to the recapture in the first quarter of 2004. During
2005, the financial guaranty segment received $7.6 million in recoveries of previous default payments on
derivative financial guaranty contracts. During 2004, the financial guaranty segment received $4.0 million of
recoveries of previous default payments, paid $18.6 million for default payments and received $2.9 million of
early termination receipts.

Provision for Losses. The provision for losses was $31.5 million for 2005, compared to $55.9 million for
2004. This decrease was due to favorable loss development in the financial guaranty insurance business,
including a reduction in trade credit reinsurance reserves from prior years and a lower volume of trade credit
reinsurance business written in 2005, which generally has a higher loss ratio. The provision for losses in 2005
represented 14.9% of net premiums earned for 2005 (including the impact of the recapture that occurred in the
first quarter of 2005), compared to 26.0% for 2004 (including the impact of the recapture that occurred in the
first quarter of 2004). The provision for losses was 14.6% and 23.3% of net premiums earned for 2005 and 2004,
respectively, excluding the impact of the respective recaptures. Our financial guaranty business paid $29.6
million in insurance claims for 2005 and $30.7 million in claims for 2004 related to a single manufactured
housing transaction with Conseco Finance Corp., a transaction for which we have established reserves equal to
the entire exposure.

We closely monitor our financial guaranty obligations and we use an internal classification process to
identify and track troubled credits. We classify credits as “intensified surveillance credits” when we determine
that continued performance is questionable and, in the absence of a positive change, may result in a claim. At
December 31, 2005 and 2004, the financial guaranty segment had the following exposure on credits classified as
intensified surveillance credits:

December 31 December 31
2005 2004

# of Par # of Par
credits OQOutstanding credits Outstanding

($ in millions)

Lessthan $25 ... . 21 $117 28 $ 85

B25-8100 .. o 5 290 6 337

Greater than $100 . . ... .. . _l 248 — —
Total ... 27 $655 34 $422

We establish loss reserves on our non-derivative financial guaranty contracts as discussed in “Critical
Accounting Policies—Reserve for Losses” below and in Note 2 to our Consolidated Financial Statements. We had
allocated non-specific reserves of $27.8 million on three intensified surveillance credits (representing an aggregate
par amount of $51.0 million) at December 31, 2005, and $9.8 million on one intensified surveillance credit at
December 31, 2004. We expect that we will sufffer losses with respect to these insured obligations equal to the
amount reserved of $27.8 million. We have not allocated any non-specific reserves for any of the remaining
non-derivative credits classified as intensified surveillance credits at December 31, 2005.

Two of the six intensified surveillance credits with $25 million or greater in exposure identified at
December 31, 2005, and one of the six intensified surveillance credits with $25 million or greater in exposure
identified at December 31, 2004, were derivative financial guaranty contracts. In accordance with GAAP, we do
not establish loss reserves on our derivative financial guaranty contracts. Instead, gains and losses on derivative
financial guaranty contracts are derived from internally generated models that take into account both credit and
market spreads and are recorded through our consolidated statements of income. See “Critical Accounting
Policies—Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activity” for a discussion of how we account for derivatives
under SFAS No. 133.
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As previously disclosed, at December 31, 2003, our model indicated that a $50.8 million loss should be
recognized on one derivative financial guaranty contract included on the list of intensified surveillance credits.
This credit, a synthetic collateralized debt obligation insured on a direct basis, represented $247.5 million in
exposure or approximately 38% of our total exposure to intensified surveillance credits at December 31,
2005. No other intensified surveillance credit represented more than 15% of our total exposure to intensified
surveillance credits at December 31, 2005.

While we had not been required to pay a claim with respect to this credit, given the deterioration in the
credit quality of the portfolio of high-yield debt obligations underlying this transaction (since its inception in
August 2001, $155.3 million, or approximately 36.3% of the subordination underlying this credit, had eroded),
the significant amount of time before the expiration of this risk in 2013 and our large notional exposure to this
credit, we recently engaged our counterparty in negotiations aimed at limiting our exposure arising from this
credit. On March 2, 2006, we decided to eliminate the uncertainty around this transaction by paying to our
counterparty $68.0 million in consideration for its terminating this transaction and amending the one other
derivative financial guaranty contract insured with this same counterparty. This amendment imposes certain
structural changes that we believe will improve the overall risk profile of the remaining insured contract. This
contract, representing $132.5 million in exposure, is not included on our intensified surveillance list and has been
performing within an acceptable range of our expectations. On February 15, 2006, S&P confirmed the “AAA”
rating on our exposure on the remaining insured contract.

A liability of $50.8 million was included on our balance sheet at December 31, 2005 as a result of the
negative mark generated by our mark-to-market model for the terminated credit. As a result of the settlement, an
additional loss of approximately $17.2 million (pre-tax) will be reflected in the change in fair value of derivative
instruments in our consolidated statements of income for the first quarter of 2006. Earned premiums on this
transaction from its inception and through its termination were approximately $14.3 million.

At December 31, 2005, our model indicated that we had incurred a $0.3 million loss on the one other
derivative financial guaranty contract with $25 million or greater in exposure classified as an intensified
surveillance credit. This credit, which represents $60.0 million in exposure, expires in November 2006.

Policy Acquisition Costs and Other Operating Expenses. Policy acquisition costs and other operating
expenses were $118.0 million for 2005, compared to $98.7 million for 2004. Included in policy acquisition costs
and other operating expenses for 2005 were $10.9 million of origination costs related to derivative financial
guaranty contracts, compared to $8.7 million for 2004. The expense ratio of 55.7% for 2005 (including the
impact of the 2005 recapture) was up from 45.9% for 2004 (including the impact of the 2004 recapture) due to
the $9.8 million reduction of policy acquisition costs in 2004 related to the 2004 recapture and a $1.7 million
increase in policy acquisition costs in 2005 related to the 2005 recapture, along with slightly higher expenses in
2005 due to higher technology and severance costs and the write-off of software that we are no longer using. This
was partially offset by the release of liabilities related to the disposition of Van-Am Insurance Company, Inc., an
insurance subsidiary of Radian Asset Assurance that is engaged on a run-off basis in reclamation bonds for the
coal mining industry and surety bonds covering closure and post-closure obligations of landfill operations. The
expense ratio was 53.8% for 2005 and 45.2% for 2004, excluding the impact of the respective recaptures in each
year.

Interest Expense. Interest expense was $15.1 million for 2005, compared to $12.0 million for 2004. Both
periods include interest on our long-term debt that was allocated to the financial guaranty segment.

Equity in Net Income of Affiliates. Equity in net income of affiliates was a loss of $0.4 million for 2005,
mainly reflecting our equity in the net loss of SBF Participacoes Ltda., which was written off in 2005. Equity in
net income of affiliates for 2004 was $1.4 million, which was related to Primus.

Provision for Income Taxes. The effective tax rate was 23.2% for 2005, compared to 23.9% for 2004. The
low tax rate for both periods reflects a higher percentage of pre-tax income derived from investment income,
much of which was derived from investments in tax-advantaged securities.
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Year Ended December 31, 2004 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2003

The following table summarizes the results of operations for our financial guaranty business for the years
ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 (in thousands): ‘

Year Ended
December 31 % Change
2004 2003 2004 vs, 2003

NELINCOME . oottt e e e $134,232 ' $ 63,592 111.0%
Net premiums WItEN . ... ..ot e 216,436 368,637 41.3)
Net premiums €arned ... ..ottt 214931 248,563 (13.5)
Net INVEStMENT INCOME .+ o o ottt e et e e 85,557 78,437 9.1
Net gains on sales of investments . ................ i, 3,995 11,548 (65.4)
Change in fair value of derivative instruments ........................ 34,989 774 n/m
Other iNCOME . . .. .. ot e e e e e 2,050 3,639 43.7)
Provision for 10SSes .. ... . 55,898 166,782 (66.5)
Policy acquisition costs and other operating expenses .................. 98,670 96,391 24
INtErest eXPeniSe . . . ..ottt e 12,022 12,913 (6.9)
Equity in net income of affiliates ......... ... ... .. ... .. 1,422 9,969 85.7)
Provision for iINCOME taAXES . ..\ttt e e 42,122 13,252 n/m

n/m = not meaningful

Net Income.  Our financial guaranty segment’s net income for 2004 was $134.2 million, a $70.6 million or
111.0% increase from $63.6 million for 2003. The net income reported for 2004 reflects a $10.3 million
immediate after-tax reduction as a result of the first quarter 2004 recapture of business by one of our primary
insurer customers. The net income for 2003 reflects a pre-tax charge of $111.0 million for future claims from a
single manufactured housing transaction originated and serviced by Conseco Finance Corp.

Net Premiums Written and Earned. Net premiums written and earned for 2004 were $216.4 million and
$214.9 million, respectively, compared to $368.6 million and $248.6 million, respectively, for 2003. Net
premiums written and earned for 2004 reflect a reduction of $96.4 million and $24.9 million, respectively, related
to the recapture in the first quarter of 2004. Included in net premiums written and earned for 2004 were $66.1
million and $50.3 million, respectively, of credit enhancement fees on derivative financial guaranty contracts,
compared to $54.1 million and $42.0 million, respectively, in 2003.

The financial guaranty segment derives a substantial portion of its premiums written from a small number of
direct primary insurers. In 2004, two primary insurers accounted for $82.1 million or 37.2% of the financial
guaranty segment’s gross written premiums. In 2003, three primary insurers accounted for $109.6 million or
28.8% of the financial guaranty segment’s gross written premiums. No other primary insurer accounted for more
than 10% of the financial guaranty segment’s gross written premiums in either 2004 or 2003.

Net Investment Income. Net investment income attributable to our financial guaranty segment was $85.6
million for 2004 compared to $78.4 million for 2003. This increase was a result of continued growth in invested
assets in large part due to positive operating cash flows and a $65.0 million capital contribution in January 2004.

Net Gains on Sales of Investments and Change in Fair Value of Derivative Instruments. Net gains on sales
of investments were $4.0 million for 2004, compared to $11.5 million for 2003. Changes in the fair value of
derivative instruments increased to $34.9 million for 2004 compared to $0.8 million in 2003. These changes
related to mark-to-market gains and losses on derivative instruments that resulted from tighter credit spreads in
2004. The amount reported in 2004 included a $0.8 million loss related to the first quarter of 2004 recapture.
During 2004, we received $4.0 million of recoveries of previous defaults, paid $18.6 million for default
payments and received $2.9 million of early termination receipts. We received $11.5 million of recoveries of
previous defaults in 2003, and paid $14.0 million for default payments.
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Provision for Losses. The provision for losses was $55.9 million for 2004 compared to $166.8 million for
2003. The provision for losses in 2003 included $111.0 million related to Conseco Finance Corp. The provision
for losses represented 26.0% of net premiums earned (including the impact of the recapture of business
previously ceded to us by one primary insurer customer in 2004) for 2004, compared to 67.1% for 2003. The
provision for losses was 23.3% of net premiums earned for 2004, excluding the impact of the recapture. We paid
$30.7 million in claims in 2004 related to the Conseco transaction.

Policy Acquisition Costs and Other Operating Expenses. Policy acquisition costs and other operating
expenses were $98.7 million for 2004 compared to $96.4 million for 2003. The amount reported in 2004 reflects
a $9.8 million reduction in acquisition costs resulting from the 2004 recapture. The expense ratio of 45.9%
(including the impact of the recapture) for 2004 was up from 38.8% for 2003, due to higher expenses, mostly in
personnel costs and outside service costs, to support the current and expected increase in the volume of business
and to gain deeper expertise in the risk management area. The expense ratio was 45.2% for 2004, excluding the
impact of the recapture. Included in policy acquisition costs for 2004 were $8.7 million of origination costs
related to derivative financial guaranty contracts, compared to $6.6 million for 2003.

Interest Expense. Interest expense was $12.0 million and $12.9 million for the years ended December 31,
2004 and 2003, respectively. The amount reported in 2003 included interest on $75.0 million of EFSG’s short-
term debt that matured during the first quarter of 2003. The amounts reported in 2003 and 2004 include interest
on our outstanding indebtedness allocated to our financial guaranty segment.

Equity in Net Income of Affiliares. Equity in net income of affiliates attributable to our financial guaranty
segment was $1.4 million for 2004, compared to $10.0 million in 2003. The decrease is mainly related to our
investment in Primus.

Provision for Income Taxes. The effective tax rate was 23.9% for 2004, compared to 17.2% for 2003. The
low effective tax rate for 2004 reflects the lower level of pre-tax income resulting mainly from the recapture,
which caused a higher percentage of pre-tax income to come from investment income, much of which is derived
from investments in tax-advantaged securities. The lower effective tax rate for 2003 reflects a higher proportion
of tax-exempt income to total income resulting from the overall decline in 2003 earnings as a result of the charge
for Conseco Finance Corp.

The gross par originated by our financial guaranty segment in 2005, 2004 and 2003 is as follows:

Type 2005 2004 2003

(In miilions)

Public finance:

General obligation and other tax-supported . ........ ... ... ... ... ... $ 4,605 § 3,841 $ 3,026
Water/sewer/electric/gas and investor-owned utilities .................... 1,376 838 1,473
Healthcare and long-term care . ... ......... .ttt 2,148 1,400 1,521
AITportsATanSportation .. ........ ..t e 908 384 1,374
Education . ... .. 569 561 748
Housing . ... 130 105 99
Other municipal . ....... .. . 96 168 543
Total public finance . ..... .. ... . . . . e 9.832 7,297 8.784
Structured finance:

Collateralized debt 0bligations .. ...ttt it i 11,152 4,630 4,986
Asset-backed obligations .. ......... ... 2,534 2,010 5,507
Otherstructured . ..., i e e e 1,197 379 395
Total structured fINANCE ... ot 14,883 7,019 10,888
TOtAl .« .t $24.715 $14.316 $19,672
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The following table shows the breakdown of net premiums written and earned by our financial guaranty

segment’s various product lines for 2005, 2004 and 2003:

Year Ended December 31
2005 2004 2003
(In thousands)
Net premiums written:

Public finance direct . ... ... oo $ 73,117 $ 52,279 § 85,178
Public finance reinSurance . ............ ...ttt 77,797 74777 81,877
Structured finance direct ........ ... ... . ... .. .. 71,211 94,423 88,053
Structured finance reinSurance ... ... . . 20,649 32,112 48,702
Trade credit FEINSUTANCE . . . . . oottt ettt e e e 35,023 59,262 64,827
277,797 312,853 368,637

Impact of recapture (1) ... . ..ot (54,742)  (96,417) —
Total net premiums WITteN . ... ... ...t $223,055 $216,436 $368,637

Net premiums earned:

Public finance direct . . ... ... .. ... $ 32,533 $ 26,643 $ 18,277
Public finance reinsurance . ......... ... . . ... 34,413 41,651 51,118
Structured finance dir€Ct . ... .ot 79,617 78,292 73,720
Structured finance reiNSUTANCE . . ... ..ot i it e 20,440 33,001 48,497
Trade credit reINSUTANCE . . . oottt e et e e 49,309 60,236 56,951
216,312 239,823 248,563

Impact of recapture (1) . ... .. . i (4,539) (24,892) —
Total net premiumsearned . ....... .. .. i $211,773 $214,931 $248,563

D

Amounts recorded related to the immediate impact of the recapture of previously ceded business by one of
the primary insurer customers of our financial guaranty reinsurance business in the first quarter of 2005 and
by another customer in the first quarter of 2004.

Included in net premiums written for 2005, 2004 and 2003 were other credit enhancement fees of $50.5

million, $66.1 million and $54.1 million, respectively, associated with derivative financial guaranty contracts.
Included in net premiums earned for 2005, 2004 and 2003 were refundings of $12.8 million, $5.1 million and
$7.9 million, respectively. Also included in net premiums earned for 2005, 2004 and 2003 were other credit
enhancement fees of $59.1 million, $50.3 million and $42.0 million, respectively, associated with financial
guaranty contracts treated as derivatives.
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The following schedule depicts the expected amortization of the unearned premiums for the existing
financial guaranty portfolio, assuming no advance refundings, as of December 31, 2005. Expected maturities will
differ from contractual maturities because borrowers have the right to call or prepay financial guaranty
obligations. Unearned premium amounts are net of prepaid reinsurance. Future installments exclude $50.9
million related to a derivative financial guaranty contact that was included on our list of intensified surveillance
credits at December 31, 2005, and which was terminated on March 2, 2006. See “Results of Operations—
Financial Guaranty—Year Ended December 31, 2005 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2004—Provision
for Losses™ above.

Ending
Net Unearned Total
Unearned Premium Future Premium

Premiums Amortization Installments Earnings

(In millions)

2006 ... e $534.4 $100.5 $ 618 $162.3
2007 L 472.6 61.8 60.5 1223
2008 L 420.0 52.6 43.2 95.8
2000 3779 42.1 35.8 779
2010 . 3423 35.6 220 57.6
2006 -2010 .. oo 3423 2926 223.3 515.9
20011 2015 ..o 196.9 145.4 48.8 194.2
2016 =2020 . .. 97.5 99.4 17.5 116.9
2021 = 2025 .. 373 60.2 11.9 72.1
After 2025 0.0 373 15.6 529

Total ... $634.9 $317.1 $952.0

The following table shows the breakdown of claims paid and incurred losses for each period:

Year Ended December 31
2005 2004 2003
(In thousands)
Claims Paid:
Trade credit reiNSUIaNCE . . .. oottt e e $23.401 $24,085 $ 20,663
Other financial guaranty .. ........ ... .. . 11,708 27,237 9,228
Conseco Finance Corp. . ...t 29,574 30,657 —
64,683 81,979 29,891
Impactof recapture (2) . .. ... oot — 11,488 —
ot o $64,683 $93,467 $ 29,891
Incurred Losses:
Trade credit TEINSUTANCE . . .. oottt et et e e e e e e $16,019 $28,586 $ 35,671
Other financial gUaranty . ... ... ... oottt 15,498 27,312 20,111
Conseco Finance COorp. . ...t i — — 111,000
Total ... $31,517 $55.898 $166,782

(2) Comprised of claims payments related to the 2004 recapture of previously ceded business by one of the
primary insurer customers of our financial guaranty reinsurance business.
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The following table shows the breakdown of the reserve for losses and loss adjustment expenses for our
financial guaranty segment at the end of each period indicated:
December 31
2005 2004 2003
(In thousands)

Financial Guaranty:

CaSE TESEIVES .« o et et e e e e e $ 58,013 § 98,359 § 44,729
Allocated non-specific . ... .. . 27,750 9,750 117,000
Unallocated non-specific .......... ... i, 54,878 56,748 46,697

Trade Credit Reinsurance and Other:
CaSE IESEIVES .\ v it i e 22,068 34,126 43,400
Incurred But Not Reported (“IBNR™) ... .. ... ... ... ... ... 42,083 42,397 25,081
Total .« .. $204,792 $241,380 $276,907

The increase in the allocated non-specific reserve during December 31, 2005 relates to one public finance
credit and one structured finance credit with an aggregate total par outstanding of $41.2 million. The allocated
non-specific reserve at December 31, 2005, relates to three credits with a total par outstanding of $51.0 million.

Financial Services — Results of Operations

The financial services segment includes the credit-based businesses conducted through our affiliates, C-BASS
and Sherman. We own a 46% interest in C-BASS and 34.58% interest in Sherman. C-BASS is a mortgage
investment and servicing firm specializing in credit-sensitive, single-family residential mortgage assets and
residential mortgage-backed securities. By using sophisticated analytics, C-BASS essentially seeks to take
advantage of what it believes to be the mispricing of credit risk for certain of these assets in the marketplace.
Sherman is a consumer asset and servicing firm specializing in charged-off and bankruptcy plan consumer assets
and charged-off high loan-to-value mortgage receivables that it purchases at deep discounts from national financial
institutions and major retail corporations and subsequently collects upon these receivables. In March 2005, Sherman
acquired CreditOne, a credit card bank that provides Sherman with the ability to originate subprime credit card
receivables. The financial services segment also previously included the operations of RadianExpress. In December
2003, we announced that we would cease operations at RadianExpress. RadianExpress completed the final
processing of all remaining transactions in the first quarter of 2005 and was dissolved in the last quarter of 2005.

Net income attributable to the financial services segment for 2005 was $136.2 million compared to $112.5
million for 2004. Equity in net income of affiliates was $218.1 million (pre-tax) for 2005, an increase of $39.0
million or 21.8% compared to $179.1 million (pre-tax) for 2004. C-BASS accounted for $107.8 million (pre-tax)
of the total equity in net income of affiliates for 2005, compared to $95.9 million (pre-tax) for 2004. This reflects
the growth in C-BASS’ servicing income from the significant growth in the size of their serviced portfolio.
C-BASS’ results could vary significantly from period to period because a portion of C-BASS’ income is
dependent on its ability to sell mortgage-backed securities in the capital markets. These mortgage capital markets
can be volatile, subject to changes in interest rates, credit spreads and liquidity. In addition, C-BASS owns
mortgage-backed securities which can be called for redemption, often in low interest-rate environments, such as
have existed recently, which can lead to volatility in its quarterly results, as can C-BASS’ requirement to mark
many of its balance sheet components to market. Equity in net income of affiliates included $110.3 million (pre-
tax) for Sherman in 2005, compared to $83.3 million (pre-tax) in 2004. This amount reflects growth in and strong
collections on Sherman’s portfolio over the past several years and gains from the sale of certain portfolios of
charged-off consumer assets and mortgage receivables in 2005.

RadianExpress recorded negligible income and expenses for 2005 due to its operating on a run-off basis
until its shutdown March 31, 2005, compared to revenues of $2.0 million and expenses of $3.2 million in 2004.
RadianExpress had revenues of $19.8 million and expenses of $38.7 million in 2003. Included in operating
expenses for 2003 was a $13.0 million charge for the cessation of business at RadianExpress, as well as a $2.3
million provision for uncollectible accounts.
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Net income attributable to the financial services segment for 2004 was $112.5 million compared to $42.5
million for 2003. Equity in net income of affiliates (pre-tax) was $179.1 million for 2004, compared to $95.5
million for 2003. C-BASS accounted for $95.9 million (pre-tax) of the total net income of affiliates in 2004
compared to $66.1 million (pre-tax) in 2003. Equity in net income of affiliates included $83.3 million (pre-tax)
for Sherman in 2004 compared to $29.4 million (pre-tax) in 2003.

Other

We are seeking to sell or otherwise dispose of the remaining assets and operations of Singer Asset Finance
Company L.L.C. (*Singer”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of EFSG. Singer had been engaged in the purchase,
servicing, and securitization of assets, including state lottery awards and structured settlement payments, and
currently is operating on a run-off basis. Singer’s run-off operations consist of servicing and/or disposing of
Singer’s previously originated assets and servicing its non-consolidated special-purpose vehicles. The results of
this subsidiary are not material to our financial results. At December 31, 2005, we had approximately $349
million and $328 million of non-consolidated assets and liabilities, respectively, associated with Singer special-
purpose vehicles. Our investment in these special-purpose vehicles was $21.0 million at December 31, 2005.

Radian Asset Assurance has assumed the liabilities of another of our insurance subsidiaries, Van-American
Insurance Company, Inc., which had been engaged on a run-off basis in reclamation bonds for the coal mining
industry and surety bonds covering closure and post-closure obligations of landfill operations. This business is
not material to our financial results and has been dissolved as of December 31, 2005, with any remaining policies
transferred to Radian Asset Assurance.

Contractual Obligations and Commitments

We have various contractual obligations that are recorded as liabilities in our Consolidated Financial
Statements. Other items, including payments under operating lease agreements, are not recorded on our
consolidated balance sheets as liabilities but represent a contractual commitment to pay.

The following table summarizes our contractual obligations and commitments as of December 31, 2005, and
the future periods in which such obligations are expected to be settled in cash. Although the majority of our loss
reserves do not represent contractual obligations and commitments under the Securities and Exchange
Commission (“SEC”) definition, they are included in the table because they represent management’s estimate of
the claims that we will be required to pay on our mortgage insurance and financial guaranty contracts. The table
also reflects the timing of principal and interest payments on outstanding debt. Additional details regarding these
obligations are provided in the Notes to our Consolidated Financial Statements as referenced in the table:

Payments Due by Period

Less than More than
Total 1 Year 1-3 years 4-5 years 5 years
(In thousands)
Long-term debt (Note 7) . ...... ... ... ....... $1,080,292 $ 46,875 $ 93,750 $ 93,750 $845917
Capital lease obligations ...................... — — — — —
Operating lease commitments (Note 13) ....... ... 113,227 12,631 22,138 21,477 56,981
Purchase obligations ............ ... ... ...... — — — — —
Reserve for losses and loss adjustment expenses
(Notes2and6) (1) ......... ... . 718,374 142,310 557,464 7,400 11,200
Total ... .. $1,911,893 3201816 $673,352 $122,627 $914,098

(1) Our reserve for losses and loss adjustment expenses reflects the application of accounting policies described
in “Critical Accounting Policies—Reserve for Losses.” As of December 31, 2005, we have financial
guaranty non-specific reserves of $82.6 million that are not included in the table. The payments due by
period are management’s estimates and assume that all of the loss reserves included in the table will result
in claim payments.
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We also have obligations with respect to our pension, postretirement and other benefit plans. See Note 12 to
the Consolidated Financial Statements.

We have a $400 million unsecured credit facility, comprised of a $100 million 364-day facility that expires
on December 21, 2006, and a $300 million five-year facility that expires on December 16, 2009. This facility
bears interest on any amounts drawn at a rate dependent on our credit rating at the time of such borrowing and
will be calculated according to, at the our option, a base rate or a Eurocurrency rate, plus an applicable margin
and utilization fee. If necessary, this facility will be used for working capital and general corporate purposes.
There have been no drawdowns on this facility as of December 31, 2005.

We also have certain contractual arrangements that would require us to make payments or provide funding
if certain circumstances occur (“‘contingent commitments”). We do not currently expect that these contingent
commitments will result in any amounts being paid by us.

We also utilize letters of credit to back assumed reinsurance contracts, medical insurance policies and an
excise tax-exemption certificate vsed for ceded premiums from our domestic operations to our international
operations. These letters of credit are with various financial institutions, have terms of one-year and will
automatically renew unless we specify otherwise. The letters of credit outstanding at December 31, 2005 and
2004 were $17.1 million and $9.3 million, respectively.

New securities regulations have come into effect that impose enhanced disclosure requirements on issuers of
asset-backed (including mortgaged-backed) securities, including most customers in our structured business. To
allow these customers to comply with the new regulations, we may be required in any given transaction,
depending on the amount of credit enhancement that we are providing, to provide audited financial statements for
the insurance subsidiary participating in the transaction. We are in the process of producing financial statements
(and having them audited) for each of our primary insurance subsidiaries. We anticipate that these financial
statements will be available in the first half of 2006. Until they are available, we will provide full and
unconditional holding-company level guaranties for our insurance subsidiaries’ obligations in such transactions,
principally on our mortgage insurance business for which financial statements prepared in accordance with
GAAP have never previously been available. To date, we have guarantied two structured transactions for Radian
Guaranty involving approximately $715 million of credit exposure.

Off-Balance-Sheet Arrangements

We guarantee payments of up to $25.0 million of a revolving credit facility issued to Sherman. On
December 22, 2005 the facility was extended until December 21, 2006. There have been no drawdowns on this
facility.

Investments

We are required to group assets in our investment portfolio into three categories: held to maturity, available
for sale or trading securities. Fixed-maturity securities for which we have the positive intent and ability to hold to
maturity are classified as held to maturity and reported at amortized cost. Investments classified as available for
sale are reported at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses (net of tax) reported as a separate component of
stockholders’ equity under accumulated other comprehensive income. Investments classified as trading securities
are reported at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses (net of tax) reported as a separate component of
income. For securities classified as either available for sale or held to maturity, we conduct a quarterly evaluation
of declines in market value of the investment portfolio asset basis to determine whether the decline is other-than-
temporary. This evaluation includes a review of (i) the length of time and extent to which fair value is below
amortized cost; (ii) issuer financial condition; and (iii) our intent and ability to retain our investment over a
period of time to allow recovery in fair value. We use a 20% decline in price over four continuous quarters as a
guide in identifying those securities that should be evaluated for impairment. For securities that have experienced
rapid price declines or unrealized losses of less than 20% over periods in excess of four consecutive quarters,
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classification as other-than-temporary is considered. Factors influencing this consideration include an analysis of
the security issuer’s financial performance, financial condition and general economic conditions. If the decline in
fair value is judged to be other-than-temporary, the cost basis of the individual security is written down to fair
value through earnings as a realized loss and fair value becomes the new basis. At December 31, 2005 and 2004,
there were no investments held in the portfolio that met these criteria. Realized gains and losses are determined
on a specific identification method and are included in income. Other invested assets consist of residential
mortgage-backed securities and forward foreign currency contracts and are carried at fair value.

In March 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”)
reached a consensus regarding EITF Issue No. 03-1, “The Meaning of Other-Than-Temporary Impairment and
Its Application to Certain Investments.” The consensus provides guidance for recognizing other-than-temporary
impairments on several types of investments, including debt securities classified as held to maturity and available
for sale under SFAS No. 115 “Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities.” The disclosure
provisions of EITF Issue No. 03-1 continue to be effective for our financial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2005.

On November 3, 2005, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position (“FSP”) Nos. FAS 115-1 and FAS 124-1,
“The Meaning of Other-Than-Temporary Impairment and Its Application to Certain Investments.” This FSP
addresses the determination as to when an investment is considered impaired, whether that impairment is other
than temporary and how to measure an impairment loss. This FSP also includes accounting considerations
subsequent to the recognition of an other-than-temporary impairment and requires certain disclosures about
unrealized losses that have not been recognized as other-than-temporary impairments. This FSP nullifies certain
requirements of EITF Issue 03-1 and supersedes EITF Topic No. D-44, “Recognition of Other-Than-Temporary
Impairment Upon the Planned Sale of a Security Whose Cost Exceeds Fair Value.” The guidance in this FSP also
amends FASB No. 115. This FSP is effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2005. The
impact from the adoption of this guidance is not expected to be material.

The following table shows the gross unrealized losses and fair value of our investments with unrealized
losses that are not deemed to be other-than-temporarily impaired (in thousands), aggregated by investment
category and length of time that individual securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss position, at
December 31, 2005.

Less Than 12 Months 12 Months or Greater Total
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized

Description of Securities Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
U.S. government securities ......... $ 40321 $ 310 $ 2992 $ 65 $ 43313 $ 375
U.S. government-sponsored

ENterprises . ...........c.o....... 29,539 458 3,586 187 33,125 645
State and municipal obligations ..... 518,721 5,172 21,403 520 540,124 5,692
Corporate bonds and notes .. ....... 34,637 668 6,314 157 40,951 825
Asset-backed securities .. .......... 148,185 2,588 69,563 3,033 217,748 5,621
Private placements . ............... 15,333 575 4,007 171 19,340 746
Foreign governments .............. 38,897 339 — — 38.897 339
Redeemable preferred stock ........ 66,571 5,180 — — 66,571 5,180
Convertible securities ............. 120,595 4,337 — — 120,595 4,337
Equity securities ................. 22,326 4,248 — — 22,326 4,248
Total .......... ... ... .. ... . ... $1,035,125 $23,875 $107,865  $4,133  $1,142.990 $28,008

U.S. government securities

The unrealized losses of 12 months or greater duration as of December 31, 2005 on our investments in U.S.
Treasury obligations were caused by interest rate increases. During 2003, the Federal Reserve (the “Fed”) raised
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the federal funds rates eight times for a total of 200 basis points. A majority of the securities remained at an
unrealized loss position due to the rate increases. The contractual terms of these investments do not permit the
issuer to settle the securities at a price less than the amortized cost of the investment. Because we have the ability
and intent to hold these investments until a recovery of fair value, which may be maturity, we do not consider
these investments to be other-than-temporarily impaired at December 31, 2005.

U.S. government-sponsored enterprises

The unrealized losses of 12 months or greater duration as of December 31, 2005 on our investment in U.S.
agency mortgage-backed securities were also caused by interest rate increases. The contractual cash flows of
these investments are guaranteed by an agency of the U.S. government. Accordingly, it is expected that the
securities would not be settled at a price less than the amortized cost of our investment. Because the decline in
market value is attributable to changes in interest rates and not credit quality, and because we have the ability and
intent to hold these investments until a recovery of fair value, which may be maturity, we do not consider these
investments to be other-than-temporarily impaired at December 31, 2005.

State and municipal obligations

The unrealized losses of 12 months or greater duration as of December 31, 2005 on our investments in tax-
exempt state and municipal securities were caused by interest rate increases. During 2008, the taxable yield curve
for 3-month U.S. Treasury bonds and 10-year U.S. Treasury notes increased to 1.9% and 0.15%, respectively,
and the tax-exempt municipal bond yield curve for 1-year municipal bonds and 10-year municipal bonds
increased to 1.15% and 0.25, respectively. Our securities in this category have maturities less than 10 years,
where yield curve increases were most pronounced. We believe that credit quality did not impact security pricing
due to the relative high quality of the holdings (i.e., the majority of the securities were either insured, pre-
refunded or escrowed to maturity). Because we have the ability and intent to hold these investments until a
recovery of fair value, which may be maturity, we do not consider these investments to be other-than-temporarily
impaired at December 31, 2005.

Corporate bonds and notes

The unrealized losses of 12 months or greater duration as of December 31. 2005 on the majority of the
securities in this category were caused by market interest rate movement. A majority of the securities remained at
an unrealized loss position due to these rate increases. Unrealized losses for the remaining securities in this
category are attributable to changes in business operations, resulting in widened credit spreads from
December 31, 2004 to December 31, 2005. Because we have the ability and intent to hold these investments until
a recovery of fair value, which may be maturity, we do not consider these investments to be other-than-
temporarily impaired at December 31, 2005.

Asset-backed securities

The unrealized losses of 12 months or greater duration as of December 31, 2005 on the securities in this
category were casued by market interest rate movement. A majority of the securities remained at an unrealized
loss position due to the rate increases. Because we have the ability and intent to hold these investments until a
recovery of fair value, which may be maturity, we do not consider the investment in these securities to be other-
than-temporarily impaired at December 31, 2005.

Private placements

The unrealized losses of 12 months or greater duration as of December 31, 2005 on the majority of the
securities in this category were caused by market interest rate movement. A majority of the securities remained at
an unrealized loss position due to the rate increases. Because we have the ability and intent to hold these
investments until a recovery of fair value, which may be maturity, we do not consider the investment in these
securities to be other-than-temporarily impaired at December 31, 2005.
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For all investment categories, unrealized losses of less than 12 months in duration are generally attributable
to interest rate movements or changes in foreign currency exchange rates. All securities are evaluated in
accordance with our impairment recognition policy covering various time and price decline scenarios. Because
we have the ability and intent to hold these investments until a recovery of fair value, which may be maturity, we
do not consider the investment in these securities to be other-than-temporarily impaired at December 31, 2005.

The following table shows the gross unrealized losses and fair value of our investments with unrealized
losses that are not deemed to be other-than-temporarily impaired (in thousands), aggregated by investment
category and length of time that individual securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss position, at
December 31, 2004.

Less Than 12 Months 12 Months or Greater Total
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Unrealized
Description of Securities Value Losses Value Losses Fair Value Losses
U.S. government securities . ............ S 18414 $ 100 $ 4601 $ 152 §$ 23,015 § 252
U.S. government-sponsored enterprises . . . 41,148 316 — — 41,148 316
State and municipal obligations . ........ 208,710 2,290 52,566 666 261,276 2,956
Corporate bonds and notes . ............ 13,564 188 — — 13,564 188
Asset-backed securities ........ ... 82,456 1,004 17,939 280 100,395 1,284
Private placements . ................... 10,139 1,279 2,693 108 12,832 1,387
Foreign governments . ................. 21,876 80 — — 21,876 80
Redeemable preferred stock ............ 10,557 319 — — 10,557 319
Convertible securities ................. 60,685 2,230 9,762 215 70,447 2,445
Total ...... .. ... . $467,549  $7,806  $87,561  $1.421  $555,110  $9,227

U.S. government securities

The unrealized losses of 12 months or greater duration as of December 31, 2004 on our investments in U.S.
Treasury obligations and direct obligations of U.S. government agencies were caused by interest rate increases.
During 2004, the Fed raised the federal funds rates five times for a total of 125 basis points. A majority of
securities in this category remained in an unrealized loss position due to the interest rate increases. Because we
had the ability and intent to hold these investments until a recovery of fair value, which may be maturity, we did
not consider these investments to be other-than-temporarily impaired at December 31, 2004.

U.S. government-sponsored enterprises

The unrealized losses of 12 months or greater duration as of December 31, 2004 on our investment in U.S.
agency mortgage-backed securities were caused by interest rate increases. The contractual cash flows of these
investments were guaranieed by an agency of the U.S. government. Accordingly, we expected that the securities
would not be settled at a price less than the amortized cost of our investment. Because the decline in market
value was attributable to changes in interest rates and not credit quality, and because we had the ability and intent
to hold these investments until a recovery of fair value, which may be maturity, we did not consider these
investments to be other-than-temporarily impaired at December 31, 2004.

State and municipal obligations

The unrealized losses of 12 months or greater duration as of December 31, 2004 on our investments in tax-
exempt state and municipal securities were caused by interest rate increases. During 2004, the taxable yield curve
movements for 3-month U.S. treasury bills and 10-year U.S. treasury bonds ranged from an increase of 1.29% to
a decrease of 0.03% and the tax-exempt yield curve movements for l-year municipal bonds and 10-year
municipal bonds ranged from an increase of 0.9% to a increase of 0.02%. Qur bonds in this category reflected
maturities within those maturity ranges and experienced market prices marginally below cost. We believed that
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credit quality did not impact security pricing due to the relative high quality of the holdings (i.e., the majority of
the securities were either AAA/Aaa rated bonds, insured, partially pre-refunded or partially escrowed to
maturity). Because we had the ability and intent to hold these investments until a recovery of fair value, which
may be maturity, we did not consider these investments to be other-than-temporarily impaired at December 31,
2004,

Corporate bonds and notes

At December 31, 2004, for unrealized losses of 12 months or greater we had not identified any securities
where we believed the issuer would not continue to meet their contractual obligation with respect to interest and
principal payments. Because we had the ability and intent to hold these investments until a recovery of fair value,
which may be maturity, we did not consider the investment in these securities to be other-than-temporarily
impaired at December 31, 2004.

Asset-backed securities

At December 31, 2004, for unrealized losses of 12 months or greater we had not identified any securities
where we believed the issuer would not continue to meet their contractual obligation with respect to interest and
principal payments. Because we had the ability and intent to hold these investments until a recovery of fair value,
which may be maturity, we did not consider the investment in these securities to be other-than-temporarily
impaired at December 31, 2004.

Private placements

At December 31, 2004, for unrealized losses of 12 months or greater we had not identified any securities
where we believed the issuer would not continue to meet their contractual obligation with respect to interest and
principal payments. Because we had the ability and intent to hold these investments until a recovery of fair value,
which may be maturity, we did not consider the investment in these securities to be other-than-temporarily
impaired at December 31, 2004.

Convertible securities

At December 31, 2004, for unrealized losses of 12 months or greater we had not identified any securities
where we believed the issuer would not continue to meet their contractual obligation with respect to interest and
principal payments. Because we had the ability and intent to hold these investments until a recovery of fair value,
which may be maturity, we did not consider the investment in these securities to be other-than-temporarily
impaired at December 31, 2004,

For all investment categories, unrealized losses of less than 12 months in duration were generally
attributable to interest rate movements or changes in foreign currency exchange rates. All securities were
evaluated in accordance with our impairment recognition policy covering various time and price decline
scenarios. Because we had the ability and intent to hold these investments until a recovery of fair value, which
may be maturity, we did not consider the investment in these securities to be other-than-temporarily impaired at
December 31, 2004.

Of the 101 securities that have been in an unrealized loss position for more than 12 months at December 31,

2005, none has an unrealized loss of more than 20% of that security’s amortized cost and, in our judgment, none
of the losses required recognition as other-than-temporary.
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The contractual maturity of securities in an unrealized loss position at December 31, 2005 was as follows:

Fair Value Amortized Cost Unrealized Loss

( In millions)

2000 . . $ 412 $ 414 $ 0.2
2007 — 2010 . .o 132.1 133.5 1.4
2001 = 2005 o 124.6 126.8 2.2
2016 and Jater . ... o e 538.5 547.7 9.2
Mortgage-backed and other asset-backed securities . .............. 217.7 2233 5.6
Redeemable preferred stock ............ ... .. .. ... ... ... ... 66.6 71.8 5.2
Equity securities ......... ... e 223 26.5 42

Total ... $1,143.0 $1,171.0 $28.0

Liquidity and Capital Resources

We act principally as a holding company for our insurance subsidiaries and do not have any significant
operations of our own. Dividends from our subsidiaries and permitted payments to us under our tax- and
expense-sharing arrangements with our subsidiaries, along with income from our investment portfolio and
dividends from our affiliates (C-BASS and Sherman), are our principal sources of cash to pay stockholder
dividends and to meet our obligations. These obligations include our operating expenses, taxes and interest and
principal payments on debt. The payment of dividends and other distributions to us by our insurance subsidiaries
is regulated by insurance laws and regulations. In general, dividends in excess of prescribed limits are deemed
“extraordinary” and require insurance regulatory approval. In addition, although we have expense-sharing
arrangements in place with our principal operating subsidiaries that require those subsidiaries to pay their share
of holding company-level expenses, including interest expense on our long-term debt, these expense-sharing
arrangements are subject to termination at any time by the applicable state insurance departments. In addition,
our insurance subsidiaries’ ability to pay dividends to us, and our ability to pay dividends to our stockholders, is
subject to various conditions imposed by the rating agencies for us to maintain our ratings. If the cash we receive
from our subsidiaries pursuant to expense- and tax-sharing arrangements is insufficient for us to fund our
obligations, we may be required to seek additional capital by incurring additional debt, by issuing additional
equity or by selling assets, which we may be unable to do on favorable terms, if at all. The need to raise
additional capital or the failure to make timely payments on our obligations could have a material adverse effect
on our business, financial condition and operating results.

During 2005, we received $250.3 million in dividends from our mortgage insurance operating subsidiaries
and a $100 million dividend from Radian Asset Assurance. We also received a $100 million dividend from one
of our mortgage insurance subsidiaries that was declared in 2004. Our insurance subsidiaries may be limited in
the amount that they may pay in dividends to us during the next 12 months without first obtaining insurance
department approval.

We have not made any capital contributions to C-BASS since we acquired our interest in C-BASS in
connection with our acquisition of EFSG in February 2001. C-BASS paid $33.5 million and $32.5 million of
dividends to one of our insurance subsidiaries during 2005 and 2004, respectively. In February 2006, an
additional dividend of $3.7 million was received from C-BASS. The distribution of these amounts to us by our
insurance subsidiaries is subject to regulatory limitations.

Sherman paid $110.7 million and $49.8 million of dividends to one of our insurance subsidiaries during
2005 and 2004, respectively. In February 2006, an additional dividend of $60.5 million was received from
Sherman. The distribution of these amounts to us by our insurance subsidiaries is subject to regulatory
limitations.

Amounts that we ultimately received from our subsidiaries and C-BASS and Sherman during 2005 and 2004
were used, in part, to fund our stock repurchase programs.
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Our insurance subsidiaries are permitted to allocate capital resources within certain insurance department
and rating agency guidelines by making direct investments. In April 2003, Radian Guaranty invested $100
million in EFSG, for an approximate 11% ownership interest. This amount was subsequently contributed by
EFSG to Radian Asset Assurance to support growth in the direct financial guaranty business. In January 2004,
we contributed an additional $65 million in capital to EFSG that was subsequently contributed to Radian Asset
Assurance. During the first quarter of 2004, EFSG transferred its investment in Sherman in the form of a
dividend to Radian Guaranty. In February 2006, we submitted a request to the insurance department of
Pennsylvania, to contribute approximately $500 million in capital from Radian Guaranty to Radian Insurance to
support the additional risk that has been written in that entity, mostly through non-traditional products by our
Capital Markets and International Mortgage business channels. In February 2006, upon receiving approval for
Radian Europe Lid. (a subsidiary of Radian Insurance), Radian Insurance contributed $53 million in capital to
Radian Europe Ltd. to fund its operations.

Short-Term Liquidity Needs

Our liquidity needs over the next 12 months include funds for the payment of dividends on our common
stock, debt service payments on our outstanding long-term debt, claim payments on our insured obligations and
operating expenses. We expect to fund these requirements with amounts received under our expense-sharing
arrangements or as dividends from our insurance operating subsidiaries, which include dividends to these
subsidiaries from our affiliates (C-BASS and Sherman), and from working capital, all of which we expect to be
sufficient to make such payments for at least the next 12 months.

Based on our current intention to pay quarterly common stock dividends of approximately $0.02 per share
and assuming that our common stock outstanding remains constant at 83,032,456 shares outstanding at
December 31, 20035, we would require approximately $6.6 million to pay our next four quarterly dividends. We
will also require approximately $46.9 million annually to pay the debt service on our outstanding long-term debt.

Our sources of working capital consist mostly of premiums written by our insurance operating subsidiaries
and investment income at both the parent company and operating subsidiary levels. Working capital is applied
mainly to the payment of our insurance operating subsidiaries’ claims, operating expenses and to fund our stock
repurchase programs. Cash flows from operating activities for the year ended December 31, 2005, were $570.4
million, compared to $409.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2004. The lower cash flow from operations
in 2004 resulted mainly from the payment of $76.9 million as a result of the recapture of previously ceded
business that occurred in the first quarter of 2004 coupled with higher claims paid and operating expenditures. In
2005, we paid $37.6 million as a result of the recapture of previously ceded business that occurred in the first
quarter of 2005. Positive cash flows are invested pending future payments of claims and other expenses.

We believe that the operating cash flows generated by each of our insurance subsidiaries will provide those
subsidiaries with sufficient funds to satisfy their claim payments and operating expenses for at least the next 12
months. In the unlikely event that ciaim payment obligations and operating expenses exceed the operating cash
flows generated by our insurance operating subsidiaries, we believe that we have the ability to fund any excess
from sales of short-term investments. At December 31, 2005, we had cash and liquid investment securities of
$164.9 million. In the unlikely event that we are unable to fund excess claim payments and operating expenses
through the sale of short-term investments, we may be required to incur unanticipated capital losses or delays in
connection with the sale of less liquid securities held by us. In any event, we do not anticipate the need for
borrowings, under credit facilities or otherwise, to satisfy claim payment obligations or other operating expenses.

We plan to continue to invest in significant information technology and infrastructure upgrades over the
next two years at an estimated total cost of $20 million to $30 million, which is intended to benefit all of our
business segments. In addition, we are making significant investments in upgrading our business continuity plan.
We expect to use cash flows from operations to fund these expenditures.
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Long-Term Liquidity Needs

Our most significant need for liquidity beyond the next twelve months is the repayment of the principal
amount of our outstanding long-term debt. We expect to meet our long-term liquidity needs using excess
working capital, sales of investments, borrowings under our credit facility or through the private or public
issuance of debt or equity securities.

In February 2005, the SEC declared effective our $800 million universal shelf registration statement. On
June 7, 2005, we issued under the shelf registration statement $250 million of unsecured senior notes at a price of
99.822% of their principal amount. These notes bear interest at the rate of 5.375% per annum, payable semi-
annually on June 15 and December 15, beginning on December 15, 2005. The notes mature on June 15, 2015.
We have the option to redeem some or all of the notes at any time with not less than 30 days’ notice at a
redemption price equal to the greater of the principal amount of the notes or the sum of the present values of the
remaining scheduled payments of principal and interest on the notes to be redeemed. We used a portion of the
proceeds from the sale of the notes to redeem at par, on August 1, 2005, all $219.3 million in aggregate principal
amount outstanding of our 2.25% Senior Convertible Debentures due 2022. We intend to use the balance of the
proceeds for general corporate purposes. We may use the shelf registration statement to offer and sell additional
debt securities and various other types of securities to the public. However, we may be unable to issue additional
securities under the shelf registration statement or otherwise on favorable terms, if at all.

In February 2003, we issued $250 million of unsecured senior notes. These notes bear interest at the rate of
5.625% per annum, payable semi-annually on February 15 and August 15. These notes mature in February 2013.
We have the option to redeem some or all of the notes at any time with not less than 30 days’ notice at a
redemption price equal to the greater of the principal amount of the notes or the present values of the remaining
scheduled payments of principal and interest on the notes to be redeemed.

In January 2002, we issued $220 million of senior convertible debentures due 2022. On January 3, 2005, we
repurchased, at the option of certain electing holders, $663,000 in principal amount of the debentures. We
redeemed the remaining $219.3 million in principal amount outstanding on August 1, 2005.

In May 2001, we issued $250 million of 7.75% debentures due June 1, 2011. Interest on the debentures is
payable semi-annually on June 1 and December 1. We have the option to redeem some or all of the debentures at
any time with not less than 30 days’ notice at a redemption price equal to the greater of the principal amount of
the notes or the sum of the present values of the remaining scheduled payments of principal and interest on the
notes to be redeemed.

On December 16, 2004, we replaced a $250 million unsecured revolving credit facility that expired in
December 2004 with a $400 million unsecured facility, comprised of a $100 million 364-day facility and a $300
million five-year facility. On December 15, 2005, we amended the facility to extend the expiration date of the
364-day facility from December 15, 2005 to December 14, 2006. The five-year facility expires on December 16,
2009. There were no drawdowns on the expired facility, and we have not drawn down any amounts under the
new facility through December 31, 2005. Our ability to borrow under the new facility is subject to compliance
with all applicable covenants. The new facility bears interest on any amounts drawn down at a rate dependent on
our credit rating at the time of such borrowing. This rate will be calculated according to, at our option, a base rate
or a Eurocurrency rate, plus an applicable margin and utilization fee. If necessary, we intend to use this facility
for working capital and general corporate purposes.

In September 2003, Radian Asset Assurance closed on $150 million of money market committed preferred
custodial trust securities, pursuant to which it entered into a series of three perpetual put options on its own
preferred stock to Radian Asset Securities Inc. (“Radian Asset Securities”), our wholly-owned subsidiary. Radian
Asset Securities in turn entered into a series of three perpetual put options on its own preferred stock (on
substantially identical terms to the Radian Asset Assurance preferred stock). The counterparties to the Radian
Asset Securities put options are three trusts established by two major investment banks. The trusts were created
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as a vehicle for providing capital support to Radian Asset Assurance by allowing Radian Asset Assurance to
obtain immediate access to additional capital at its sole discretion at any time through the exercise of one or more
of the put options and the corresponding exercise of one or more corresponding Radian Asset Securities put
options. If the Radian Asset Assurance put options were exercised, Radian Asset Securities, through the Radian
Asset Assurance preferred stock thereby acquired, and investors, through their equity investment in the Radian
Asset Securities preferred stock, would have rights to the assets of Radian Asset Assurance of an equity investor
in Radian Asset Assurance. Such rights would be subordinate to policyholders’ claims, as well as to claims of
general unsecured creditors of Radian Asset Assurance, but ahead of the parent company’s claims, through
EFSG, as the owner of the common stock of Radian Asset Assurance. If all the Radian Asset Assurance put
options were exercised, Radian Asset Assurance would receive up to $150 million in return for the issuance of its
own perpetual preferred stock, the proceeds of which would be useable for any purpose, including the payment of
claims. Dividend payments on the preferred stock will be cumulative only if Radian Asset Assurance pays
dividends on its common stock. Each trust will be restricted to holding high-quality, short-term commercial
paper investments to ensure that it can meet its obligations under the put option. To fund these investments, each
trust will issue its own auction market perpetual preferred stock. Each trust is currently rated “A” by each of S&P
and Fitch.

Reconciliation of Net Income to Cash Flows from Operations

The following table reconciles net income to cash flows from operations for the years ended December 31,
2005 and 2004 (in thousands):

December 31 December 31

2005 2004
N INCOME .« o ottt e e $ 522,854 $ 518,653
DeCrease IN TESEIVES .. o vttt it e e et e e 3,412 7,008
Deferred tax proviSion . . ...ttt e e e e 147,156 135,026
Cash paid forclawback (1) ... ... . (37,645) (76,882)
Increase in unearned premiums .. .. ... i 131,635 51,316
Increase in deferred policy acquisition COStS .. ... oo v i i (16,038) 7,524
Equity in earnings of affiliates ............ ... . i (217,692)  (180,550)
Distributions from affiliates (1) .. ... ... 144,161 82,300
Net gains on sales and change in fair value of derivatives . .................. (45,808) (97,934)
Increase in prepaid federal income taxes (1) ......... ... ..o (125,365) (101,309)
Depreciation and amortization, et . ... ... v vttt et 34,040 27,956
Other .o e 29,676 36,633
Cash flows from operations . . .. ...ttt e $ 570,386  $ 409,741

(1) Cash item.

Cash flows from operations for the year ended 2005 have increased compared to the comparable period of
2004. An increasing portion of our net income has been derived from our equity in earnings of affiliates, which is
a non-cash item. This has been partially offset by higher distributions from our affiliates. Cash flows from
operations also increased as a result of an increase in premiums received, lower claim payments and lower net
payments on the settlement of derivative financial guaranty contracts. We do not expect net income to greatly
exceed cash flows from operations in the future.

Stock Repurchase Programs

Since September 2002, our board of directors has authorized five separate repurchase programs for the
repurchase, in the aggregate, of up to 19.5 million shares of our common stock on the open market. At March 31,
2004, we had repurchased all 2.5 million shares under the initial program (announced September 24, 2002) at a
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cost of approximately $87.0 million. At March 31, 2005, we had repurchased an additional 5.0 million shares
under the second program (announced May 11, 2004, and extended September 8, 2004) at a cost of
approximately $235.9 million, and at June 30, 2005, we had repurchased all 5.0 million shares under the third
program (announced February 15, 2005) at a cost of approximately $240.0 million. At December 31, 2005, we
had repurchased all 3.0 million shares authorized under the fourth repurchase program (announced August 9,
2005) at a cost of approximately $160.0 million. All share repurchases made to date were funded from available
working capital, and were made from time to time depending on market conditions, share price and other factors.

On February 7, 2006, we announced that our board of directors had authorized a fifth repurchase program of
up to 4.0 million shares of our common stock on the open market under a new repurchase plan. Stock purchases
under this program will be funded from available working capital and will be made from time to time, depending
on market conditions, stock price and other factors. The board did not set an expiration date for this program.

We also may purchase shares on the open market to meet option exercise obligations and to fund 401(k)
matches and purchases under our Employee Stock Purchase Plan and may consider additional stock repurchase
programs in the future.

Stockholders’ Equity

Stockholders’ equity was $3.7 billion at December 31, 2005 and December 31, 2004. Stockholders’ equity
remained flat as a result of (1) our repurchase of approximately 14.3 million shares of our common stock, net of
reissues, for approximately $511.8 million, (2) a decrease in the market value of securities available for sale of
$52.8 million, net of tax, and (3) dividends paid during 2005 of $6.8 million, partially offset by net income of
$522.9 million and proceeds from the issuance of common stock under incentive plans of $38.6 million.

Critical Accounting Policies

SEC guidance defines Critical Accounting Policies as those that require the application of management’s
most difficult, subjective, or complex judgments, often because of the need to make estimates about the effect of
matters that are inherently uncertain and that may change in subsequent periods. In preparing our Consolidated
Financial Statements, management has made estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during
the reporting periods. In preparing these financial statements, management has utilized available information
including our past history, industry standards and the current economic environment, among other factors, in
forming its estimates and judgments, giving due consideration to materiality. Actual results may differ from
those estimates. In addition, other companies may utilize different estimates, which may impact comparability of
our results of operations to those of companies in similar businesses. A summary of the accounting policies that
management believes are critical to the preparation of our Consolidated Financial Statements is set forth below.

Reserve for Losses

As described in Notes 2 and 6 to our Consolidated Financial Statements, we establish reserves to provide for
losses and the estimated costs of settling claims in both the mortgage insurance and financial guaranty
businesses. Setting loss reserves in both businesses involves significant use of estimates with regard to the
likelihood, magnitude and timing of a loss.

In our mortgage insurance business, reserves for losses generally are not established until we are notified
that a borrower has missed two payments. We also establish reserves for associated loss adjustment expenses
(“LAE”), consisting of the estimated cost of the claims administration process, including legal and other fees and
expenses associated with administering the claims process. SFAS No. 60 specifically excludes mortgage
guaranty insurance from its guidance relating to the reserve for losses. We maintain an extensive database of
claim payment history and use models, based on a variety of loan characteristics, including the status of the loan
as reported by its servicer and macroeconomic factors such as regional economic conditions that involve
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significant variability over time, as well as more static factors such as the estimated foreclosure period in the area
where the default exists, to help determine the appropriate loss reserve at any point in time. With respect to
delinquent loans that are in an early stage of delinquency, considerable judgment is exercised as to the adequacy
of reserve levels. Adjustments in estimates for delinquent loans in the early stage of delinquency are more
volatile in nature than for loans that are in the later stage of delinquency. As the delinquency proceeds toward
foreclosure, there is more certainty around these estimates as a result of the aged status of the delinquent loan and
adjustments are made to loss reserves to reflect this updated information. If a default cures, the reserve for that
loan is removed from the reserve for losses and LAE. This curing process causes an appearance of a reduction in
reserves from prior years if the reduction in reserves from cures is greater than the additional reserves for those
loans that are nearing foreclosure or have become claims. We also reserve for defaults that we believe to have
occurred but that have not been reported, using historical information on defaults not reported on a timely basis
by lending institutions. All estimates are continually reviewed and adjustments are made as they become
necessary. We generally do not establish reserves for mortgages that are in default if we believe we will not be
liable for the payment of a claim with respect to that default. Consistent with GAAP and industry accounting
practices, we generally do not establish loss reserves for expected future claims on insured mortgages that are not
in default or believed to be in default.

In January 2005, we implemented a revised modeling process to assist us in establishing reserves in the
mortgage insurance business. In recent years, with the growth in the Alt-A and non-prime business, we realized
that the change in the portfolio mix required us to segment the portfolio and evaluate the reserves required for
each differently. The previous model had been designed for a prime product only and needed to be updated with
many years of additional data. The revised model differentiates between prime and non-prime products and takes
into account the different loss development patterns and borrower behavior that is inherent in these products,
whether we are in a first- or second-loss position and whether there are deductibles on the loan. The model
calculates a range of reserves by product and a midpoint for each product based on historical factors. In
determining the amount of reserve to be recorded, we begin with the calculated midpoint and then we evaluate
other conditions, such as current economic conditions, regional housing conditions and the reliability of historical
data for new products, to determine if an adjustment to the midpoint calculated by the model is necessary. The
new model did not result in an adjustment to the overall reserve for losses that we recorded.

At December 31, 2005, we made a judgment to reserve at a level slightly above the midpoint, given the
uncertainty around the ultimate performance of our non-prime products, the potential overpricing in certain
housing markets and the uncertainty around hurricane-related defaults.

We establish loss reserves on our non-derivative financial guaranty contracts. We establish case reserves for
specifically identified impaired credits that have defaulted and allocated non-specific reserves for specific credits
that we expect to default. In addition, we establish unallocated non-specific reserves for our entire portfolio based
on estimated statistical loss probabilities. As discussed below, the reserving policies used by the financial
guaranty industry are continuing to evolve and are subject to change.

Our financial guaranty loss reserve policy requires management to make the following key estimates and
judgments:

¢ Setting both case reserves and allocated non-specific reserves requires us to exercise judgment in estimating
the severity of the claim that is likely to result from an identified reserving event, which may be any amount
up to the full amount of the insured obligation. The reliability of this estimate depends on the reliability of
the information regarding the likely severity of the claim and the judgments made by management with
respect to that information. Even when we are aware of the occurrence of an event that requires the
establishment of a reserve, our estimate of the severity of the claim that is likely to result from that event
may not be correct.

— At December 31, 2005, we had case and LAE reserves on financial guaranty policies of $58.0 million.
Of this amount, $50.8 million was attributable to a single manufactured housing transaction originated
and serviced by Conseco Finance Corp. We have a high degree of certainty that we will suffer losses
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with respect to this insured obligation equal to the amount reserved, which equals the total amount of
the remaining insured obligation. The case and LAE reserves also include $6.7 million attributable to
37 reinsured obligations on which our total par outstanding is $33.4 million. These reserves are
established based on amounts conveyed to us by the ceding companies and confirmed by us. We do not
have any reasonable expectation that the ultimate losses will deviate materially from the amount
reserved. The remaining $0.5 million of case and LAE reserves is attributable to two insured
obligations for which we have LAE reserves established partially offset by salvage recoveries on two
other insured obligations.

— At December 31, 2005, three credits were included in our allocated non-specific reserves. We expect
that we will suffer losses with respect to these insured obligations equal to the amount reserved of
$27.8 million. These credits have a par amount of $51.0 million.

Our unallocated non-specific reserves are established over time by applying expected default factors to the
premiums earned during each reporting period. The expected lifetime losses for each credit are determined
by multiplying the expected frequency of losses on that credit by the expected severity of losses on that
credit and multiplying this number, the loss factor, by that credit’s outstanding par amount. The expected
frequency and severity of losses for each credit is generated from three sources — two that are published by
major rating agencies and one that is generated by a proprietary internal model — based on the product class,
published rating and term to maturity for each credit. We set the expected lifetime losses for each credit at
the approximate midpoint of the range between the highest and lowest expected lifetime loss factors
generated by the rating agency and internally generated models. The default rates published by rating
agencies tend to be very low because we mostly insure investment-grade obligations that, historically, have
a very low probability of default. Although the default rate is low, the amount of losses upon default can be
very high because we tend to insure large financial obligations. Because of the low incidence of losses on
financial guaranty obligations, it is also very difficult to estimate the timing of losses on our insured
obligations for which we have not yet established a case reserve or allocated non-specific reserve. The
default factors for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 approximated 10% of earned
premiums on public finance credits and 20% of earned premiums on structured finance credits.

Our unallocated non-specific loss reserve at December 31, 2005, was $54.9 million. The range between the
unallocated non-specific reserves that would have resulted from applying the highest and lowest default
factors generated by any of the three models was approximately $18 million to $75 million, which we
believe provides a reasonably likely range of expected losses. None of the product types insured by us
accounted for a materially disproportionate share of the variability within that range.

At each balance sheet date, we also evaluate both the model-generated default factors and our unallocated
non-specific reserves against management’s subjective view of qualitative factors to ensure that the default
factors and the unallocated non-specific reserves represent management’s best estimate of the expected
losses on our portfolio of credits for which we have not established a case reserve or an allocated
non-specific reserve. These qualitative factors include existing economic and business conditions, overall
credit quality trends resulting from industry, geographic, economic and political conditions, recent loss
experience in particular segments of the portfolio, changes in underwriting policies and procedures and
seasoning of the book of business. The macroeconomic factors that we evaluate are outside of our control
and are subject to considerable variability. Our specific factors that we evaluate also require that we make
subjective judgments. In addition, a significant change in the size of our portfolio underlying the unallocated
non-specific reserves, such as through the expiration of policies or the refunding or recapture of insured
exposures, could require an adjustment to the default factors or our level of unallocated non-specific
reserves. To date, our evaluation of these qualitative factors has not led us to adjust the default factors or our
level of unallocated non-specific reserves. Our estimate of our reserves for losses and LAE for financial
guaranty’s other lines of business, principally trade credit reinsurance, depend upon the receipt of accurate
reports and individual loss estimates from ceding companies. The time lag in receiving reports on individual
loss estimates in trade credit reinsurance is generally three to six months. We use historical loss information
and make inquiries to the cedants of known events as a means of validating our loss assumptions while
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awaiting more formal updated reports. Any differences in viewpoints are resolved expeditiously and have
historically not resulted in material adjustments. In addition, a reserve is included for losses and LAE IBNR,
on trade credit reinsurance.

Setting the loss reserves in both business segments involves significant reliance upon estimates with regard
to the likelihood, magnitude and timing of a loss. The models and estimates we use to establish loss reserves may
not prove to be accurate, especially during an extended economic downturn. There can be no assurance that we
have correctly estimated the necessary amount of reserves or that the reserves established will be adequate to
cover ultimate losses on incurred defaults.

In January and February 2005, we discussed with the SEC staff, both separately and together with other
members of the financial guaranty industry, the differences in loss reserve practices followed by different
financial guaranty industry participants. On June 8, 2005, the FASB added a project to its agenda to consider the
accounting by insurers for financial guaranty insurance. The FASB will consider several aspects of the insurance
accounting model, including claims liability recognition, premium recognition and the related amortization of
deferred policy acquisition costs. In addition, we also understand that the FASB may expand the scope of this
project to include income recognition and loss reserving methodology in the mortgage insurance industry.
Proposed and final guidance from the FASB regarding accounting for financial guaranty insurance is expected to
be issued in 2006. When and if the FASB or the SEC reaches a conclusion on these issues, we and the rest of the
financial guaranty industry may be required to change some aspects of our accounting policies. If the FASB or
the SEC were to determine that we should account for our financial guaranty contracts ditferently, for example
by requiring them to be treated solely as one or the other of short-duration or long-duration contracts under SFAS
No. 60, this determination could impact our accounting for loss reserves, premium revenue and deferred
acquisition costs, all of which are covered by SFAS No. 60. Management is unable to estimate what impact, if
any, the ultimate resolution of this issue will have on our financial condition or operating results.

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activity

We account for derivatives under SFAS No. 133, as amended and interpreted. Some of the fixed-maturity
securities included in our investment portfolio and certain of our financial guaranty contracts are considered
“derivatives.” Under SFAS No. 133, the convertible debt and redeemable preferred securities included in our
investment portfolio must be characterized as hybrid securities because they generally combine both debt and
equity characteristics. The hybrid classification requires that the convertible security valuation be separated into a
fixed-income component and an equity derivative component. Valuation changes on the fixed-income component
are recorded as other comprehensive income on our consolidated balance sheets while valuation changes on the
equity derivative component are recorded as net gains and losses on our statements of income. We believe that
the market valuation of each hybrid convertible security is appropriately allocated to its fixed-income and equity
derivative components. The gains and losses on the equity derivative component of the security are determined
by a third party investment manager using an industry standard option pricing model. The gains and losses on
direct derivative financial guaranty contracts are derived from internally generated models. The gains and losses
on assumed derivative financial guaranty contracts are provided by the primary insurance companies.

With respect to our direct derivative financial guaranty contracts, estimated fair value amounts are
determined by us using market information to the extent available, and appropriate valuation methodologies. For
CDO’s, credit spreads on individual names in our collateral pool are used to determine an equivalent risk tranche
on an industry standard credit default swap index. We then estimate the price of our equivalent risk tranche based
on observable market prices of standard risk tranches on the industry standard credit default swap index. When
credit spreads on individual names are not available, the average credit spread on the credit rating of the name is
used. For certain structured transactions, dealer quotes on similar structured transactions are used. Significant
differences may exist with respect to the available market information and assumptions used to determine gains
and losses on derivative financial guaranty contracts. Considerable judgment is required to interpret market data
to develop the estimates of fair value. Accordingly, the estimates are not necessarily indicative of amounts we
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could realize in a current market exchange due to the lack of a liquid market. The use of different market
assumptions and/or estimation methodologies may have a significant effect on the estimated fair value amounts.

In the fourth quarter of 2005, we refined our mark-to-market model to use actual credit spreads by
individual name, when available as discussed above, as compared to our previous version of the model, which
used average spreads for similarly rated names. While application of the new model resulted in minimal changes
for most of our derivative transactions, one synthetic collateralized debt obligation showed a large difference due
to greater spread volatility in the underlying high-yield corporate names included in this transaction. At
December 31, 2005, our refined model indicated that a $50.8 million loss should be recognized on this
transaction, which was included on our list of intensified surveillance credits at December 31, 2005. On March 2,
2006, Radian Asset Assurance and its counterparty to this transaction terminated this transaction and amended
the one other derivative financial guaranty contract insured by Radian Asset Assurance with this same
counterparty. See “Results of Operations—Financial Guaranty—Year Ended December 31, 2005 Compared to
Year Ended December 31, 2004—Provision for Losses.”

A summary of our derivative information as of and for the periods indicated is as follows:

December 31
2005 2004
(In millions)

Balance Sheet
Trading Securities

Amortized COSE . ..ottt $ 681 $ 654

Fairvalue . ...... .. 8§94 86.3
Derivative Financial Guaranty Contracts

Notional value . ...t $30,208.0  $12,500.0

Gross unrealized gains . ............ ..., $ 983 $ 749

Gross unrealized losses . ......... ... ... . i, 72.1 49.6

Net unrealized gains .. .........c..oviiiieiiinnan.. $ 262 § 253

The components of the change in fair value of derivative instruments are as follows:

Year Ended December 31
2005 2004 2003
(In millions)

Income Statement

Trading Securities .. ... ..ottt $0.3) $174 §$52

Gain on termination of Treasury rate lock ................... 1.0 — —

Derivative financial guaranty contracts . ..................... 8.4 29.7 1.1
NELGAINS L\ v vt v ettt $91 $471 $41

The following table presents information at December 31, 2005 and 2004 related to net unrealized gains
(losses) on derivative financial guaranty contracts (included in assets or liabilities, as appropriate, on our
consolidated balance sheets).

December 31 December 31

2005 2004
(In millions)

Balance atJanuary 1 ... ... .. .. $25.3 $(16.1)
Net unrealized gainsrecorded . ....... ... .. . .. i 8.4 29.7
Settlements of derivatives contracts

RECOVEIIES .ttt e e (7.6) (4.0)

Payments . ..o e 0.1 18.6
Early termination reCeipts . ... . ... ittt — (2.9)
Balance atend of period .. ... ... $26.2 $253

67



The application of SFAS No. 133, as amended, could result in volatility from period to period in gains and
losses as reported on our consolidated statements of income. These gains and losses are mostly the result of
changes in corporate credit spreads, changes in the creditworthiness of underlying corporate entities, and the
equity performance of the entities underlying the convertible investments. Any incurred gains or losses on such
contracts would be recognized as a change in the fair value of derivatives. We are unable to predict the effect this
volatility may have on our financial position or results of operations.

We record premiums and origination costs related to credit default swaps and certain other financial
guaranty contracts in premiums written and policy acquisition costs, respectively, on our Consolidated
Statements of Income. See “Results of Operations—Financial Guaranty.” Our classification of these contracts is
the same whether we are a direct insurer or we assume these contracts.

In accordance with our risk management policies, we entered into derivatives to hedge the interest-rate risk
related to the issuance of certain long-term debt. As of December 31, 2005, there were two interest-rate swap
contracts relating to our 5.625% unsecured Senior Notes due 2013. These interest-rate swaps are designed as fair
value hedges that hedge the change in fair value of the debt arising from interest rate movements. During 2005
and 2004, the fair value hedges were 100% effective. Therefore, the changes in the fair value of derivative
instruments in our Consolidated Statements of Income were offset by the change in the fair value of the hedged
debt. These interest-rate swap contracts mature in February 2013. We had no interest-rate swaps in effect in
2003.

Terms of the interest-rate swap contracts at December 31, 2005 were as follows (dollars in thousands):

NOtHONAl AMOUNE . . o . ottt e e et e e e e e e e e e $250,000
Rate received — Fixed . ... ... . e 5.625%
Rate paid — Floating (a) .. ...t 5.663%
Maturity date ... ... February 15, 2013
Unrealized 10SS . . .. oot $2,652

(a) The December 31, 2005 six-month London Interbank Offered Rate (“LLIBOR”) forward rate at the next swap
payment date plus 87.4 basis points.

In October 2004, we entered into transactions to lock in treasury rates that would have served as a hedge in
the event we issued long-term debt during such time. The notional value of the hedges was $120 million at a
blended rate of 4.075%. At December 31, 2004, we had a $1.5 million unrealized gain recorded on the hedges. In
January 2005, we discontinued the hedge arrangements and received payments from our counterparties. We
realized a gain of $1.0 million at termination in 2005.

Deferred Policy Acquisition Costs

Costs associated with the acquisition of mortgage insurance business, consisting of compensation and other
policy issuance and underwriting expenses, are initially deferred and reported as deferred policy acquisition
costs. Because SFAS No. 60 specifically excludes mortgage guaranty insurance from its guidance relating to the
amortization of deferred policy acquisition costs, amortization of these costs for each underwriting-year book of
business is charged against revenue in proportion to estimated gross profits over the estimated life of the policies
using the guidance provided by SFAS No. 97, “Accounting and Reporting by Insurance Enterprises for Certain
Long-Duration Contracts and for Realized Gains and Losses from the Sale of Investments.” This includes
accruing interest on the unamortized balance of deferred policy acquisition costs. Estimates of expected gross
profit including persistency and loss development assumptions for each underwriting year used as a basis for
amortization are evaluated regularly, and the total amortization recorded to date is adjusted by a charge or credit
to the statement of income if actual experience or other evidence suggests that earlier estimates should be
revised. Considerable judgment is used in evaluating these factors when updating the assumptions. The use of
different assumptions would have a significant effect on the amortization of deferred policy acquisition costs.
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Deferred policy acquisition costs in our financial guaranty business are comprised of those expenses that
vary with, and are principally related to, the production of insurance premiums, including: commissions paid on
reinsurance assumed, salaries and related costs of underwriting and marketing personnel, rating agency fees,
premium taxes and certain other underwriting expenses, offset by commission income on premiums ceded to
reinsurers. Acquisition costs are deferred and amortized over the period in which the related premiums are earned
for each underwriting year. The amortization of deferred policy acquisition costs is adjusted regularly based on
the expected timing of both upfront and installment-based premiums. The estimation of instaliment-based
premiums requires considerable judgment, and different assumptions could produce different results.

Origination costs for derivative financial guaranty contracts are expensed as incurred.

As noted under “Reserve for Losses” above, the FASB is considering the accounting model used by the
financial guaranty industry for deferred policy acquisition costs.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In late 2004, the FASB ratified EITF Issue 04-08 “The Effects of Contingently Convertible Instruments on
Diluted Earnings per Share,” which requires that, effective beginning with reporting periods after December 15,
2004, contingently convertible debt be included in calculating diluted earnings per share regardless of whether
the contingent feature has been met. For the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, diluted earnings
per share included a $0.13, $0.18 and $0.13 per share decrease, respectively, related to shares that were subject to
issuance upon conversion of our contingently convertible debt. We redeemed all $219.3 million in principal
amount outstanding of our contingently convertible debentures due 2022 on Auvgust 1, 2005.

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123 (Revised) (“SFAS No. 123R”) that will require
compensation costs related to share-based payment transactions to be recognized in an issuer’s financial
statements. The compensation costs, with limited exceptions, will be measured based on the grant-date fair value
of the equity or liability instrument issued. In October 2005, the FASB issued Staff Position No. FAS 123(R)-2
“Practical Accommodation to the Application of Grant Date as Defined in FASB Statement No. 123(R),” to
provide guidance on the application of the term “grant date” in SFAS No. 123R. In accordance with this Staff
Position, which is to be applied upon our initial adoption of SFAS No. 123R, the grant date of an award shall be
the date the award is approved by our board of directors if, at such time, (i) the recipient of the award does not
have the ability to negotiate the key terms and conditions of the award and (ii) the key terms of the award are
expected to be communicated to the recipients within a relatively short time period after the date of approval.

Under SFAS No. 123R, liability awards will be required to be re-measured each reporting period.
Compensation cost will be recognized over the periods that an employee provides service in exchange for the
award. SFAS No. 123R replaces SFAS No. 123 and supersedes Accounting Principles Board (“APB 25”). This
statement is effective beginning with the first quarter of an issuer’s fiscal year that begins after June 15, 2005 (the
quarter ending March 31, 2006 for us) and applies to all awards granted after the effective date. It is our intention
to use the modified prospective method in implementing SFAS No. 123R. We intend to continue using the
Black-Scholes model in determining the fair value of stock-based compensation issued to employees and
directors. The impact to our financial statements, upon adoption, will be similar to that disclosed as stock-based
compensation in Note 2 to our Consolidated Financial Statements.

In May 2005, the FASB issued Statement No. 154, “Accounting Changes and Error Corrections,” (“SFAS
No. 154”) a replacement for APB Opinion No. 20 and FASB Statement No. 3. SFAS No. 154 changes the
requirements for the accounting and reporting of a change in accounting principle and applies to all voluntary
changes in accounting principles, as well as to changes required by an accounting pronouncement that does not
include specific transition provisions. SFAS No. 154 is effective for accounting changes and corrections of errors
made in fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2005. Management is not contemplating making any
significant changes in accounting principles nor is management aware of any pending accounting
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pronouncements that would significantly change existing accounting policies other than the possible change
in accounting for financial guaranty loss reserves as described above in “Critical Accounting Policies—Reserves

for Losses.”

In February 2006, the FASB issued Statement No. 155, “Accounting for Certain Hybrid Financial
Instruments” (“SFAS No. 155”), an amendment of FASB Statements No. 133 and 140. SFAS No. 155 (i) permits
fair value remeasurement for any hybrid financial instrument that contains an embedded derivative that otherwise
would require bifurcation, (ii) clarifies which interest-only strips and principal-only strips are not subject to the
requirements of FASB Statement No. 133, (iii) establishes a requirement to evaluate interests in securitized
financial assets to identify interests that are freestanding derivatives or that are hybrid financial instruments that
contain an embedded derivative requiring bifurcation, (iv) clarifies that concentrations of credit risk in the form
of subordination are not embedded derivatives, and (v) amends FASB Statement No. 140 to eliminate the
exemption from applying the requirements of FASB Statements No. 133 on a qualifying special-purpose entity
from holding a derivative financial instrument that pertains to a beneficial interest other than another derivative
financial instrument. SFAS No. 155 is effective for all financial instruments acquired or issued after the
beginning of an entity’s first fiscal year that begins after September 15, 2006. Management has not yet
determined the impact, if any, that will result from the adoption of SFAS No. 155.
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QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Market risk represents the potential for loss due to adverse changes in the value of financial instruments as a
result of changes in market conditions. Examples of market risk include changes in interest rates, foreign
currency exchange rates, credit spreads and equity prices. We perform a sensitivity analysis to determine the
effects of market risk exposures on our financial instruments, including in particular, investment securities and
certain financial guaranty insurance contracts. This analysis is performed by expressing the potential loss in
future earnings, fair values or cash flows of market risk sensitive instraments resulting from one or more selected
hypothetical changes in interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates, credit spreads and equity prices. Our
sensitivity analysis is sometimes referred to as a parallel shift in yield curve with all other factors remaining
constant.

The results of our sensitivity analysis at December 31, 2005 are as follows:

Interest Rate Risk

The primary market risk in our investment portfolio is interest rate risk, namely the fair value sensitivity of a
fixed-income security to changes in interest rates. We manage our interest-rate risk through active investment
portfolio management to ensure a prudent mix of fixed-income investments with a varied maturity schedule, We
estimate the changes in fair value of our fixed-income securities by projecting an instantaneous increase and
decrease in interest rates. The carrying value of our total investment portfolio as of December 31, 2005 and
December 31, 2004, was $5.5 billion for each year, of which 86% and 84%, respectively, was invested in fixed
maturities. We manage our investment portfolio to minimize exposure to interest rates through active portfolio
management and intensive monitoring of investments to ensure a proper mix of the types of securities held and to
stagger the maturities of fixed-income securities. Our analysts estimate the payout pattern of the mortgage
insurance loss reserves to determine their duration, which is measured by the weighted average payments
expressed in years. As of December 31, 2005 the average duration of the fixed-income portfolio was 5.91 years.
As of December 31, 2005, hypothetical increases in interest rates of 100 and 150 basis points would cause
decreases in the market value of our fixed-income portfolio (excluding short-term investments) of approximately
5.02% and 8.02%, respectively. Similarly, hypothetical decreases in interest rates of 100 and 150 basis points
would cause increases in the market value of our fixed-income portfolio of approximately 4.73% and 7.19%,
respectively.

In April 2004, we entered into interest-rate swaps that, in effect, converted a portion of our fixed-rate long-
term debt to a variable rate based on a spread over the six-month LIBOR for the remaining term of the debt. See
Note 2 to our Consolidated Financial Statements.

The market value and cost of our long-term debt at December 31, 2005 were $772.8 million and $747.5
million, respectively.

Foreign Exchange Rate Risk

One means of assessing exposure to changes in foreign currency exchange rates on market sensitive
instruments is to model effects on reported earnings using a sensitivity analysis. We analyzed our currency
exposure as of December 31, 2005 by identifying our investment portfolio denominated in currencies other than
the U.S. dollar. Our investment portfolio foreign currency exposures were remeasured, generally assuming a 10%
decrease in currency exchange rates compared to the U.S. dollar. Under this model, with all other factors
remaining constant, we estimated as of December 31, 2005, that such a decrease would reduce our investment
portfolio held in foreign currencies by $28.5 million.

Equity Market Price

Exposure to changes in equity market prices can be estimated by assessing the potential changes in market
values on our equity investments resulting from a hypothetical broad-based decline in equity market prices of
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10%. At December 31, 2005, the market value and cost of our equity securities were $325.1 million and $258.8
million, respectively. With all other factors remaining constant, we estimated that such a decline in equity market
prices would decrease the market value of our equity investments by approximately $32.5 million, based on our
equity positions as of December 31, 2005.

Credit Derivative Risk

We enter into credit default swaps, which include certain derivative financial guaranty contracts written
through our financial guaranty business. Gains and losses on our credit default swaps are derived from market
pricing when available; otherwise, we use internally generated pricing models. Both methods take into account
credit and market spreads and are recorded on our Consolidated Financial Statements. The fair value is
determined using our mark-to-market model which uses active market spreads. A widening of 10% of the market
spreads associated with these credit default swaps would cause the fair value to decrease by $0.8 million at
December 31, 2005. See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations—Critical Accounting Policies—Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activity” for a discussion of how
we account for derivatives under SFAS No. 133.

72




CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS
Investments
Fixed maturities held to maturity—at amortized cost (fair value $130,227 and
B188,003) ..o
Fixed maturities available for sale—at fair value (amortized cost $4,493,789 and
B4,228,806) ..
Trading securities—at fair value (amortized cost $68,078 and $65,359) ........
Equity securities—at fair value (cost $258,768 and $250,558) ...............
Short-term INVEStMENS . . ... ...ttt et et i e
Other invested aSsels .. ..ottt it et e

Total INVESIMENLS . ... ittt et e e
Cash . .
Investment in affiliates .. ... i e
Deferred policy acquisition COStS .. ... ...
Prepaid federal income taxes . ......... ...
Provisional losses recoverable . ........ ... .. i e
Accrued investMeNt iNCOME . . ... v ittt et e et ettt e et e e
Accounts and notesreceivable .. ... .. ...
Property and equipment, at cost (less accumulated depreciation of $61,285 and

S48, 210 e e
Other assets ... ot e e

Total @SSEES . o vttt it e

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Unearned premilIms ... .o vttt e e e
Reserve for losses and loss adjustment eXpenses ...............c.c.veuionaa.n
Long-termdebt .. ... ...
Deferred federal income taxes . ........ ..ottt
Accounts payable and accrued eXpenses . ... ... ...

Total Habilities ... ..o e

Commitments and Contingencies (Note 13)
Stockholders’ equity
Commion stock: par value $.001 per share; 200,000,000 shares authorized;

97,373,169 and 96,560,912 shares issued in 2005 and 2004, respectively . . . ..
Treasury stock: 14,340,713 and 4,280,305 shares in 2005 and 2004,

TESPECHIVELY oo
Additional paid-in capital ....... ... ..
Deferred compensation .. ...........o .t
Retained earnings . ... ... ...t e
Accumulated other comprehensive income . ............ ... .. o

Total stockholders’ equity ......... .. .. o
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity ........................

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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December 31

2005

2004

(In thousands, except share
and per-share amounts)

$ 125935 $ 178,894
4,608,460 4,406,366
89,440 86,342
325,117 335,495
361,937 459,718
2,825 3,253
5,513,714 5,470,068
7,847 30,680
446,151 393,025
208,325 211,928
585,514 460,149
25,388 38,312
60,124 60,268
59,136 77,125
52,062 69,337
272,349 189,928
$7,230,610 $7,000,820
$ 849,360 $ 770,208
801,002 801,012
747,466 717,640
961,993 848,224
207,909 174,681
3,567,730 3,311,765
97 97
(688.,048)  (176,242)
1,318,910 1,282,433
(1,843) —
2,913,649 2,397,626
120,115 185,141
3,662,880 3,689,055
$7,230,610 $7,000,820




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Year Ended December 31

2005 2004 2003
(In thousands, except per-share amounts)
Revenues:
Premiums written:
Direct ... $1,117,370 $1,100,297 $ 989,534
Assumed ... e e 80,227 68,677 197,653
Ceded ... (96,910) (86,487) (76,710)
Net premiums WIHEN . .. ...ttt e i e 1,100,687 1,082,487 1,110,477
Increase in unearned premiums . .........c.ovtiiinni .. (82,017) (53,003)  (102,294)
Netpremiums earned . .........virirniier e, 1,018,670 1,029,484 1,008,183
Net Investment iNCOME . . ... .ottt it e e 208,422 204,349 186,163
Net gains on sales of investments ................ .. c....... 36,638 50,799 17,387
Change in fair value of derivative instruments ................. 9,170 47,135 4,139
Other INCOME . . .ottt e e e e 25,251 32,286 63,322
Total TEVENUES . ...ttt 1,298,151 1,364,053 1,279,194
Expenses:
Provision for loSses . ... oo 390,633 456,834 476,054
Policy acquisition costs .. ... i 115,851 121,830 128,518
Other operating Xpenses ... ........outuneiiennerneenn.. 225,977 205,687 211,077
INTETESE XPENSE . o o\ ottt et e 43,043 34,660 37,542
Total eXpenses .. ... 775,504 819,011 853,191
Equity in net income of affiliates ........................... 217,692 180,550 105,476
Pretax income . ... . . .. 740,339 725,592 531,479
Provision for INCOME taXES . .. .ot e e e 217,485 206,939 145,578
Netincome ... . e 522,854 518,653 385,901
Basicnetincome pershare ......... ... .. ... .., $ 6.10 $ 5.57 4.13
Diluted net income pershare . ................ouuiiiiiiaannn... $ 591 $ 5.33 3.95
Average number of common shares outstanding—basic ............. 85,637 93,062 93,531
Average number of common and common equivalent shares
outstanding—diluted ... ... ... .. ... . 88,746 97,908 98,453
Dividends pershare .. ... ... . i i $ 08 $ 08 .08

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN COMMON STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Accumulated Other
Comprehensive
Income (Loss)

BALANCE, JANUARY 1, 2003
Comprehensive income:
Net income
Unrealized foreign currency
translation adjustment, net of tax of
$2,702
Unrealized holding gains arising
during period, net of tax of
$47.414
Less: Reclassification adjustment for
net gains included in net income,
net of tax of $6,085

Net unrealized gains on investments
net of tax of $41,329
Total comprehensive income
Issuance of common stock under
incentiveplans ..................
Treasury stock purchased, net ... ......
Capital 1ssuance costs
Dividends ........................

BALANCE, DECEMBER 31,2003 . ...
Comprehensive income:
Netincome ..................v..
Unrealized foreign currency
translation adjustment, net of tax of
$4,925
Unrealized holding gains arising
during period, net of tax of
$37,084
Less: Reclassification adjustment for
net gains included in net income,
netoftax of $17.780 . ........ ...

Net unrealized gains on investments
netof tax of $19,304 ............

Total comprehensive income .........
Issuance of common stock under
incentive plans .......... ... .. ...
Treasury stock purchased, net .........
Dividends ........................

BALANCE, DECEMBER 31,2004 .. ..
Comprehensive income:
Net income
Unrealized foreign currency
translation adjustment, net of tax
benefitof $4,949 ...............
Unrealized holding losses arising
during period, net of tax of benefit
of $15,588
Less: Reclassification adjustment for
net gains included in net income,
net of tax, of $12,823 ... .. ... ...
Net unrealized loss on investments net
of tax benefit of $28,411
Comprehensive income . .............
Issuance of common stock under
incentive plans .. ................
Issuance of restricted stock ...........
Amortization of restricted stock
Treasury stock purchased, net .........
Dividends paid ....................
Warrants repurchased by affiliate ... ...

BALANCE, DECEMBER 31,2005 .. ..

Foreign Unrealized
Additional Currency Holding
Common Treasury Paid-in Deferred Retained Translation Gains/
Stock Stock Capital Compensation Earnings Adjustment Losses Total
(In thousands)
$95 § (51,868) $1,238,698 — $1,508,138 $ 233§ 58,139 $2,753,435
— — — — 385,901 — — 385,901
— — — — — 5,018 — 5,018
— — — — — — 88.056
— — — — — — _(11,302)
— — — — — — 76,754 76,754
467,673
1 — 23,214 — — — — 23215
— (8,635) — — — — (8,635)
— — (2,353) — — — — (2,353)
— — — — (7.491) — — (7.491)
96 (60,503) 1,259,559 1,886,548 5,251 134,893 3,225,844
— — — — 518,653 — — 518,653
— — — — — 9,146 — 9,146
— — — — — — 68,870
— — — — — — (33,019
— — — — — — 35,851 35,851
563,650
1 22,874 — — — 22,875
— (115,739 (115.739)
_— = — (7.573) — — (7,575)
97 (176,242) 1,282,433 2,397,626 14,397 170,744 3,689,055
— — — 522,854 — — 522,854
— — — — — (12,262) — (12,262)
— — — — —_ — (28,949)
— —_ — — — — (23,815)
— — — — — _ (52,764) (52,764)
457.828
— — 38,552 — — — — 38,552
— — — (2,324) — — — (2,324)
— — — 481 — — — 481
— (511,806) — — — — —_ (511,806)
_ — — — (6.831) — — (6.831)
— — (2,075) — — — — (2,075
$ 97 $(688,048) $1,318910 $(1.843)  $2913649 $ 2135 S117,980 $3,662,880

II
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended December 31
2005 2004 2003
(In thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities:

NEUINCOME .. oottt et e et e et e et e $ 522,854 $ 518,653 3 385,901
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating
activities:
Net gains on sales of securities and changes in fair value of derivative
INSITUMENTS L Lottt e e e et e e et e (45,808) (97,934) (21,526)
Net recoveries (payments) from settlement of credit derivatives .. ..... .. 7,594 (11,708) (2,500)
Equity in net income of affiliates ........... ... ... .. .. ... ... (217,692) (180,550) (105,476)
Distributions from affiliates . ....... ... ... . ... i 144,161 82,300 27,450
Proceeds from sales of trading securities ..................... ... ... 49,944 28,822 24,910
Purchases of trading securities . ......... ... ... .. . il (31,033) (49,699) (38,015)
Cash paid forclawback ........ ... ... . . . e (37,645) (76,882) —
Increase in unearned premiums, net .. ... ... 131,635 51,316 100,521
Net (increase) decrease in deferred policy acquisitioncosts .. .......... (16,038) 7,524 (35,192)
Increase in reserve for losses and loss adjustment expenses, net .. ....... 3,412 7,008 167,579
Deferred income tax ProvisSion .. ........c..oeivrieeneenenaa 147,156 135,026 74,691
Impairment of goodwill ...... .. ... .. . ... — — 7,222
Change in prepaid federal incometaxes ............... ... . ... ... (125,363) (101,309) (64,704)
Depreciation and other amortization, net . .............cviuuunnen.. 34,040 27,956 17,310
Change In Other assets ... ... .ttt 25,788 (7,283) (42,847)
Change in accounts payable and accrued expenses ................... (22,617) 76,501 67,110
Net cash provided by operating activities ................coivriiniiieo... 570,386 409,741 562,434
Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from sales of fixed-maturity investments available forsale ......... 634,946 971,390 1,214,696
Proceeds from sales of equity securities available forsale ................. 72,256 219,078 73,280
Proceeds from redemptions of fixed-maturity investments available for sale . . . 218,189 235,773 236,003
Proceeds from redemptions of fixed-maturity investments held to maturity . . . . 55,999 95,229 84,958
Purchases of fixed-maturity investments available forsale ................. (1,150,963) (1,427,588) (2,108,476)
Purchases of equity securities available forsale ......................... (77,078) (229,553) (90,699)
Sales (purchases) of short-term investments,net ......................... 97,781 (202,423) (74,244)
Proceeds from sales of other invested assets .............. ... .covvunn.. 1,438 3,495 2,559
Purchases of property and equipment . ............. ... ... .. (8,260) (19,060) (34,564)
Proceeds from sales of investments in affiliates . . ........................ 15,652 6,229 3,395
Investment in affiliates ... ... ... . .. . e — (5,501) —
Other . o — 7,582 (45)
Net cash used in investing activities . ... ... ... ... it (140,040) (345,349) (693,137)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Dividends paid ... ... ..o (6,831) (7,575) (7,491)
Proceeds from issuance of common stock under incentive plans ............ 38,552 22,875 23215
Purchase of treasury stock, net ........ ... . . (511,806) (115,739) (8,635)
Repayment of short-termdebt . .......... ... ... ... ... . . . — — (75,000)
Redemption of long-termdebt .......... ... ... .. ... . i (220,000) — —
Issuance of long-termdebt .. ... ... . ... . . i i 249,555 — 246,167
Dbt ISSUANCE COSES . . ottt ettt e e e (2,168) — —
Capital 1SSUANCE COSES . .. vttt e e — — (2,353)
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities ........................... (452,698) (100,439) 175,903
Effect of exchange rate changesoncash ............ ... ... ............ (481) (442) —
(Decrease) increaseincash . ... ... . i i e (22,833) (36.489) 45,200
Cash, beginning of year ........ ... ... . . .. 30,680 67,169 21,969
Cash,end Of YEar ... ... .. ... . $ 7847 $ 30,680 $ 67,169
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:
Income taxes paid . ... ... oe i $ 228488 $ 168,514 $ 137,699
Interest paid .. ... $ 42948 $ 38859 $§ 34,602

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Description of the Business

Radian Group Inc. provides, through its subsidiaries and affiliates, credit protection products and financial
services to mortgage lenders and other financial institutions. Qur principal business segments are mortgage
insurance, financial guaranty insurance and financial services.

Private mortgage insurance and risk management services are provided to mortgage lending institutions
located throughout the United States through our principal mortgage guaranty subsidiaries, Radian Guaranty Inc.
(“Radian Guaranty”), Amerin Guaranty Corporation (“Amerin Guaranty”) and Radian Insurance Inc. (“Radian
Insurance™) (collectively referred to as “Mortgage Insurance”). Private mortgage insurance generally protects
lenders from all or a portion of default-related losses on residential first-mortgage loans made to homebuyers
who make down payments of less than 20% of the home’s purchase price. Private mortgage insurance also
facilitates the sale of these mortgages in the secondary market. Radian Guaranty currently offers two principal
types of private mortgage insurance coverage, primary and pool. At December 31, 2005, primary insurance
comprised 67.4% of Mortgage Insurance’s risk in force and pool insurance comprised 7.1% of Mortgage
Insurance’s risk in force. Amerin Guaranty writes mortgage insurance on second-lien mortgages, and Radian
Insurance writes credit insurance on non-traditional mortgage-related assets such as second-lien mortgages, net
interest margin securities (“INIMs”) and international mortgages and provides credit enhancement to capital
market transactions including credit default swaps and wraps of asset-backed securities. These products are
included in other risk in force, which was $9.7 billion at December 31, 2003, representing 25.5% of Mortgage
Insurance’s risk in force.

On February 28, 2001, we acquired the financial guaranty insurance (‘“Financial Guaranty”) and other
businesses of Enhance Financial Services Group Inc. (“EFSG™), a New York-based insurance holding company
that mainly insures and reinsures credit-based risks. In addition, as part of the acquisition, we have an ownership
interest in two credit-based asset businesses (see Note 4). Several smaller businesses are either in run-off or have
been terminated. The excess of purchase price over fair value of net assets acquired of $56.7 million represents
the future value of insurance profits, which is being amortized over a period that approximates the future life of
the insurance book of business. During 2005 and 2004, we amortized $2.1 million and $12.5 million,
respectively, related to this transaction. The 2004 amount includes $10.0 million related to the recapture of
previously ceded business that occurred in the first quarter of 2004.

Effective June 1, 2004, EFSG’s two main operating subsidiaries, Radian Asset Assurance Inc. (“Radian
Asset Assurance”) and Radian Reinsurance Inc. (“Radian Reinsurance”) were merged, with Radian Asset
Assurance as the surviving company. Through this merger, the financial guaranty reinsurance business formerly
conducted by Radian Reinsurance was combined with the direct financial guaranty business conducted by Radian
Asset Assurance. The merger also combined the assets, liabilities and stockholders’ equity of the two companies.
The combined company is rated Aa3 (with a stable outlook) by Moody’s Investor Service (“Moody’s™), AA
(with a negative outlook) by Standard & Poor’s Ratings service (“S&P”) and AA (with a negative outlook) by
Fitch Ratings (“‘Fitch™). These ratings, other than Fitch’s ratings outlook, which was revised on April 27, 2005,
are the same as those ratings assigned to Radian Asset Assurance immediately before the merger.

On April 27, 2005, Fitch affirmed the “AA” insurance financial strength rating of Radian Asset Assurance
. and Radian Asset Assurance Limited (“RAAL”), a subsidiary of Radian Asset Assurance that is authorized to
conduct insurance business in the United Kingdom (*“U.K.”). We believe that, through RAAL, we have additional
opportunities to write financial guaranty insurance in the UK. and, subject to compliance with the European
passporting rules, in other countries in the European Union. In particular, we expect that RAAL will continue to
build its structured products business in the U.K. and throughout the European Union. In September 2004, the
Financial Services Authority authorized Radian Financial Products Limited (“RFPL”), another subsidiary of
Radian Asset Assurance, to transact as a Category A Securities and Futures Firm permitting it fo act as a
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principal on credit default swap risk. Following receipt of this authorization, management decided that RFPL
should focus its core business on arranging credit default swap risk for RAAL and Radian Asset Assurance.
Accordingly, we expect to use RFPL solely for negotiating and arranging credit default swaps with
counterparties located in the U.K. or other European countries with portions of the risk being assumed by RAAL
and Radian Asset Assurance. As a result, we intend to seek to lower the category of authorization for RFPL
commensurate with this limited purpose.

The financial services segment includes the credit-based businesses conducted through our affiliates, Credit-
Based Asset Servicing and Securitization LLC (“C-BASS”) and Sherman Financial Group (“Sherman”). We own
a 46% interest in C-BASS and a 34.58% interest in Sherman. C-BASS is a mortgage investment and servicing
firm specializing in subprime residential mortgage assets and residential mortgage-backed securities. By using
sophisticated analytics, C-BASS essentially seeks to take advantage of what it believes to be the mispricing of
credit risk for certain assets in the marketplace. Sherman is a consumer asset and servicing firm specializing in
charged-off and bankruptcy plan consumer assets and charged-off high Loan-to-Value (“LTV”) mortgage
receivables that it generally purchases at deep discounts from national financial institutions and major retail
corporations and subsequently collects upon these receivables. In March 2005, Sherman acquired CreditOne, a
credit card bank that provides Sherman with the ability to originate subprime credit card receivables.

On December 30, 2003, we announced that we would cease operations of RadianExpress.com Inc.
(“RadianExpress”) an Internet-based settlement company that provided real estate information products and
services to the first- and second-mortgage industry. During the first quarter of 2004, RadianExpress ceased
processing new orders and began completing the final processing of the remaining transactions. The cessation of
operations resulted in a pre-tax charge of $13.0 million in the fourth quarter of 2003, which includes the write-
down of the remaining goodwill of $7.2 million and provisions for severance, leasehold commitments, and other
charges of approximately $5.8 million. These amounts are included in operating expenses in the consolidated
statements of income and resulted in an after-tax earnings reduction of $8.4 million or $.09 per share in 2003,
Income and expense from RadianExpress operations for 2005 and 2004 were immaterial. RadianExpress
completed the final processing of all remaining transactions in the first quarter of 2005. The results of
RadianExpress had been included in the financial services segment.

Until September 30, 2004, our financial guaranty business also included our ownership interest in Primus
Guaranty, Ltd. (“Primus”), a Bermuda holding company and parent to Primus Financial Products, LLC, which
provides credit risk protection to derivatives dealers and credit portfolio managers on individual investment-
grade entities. In September 2004, Primus issued shares of its common stock in an initial public offering. We
sold a portion of our shares in Primus as part of this offering and recorded a pre-tax gain of approximately $1.0
million on the sale. As a result of our reduced ownership and influence over Primus after it became a public
company, we reclassified our investment in Primus to our equity securities portfolio in September 2004 and, as
such, began recording changes in fair value of the Primus securities as other comprehensive income rather than
recording income or loss as equity in net income of affiliates beginning with the fourth quarter of 2004. In 2005
and during the first quarter of 2006, we sold all of our remaining shares of Primus common stock, recording a
pre-tax gain of $2.8 million in 2005 and a pre-tax gain of $21.4 million in the first quarter of 2006,

In October 2005, we announced that we would be exiting the trade credit reinsurance line of business, which
had been part of our financial guaranty segment. Accordingly, we currently are executing a plan to place this line
of business into run-off and have ceased initiating any new trade credit reinsurance contracts going forward. We
expect that our existing trade credit reinsurance business will take several years to run off, although the bulk of
the remaining premiums will be earned and claims paid during the next two years. We do not expect that our
move to exit the trade credit reinsurance line of business, which is not considered by management to be core to
our financial guaranty business, will impact the overall profitability or business position of our financial guaranty
business in a material way.
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2. Significant Accounting Policies
Consolidation

The accompanying financial statements include the accounts of all subsidiaries. Companies in which we, or
one of our subsidiaries, own interests ranging from 20% to 50%, or companies over which we have significant
influence, are accounted for in accordance with the equity method of accounting (see Note 4). All intercompany
accounts and transactions, and intercompany profits and losses, have been eliminated.

In January 2003, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued FASB Interpretation No. 46
(“FIN 46”), “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities.” FIN 46 clarifies the application of Accounting
Research Bulletin No. 51, “Consolidated Financial Statements,” to certain entities in which equity investors do
not have the characteristics of a controlling financial interest or do not have sufficient equity at risk for the entity
to finance its activities without additional subordinated financial support from other parties. In December 2003,
FIN 46 was revised in FIN 46R. The FASB partially delayed FIN 46’s implementation until no later than the end
of the first reporting period after March 15, 2004. Under the provisions of FIN46R, we need to determine
whether we have a variable interest in Variable Interest Entities (“VIE™), and if so, whether that variable interest
would cause us to be a primary beneficiary. A VIE is an entity that has (i) equity that is insufficient to permit the
entity to finance it activities without additional subordinated financial support from other parties or (ii) equity
investors that cannot make significant decisions about the entity’s operations or that do not absorb the expected
losses or receive the expected returns on of the entity. A VIE is consolidated by its primary beneficiary, which is
the entity that will absorb the majority of the expected losses, receive the majority of the expected residual
returns, or both, of the VIE and is required to consolidate the VIE. All other entities not considered VIEs are
evaluated for consolidation under existing guidance. We had been a transferor of financial assets (as discussed
below in “Other Operations™) considered to be qualifying special-purpose entities (“QSPEs”) described in
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 140, “Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of
Financial Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities.” These QSPEs are not within the scope of FIN 46R. The
adoption of FIN 46R did not have a material effect on our financial statements.

Our Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”).

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires us to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the dates of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting periods. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Insurance Premiums-Revenue Recognition

SFAS No. 60, “Accounting and Reporting by Insurance Enterprises,” specifically excludes mortgage
insurance from its guidance relating to the earning of insurance premiums. Consistent with GAAP and industry
accounting practices, mortgage insurance premiums written on an annual and multi-year basis are initially
deferred as unearned premiums and earned over the policy term, and premiums written on a monthly basis are
earmned over the period that coverage is provided. Annual premiums are amortized on a monthly, straight-line
basis. Multi-year premiums are amortized over the terms of the contracts in accordance with the anticipated
claim payment pattern based on historical industry experience. Ceded premiums written are initially set up as
prepaid reinsurance and are amortized in accordance with direct premiums earned. Premiums on certain
structured transactions are recognized over the period that coverage is provided. Deferred residual premiums on
certain structured transactions are recognized in income when collectibility is reasonably certain. Credit
enhancement fees on derivative mortgage guaranty contracts are included in premiums written and are earned
over the period that credit protection is provided.
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In our financial guaranty business, insurance premiums are earned in proportion to the level of amortization
of insured principal over the contract period or over the period that coverage is provided. Unearned premiums
represent that portion of premiums that will be earned over the remainder of the contract period, based on
information reported by ceding companies and management’s estimates of amortization of insured principal on
policies written on a direct basis. When insured issues are refunded or called, the remaining premiums are
generally earned at that time because the risk to us is eliminated. Credit enhancement fees on derivative financial
guaranty contracts are included in premiums written and are earned over the period that credit protection is
provided.

With the exception of our trade credit reinsurance product, net premiums written in our financial guaranty
reinsurance business are recorded using actual information received from cedants on a one-month lag.
Accordingly, the net written premiums for any given period exclude those from the last month of that period and
include those from the last month of the immediately preceding period. The use of information from cedants does
not require us to make significant judgments or assumptions because historic collection rates and counterparty
strength makes collection of all assumed premiums highly likely. Net premiums written for the years ended
December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 include $35.0 million, $59.3 million and $64.8 million, respectively, of
assumed premiums related to our trade credit reinsurance products. Included in these amounts are estimates
based on quarterly projections provided by ceding companies. Over the life of the reinsured business, these
projections are replaced with actual results and, historically, the difference between the projections and actual
results has not been material. Accordingly, we do not record any related provision for doubtful accounts with
respect to our trade credit reinsurance product.

Reserve for Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses (“LAE”)

Our mortgage insurance reserve for losses and LAE consists of estimated [osses from claims and the
estimated cost of settling claims on defaults (or delinquencies) reported and defaults that have occurred but have
not been reported. SFAS No. 60 specifically excludes mortgage guaranty insurance from its guidance relating to
the reserve for losses. Consistent with GAAP and industry accounting practices, we generally do not establish
loss reserves for future claims on insured loans that are not currently in default or believed to be in default. In
determining the liability for unpaid losses related to reported outstanding defaults, we establish loss reserves on a
case-by-case basis. The amount reserved for any particular loan is dependent upon the characteristics of the loan,
the status of the loan as reported by its servicer and macroeconomic factors such as regional economic conditions
that involve significant variability over time, as well as more static factors such as the estimated foreclosure
period in the area in which the default exists. With respect to known defaults, we do not establish reserves for
losses until we are notified that a borrower has missed two payments. As the default progresses closer to
foreclosure, the amount of loss reserve for that particular loan is increased, in stages, 10 approximately 100% of
our exposure and that adjustment is included in current operations. With respect to delinquent loans that are in
the early stage of delinquency, considerable judgment is exercised as to the adequacy of reserve levels. We rely
on historical models and make adjustments to our estimates based on current economic conditions and recent
trend information. These adjustments in estimates for delinquent loans in the early stage of delinquency are more
judgmental in nature than for loans that are in the later stage of delinquency. If the default cures, the reserve for
that loan is removed from the reserve for losses and LAE. This curing process causes an appearance of a
reduction in reserves from prior years if the reduction in reserves from cures is greater than the additional
reserves for those loans that are nearing foreclosure or that have become claims. We also reserve for defaults that
have occurred but have not been reported by using historical information on defaults not reported on a timely
basis by lending institutions. We generally do not establish reserves for mortgages that are in default if we
believe we will not be liable for the payment of a claim with respect to that default. Our estimates are continually
reviewed and adjustments are made as they become necessary.

In January 2005, we implemented a revised modeling process to assist us in establishing reserves in the

mortgage insurance business. In recent years, with the growth in the Alt-A and non-prime business, we realized
that the change in the portfolio mix required us to segment the portfolio and evaluate the reserves required for
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each differently. The previous model had been designed for a prime product only and needed to be updated with
many years of additional data. The revised model differentiates between prime and non-prime products and takes
into account the different loss development patterns, borrower behavior that is inherent in these products,
whether we are in a first- or second-loss position and whether there are deductibles on the loan. The model
calculates a range of reserves by product and a midpoint for each product based on historical factors. We then
evaluate other conditions, such as current economic conditions, regional housing conditions and the reliability of
historical data for new products, to determine if an adjustment to the midpoint calculated by the model is
necessary. The new model resulted in no adjustment to the overall reserve for losses that we recorded.

For certain non-derivative structured mortgage insurance contracts such as NIMs and financial guaranty
wraps, we establish loss reserves based on the estimated cost of setting claims and associated LAE, adjusted for
estimated recoveries under salvage or subrogation rights. The loss reserves for these non-derivative structured
mortgage insurance contracts are comprised of both specific reserves and non-specific reserves. The risk in force
and reserve for losses relating to these contracts was $531 million and $9.3 million, respectively, at
December 31, 2005. The reserving policy for these contracts is similar to the reserving policy used in our
financial guaranty business as more fully discussed below and continues to evolve and is subject to change.

The following description of our financial guaranty loss reserving policy relates only to non-derivative
financial guaranty contracts provided through financial guaranties of direct and assumed insurance business. Our
financial guaranty insurance contracts provide an unconditional and irrevocable guaranty to the holder of a
financial obligation that, upon payment default by the insured party, we will pay the full amount of principal and
interest on an insured obligation when due. Our financial guaranty reinsurance contracts provide for
reimbursement to the primary insurer under a reinsured financial guaranty contract when the primary insurer is
obligated to pay principal and interest on an insured obligation.

We establish loss reserves on our financial guaranty contracts based on the estimated cost of settling claims,
including associated LAE, adjusted for estimated recoveries under salvage or subrogation rights. LAE consists of
the estimated cost of the claims administration process, including legal fees and other associated fees and
expenses. Our financial guaranty loss reserves are comprised of specific reserves (which we refer to as “case
reserves”) and non-specific reserves. As discussed below, the reserving policies used by the financial guaranty
industry are continuing to evolve and are subject to change.

We record case reserves for losses and related LAE when a guaranteed obligation defaults in payment,
which may be different from the way other financial guarantors establish case reserves. In the case of direct
financial guaranty contracts, we determine the existence of payment default and record case reserves when we
determine that a default has occurred, based on a report from the insured party or based on our surveillance
efforts. In the case of financial guaranty reinsurance, we rely mostly on information provided by the primary
insurer as confirmed by us, as well as on specific knowledge of the claim, in recording related case reserves. At
December 31, 2005, we had case and LAE reserves of $58.0 million. Of this amount, $50.8 million was
attributable to a single manufactured housing transaction originated and serviced by Conseco Finance Corp. We
have a high degree of certainty that we will suffer losses with respect to this insured obligation equal to the
amount reserved, which equals the total amount of the remaining insured obligation. The case and LAE reserves
also include $6.7 million attributable to 37 reinsured obligations on which our total par outstanding is $33.4
million. These reserves are established based on amounts conveyed to us by the ceding companies and confirmed
by us. We do not have any reasonable expectation that the ultimate losses will deviate materially from the
amount reserved. The remaining $0.5 million of case and LAE reserves is attributable to two insured obligations
for which we have LAE reserves established partially offset by salvage recoveries on two other insured
obligations.

We record non-specific reserves to reflect the deterioration of insured credits that have not yet defaulted.
We determine this deterioration in two separate ways. First, we record non-specific reserves for losses when we
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identify through our surveillance procedures or, in the case of reinsurance, after we confirm information provided
by the primary insurer regarding specific significant deterioration events that have occurred with respect to
specific insured credits that have not yet defaulted. We refer to this category of our non-specific reserves as
“allocated non-specific reserves.” At December 31, 2005, three credits were included in our allocated
non-specific reserves. We expect that we will suffer losses with respect to these insured obligations equal to the
amount reserved.

Second, because we believe that inherent deterioration begins immediately and continues over time on our
remaining portfolio, we also record non-specific reserves for losses, on a portfolio basis, on the credits in our
portfolio for which we do not have a case reserve or an allocated non-specific reserve. We refer to this category
of non-specific reserves as “unallocated non-specific reserves.”

Our unallocated non-specific reserves are established over time by applying expected default factors to the
premiums earned during each reporting period on each credit for which we have not established a case reserve or
an allocated non-specific reserve. The expected frequency and severity of losses for each credit is generated from
three sources—two that are published by major rating agencies and one that is generated by a proprietary internal
model-based on the product class, published rating and term to maturity for each credit. We set the expected life-
time losses for each credit at the approximate midpoint of the range between the highest and lowest expected life-
time loss factors generated by the rating agency and internally generated models. The default rates published by
rating agencies tend to be very low because we mainly insure investment-grade obligations that, historically,
have a very low probability of default. Although the default rate is low, the amount of losses upon default can be
very high because we tend to insure large financial obligations. Because of the low incidence of losses on
financial guaranty obligations, it is also very difficult to estimate the timing of losses on our insured obligations
for which we have not yet established a case reserve or allocated non-specific reserve. The default factors for the
years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 approximated 10% of earned premiums on public finance credits
and 20% of earned premiums on structured finance credits.

Our unallocated non-specific loss reserve at December 31, 2005, was $54.9 million. The range between the
unallocated non-specific reserves that would have resulted from applying the highest and lowest default factors
generated by any of the three models was approximately $18 million to $75 million, which we believe provides a
reasonably likely range of expected losses. None of the product types that we insure accounted for a materially
disproportionate share of the variability within that range.

At each balance sheet date, we also evaluate both the model-generated default factors and our unallocated
non-specific reserves against management’s subjective view of qualitative factors to ensure that the default
factors and the unallocated non-specific reserves represent management’s best estimate of the expected losses on
our portfolio of credits for which we have not established a case reserve or an allocated non-specific reserve.
These qualitative factors include existing economic and business conditions, overall credit quality trends
resulting from industry, geographic, economic and political conditions, recent loss experience in particular
segments of the portfolio, changes in underwriting policies and procedures and seasoning of the book of
business. The macroeconomic factors that we evaluate are outside of our control and are subject to considerable
variability. Our specific factors that we evaluate also require that we make subjective judgments. In addition, a
significant change in the size of our portfolio underlying the unallocated non-specific reserves, such as through
the expiration of policies or the refunding or recapture of insured exposures, could require an adjustment to the
default factors or our level of unallocated non-specific reserves. To date, our evaluation of these qualitative
factors has not led us to adjust the default factors or our level of unallocated non-specific reserves. Our estimates
of the reserves for losses and LAE for our financial guaranty segment’s other lines of business, principally trade
credit reinsurance, depend upon the receipt of accurate reports and individual loss estimates from ceding
companies. The time lag in receiving reports on individual loss estimates in trade credit reinsurance is generally
three to six months. We use historical loss information and make inquiries to the cedants of known events as a
means of validating our loss assumptions while awaiting more formal updated reports. Any differences in
viewpoints are resolved expeditiously and have historically not resulted in material adjustments. In addition, a
reserve is established for losses and LAE incurred but not reported (“IBNR”), on trade credit reinsurance.
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Once a case reserve is established with respect to an insured credit, an offsetting adjustment typically is
made to the non-specific reserve. This offsetting adjustment may or may not be on a dollar-for-dollar basis,
depending on the size of the necessary case reserve and the sufficiency of the non-specific reserve with respect to
the other credits in our portfolio. In addition, the establishment of case reserves may require a provision beyond
what is included in non-specific reserves. The establishment of reserves can reduce our net income when
unallocated non-specific reserves are increased, when allocated non-specific reserves are established in an
amount that exceeds unallocated non-specific reserves, or when case reserves are established in an amount that
exceeds non-specific reserves. Conversely, a reduction of reserves, due to improved economic conditions or a
cure of a default with respect to a specific credit for which a case reserve has been established, or otherwise, can
lead to an increase in our net income.

We discount financial guaranty case reserves arising from defaults that involve claim payments over an
extended period of time. The discount rate corresponds to our individual statutory company investment yield of
4.40% in 2005, compared to 4.14% in 2004 and 4.05% and 4.75% in 2003 (different rates were used for Radian
Reinsurance and Radian Asset Assurance prior to their merger in 2004). Discounted liabilities at December 31,
2005, were $0.5 million, net of discounts of $0.1 million, compared to discounted liabilities of $5.8 million, net
of discounts of $0.2 million at December 31, 2004, and discounted liabilities of $17.5 million, net of discounts of
$3.2 million at December 31, 2003. We do not discount our non-specific reserves.

As an insurance enterprise, we rely principally on SFAS No. 60, “Accounting and Reporting by Insurance
Enterprises,” in establishing loss reserves with respect to our financial guaranty business. With respect to our
case reserves, we follow the guidance of SFAS No. 60 regarding the establishment of reserves upon the
occurrence of an insured event. Although SFAS No. 60 provides guidance to insurance enterprises, it was
adopted before the financial guaranty industry came into prominent existence and it does not comprehensively
address the unique attributes of financial guaranty insurance. For example, SFAS No. 60 prescribes differing
reserving treatment depending on whether a contract fits within SFAS No. 60’s definition of a short-duration
contract or a long-duration contract. Financial guaranty coniracts have elements of long-duration insurance
contracts in that they are irrevocable and extend over a period that may extend 30 years or more but are reported
for regulatory purposes as property and liability insurance, normally considered short-duration contracts. Because
of these ambiguities in the application of SFAS No. 60 to our loss reserving policy, we do not believe that SFAS
No. 60 alone provides sufficient guidance for our reserving policy, particularly with respect to the establishment
of non-specific reserves before an insured event occurs. As a result we, and to our knowledge, other members of
the financial guaranty industry, supplement the principles of SFAS No. 60 with those of SFAS No. §,
“Accounting for Contingencies,” which calls for the establishment of reserves when it is probable that a liability
has been incurred at the date of the financial statements and the amount of loss can be reasonably estimated. We
also rely by analogy on SFAS No. 114, “Accounting by Creditors for Impairment of a Loan” and the Emerging
Issues Task Force (“EITF”) [ssue No. 85-20, “Recognition of Fees for Guaranteeing a Loan,” which state that a
guarantor should perform an ongoing assessment of the probability of loss to determine if a liability (and a loss)
should be recognized under SFAS No. 5. The establishment of non-specific reserves for credits that have not yet
defaulted is a practice followed by the entire financial guaranty industry, although we acknowledge that there
may be differences in the specific methodologies used by other financial guarantors in establishing these
reserves. We believe that our financial guaranty loss reserve policy is appropriate under the applicable
accounting literature, and that it best reflects the fact that credit-based insurance involves a gradual deterioration
of credit over time. However, because of the lack of specific accounting literature comprehensively addressing
the unique attributes of financial guaranty contracts, the accounting principles applicable to our loss reserving
policy are subject to change.

On June 8, 2005, the FASB added a project to its agenda to consider the accounting by insurers for financial
guaranty insurance. The FASB will consider several aspects of the insurance accounting model, including claims
liability recognition, premium recognition and the related amortization of deferred policy acquisition costs. In
addition, we also understand that the FASB may expand the scope of this project to include income recognition
and loss reserving methodology in the mortgage insurance industry. Proposed and final guidance from the FASB
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regarding accounting for financial guaranty insurance is expected to be issued in 2006. When and if the FASB or
the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) reaches a conclusion on these issues, we and the rest of the
financial guaranty and mortgage insurance industries may be required to change some aspects of our accounting
policies. If the FASB or the SEC were to determine that we should account for our financial guaranty contracts
differently, for example by requiring them to be treated solely as one or the other of short-duration or long-
duration contracts under SFAS No. 60, this determination could impact our accounting for loss reserves,
premium revenue and deferred acquisition costs, all of which are covered by SFAS No. 60. Management is
unable to estimate what impact, if any, the ultimate resolution of this issue will have on our financial condition or
operating results.

Reserves for losses and LAE for Financial Guaranty’s other lines of business, principally trade credit
reinsurance, are established solely under SFAS No. 60 because we believe that the nature of the trade credit
reinsurance business fits within the short-duration contract framework of SFAS No. 60. These reserves are based
on reports and individual loss estimates received from ceding companies, net of anticipated estimated recoveries
under salvage and subrogation rights. The time lag in receiving reports on individual loss estimates in trade credit
reinsurance is generally three to six months. We use historical loss information and make inquiries to the cedants
of known events as a means of validating our loss assumptions while awaiting more formal updated reports. Any
differences in viewpoints are resolved expeditiously and have historically not resulted in material adjustments.
With respect to receiving reports on individual loss estimates in the other lines of reinsurance business, we have
historically experienced prompt reporting and consistent results in determining reserves. In addition, the
frequency of loss in the other lines of reinsurance business is low.

84




The following table shows our case and non-specific reserves for losses and loss adjustment expenses for
our financial guaranty business, and case reserves and IBNR related to the non-financial guaranty businesses
included in our financial guaranty segment as of the indicated dates (in thousands):

Trade Credit

Financial Guaranty and Other
Non-Specific Non-Specific
Case Allocated  Unallocated Case
Reserves Reserves Reserves Reserves  IBNR Total

Balance at December 31,2002 ............. $ 34,167 % — $ 48,007 $42,702 $14,996 $139.872
Less Reinsurance Recoverable . .......... ... — — — 2,086 87 2,173
Net Loss Reserves at December 31, 2002 .. ... 34,167 —_ 48,007 40,616 14,909 137,699
TotalIncurred .. ....... ... ... ........... — — 128,053 29,005 9,724 166,782
Transfers . ........... i 12,363 117,000  (129,363) — — —
Total Paid ........ ... ... ... . ... . .. ... ... 1,801 —_ — 28,090 — 29,891
Net Loss Reserves at December 31, 2003 ... .. 44,729 117,000 46,697 41,531 24,633 274,590
Plus Reinsurance Recoverable . ............. — — — 1,868 449 2,317
Loss Reserves at December 31,2003 ........ 44,729 117,000 46,697 43,399 25,082 276,907
Less Reinsurance Recoverable . .. ........... — — — 1,868 449 2,317
Net Loss Reserves at December 31, 2003 .. ... 44,729 117,000 46,697 41,531 24,633 274,590
TotalIncurred . ........ ... ... . ... . ... — — 21,634 18,119 16,145 55,898
Transfers ... ... ... .. . . ., 118,833  (107,250) (11,583) —_ — —_
Total Paid ........... ... . ... ... .. ..., 65,203 — — 28,264 — 93,467
Foreign Exchange Adjustment .. ............ — — — 1,086 1,038 2,124
Net Loss Reserves at December 31, 2004 ... .. 98,359 9,750 56,748 32,472 41,816 239,145
Plus Reinsurance Recoverable .............. — — — 1,654 581 2,235
Loss Reserves at December 31,2004 ........ 98,359 9,750 56,748 34,126 42,397 241,380
Less Reinsurance Recoverable . .. ........... — — -— 1,654 581 2,235
Net Loss Reserves at December 31, 2004 . . ... 98,359 9,750 56,748 32,472 41,816 239,145
TotalIncurred .. ........ ... .. ... . ... ..... — — 14,307 16,138 1,072 31,517
Transfers . ...... ... . ... . e (1,823) 18,000 (16,177) — — —
TotalPaid ......... ... . . i, 38,523 — — 26,160 — 64,683
Foreign Exchange Adjustment .. ............ —_ — —_ (1,899) (1,987) (3,886)
Net Loss Reserves at December 31, 2005 .. ... 58,013 27,750 54,878 20,551 40,901 202,093
Plus Reinsurance Recoverable .............. —_ — — 1,517 1,182 2,699
Loss Reserves at December 31, 2005 ........ $ 58,013 $ 27,750 $ 54,878 $22,068 $42,083 $204,792

We periodically evaluate our estimates for losses and LAE and adjust such reserves based on our actual loss
experience, mix of business and economic conditions. Changes in total estimates for losses and LAE are reflected
in current earnings. We believe that our total reserves for losses and LAE are adequate to cover the ultimate cost
of all claims net of reinsurance recoveries. Setting the loss reserves in both business segments involves
significant reliance upon estimates with regard to the likelihood, magnitude and timing of a loss. The models and
estimates we use to establish loss reserves may not prove to be accurate, especially during an extended economic
downturn. There can be no assurance that we have correctly estimated the necessary amount of reserves or that
the reserves established will be adequate to cover ultimate losses on incurred defaults.

Fair Value of Derivative Financial Guaranty Contracts

We account for derivatives under SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activities,” as amended and interpreted (“SFAS No. 133”). The gains and losses on direct derivative financial
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guaranty contracts are derived from internally generated models. The gains and losses on assumed derivative
financial guaranty contracts are provided by the primary insurance companies. With respect to our derivative
financial guaranty contracts, we estimate fair value amounts using market information, to the extent available,
and appropriate valuation methodologies. For CDQ’s, credit spreads on individual names in our collateral pool
are used to determine an equivalent risk tranche on an industry standard credit default swap index. We then
estimate the price of our equivalent risk tranche based on observable market prices of standard risk tranches on
the industry standard credit default swap index. When credit spreads on individual names are not available, the
average credit spread on the credit rating of the name 1s used. For certain structured transactions, dealer quotes on
similar structured transactions are used. Significant differences may exist with respect to the available market
information and assumptions used to determine gains and losses on derivative financial guaranty contracts. We
are required to exercise considerable judgment to interpret market data to develop the estimates of fair value.
Accordingly, the estimates are not necessarily indicative of amounts we could realize in a current market
exchange due to the lack of a liquid market. The use of different market assumptions and/or estimation
methodologies may have a significant effect on the estimated fair value amounts. The fair value of derivative
financial guaranty contracts is included in assets or liabilities, as appropriate, on our consolidated balance sheets.
Settlements under derivative financial guaranty contracts are charged to the change in fair value of derivative
instruments on our consolidated balance sheets.

In the fourth quarter of 2005, we refined our mark-to-market model to use actual credit spreads by
individual name, when available as discussed above, as compared to our previous version of the model, which
used average spreads for similarly rated names. While application of the new model resulted in minimal changes
for most of our derivative transactions, one synthetic collateralized debt obligation showed a large difference due
to greater spread volatility in the underlying high-yield corporate names included in this transaction. At
December 31, 2005, our refined model indicated that a $50.8 million loss should be recognized on this
transaction, which was included on our list of intensified surveillance credits at December 31, 2005. On March 2,
2006, Radian Asset Assurance paid $68.0 million to its counterparty in consideration for its counterparty’s
terminating this transaction and amending the one other derivative financial guaranty contract insured by Radian
Asset Assurance with this same counterparty.

Restricted Cash

Included in cash were amounts restricted as to use of $3.7 million and $6.4 million as of December 31, 2005
and 2004, respectively, representing reserve accounts designed to cover losses on business insured by Radian
Guaranty and Radian Insurance under two separate agreements.

Real Estate Acquired and Other Restructurings

Real estate is acquired in our mortgage insurance business segment to mitigate losses. The real estate
acquired is included in other assets on our consolidated balance sheets at the lower of cost or net realizable value.
Gains or losses from the holding or disposition of real estate acquired are recorded as a decrease or increase to
the provision for losses. At December 31, 2005 and 2004, we held $5.8 million and $9.9 million, respectively, of
real estate acquired to mitigate losses.

Other restructurings in our financial guaranty business segment may consist of purchasing the insured debt
security to mitigate losses. Insured debt securities purchased to mitigate losses are included in other assets on our
consolidated balance sheets at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Gains or losses from the holding or
disposition of the securities acquired are recorded as net gains and losses on the sale of investments. At
December 31, 2005 and 2004, we held $4.1 million and $6.5 million, respectively, of insured debt securities
purchased to mitigate losses.
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Deferred Policy Acquisition Costs

Costs associated with the acquisition of mortgage insurance business, consisting of compensation and other
policy issuance and underwriting expenses, are initially deferred and reported as deferred policy acquisition
costs. Because SFAS No. 60 specifically excludes mortgage guaranty insurance from its guidance relating to the
amortization of deferred policy acquisition costs, amortization of these costs for each underwriting year book of
business is charged against revenue in proportion to estimated gross profits over the estimated life of the policies
using the guidance provided by SFAS No. 97, “Accounting and Reporting by Insurance Enterprises for Certain
Long-Duration Contracts and for Realized Gains and Losses from the Sale of Investments.” This includes
accruing interest on the unamortized balance of deferred policy acquisition costs. Estimates of expected gross
profit including persistency and loss development assumptions for each underwriting year used as a basis for
amortization are evaluated regularly, and the total amortization recorded to date is adjusted by a charge or credit
to the statement of income if actual experience or other evidence suggests that earlier estimates should be
revised. Considerable judgment is used in evaluating these factors when updating the assumptions. The use of
different assumptions would have a significant effect on the amortization of deferred policy acquisition costs. In
2005 and 2004, as a result of these evaluations, we accelerated the amortization of $5.1 million and $11.6 million
of policy acquisition costs, respectively, in our mortgage insurance segment.

Deferred policy acquisition costs in the financial guaranty business are comprised of those expenses that
vary with, and are principally related to, the production of insurance premiums, including: commissions paid on
reinsurance assumed, salaries and related costs of underwriting and marketing personnel, rating agency fees,
premium taxes and certain other underwriting expenses, partially offset by commission income on premiums
ceded to reinsurers. Acquisition costs are deferred and amortized over the period in which the related premiums
are earned for each underwriting year. The amortization of deferred policy acquisition costs is adjusted regularly
based on the expected timing of both upfront and installment-based premiums. The estimation of installment—
based premiums requires considerable judgment, and different assumptions could produce different results.
Deferred policy acquisition costs are reviewed periodically to determine that they do not exceed or are less than
recoverable amounts, after considering investment income.

Origination Costs of Derivative Financial Guaranty Contracts

Origination costs of derivative financial guaranty contracts are expensed as incurred.

Income Taxes

We provide for income taxes in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for Income
Taxes” (“SFAS No. 109”). As required under SFAS No. 109, our deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognized under the liability method which recognizes the future tax effect of temporary differences between
the amounts recorded in the Consolidated Financial Statements and the tax bases of these amounts. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are measured using the enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the periods
in which the deferred tax asset or liability is expected to be realized or settled.

As a mortgage guaranty and financial guaranty insurer, we are eligible for a tax deduction, subject to certain
limitations, under Section 832(e) of the Internal Revenue Code for amounts required by state law or regulation to
be set aside in statutory contingency reserves. The deduction is allowed only to the extent that we purchase
non-interest-bearing U.S. Mortgage Guaranty Tax and Loss Bonds (“T&L bonds”) issued by the Treasury
Department in an amount equal to “the tax benefit derived” from deducting any portion of our statutory
contingency reserves.

We are currently under examination by the Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) for the 2000 through 2004 tax
years and are regularly audited by tax authorities in other countries and states in which we have significant
business operations. To date, no adjustments have been proposed as a result of the IRS audit, which is currently in
a discovery phase. We provide tax reserves for federal, state, local and international exposures relating to audit
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results, tax planning initiatives and compliance responsibilities. We regularly assess the potential outcome of
examinations in each of the taxing jurisdictions when determining the adequacy of the provision for income taxes.
The development of these reserves requires judgments about tax issues, potential outcomes and timing, and is a
subjective significant estimate. Once established, the reserves are adjusted only when there is more information
available or when an event occurs necessitating a change to the reserves. Although the outcome of tax
examinations is uncertain, in our opinion, adequate provisions for income taxes have been made for potential
liabilities emanating from these reviews, including the current IRS audit. If actual outcomes differ materially from
these estimates, they could have a material impact on our effective tax rate, results of operations and cash flows.

Foreign Currency Translation

Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the year-end exchange rates.
Operating results are translated at average rates of exchange prevailing during the year. Unrealized gains and
losses, net of deferred taxes, resulting from translation are included in accumulated other comprehensive income
in stockholders’ equity. Gains and losses resulting from transactions in foreign currency are recorded in current
period net income.

Investments

We are required to group assets in our investment portfolio into three categories: held to maturity, available
for sale or trading securittes. Fixed-maturity securities for which we have the positive intent and ability to hold to
maturity are classified as held to maturity and reported at amortized cost. Investments classified as available for
sale are reported at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses (net of tax) reported as a separate component of
stockholders’ equity as accumulated other comprehensive income. Investments classified as trading securities are
reported at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses (net of tax) reported as a separate component of income.
For securities classified as either available for sale or held to maturity, we conduct a quarterly evaluation of
declines in market value of the investment portfolio asset basis to determine whether the decline is other-than-
temporary. This evaluation includes a review of (i) the length of time and extent to which fair value is below
amortized cost; (ii) issuer financial condition; and (iii) our intent and ability to retain our investment over a
period of time to allow recovery in fair value. We use a 20% decline in price over four continuous quarters as a
guide in identifying those securities that should be evaluated for impairment. For securities that have experienced
rapid price declines or unrealized losses of less than 20% over periods in excess of four consecutive quarters,
classification as other-than-temporary is considered. Factors influencing this consideration include an analysis of
the security issuer’s financial performance, financial condition and general economic conditions.

If the decline in fair value is judged to be other-than-temporary, the cost basis of the individual security is
written down to fair value through earnings as a realized loss and the fair value becomes the new basis. At
December 31, 2005 and 2004, there were no investments held in the portfolio that met these criteria. Realized
gains and losses are determined on a specific identification method and are included in income. Other invested
assets consist of residential mortgage-backed securities and forward foreign currency contracts and are carried at
fair value.

In March 2004, the EITF reached a consensus regarding EITF Issue 03-1, “The Meaning of Other-Than-
Temporary Impairment and Its Application to Certain Investments”. The consensus provides guidance for
evaluating whether an investment is other-than-temporarily impaired on several types of investments, including
debt securities classified as held to maturity and available for sale under SFAS No. 115 “Accounting for Certain
Investments in Debt and Equity Securities.” The disclosure provisions of EITF Issue No. 03-1 continue to be
effective for our financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2005.

On November 3, 2005, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position (“FSP”) Nos. FAS 115-1 and FAS 124-1,
“The Meaning of Other-Than-Temporary Impairment and Its Application to Certain Investment”. This FSP
addresses the determination as to when an investment is considered impaired, whether that impairment is other
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than temporary and the measurement of an impairment loss. This FSP also includes accounting considerations
subsequent to the recognition of an other-than-temporary impairment and requires certain disclosures about
unrealized losses that have not been recognized as other-than-temporary impairments. This FSP nullifies certain
requirements of EITF Issue 03-1 and supersedes EITF Topic No. D-44, “Recognition of Other-Than-Temporary
Impairment Upon the Planned Sale of a Security Whose Cost Exceeds Fair Value”. The guidance in this FSP also
amends FASB No. 115. This FSP is effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2005. The
impact from the adoption of this guidance is not expected to be material.

Fair Values of Financial Instruments

Fair values for fixed-maturity securities (including redeemable preferred stock) and equity securities are
based on quoted market prices, dealer quotes and prices obtained from independent pricing services. Short-term
investments are carried at amortized cost, which approximates fair value.

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

We account for derivatives under SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activities,” as amended and interpreted (“SFAS No. 133”). In general, SFAS No. 133 requires that all derivative
instruments be recorded on the balance sheet at their respective fair values. All derivative instruments are
recognized in the consolidated balance sheets as either assets or liabilities, depending on the rights or obligations
under the contracts. Transactions that the we have entered into that are accounted for under SFAS No. 133
include investments in convertible debt securities, interest-rate swaps, selling credit protection in the form of
credit default swaps and certain financial guaranty contracts that are considered credit default swaps. Credit
default swaps and certain financial guaranty contracts that are accounted for under SFAS No. 133 are part of our
overall business strategy of offering mortgage credit enhancement and financial guaranty protection to our
customers. The interest-rate swaps qualify as hedges and are accounted for as fair-value hedges. The embedded
equity derivatives contained within our investment in convertible debt securities and the sale of credit protection
in the form of credit default swaps do not qualify as hedges under SFAS No. 133, so changes in their fair value
are included in the periods presented in current earnings in our consolidated statements of income. Net unrealized
gains and losses on credit default swaps and certain other financial guaranty contracts are included in assets or
liabilities, as appropriate, on our consolidated balance sheets. There is no reserve for losses recognized on
derivative contracts. Any equivalent reserve would be embedded in the unrealized gains and losses. Settlements
under derivative financial guaranty contracts are charged to assets or liabilities, as appropriate. From time to
time, or as conditions warrant, we engage in derivative settlements to mitigate counterparty exposure and to
provide additional capacity to our customers. During 2005, we received $7.6 million as recoveries of previous
default payments on derivative financial guaranty contracts. During 2004, we received $4.0 million of recoveries
of previous default payments, paid $18.6 million for default payments and received $2.9 million of early
termination receipts. We paid $0.1 million for default payments during 2005. In the first quarter of 2006, we
agreed to terminate one derivative financial guaranty contract by paying to our counterparty $68.0 million in
consideration.

SFAS No. 133 requires that we split the convertible fixed-maturity securities in our investment portfolio
into the derivative and fixed-maturity security components. Over the term of the securities, changes in the fair
value of fixed-maturity securities available for sale are recorded in our consolidated statement of changes in
common stockholders’ equity through accumulated other comprehensive income or loss. Concurrently, a
deferred tax liability or benefit is recognized as the recorded value of the fixed-maturity security increases or
decreases. A change in the fair value of the derivative is recorded as a gain or loss in our consolidated statements
of income.
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A summary of our derivative information as of and for the periods indicated is as follows:

Year Ended December 31
2005 2004
(In millions)

Balance Sheet
Trading Securities

Amortized COSt ... ... .. $ 681 $ 654

Fairvalue ... ... .. . ... 894 86.3
Derivative financial guaranty contracts

Notional value . ... ... i $30,208.0  $12,500.0

Gross unrealized gains ............ ... $ 983 §$ 74.9

Gross unrealized losses . ..........c... i 721 49.6

Netunrealized gains ..............c.ccoeiiiienaaan... § 262 $ 253

The components of the change in fair value of derivative instruments are as follows:

Year Ended December 31
2005 2004 2003
(In millions)

Income Statement

Trading Securities ... ........oouiuitne it $(0.3) $174 $52

Gain on termination of Treasury rate lock ................... 1.0 — —

Derivative financial guaranty contracts ... ................... 3.4 29.7 (1.1)
NELZaINs . ..ot $9.1 $47.1 $4.1

The following table presents information related to net unrealized gains or losses on derivative financial
guaranty contracts (included in assets or liabilities on our consolidated balance sheets).

December 31
2005 2004
(In millions)
Balance at January 1 ... .. ... ... . . $25.3  $(6.1)
Net unrealized gainsrecorded ......... ... ... ... .. ... ... .. ... .. 8.4 29.7
Settlements of derivatives contracts:
Defaults
Recoveries . ... .. . . (7.6) 4.0)
Payments ....... ... ... 0.1 18.6
Early termination receipts .. ....... ...ttt — 2.9
Balance atend of period ......... ... ... .. i i i $262 $253

The application of SFAS No. 133 could result in volatility from period to period in gains and losses as
reported on our consolidated statements of income. These gains and losses are mostly the result of changes in
corporate credit spreads, changes in the creditworthiness of underlying corporate entities, and the equity
performance of the entities’ underlying the convertible investments. Any incurred gains and losses on such
contracts would run through the change in fair value of derivatives. We are unable to predict the effect this
volatility may have on our financial position or results of operations.

In accordance with our risk management policies, we enter into derivatives to hedge the interest-rate risk
related to the issuance of certain long-term debt. At December 31, 2005, we were a party to two interest-rate

90




swap contracts relating to our 5.625% unsecured senior notes. These interest-rate swaps are designed as fair
value hedges that hedge the change in fair-value of our long-term debt arising from interest-rate movements.
During 2005 and 2004, the fair value hedges were 100% effective. Therefore, the changes in the fair value of
derivative instruments in our consolidated statements of income were offset by the change in the fair value of the
hedged debt. These interest-rate swap contracts mature in February 2013.

Terms of the interest-rate swap contracts at December 31, 2005 were as follows (dollars in thousands):

Notional amoOunt .. ...ttt $250,000
Ratereceived—Fixed ...... ... ... ... . . .. ... . . . ... 5.625%
Rate paid — Floating (a) ....... ... i, 5.663%
Maturity date . ... February 15, 2013
Unrealized 108S . . ... ... $2,652

(a) The December 31, 2005 six-month London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) forward rate at the next swap
payment date plus 87.4 basis points.

In October 2004, we entered into transactions to lock in treasury rates that would have served as a hedge in
the event we had issued long-term debt. The notional value of the hedges was $120 million at a blended rate of
4.075%. At December 31, 2004, we had a $1.5 million unrealized gain recorded on the hedges. In January 2005,
we discontinued the hedge arrangements and received payments from our counterparties. We realized a gain of
$1.0 million at termination in 2003.

Company-Owned Life Insurance

We are the beneficiary of insurance policies on the lives of certain of our officers and employees. We have
recognized the amount that could be realized upon surrender of the insurance policies as an asset in our
consolidated balance sheets. At December 31, 2005 and 2004, the amount of Company-owned life insurance
totaled $59.7 million and $57.4 million, respectively, and is included as a component of other assets.

Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation

We report stock-based compensation in accordance with SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation.” SFAS No. 123 requires expanded disclosures of stock-based compensation arrangements with
employees and directors and encourages, but does not require, the recognition of compensation expense for the
fair value of stock options and other equity instruments granted as compensation to employees and directors. We
have chosen to continue to account for stock-based compensation using the intrinsic value method prescribed in
Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees” (“APB 25”) and
related interpretations. Accordingly, compensation cost for stock options is measured as the excess, if any, of the
quoted market price of our stock at the date of the grant over the amount an employee must pay to acquire the
stock. To date, there have been no options issued at a price that was less than the market price at the date of
issuance.

In December 2004, the FASB issued Statement No. 123 (Revised) (“SFAS No. 123R”) that will require
compensation cost related to share-based payment transactions to be recognized in an issuer’s financial
statements. The compensation cost, with limited exceptions, will be measured based on the grant-date fair value
of the equity or liability instrument issued. In October 2005, the FASB issued Staff Position No. FAS 123(R)-2
“Practical Accommodation to the Application of Grant Date as Defined in FASB Statement No. 123(R),” to
provide guidance on the application of the term “grant date” in SFAS No. 123R. In accordance with this Staff
Position, which is to be applied upon our initial adoption of SFAS No. 123R, the grant date of an award shall be
the date the award is approved by our board of directors if, at such time, (i) the recipient of the award does not
have the ability to negotiate the key terms and conditions of the award and (ii) the key terms of the award are
expected to be communicated to the recipients within a relatively short time period after the date of approval.

91




Under SFAS No. 123R, liability awards will be required to be re-measured each reporting period.
Compensation cost will be recognized over the periods that an employee provides service in exchange for the
award. SFAS No. 123R replaces SFAS No. 123 and supersedes APB 25. This statement is effective beginning
with the first quarter of an issuer’s fiscal year that begins after June 15, 2005 (the quarter ending March 31, 2006,
for us), and applies to all awards granted after the effective date. It is our intention to use the modified
prospective method in implementing SFAS No. 123R. Effective January 1, 2006, we will be required to
recognize compensation expense for the fair value of stock options that are granted or vest after that date. We
intend to continue using the Black-Scholes model in determining the fair value of stock-based compensation
issued to employees and directors. The impact to our financial statements, upon adoption, will be similar to that
disclosed as stock-based compensation in the table below.

The following table illustrates the effect on net income and earnings per share if we had applied the fair
value recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123 to stock-based employee compensation (in thousands, except
per-share amounts).

Year Ended December 31
2005 2004 2003
Netincome, asreported ... ...ttt $522,854 $518,653 $385,901
Add: Stock-based employee compensation expense included in reported net
INCOME, NELOF AKX . v v oo e e 3,094 1,371 1,556
Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation expense determined under
fair value-based method for all awards, netoftax ..................... 10,785 8,455 7,532
Proforma net inCome . . ... ... i e $515,163 $511,569 $379,925
Pro forma net income available to common stockholders .. ............... $517,034 $514,787 $383,143
Earnings per share
Basic—asreported ......... . . $ 610 $ 557 % 413
Basic—proforma ......... .. ... $ 602 $§ 550 $ 406
Diluted—as reported ....... ... $ 591 $ 533 § 395
Diluted—pro forma . .......... .. i $ 583 3§ 526 § 389

As discussed in Note 11, the Radian Group Inc. Equity Compensation Plan (the “Plan”) provides for the
grant of restricted stock to selected key employees of the parent company and its affiliates. We granted, under the
Plan, 40,000 shares of restricted stock in May 2005 and an additional 10,000 shares of restricted stock in July
2003, in each case vesting over three years. Deferred compensation was recorded based on the market price at the
date of grant. Compensation expense on the restricted stock is recognized over the vesting period of the shares.

The weighted average fair values of the stock options granted during 2005, 2004 and 2003 were $17.43,
$18.19 and $14.26, respectively. The fair value of each stock option grant is estimated on the date of grant using
the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the following weighted average assumptions used for grants:

2005 2004 2003

Expected life (years) . . ... ool 550 550  5.50

Risk-free interest rate . .. .. ..ot e e 3.65% 3.04% 2.88%
VOlatility . o e e e 32.23% 38.48% 39.39%
Dividend yield ... ... . .. 0.16% 0.17% 0.22%
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Net Income Per Share

We are required to disclose both “basic” net income per share and “diluted” net income per share. Basic net
income per share is based on the weighted average number of common shares outstanding, while diluted net
income per share is based on the weighted average number of common shares outstanding and common share
equivalents that would arise from the exercise of stock options. Diluted shares assume the conversion of our
senior convertible debentures, which were outstanding for a full year in 2003 and 2004. We redeemed the entire
principal amount outstanding of our senior convertible debentures on August 1, 2005, as discussed in Note 7.

The calculation of the basic and diluted net income per share was as follows (in thousands, except per-share
amounts):

Year Ended December 31
2005 2004 2003
Nl INCOME « oottt ettt e et $522,854 $518,653 $385,901
Interest expense on convertible senior debentures (net of tax) ............. 1,871 3,218 3,218
Net income available to common stockholders ......................... $524,725 $521,871 $389,119
Average diluted stock options outstanding . .............. .. ... . ... 4,602.5 4,961.5 5,385.5
Average exercise price pershare ............. ... .. .., $§ 3785 $ 3343 $ 29.59
Average market price per share—diluted basis ....................... .. $ 5015 $ 46.65 $ 4192
Weighted average common shares outstanding ......................... 85,637 93,062 93,531
Increase in shares due to exercise of options—diluted basis ............... 894 1,036 1,112
Increase in shares-contingently convertibledebt .. ...................... 2,215 3,810 3,810
Average shares outstanding—diluted ........... ... ... 88,746 97,908 98,453
Net income per share—Dbasic ...........virieeriertiinreenn.., $ 610 $ 557 $ 4.3
Net income per share—diluted . . ...t $ 591 $ 533 § 395

At December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, there were 268,878 options, 274,810 options and 297,600 options,
respectively, excluded from the net income per share calculation because the options were anti-dilutive.

Segment Reporting

We have three reportable segments: mortgage insurance, financial guaranty insurance and financial services.
The mortgage insurance segment provides mortgage credit protection principally via private mortgage insurance
and risk management services to mortgage lending institutions located throughout the United States and globally.
Private mortgage insurance protects lenders from all or part of default-related losses on residential first-mortgage
loans made mostly to homebuyers who make down payments of less than 20% of the home’s purchase price.
Private mortgage insurance also facilitates the sale of these mortgages in the secondary market. Our financial
guaranty segment provides credit-related insurance coverage, credit default swaps and certain other financial
guaranty contracts to meet the needs of customers in a wide variety of domestic and international markets. Qur
insurance businesses within the financial guaranty insurance segment includes the assumption of reinsurance
from monoline financial guaranty insurers for both public finance bonds and structured finance obligations, the
provision of direct financial guaranty insurance for public finance bonds and structured transactions, and trade
credit reinsurance. We recently decided to exit the trade credit reinsurance business. We expect that our existing
trade credit reinsurance business will take several years to run-off, although the bulk of the remaining premiums
will be earned and claims paid during the next two years.

The financial services segment includes the credit-based businesses conducted through our affiliates,

C-BASS and Sherman. We own a 46% interest in C-BASS and a 34.58% interest in Sherman. C-BASS is a
mortgage investment and servicing firm specializing in credit-sensitive, single-family residential mortgage assets
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and residential mortgage-backed securities. By using sophisticated analytics, C-BASS essentially seeks to take
advantage of what it believes to be the mispricing of credit risk for certain assets in the marketplace. Sherman is
a consumer asset and servicing firm specializing in charged-off and bankruptcy plan consumer assets and
charged-off high loan-to-value mortgage receivables that it generally purchases at deep discounts from national
financial institutions and major retail corporations and subsequently collects upon these receivables. In March
2005, Sherman acquired CreditOne, providing Sherman with the ability to originate subprime credit card
receivables. In addition, until the discontinuance of RadianExpress’ operations during the first quarter of 2004
and final processing of all remaining transactions, the financial services segment included the results of
RadianExpress, an Internet-based settlement company that provided real estate information products and services
to the first- and second-lien mortgage industry.

Our reportable segments are strategic business units that are managed separately because each business
requires different marketing and sales expertise. We allocate corporate income and expenses to each of the
segments.

On June 24, 2005, we entered into agreements to restructure our ownership interest in Sherman. Before the
restructuring, Sherman was owned 41.5% by us, 41.5% by Mortgage Guaranty Insurance Corporation (“MGIC™)
and 17% by an entity controlled by Sherman’s management team.

As part of the restructuring, we and MGIC each agreed to sell a 6.92% interest in Sherman to a new entity
controlled by Sherman’s management team, thereby reducing our ownership interest and MGIC’s ownership
interest to 34.58% for each of us. In return, the new entity controlled by Sherman’s management team paid
approximately $15.65 million (which resulted in a $3.3 million loss) to us and the same amount to MGIC.
Regulatory approval for this transaction was received in August 2005, and our ownership interest was reduced to
34.58%, retroactive to May 1, 2005. Effective June 15, 2005, Sherman’s employees were transferred to the new
entity controlled by Sherman’s management team, and this entity agreed to provide management services to
Sherman. Sherman’s management team also agreed to reduce significantly its maximum incentive payout under
its annual incentive plan for periods beginning on or after May 1, 2005. This has resulted in Sherman’s net
income now being greater than it would have been without a reduction in the maximum incentive payout.
Following the restructuring, we expect that our and MGIC’s share of Sherman’s net income will be similar to our
respective shares before the restructuring, because although our percentage interest in Sherman is smaller than it
was before the restructuring, Sherman’s net income is greater than it would have been if the restructuring had not
occurred.

In connection with the restructuring, we and MGIC each also paid $1 million for each of us to have the right
to purchase, on July 7, 2006, a 6.92% interest in Sherman from the new entity controlled by Sherman’s
management team for a price intended to approximate current fair market value. If either we or MGIC exercise
our purchase right but the other fails to exercise its purchase right, the exercising party also may exercise the
purchase right of the non-exercising party. Our and MGIC’s representation on Sherman’s Board of Managers
will not change regardless of which party or parties exercise the purchase right.

For each of the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, our domestic net premiums earned were
$959.0 million, $1,020.2 million, and $1,054.2 million, respectively, and our net premiums earned attributable to
foreign countries were approximately $59.7 million, $62.2 million, and $56.2 million, respectively. Because a
significant amount of our trade credit reinsurance business line, which we placed in run-off during the fourth
quarter of 2005, is written internationally, we anticipate that international net premiums earned from the trade
credit reinsurance business will decline over the next few years as existing business runs off and new business is
not originated. In addition, long-lived assets located in foreign countries were immaterial for the periods
presented.

In the mortgage insurance segment, the highest state concentration of risk in force at December 31, 2005,
was Florida at 9.5%, compared to 9.1% at December 31, 2004. However, California still had the highest state
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concentration of total direct primary and pool insurance in force at December 31, 2005. The percentage of risk in
California has been falling due to the high cancellation rate as compared to new business written. At
December 31, 2005, California accounted for 10.4% of the mortgage insurance segment’s total direct primary
insurance in force, compared to 12.4% at December 31, 2004, and 12.3% of the mortgage insurance segment’s
total pool risk in force, compared to 14.7% for 2004. California also accounted for 13.8% of the mortgage
insurance segment’s direct primary new insurance written for 2005 and 2004.

The largest single customer of Mortgage Insurance (including branches and affiliates of such customer),
measured by new insurance written, accounted for 10.6% of new insurance written in 2005 compared to 9.6% in
2004 and 10.4% in 2003.

The financial guaranty segment derives a substantial portion of its premiums written from a small number of
direct primary insurers. In 2005, one primary insurer accounted for approximately $43.3 million of the financial
guaranty segment’s gross written premiums. In 2004, two primary insurers accounted for approximately $82.1
million of the financial guaranty segment’s gross written premiums. No other primary insurer accounted for more
than 10% of the financial guaranty segment’s gross written premiums during 2005 or 2004. Gross written
premiums and net written premiums are not materially different because we do not cede a material amount of
business to reinsurers.

We evaluate operating segment performance based principally on net income. Summarized financial
information concerning our operating segments, as of and for the year-to-date periods indicated are as follows:

December 31, 2005

Mortgage Financial Financial
Insurance Services Guaranty Total
(In thousands)

Net premiums Written . .. ... ..t $ 877632 §$ — $ 223055 $1,100,687
Net premiums earned . ... ...... .. $ 806,897 § — $§ 211,773 $1,018,670
Net investment inCome . . . ... oo vt 118,325 120 89.977 208,422
Net gains (losses) on sales of investments ............... 27,649 (1,748) 10,737 36,638
Change in fair value of derivative instruments ........... 4,110 (185) 5,245 9,170
Other inCoOme . ... .. . e 19,008 5,304 939 25,251

Totalrevenues . ............ ... 975,989 3,491 318,671 1,298,151
Provision for1osses ... . 359,116 — 31,517 390,633
Policy acquisition COStS ... .......ouiiriirnennennnn, 62,852 — 52,999 115,851
Other operating eXpenses . .. ..........c.vevreineennnn. 152,731 8,268 64,978 225,977
Interest eXpense . ....... ..t 24,191 3,747 15,105 43,043

Total eXPenses . ... ..o i 598,890 12,015 164,599 775,504
Equity in net income (loss) of affiliates ................. — 218,053 (361) 217,692
Pretax inCome . .. oot i e e e e 377,099 209,529 153,711 740,339
Provision for income taxes . ...t 108,493 73,335 35,657 217,485
NEetinCOmME ..ottt e e $ 268606 $136,194 $ 118,054 $ 522,854
Total aS5€ES . ..t v it $4,367,804 $457,572 $2,405,234 $7,230,610
Deferred policy acquisitioncosts . ..................... 67,211 — 141,114 208,325
Reserve for losses and loss adjustment expenses .. ........ 596,210 — 204,792 801,002
Unearned Prémiums . ... ..oounertnrenenneen e, 212,875 — 636,485 849,360
Stockholders’ equity ........ ... . 2,080,445 331,039 1,251,396 3,662,880
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Net premiums WIten . ... ..o vt ee e

Net premiums earned
Net Investment iNCOME .« . .« .o vttt e ens
Net gains on sales of investments
Change in fair value of derivative instruments
Other income

Total revenues

Provision for losses
Policy acquisition costs

Other operating expenses
Interest expense

Total expenses

Equity in net income of affiliates .. ....................

Pretax inCome . ... .ottt e e e
Provision forincometaxes ... ........ ... ... .. ... ...

Net income

Total assets
Deferred policy acquisition costs
Reserve for losses and loss adjustment expenses .. ........
Unearned premiums
Stockholders’ equity . ........... .. i

Net premiums Written .. ... .. oo it it

Net premiums earned
Net investment iNCOME . .. ..o vt vi e
Net gains (losses) on sales of investments
Change in fair value of derivative instruments
Other income

Total revenues

Provision for losses
Policy acquisition costs

Other operating expenses
Interest expense

Total expenses
Equity in net income of affiliates . .....................

Pretax income . ........... ...
Provision for iNCOME taxes . .. .ot e e e

Net income

Total assets
Deferred policy acquisition costs . .. ...................
Reserve for losses and loss adjustment expenses . ... ......
Unearned premiums
Stockholders’ equity . . ....... .. i
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December 31, 2004

Mortgage Financial Financial
Insurance Services Guaranty Total
(In thousands)
$ 866,051 $§ — § 216436 $1,082,487
$ 814,553 § — $ 214,931 3$1,029,484
118,694 98 85,557 204,349
44,380 2,424 3,995 50,799
11,940 206 34,989 47,135
24,247 5,989 2,050 32,286
1,013,814 8,717 341,522 1,364,053
400,936 — 55,898 456,834
75,487 — 46,343 121,830
141,131 12,229 52,327 205,687
20,138 2,500 12,022 34,660
637,692 14,729 166,590 819,011
— 179,128 1,422 180,550
376,122 173,116 176,354 725,592
104,240 60,577 42,122 206,939
$ 271,882 $112,539 § 134,232 $ 518,653
$4,198,325 $388,975 $2,413,520 $7,000,820
69,175 — 142,753 211,928
559,632 — 241,380 801,012
142,853 — 627,355 770,208
2,065,290 316,378 1,307,387 3,689,055
December 31, 2003
Mortgage Financial Financial
Insurance Services Guaranty Total
(In thousands)

$ 741840 $ — § 368,637 $1,110477
$ 759,620 § — § 248,563 $1,008,183
107,690 36 78,437 186,163
8,123 (2,284) 11,548 17,387
3,275 90 774 4,139
32,003 27,680 3,639 63,322
910,711 25,522 342,961 1,279,194
309,272 — 166,782 476,054
70,195 — 58,323 128,518
125,951 47,058 38,068 211,077
21,467 3,162 12,913 37,542
526,885 50,220 276,086 853,191
— 95,507 9,969 105,476
383,826 70,809 76,844 531,479
104,013 28,313 13,252 145,578
$ 279,813 $ 42,496 § 63,592 $ 385,901
$3,849,210 $314,628 $2,281,929 $6,445,767
79,542 — 139,237 218,779
513,473 — 276,907 790,380
93,415 — 625,234 718,649
1,850,796 260,918 1,114,130 3,225,844



The reconciliation of segment net income to consolidated net income is as follows:

Year Ended December 31
2005 2004 2003
(In thousands)
Net Income
Mortgage INSUFANCE ... ...ttt it $268,606 $271,882 $279,813
Financial Guaranty ........... ... .. . i 118,054 134,232 63,592
Financial Services .. ...... . 136,194 112,539 42,496
Total ... $522,854 $518,653 $385,901
Ratings

On April 27, 2005, Fitch affirmed the “AA” insurance financial strength rating RAAL, but revised its
Ratings Outlook to Negative from Stable. Fitch’s ratings for us and our other rated subsidiaries are unchanged,
and Fitch’s Ratings Outlook for these other entities remains Stable. None of the primary insurance customers of
our financial guaranty business have any recapture rights as a result of this ratings action by Fitch.

In May 2004, Moody’s provided Radian Asset Assurance with an initial insurer financial strength rating of
Aa3. Prior to the merger of Radian Reinsurance with and into Radian Asset Assurance, Moody’s downgraded the
insurance financial strength rating of Radian Reinsurance from Aa2 to Aa3. As a result of this downgrade, two of
the primary insurer customers of our financial guaranty reinsurance business had the right to recapture previously
written business ceded to our financial guaranty reinsurance business. One of these customers agreed, without
cost to or concessions by us, to waive its recapture rights. Effective February 28, 2003, the remaining primary
insurer customer with recapture rights recaptured approximately $7.4 billion of par in force that it had ceded to
us, including $54.7 million of net premiums written, $4.5 million of which already had been treated as earned
under GAAP and was required to be recorded as an immediate reduction of net premiums earned at the time of
the recapture. Also in connection with the recapture in the first quarter of 2005, we were reimbursed for policy
acquisition costs of approximately $17.1 million for which the carrying value under GAAP was $18.8 million.
This required us to write off policy acquisition costs of $1.7 million. The aggregate result was a reduction in
pre-tax income of $6.2 million, or approximately $0.04 per share after tax. The amount of future lost net
premiums earned due to this recapture is expected to be approximately $129.7 million, which is made up of the
unearned premium balance and the value of future installment premiums. The total approximate reduction in
pre-tax income for 2005, including the immediate impact, was $12.3 million or approximately $0.08 per share
after tax.

The sum of the above adjustments related to this recapture is summarized as follows:

GAAP Initial

Cash Paid Book Gain
(Received) Basis (Loss)
(In thousands)
Unearned Premiums . . ... ... . $ 54,742  $ 50,204 $(4,538)
ACQUISTHON COSIS .. vttt e (17,097) (18,791) (1,694)
Total .. e $ 37,645 $ 31,413 $(6,232)

Despite the recapture, this primary insurer customer renewed its reinsurance treaty with us for 2005 and
recently for 2006 on substantially the same terms as in 2004 prior to the May 2004 downgrade. In March 2005,
without cost to or concessions by us, this customer waived all of its remaining recapture rights with respect to the
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May 2004 downgrade by Moody’s. The other customers with recapture rights as a result of the May 2004
downgrade agreed, without cost to or concessions by us, to waive their recapture rights. There are no remaining
recapture rights with respect to the May 2004 downgrade by Moody’s.

In October 2002, S&P downgraded the insurer financial strength rating of Radian Reinsurance, before its
merger with and into Radian Asset Assurance, from AAA to AA. As a result of this downgrade, effective
January 31, 2004, one of the primary insurer customers of our financial guaranty reinsurance business exercised
its right to recapture approximately $16.4 billion of par in force ceded to our financial guaranty reinsurance
business, including $96.4 million of net premiums written with a GAAP carrying value of approximately $71.5
million. The entire impact of this recapture was reflected as a reduction of net premiums written in the first
quarter of 2004. Because, in accordance with GAAP, we already had reflected $24.9 million of these recaptured
net premiums written as having been earned, we were required to record the entire $24.9 million reduction in net
premiums earned in the first quarter of 2004. Also in connection with the recapture in the first quarter of 2004,
we were reimbursed for policy acquisition costs of approximately $31.0 million for which the carrying value
under GAAP was $21.3 million. In addition, the recapture included approximately $11.5 million that had been
recorded as case reserves under GAAP. Finally, we took a charge of $0.8 million for mark-to-market adjustments
related to certain insurance policies associated with the recapture. The sum of the above adjustments related to
this recapture resulted in an immediate reduction of pre-tax income of $15.9 million. We estimate that the
recapture of reinsurance business reduced 2004 pre-tax income by approximately $37.8 million or approximately
$0.26 per share after tax, $0.11 per share of which was the immediate impact, and the balance was a result of
recaptured net premiums written that would have been earned over time and estimated losses.

The sum of the above adjustments related to this recapture resulted in an immediate reduction of pre-tax
income of $15.9 million and is summarized as follows:

GAAP Initial
Cash Paid Book Gain
{Received) Basis (Loss)
(In thousands)

Unearned PremiUIms . . ... ..ottt et e e e $96,417 $ 71,525 $(24,892)
AcquISition COSES ... oot e (31,023) (21,257) 9,766

Case Reserves . ... i e 11,488 11,488 —
Receivable from Unrealized Credit Derivatives Gain . .................... — (791) (791)
Total .. $ 76,882 $ 60,965 $(15,917)

Without cost to or concessions by us, the remaining primary insurer customers with recapture rights agreed
not to exercise those rights with respect to the October 2002 downgrade by S&P. None of the primary insurer
customers of our financial guaranty reinsurance business have any remaining recapture rights as a result of prior
downgrades of Radian Asset Assurance’s or Radian Reinsurance’s financial strength ratings from any of the
ratings agencies.

Other Operations

We are seeking to sell or otherwise dispose of the remaining assets and operations of Singer Asset Finance
Company, L.L.C. (“Singer™), an entity acquired in connection with the purchase of Financial Guaranty. We have
sold portions of the business to the extent possible. The remainder is in run-off. During this process, any net
servicing expenses will be charged against an existing servicing liability and any gains or losses on assets will be
charged against an existing asset reserve. If and when these reserves become depleted, future results will be
recorded in current operations.

Singer had been engaged in the purchase, servicing and securitization of assets including state lottery
awards and structured settlement payments. Its operations consist of servicing and/or disposing of Singer’s
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previously originated assets and servicing of Singer’s non-consolidated special-purpose vehicles. The results of
this subsidiary are not material to our financial results. At December 31, 2005, we had approximately $349
million and $328 million of non-consolidated assets and liabilities, respectively, associated with Singer special-
purpose vehicles, representing a net investment of $21.0 million at December 31, 2005. At December 31, 2004,
we had approximately $413 million and $392 million of non-consolidated assets and liabilities, respectively,
associated with Singer special-purpose vehicles, representing a net investment of $20.8 million at December 31,
2004. In May 2003, we restructured and combined approximately $80 million of assets of one of the special-
purpose vehicles into another special-purpose vehicle. This transaction did not have a significant effect on our
operations.

Guarantees

We account for guarantees under FIN No. 45, “Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for
Guarantees, including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others.” This Interpretation elaborates on the
disclosures to be made by a guarantor in its interim and annual financial statements about its obligations under
certain guarantees that it has issued. It also clarifies that a guarantor is required to recognize, at the inception of a
guarantee, a liability for the fair value of the obligation undertaken in issuing the guarantee. This Interpretation
also incorporates, without change, the guidance in FASB Interpretation No. 34, “Disclosure of Indirect
Guaranties of Indebtedness of Others,” which was superseded. The Interpretation does not apply to the financial
guaranty insurance policies that we issue. However, we have guaranteed the performance of an affiliate under a
$25 million revolving credit facility that expires in December 2006. There have been no drawdowns on this
facility.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In late 2004, the FASB ratified EITF Issue 04-08 “The Effects of Contingently Convertible Instruments on
Diluted Earnings per Share,” which requires that, effective beginning with reporting periods after December 15,
2004, contingently convertible debt be included in calculating diluted earnings per share regardless of whether
the contingent feature has been met. For the year ended 2005, diluted earnings per share included a $0.13 per
share decrease, related to shares that were subject to issuance upon conversion of our contingently convertible
debt, which was redeemed in its entirety on August 1, 2005. Our 2004 and 2003 earnings per share amounts
included a $0.18 and $0.13 per share decrease, respectively.

In May 2005, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standard No. 154, “Accounting Changes
and Error Corrections,” (“SFAS No. 154”) a replacement for APB Opinion No. 20 and FASB Statement No. 3.
SFAS No. 154 changes the requirements for the accounting and reporting of a change in accounting principle and
applies to all voluntary changes in accounting principles, as well as to changes required by an accounting
pronouncement that does not include specific transition provisions. SFAS No. 154 is effective for accounting
changes and corrections of errors made in fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2005. Management is not
contemplating making any significant changes in accounting principles nor is management aware of any pending
accounting pronouncements that would significantly change existing accounting policies other than the possible
change in accounting for financial guaranty loss reserves as described above in this Note 2.

In February 2006, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standard No. 155, “Accounting for
Certain Hybrid Financial Instruments” (“SFAS No. 1557), an amendment of FASB Statements No. 133 and 140.
SFAS No. 155 (i) permits fair value remeasurement for any hybrid financial instrument that contains an
embedded derivative that otherwise would require bifurcation, (ii) clarifies which interest-only strips and
principal-only strips are not subject to the requirements of FASB Statement No. 133, (iii) establishes a
requirement to evaluate interests in securitized financial assets to identify interests that are freestanding
derivatives or that are hybrid financial instruments that contain an embedded derivative requiring bifurcation,
(iv) clarifies that concentrations of credit risk in the form of subordination are not embedded derivatives, and
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(v) amends FASB Statement No. 140 to eliminate the exemption from applying the requirements of FASB
Statements No. 133 on a qualifying special-purpose entity from holding a derivative financial instrument that
pertains to a beneficial interest other than another derivative financial instrument. SFAS No. 155 is effective for
all financial instruments acquired or issued after the beginning of an entity’s first fiscal year that begins after
September 15, 2006. Management has not yet determined the impact, if any, that will result from the adoption of
SFAS No. 155.

Reclassifications

Certain prior period balances have been reclassified to conform to the current period presentation. The
December 31, 2005 consolidated statement of cash flows presentation includes, changes from the December 31,
2004 presentation that are consistent with clarification of GAAP rules regarding presentation in the statement of
cash flows. In particular, the December 31, 2004 and 2003 presentation of the cash flows from investing
activities section of the consolidated statements of cash flows has been conformed to the current period
presentation by reclassifying distributions from equity affiliates of $82.3 million and $27.5 million for 2004 and
2003, respectively, to the cash flows from operating activities section. In addition, the December 31, 2004 and
2003 presentation of the cash flows from operating activities section of the consolidated statements of cash flows
has been conformed to the current period presentation by reclassifying changes from other assets of $0.4 million
in 2004 to cash flows from the effect of exchange rate changes on cash. These reclassifications affect the
presentation of the consolidated statements of cash flows, but do not affect the change in cash balance for either
of the years.

3. Investments

Fixed-maturity and equity investments at December 31, 2005 and 2004 consisted of (in thousands):

December 31, 2005

Gross Gross
Amortized Fair Unrealized Unrealized
Cost Value Gains Losses

Fixed maturities held to maturity:
Bonds and notes:
State and municipal obligations ................ $ 125935 § 130227 $§ 4305 § 13

$ 125935 $ 130,227 § 4305 $ 13

Fixed maturities available for sale:
Bonds and notes:

U.S. government securities .................... $ 78214 $ 79,705 $ 1,866 $ 375

U.S. government-sponsored enterprises .......... 33,764 33,119 — 645

State and municipal obligations ................ 3,433,801 3,542,090 113,878 5,679
COrporate . ....cviiet i 101,709 104,335 3,451 825
Convertible seCuritieS . ...........viiiner e 308,331 314,692 10,698 4,337
Asset-backed securities .. ........ . .. . 268,698 263,615 538 5,621
Private placements . ... .......... ..t i 59,357 61,143 2,532 746
Redeemable preferred stock ............ ... ... ... . ... 106,192 104,539 3,527 5,180
Foreign governments .. ..ot 103,633 105,222 1,928 339
$4,493789 $4,608,460 $138,418 $23,747

Equity securities available forsale . ..................... $ 258,768 $ 325,117 $ 70,597 §$ 4,248
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Fixed maturities held to maturity:
Bonds and notes:

State and municipal obligations . ................

Fixed maturities available for sale:
Bonds and notes:

U.S. government securities ....................
U.S. government-sponsored enterprises ..........
State and municipal obligations .. ...............
COPOTALE . ...ttt e
Convertible securities ............. .. .. ..
Asset-backed securities . ... ... ... oo
Private placements ......... ... .. i
Redeemable preferred stock .......... ... .. ... ..
Foreign OVEernments . ..............oouuiinannnneunnn.

Equity securities available forsale ......................

December 31, 2004

Gross Gross
Amortized Fair Unrealized Unrealized
Cost Value Gains Losses
$ 178,894 § 188,063 $ 9,177
$ 178,894 $ 188,063 $ 9,177 $ 8
$ 62273 $ 63,875 $ 1,854 § 252
52,533 52,378 161 316
3,181,834 3,329,041 150,155 2,948
109,664 115,553 6,077 188
308,349 318,334 12,430 2,445
216,844 217,060 1,500 1,284
63,985 64,580 1,982 1,387
106,149 115,521 9,691 319
127,265 130,024 2,839 80
$4,228,896 $4,406,366 $186,689  $9,219
$ 250,558 $ 335495 $ 84937 $§ —

The contractual maturities of fixed-maturity investments are as follows (in thousands):

December 31, 2005
Amortized

Cost Fair Value
Fixed maturities held to maturity:
2000 e e e $ 6,710 § 6,785
20072000 ... e 53,873 55,818
20102005 e e 25,688 26,528
2016 and thereafter . . ... .. i e 39,664 41,096

Fixed maturities available for sale:

$ 125935 § 130,227

2006 e $ 84888 $ 85,516
20072010 o e e e 355,099 361,431
20112005 e 778,048 798,724
2016 and thereafter . . ... it e e 2,900,864 2,994,635
Asset-backed SECUMIES . . . vttt e e et e e 268,698 263,615
Redeemable preferred Stock . ... .o 106,192 104,539

Net investment income consisted of (in thousands):

Investment income:

Fixed maturities .. .. ... i i
Equity securities .......... ...
Short-term INVeStMENtS . .. ...ttt it et ettt e e e
OtheT . e e e

Gross INVeSIMENT INCOME L. o\ttt ettt ettt et ie et
Investment eXpenses . .......... i e

Net Investment INCOMIE . .. .ttt it i e e e

101

$4,493,789  $4,608,460

Year Ended December 31
2005 2004 2003

$198,801 $201,662 $187,005
3,028 4,029 2,565
12,711 3,357 2,574
173 740 1,197

$218,006 $209,788 $193,341
(6,291) (5,439) (7,178)

$208,422 $204,349 $186,163




Net gains on sales of investments consisted of (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31
2005 2004 2003

Gains on sales and redemptions of fixed-maturity investments available for

SAlE L $ 7,901 $ 29,492 $ 26,559
Losses on sales and redemptions of fixed-maturity investments available for

SAlE e (5,857) (4,672) (4,575)
Gains on redemptions of fixed-maturity investments held to maturity ......... 382 868 970
Losses on redemptions of fixed-maturity investments held to maturity ........ (8) (38) (284)
Gains on sales of equity securities available forsale ...................... 8,291 33,179 11,703
Losses on sales of equity securities available forsale................... ... (225) (6,070) (12,608)
Gains on sales of other invested assets ............. ..., 1,009 2,156 204
Losses on sales of other invested assets . ........... ...t nnn.... (378) — (1,397)
Gains on sales of trading securities ... ......... ... . i 29,397 4,417 8,038
Losses on sales of trading securities ............. ... .. . i, (7,768) (10,371)  (9,968)
Gains on sales of short-term investments . ...............vvireninrnnn.. — — 5
Losses on sales of short-term investments . ....................c.couin... 2) O —
Capital gains on equity SECUTILIES ... ...ttt 6,565 3,083 —
Loss on sale/write-down of equity in affiliates (See Note4) ................ (6,403) (1,244) (1,260)
Foreign currency translation gains on investments . ................c....... 3,734 — —
Net gains on Sales ... .. ... it $36,638 $50,799 § 17,387

For the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, we did not sell any fixed-maturity investments held
to maturity.

Net change in unrealized appreciation (depreciation) on investments consisted of (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31
2005 2004 2003

Fixed maturities held tomaturity .. ......... ..., $ 4,877) $ (7,895) $ (6,578)
Fixed maturities available forsale ........ ... ... .. ... . ... $(62,800) $ 3,484 $ 57,068
Deferred tax benefit (provision) . ......... ... ... . i 21,980 (1,219) (19,974)

$(40,820) $ 2,265 $ 37,094
Equity securities available forsale . ........... ... .. $(18,588) $ 48,583 $ 64,602
Deferred tax benefit (provision) . .. ... ... .. ... . 6,506 (17,004) (22,611)

$(12,082) $ 31,579 $ 41,991
Other (1) ..o $ 138 $ 2,007 $ (2,331

(1) Includes mark-to-market adjustments of affiliates not included in our consolidated balance sheets.
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The following table shows the gross unrealized losses and fair value of our investments with unrealized
losses that are not deemed to be other-than-temporarily impaired (in thousands), aggregated by investment
category and length of time that individual securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss position, at
December 31, 2005.

Less Than 12 Months 12 Months or Greater Total

Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
Description of Securities Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
U.S. government securities ......... $ 40321 $ 310 $ 2992 $§ 65 $ 43313 % 375
U.S. government-sponsored

enterprises . ................... 29,539 458 3,586 187 33,125 645

State and municipal obligations . .... 518,721 5,172 21,403 520 540,124 5,692
Corporate bonds and notes . ........ 34,637 668 6,314 157 40,951 825
Asset — backed securities ... ........ 148,185 2,588 69,563 3,033 217,748 5,621
Private placements . ............... 15,333 575 4,007 171 19,340 746
Foreign governments .............. 38,897 339 — — 38,897 339
Redeemable preferred stock ........ 66,571 5,180 — — 66,571 5,180
Convertible securities . ............ 120,595 4,337 — — 120,595 4,337
Equity securities . ................ 22,326 4,248 — — 2,326 4,248
Total ............. ... ... ... .... $1,035,125 $23,875 $107,865 $4,133  $1,142,990 $28,008

U.S. government securities

The unrealized losses of 12 months or greater duration as of December 31, 2005 on our investments in U.S.
Treasury obligations were caused by interest rate increases. During 2005, the Federal Reserve (the “Fed”) raised
the federal funds rates eight times for a total of 200 basis points. A majority of the securities remained at an
unrealized loss position due to the rate increases. The contractual terms of these investments do not permit the
issuer to settle the securities at a price less than the amortized cost of the investment. Because we have the ability
and intent to hold these investments until a recovery of fair value, which may be maturity, we do not consider
these investments to be other-than-temporarily impaired at December 31, 2005.

U.S. government-sponsored enterprises

The unrealized losses of 12 months or greater duration as of December 31, 2005 on our investment in U.S.
agency mortgage-backed securities were also caused by interest rate increases. The contractual cash flows of
these investments are guaranteed by an agency of the U.S. government. Accordingly, it is expected that the
securities would not be settled at a price less than the amortized cost of our investment. Because the decline in
market value is attributable to changes in interest rates and not credit quality, and because we have the ability and
intent to hold these investments until a recovery of fair value, which may be maturity, we do not consider these
investments to be other-than-temporarily impaired at December 31, 2005.

State and municipal obligations

The unrealized losses of 12 months or greater duration as of December 31, 2005 on our investments in tax-
exempt state and municipal securities were caused by interest rate increases. During 2005, the taxable yield curve
for 3-month U.S. Treasury bonds and 10-year U.S. Treasury notes increased to 1.9% and 0.15%, respectively,
and the tax-exempt municipal bond yield curve for 1-year municipal bonds and 10-year municipal bonds
increased to 1.15% and 0.25, respectively. Our securities in this category have maturities less than 10 years,
where yield curve increases were most pronounced. We believe that credit quality did not impact security pricing
due to the relative high quality of the holdings (i.e., the majority of the securities were either insured, pre-
refunded or escrowed to maturity). Because we have the ability and intent to hold these investments until a
recovery of fair value, which may be maturity, we do not consider these investments to be other-than-temporarily
impaired at December 31, 2005.
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Corporate bonds and notes

The unrealized losses of 12 months or greater duration as of December 31, 2005 on the majority of the
securities in this category were caused by market interest rate movement. A majority of the securities remained at
an unrealized loss position due to these rate increases. Unrealized losses for the remaining securities in this
category are attributable to changes in business operations, resulting in widened credit spreads from
December 31, 2004 to December 31, 2005. Because we have the ability and intent to hold these investments until
a recovery of fair value, which may be maturity, we do not consider these investments to be other-than-
temporarily impaired at December 31, 2005.

Assetr-backed securities

The unrealized losses of 12 months or greater duration as of December 31, 2005 on the securities in this
category were casued by market interest rate movement. A majority of the securities remained at an unrealized
loss position due to the rate increases. Because we have the ability and intent to hold these investments until a
recovery of fair value, which may be maturity, we do not consider the investment in these securities to be other-
than-temporarily impaired at December 31, 2005.

Private placements

The unrealized losses of 12 months or greater duration as of December 31, 2005 on the majority of the
securities in this category were caused by market interest rate movement. A majority of the securities remained at
an unrealized loss position due to the rate increases. Because we have the ability and intent to hold these
investments until a recovery of fair value, which may be maturity, we do not consider the investment in these
securities to be other-than-temporarily impaired at December 31, 2005.

For all investment categories, unrealized losses of less than 12 months in duration are generally attributable
to interest rate movements or changes in foreign currency exchange rates. All securities are individually
evaluated in accordance with our impairment recognition policy covering various time and price decline
scenarios. Because we have the ability and intent to hold these investments until a recovery of fair value, which
may be maturity, we do not consider the investment in these securities to be other-than-temporarily impaired at
December 31, 2005.

The following table shows the gross unrealized losses and fair value of our investments with unrealized
losses that are not deemed to be other-than-temporarily impaired (in thousands), aggregated by investment
category and length of time that individual securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss position, at
December 31, 2004.

Less Than 12 Months 12 Months or Greater Total
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
Description of Securities Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
U.S. government securities ............. $ 18414 $ 100 $ 4601 $ 152 $ 23015 $ 252
U.S. government-sponsored enterprises . . . 41,148 316 — — 41,148 316
State and municipal obligations ......... 208,710 2,290 52,566 666 261,276 2,956
Corporate bonds and notes . ............ 13,564 188 — —_ 13,564 188
Asset — backed securities . .............. 82,456 1,004 17,939 280 100,395 1,284
Private placements . ................... 10,139 1,279 2,693 108 12,832 1,387
Foreign governments .. ................ 21,876 80 — — 21,876 80
Redeemable preferred stock ............ 10,557 319 — — 10,557 319
Convertible securities . ................ 60,685 2,230 9,762 215 70,447 2,445
Total ... .. ... $467,549 $7,806 $87,561  $1.421 $555,110 $9,227

U.S. government securities

The unrealized losses of 12 months or greater duration as of December 31, 2004 on our investments in U.S.
Treasury obligations and direct obligations of U.S. government agencies were caused by interest rate increases.

104




During 2004, the Fed raised the federal funds rates five times for a total of 125 basis points. A majority of
securities in this category remained in an unrealized loss position due to the interest rate increases. Because we
had the ability and intent to hold these investments until a recovery of fair value, which may be maturity, we did
not consider these investments to be other-than-temporarily impaired at December 31, 2004.

U.S. government-sponsored enterprises

The unrealized losses of 12 months or greater duration as of December 31, 2004 on our investment in U.S.
agency mortgage-backed securities were caused by interest rate increases. The contractual cash flows of these
investments were guaranteed by an agency of the U.S. government. Accordingly, we expected that the securities
would not be settled at a price less than the amortized cost of our investment. Because the decline in market
value was attributable to changes in interest rates and not credit quality, and because we had the ability and intent
to hold these investments until a recovery of fair value, which may be maturity, we did not consider these
investments to be other-than-temporarily impaired at December 31, 2004.

State and municipal obligations

The unrealized losses of 12 months or greater duration as of December 31, 2004 on our investments in tax-
exempt state and municipal securities were caused by interest rate increases. During 2004, the taxable yield curve
movements for 3-month U.S. treasury bills and 10-year U.S. treasury bonds ranged from an increase of 1.29% to
a decrease of 0.03% and the tax-exempt yield curve movements for 1-year municipal bonds and 10-year
municipal bonds ranged from an increase of 0.9% to a increase of 0.02%. Our bonds in this category reflected
maturities within those maturity ranges and experienced market prices marginally below cost. We believed that
credit quality did not impact security pricing due to the relative high quality of the holdings (i.e., the majority of
the securities were either AAA/Aaa rated bonds, insured, partially pre-refunded or partially escrowed to
maturity). Because we had the ability and intent to hold these investments until a recovery of fair value, which

may be maturity, we did not consider these investments to be other-than-temporarily impaired at December 31,
2004.

Corporate bonds and notes

At December 31, 2004, for unrealized losses of 12 months or greater duration we had not identified any
securities where we believed the issuer would not continue to meet their contractual obligation with respect to
interest and principal payments. Because we had the ability and intent to hold these investments until a recovery
of fair value, which may be maturity, we did not consider the investment in these securities to be other-than-
temporarily impaired at December 31, 2004. '

Asset-backed securities

At December 31, 2004, for unrealized losses of 12 months or greater duration we had not identified any
securities where we believed the issuer would not continue to meet their contractual obligation with respect to
interest and principal payments. Because we had the ability and intent to hold these investments until a recovery
of fair value, which may be maturity, we did not consider the investment in these securities to be other-than-
temporarily impaired at December 31, 2004.

Private placements

At December 31, 2004, for unrealized losses of 12 months or greater duration we had not identified any
securities where we believed the issuer would not continue to meet their contractual obligation with respect to
interest and principal payments. Because we had the ability and intent to hold these investments until a recovery
of fair value, which may be maturity, we did not consider the investment in these securities to be other-than-
temporarily impaired at December 31, 2004.
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Convertible securities

At December 31, 2004, for unrealized losses of 12 months or greater duration we had not identified any
securities where we believed the issuer would not continue to meet their contractual obligation with respect to
interest and principal payments. Because we had the ability and intent to hold these investments until a recovery
of fair value, which may be maturity, we did not consider the investment in these securities to be other-than-
temporarily impaired at December 31, 2004.

For all investment categories, unrealized losses of less than 12 months in duration were generally
attributable to interest rate movements or changes in foreign currency exchange rates. All securities were
evaluated in accordance with our impairment recognition policy covering various time and price decline
scenarios. Because we had the ability and intent to hold these investments until a recovery of fair value, which
may be maturity, we did not consider the investment in these securities to be other-than-temporarily impaired at
December 31, 2004.

Of the 101 securities that have been in an unrealized loss position for more than 12 months at December 31,
2005, none has an unrealized loss of more than 20% of that security’s amortized cost and, in our judgment, none
of the losses required recognition as other-than-temporary.

The contractual maturity of securities in an unrealized loss position at December 31, 2005 was as follows:
Fair Value Amortized Cost Unrealized Loss

(In millions)

2006 . e § 412 $ 414 $ 02
20072010 .. oo 132.1 133.5 14
20102005 L 124.6 126.8 2.2
2016 and later . ... ... 538.5 547.7 9.2
Asset-backed securities . ...... . ... 217.7 2233 5.6
Redeemable preferred stock ......... ... ... ... i, 66.6 71.8 5.2
Equity Securities . ....... ..ttt 223 26.5 42

Total . o $1,143.0 $1,171.0 $28.0

Securities on deposit with various state insurance commissioners amounted to $12.8 million at
December 31, 2005 and $15.9 million at December 31, 2004. We also had $53.5 million on deposit at
December 31, 2005 and $52.2 million at December 31, 2004, for the benefit of reinsurers.

4. Investment in Affiliates

We have a 46.0% equity interest in C-BASS and a 34.58% equity interest in Sherman. See Note 2 for a
discussion of recent developments with respect to our interest in Sherman. During 2005, we recorded a complete
write-down of our investment in SBF Participacoes Ltda., recording a $3.2 million loss. We account for our
investment in affiliates in accordance with the equity method of accounting, because we lack control of these
affiliates and since the other shareholders have substantial participating rights.

The following table shows the components that make up the investment in affiliates balance:
Year Ended December 31

2005 2004
(In thousands)
C-BASS L $364,364 $290,073
ShEImMIaAN . . .o 81,753 101,492
Other 34 1,460
Lol .o e e $446,151 $393,025

In February 2006, additional dividends of $3.7 million and $60.5 million were received from C-BASS and
Sherman, respectively.
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The following tables show selected financial information for C-BASS and Sherman and details of our

investment in C-BASS and Sherman.

Investment in Affiliates — Selected Information:
C-BASS

Balance, beginning of period .................
Share of net income forperiod ................
Dividends received .. .......... ... ...... ...

Balance, end of period ........... ... . ... ..

Balance, beginning of period .................
Share of net income for period . ...............
Other comprehensive income .. ...............
Sale of ownership interest ...................
Dividends received .................. ... ...
Warrant repurchase . . ........... . ... L

Balance,end of period .................. . ...

Portfolio Information:

Servicing portfolio ........... ... ... . ...
Totalassefs .......coovtiii i

Total assets .. ...t i e

Summary Income Statement:

Income

Gain on securitization . .. .................. ..
Transaction gains ................veueue. ...
Servicing and subservicing fees ...............
Net interest inCome . ... ....ovvvneenann.n..
Otherincome ............c.ooitiieeannn...

Total revenues ..............oiieeuenn. ...

Expenses

Compensation and benefits ..................
Total otherexpenses . .......................

Total expenses .............civieninnin..

NetinCome . ...t

Sherman
Income

Revenues from receivable portfolios — net of amortization . ................ ... ....

Otherrevenues . .............iuureenenanan.

Total revenues . ..............ccvinivinnn.

Expenses

Operating and servicing eXpenses .............
Interest ..... .. ...
Provision for loan and receivable portfolio losses (1)
Other ... . .

Total expenses ........... ... ...

NetinCome ... ovurt i it i

Year Ended December 31

2005

2004

(In thousands)

$ 290073 § 226710
107,791 95,863
33,500 32,500

$ 364364 § 290,073

$ 101492 $ 65979
110,261 83,265

1,683 2,048
(18,947) —
110,661 49,800
(2,075) —

$ 81,753 $ 101,492

$44,830,000 $35,610,000

7,694,294

4,008,955

$ 979215 § 484,193

Year Ended December 31

2005 2004 2003
(In thousands)
$ 13,406 $ 54642 § 60,564
127,491 89,870 17,315
250,838 160,397 125,084
190,716 150,082 126,117
42,474 24,129 27,748
624,925 479,120 356,828
176,590 143,480 117,099
207,688 127,565 95,876
384,278 271,045 212,975
$ 240,647 $ 208,075 $ 143,853
$ 562,690 $ 458,368 $ 259,423
267,833 59,478 34,165
830,523 517.346 293,588
403,581 300,329 193,683
23,884 14,444 15,242
106,298 (2,339) 2,500
9,151 4273 11,254
542914 317,207 222,679
$ 287,609 $ 200639 $ 70,909

(1) The increase in Sherman’s provision for loan and receivable portfolio losses relates to the acquisition of CreditOne in March,
2005, which provides Sherman with the ability to originate subprime credit card receivables.
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5. Reinsurance

We utilize reinsurance as a risk management tool, to reduce net risk in force to meet regulatory
risk-to-capital requirements and, with respect to mortgage insurance, to comply with the insurance regulations of
states that require us to limit our coverage percentage of any single risk to 25%. Although the use of reinsurance
does not discharge an insurer from its primary liability to the insured, the reinsuring company assumes the related
liability. Included in other assets are unearned premiums (prepaid reinsurance) of $3.0 million and $3.6 million at
December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

The effect of reinsurance on net premiums written and earned is as follows:

Year Ended December 31
2005 2004 2003
(In thousands)

Net premiums written:

DIreCt . . oot $1,117,370 $1,100,297 $ 989,534
ASSUMEd . ..o e 80,227 68,677 197,653
Ceded .. ..o (96,910) (86,487) (76,710)
Net premiums WIIHEI . ... oottt e e en e $1,100,687 $1,082,487 $1,110,477
Net premiums earned:
DHTECE . v vt e e $1,015,909 $1,008,062 $ 929,370
Assumed ... 102,203 111,694 148,713
Ceded . ... (99,442) (90,272) (69,900)
Net premiums earned .. ....... ..ottt $1,018,670 $1,029,484 $1,008,183

The 2005, 2004 and 2003 amounts in the preceding table included ($294,154), ($2,815,000) and
($1,327,000), respectively, for premiums written and ($242,000), ($2,722,000) and ($1,181,000), respectively,
for premiums earned, for reinsurance ceded under variable quota-share treaties entered into in 1997, 1996, 1995
and 1994 covering the books of business originated by Radian Guaranty in those years. Commissions under these
treaties were $289,000, $358,000 and $1,251,000 for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003,
respectively. We recovered variable quota-share losses under these treaties of $657,000, $165,000, and $528,000
in 2005, 2004, and 2003, respectively. Due to the rapid run-off of the underlying business as a result of lower
persistency levels, we had recovered amounts under the variable quota share relief provisions of the treaty in
excess of the underwriting-year coverage premiums during 2005, 2004 and 2003, as reflected in the negative
ceded premiums written and earned during those years.

Provisional losses recoverable were $25.4 million for 2005 and $38.3 million for 2004, and represented
amounts due under variable quota-share treaties entered into in 1997, 1996 and 1995, covering the books of
business originated by Radian Guaranty in those years. The term of each treaty is 10 years and is non-cancelable
by either party except under certain conditions. Under the terms of the treaties, Radian Guaranty cedes premiums
to the reinsurer based on 15% of the premium received on the covered business. Radian Guaranty is entitled to
receive a commission ranging from 30% to 32% of the premium paid under the treaty provided that certain loss
rates are not exceeded. In return for the payment of the ceded premium, Radian Guaranty receives variable quota-
share loss relief at levels ranging from 7.5% to 15.0% based upon the loss ratio on the covered business. The
treaties also include underwriting-year excess coverage that entitles Radian Guaranty to receive 8% of the
premium written on the covered business under each treaty at the end of the fourth, seventh and tenth years to the
extent that this amount is greater than the total amount previously received under the variable quota-share
coverage provision of the treaty. Premiums are payable to the reinsurer on a quarterly basis net of commissions
due and any losses calculated under the variable quota-share coverage.
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At December 31, 2005, the breakdown of the $25.4 million reinsurance recoverable was as follows (in
thousands):

Book Year
1996 1997 Total
4t Quarter 2005 Quota-share Losses Recoverable .. ................... $ 76 $ 207 § 283
Underwriting-year Excess Coverage .. .......... . ... 13,6347 11,7254  25,360.1
Total Provisional Loss Recoverable . ......... ... ... ... . ... .. ...... $13,6423 $11,746.1 $25,388.4

At December 31, 2004, the breakdown of the $38.3 million reinsurance recoverable was as follows (in
thousands):

Book Year
1995 1996 1997 Total
4t Quarter 2004 Quota-share Losses Recoverable . ........ .. 3 161 % 279 § 669 $ 1109
Underwriting-year Excess Coverage . ..................... 13,198.2 12,7923 12,2106  38,201.1
Total Provisional Loss Recoverable ...................... $13,2143 $12,8202 $12,277.5 $38,312.0

We believe that the reinsurance recoverable is collectible because the counterparty to the reinsurance
agreement is a highly rated, solvent insurance company. During 2005, we received reimbursement from the
reinsurer for the amount due related to quota-share losses recoverable. In addition, the reinsurer reimbursed us
for underwriting-year excess of loss coverage due under the tenth year of the 1995 treaty. The 1997 amount due
under the underwriting-year excess coverage provision of the treaties will be paid out by the beginning of 2007,
to the extent the amounts due under this provision have not yet been received by us under the quota-share relief
provision of the treaties. In January 2006, we received reimbursement from the reinsurer of $13.6 million for the
underwriting-year excess of loss coverage for book year 1996.

We account for this reinsurance coverage under guidance provided in EITF 93-6, “Accounting for Multiple-
Year Retrospectively Rated Contracts by Ceding and Assuming Enterprises.” Under EITF 93-6, we recognize an
asset for amounts due from the reinsurer based on experience to date under the contract.

Radian Guaranty has also entered into captive reinsurance arrangements with certain customers. The
arrangements are typically structured on an excess-layer basis with insured loans grouped by loan origination
year. Radian Guaranty retains the first layer of risk on a particular bock of business, the captive reinsurer
assumes the next layer, and Radian Guaranty assumes all losses above that point. The captive reinsurers are
typically required to maintain minimum capitalization equal to 10% of the risk assumed. Risk ceded under
captive reinsurance arrangements at December 31, 2005, and December 31, 2004, was $2.0 billion and $1.8
billion, respectively. For the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, Radian Guaranty had ceded
premiums written of $89.6 million, $88.4 million and $73.4 million, respectively, and ceded premiums earned of
$90.7 million, $86.6 million and $72.8 million, respectively, under these various captive reinsurance
arrangements.

Effective December 31, 2004, Radian Guaranty canceled its excess of loss reinsurance program that was in
a run-off period scheduled to expire in 2007. Under this program, the reinsurer was responsible for 100% of
Radian Guaranty’s covered losses (subject to an annual and aggregate limit) in excess of an annual retention
limit. Premiums were paid to the reinsurer on a quarterly basis, net of any losses due to Radian Guaranty. This
treaty was accounted for under Statements of Position 98-7, “Deposit Accounting: Accounting for Insurance and
Reinsurance Contracts That Do Not Transfer Insurance Risk™ (“SOP 98-7) and therefore, ($10.7) million and
$5.6 million were included in incurred losses during 2004 and 2003, respectively, relating to the excess of loss
reinsurance program. In connection with the cancellation of the policy in 2004, $17.1 million of liabilities for
withheld funds were released.
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In 2004, we developed an approach for reinsuring our non-prime risk. The arrangement, which we refer to
as “Smart Home,” effectively transfers risk from our portfolio to investors in the capital markets. Each
transaction begins with the formation of an unaffiliated, offshore reinsurance company. We then enter into an
agreement with the Smart Home reinsurer pursuant to which we agree to cede to the reinsurer a portion of the
risk (and premium) associated with a portfolio of non-prime residential mortgage loans insured by us. The Smart
Home reinsurer is funded in the capital markets through the issuance to investors of a series of separate classes of
credit-linked notes. Each class relates to the loss coverage levels on the reinsured portfolio and is assigned a
rating by one or more of the three major rating agencies. We typically retain the risk associated with the first-loss
coverage levels, and we may retain or sell, in a separate risk transfer agreement, the risk associated with the
AAA-rated or most remote coverage level. Holders of the Smart Home credit-linked notes bear the risk of loss
from losses paid to us under the reinsurance agreement. The Smart Home reinsurer invests the proceeds of the
notes in high-quality short-term investments approved by the rating agencies. Income earned on those
investments and a portion of the reinsurance premiums that we pay are applied to pay interest on the notes as
well as certain of the Smart Home reinsurer’s expenses. The rate of principal amortization of the credit-linked
notes approximates the rate of principal amortization of the underlying mortgages.

Since August of 2004, we have completed three “Smart Home” arrangements. Details of these transactions
are as follows:

Risk Ceded to Notes Sold to
Pool of Non-prime Mortgages Reinsurer Investors
Date of Transaction (Par Value) (Par Value) (Principal Amount)
December 2005 (1) ........... ... ... ... ... $6.27 billion $ 1.69 billion $304.5 million
February 2005 .. ... ......... ... ... ... .... $1.68 billion $495.6 million  $ 98.5 million
August2004 .. .. $882 million $332.1 million  $ 86.1 million

(1) $172.9 million in principal amount of credit-linked notes was issued in December 2005. An additional
$131.6 million in principal amount was issued in February 2006.

Premiums written (ceded) in 2005 and 2004 include $3.5 million and $1.0 million, respectively, related to
the Smart Home transactions. There were no ceded losses in 2005 or 2004 as a result of the Smart Home
transactions.

6. Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses

As described in Note 2, we establish reserves to provide for the estimated losses from claims and the
estimated costs of settling claims on defaults (or delinquencies) reported and defaults that have occurred but have
not been reported.

The default and claim cycle on mortgage loans that we cover begins with the receipt from the lender of
notification of a default on an insured loan. The master policy with each lender requires the lender to inform us
of an uncured default on a mortgage loan within 75 days of the default. The incidence of default is influenced by
a number of factors, including change in the borrower’s income, unemployment, divorce and illness, the level of
interest rates, and general economic factors and borrower creditworthiness. Defaults that are not cured result in
claims to us. In our mortgage insurance business, we generally require the insured lender to complete foreclosure
proceedings and obtain title to the property before submitting a claim.

Different regions of the country experience different default rates due to varying economic conditions and
each state has different rules regarding the foreclosure process. These rules can impact the amount of time it
takes for a default to reach foreclosure, so we have developed a reserving methodology that takes these different
time periods into account in calculating the reserve.

When a specific loan initially defauits, it is uncertain whether the default will result in a claim. Reserves are
increased in stages, as the foreclosure progresses, to approximate the estimated total loss for each particular
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default. At the time of title transfer, we have approximately 100% of the estimated total loss reserved. At any
time during the foreclosure process, until the lender takes title to the property, the borrower may cure the default,
at which time the reserve for that loan is removed. This curing process causes an appearance of a reduction in
reserves from prior years if the reduction in reserves from cures is greater than the additional reserves for those
loans that are nearing foreclosure or that have become claims.

In our financial guaranty business, each policy is monitored by us, or in our reinsurance business, the
primary insurers, over the life of the policy. When the policy’s performance deteriorates below underwriting
expectations, or if the circumstances dictate, the related transaction is more actively monitored. This may include
communication with the borrower, site inspection or the engagement of a third-party consultant. If the transaction
continues to deteriorate to a point where a default is reasonably probable, based on all the facts and
circumstances then known and estimable, we will establish a specific loss reserve that represents the present
value of the amount of the claim that we expect that we will ultimately have to pay. Our financial guaranty
business conducts a regular surveillance committee meeting where experts in the risk management and
surveillance area provide input before any case reserves are determined, and the surveillance team actively
monitors any problem deals and notifies the committee if a change in the loss reserve is necessary. We establish a
reserve based on the present value of the estimated loss, including expenses associated with the settlement of the
loss that we expect that it will ultimately have to pay.

In 2003, we provided approximately $111.0 million of reserves on a manufactured housing transaction
originated by Conseco Finance Corp. This transaction had been performing within expectations until the
beginning of 2003. The bankruptcy of Conseco Finance Corp. was a factor that led to deterioration in the
transaction’s performance. When we performed our year-end review, we decided it was necessary to establish
reserves for the entire exposure. The current reserve at December 31, 2003, of $50.8 million represents the total
par exposure on this transaction less claims paid in 2004 and 2005. Claims are expected to be paid out over the
next several years.

The following tables present information relating to reserves, and the liability for unpaid claims and related
expenses (in thousands):

2005 2004 2003

Mortgage Insurance
Balance atJanuary 1 ... ... .. . $559,632 $513,473 $484,705
Add losses and LAE incurred in respect of default notices received in:

CUITENE YEAL . . ottt e e e et e e 445,935 386,898 329,014

Prior Years . ... ...t (86,819) 14,038  (19,742)
Total Incurred . ... ... e 359,116 400936 309,272
Deduct losses and LAE paid in respect of default notices received in:

CUITENT YEAT . o ittt et et et e et e 47,066 45,535 39,356

Prioryears . ... ... 275,472 309,242 241,148
Total paid ... ... 322,538 354777 280,504

Balance at December 31 . ... $596,210 $559,632 $513,473
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The following table shows our mortgage insurance reserves by category:

Year Ended December 31

2005 2004 2003
Primary Insurance
Prime ....... ... $179,152  $165,936  $153,398
Al-A 137,430 160,815 148,662
Aminusandbelow............ ... .. ... ... 190,312 147,604 136,450
Poolinsurance ............ ... .. .. ... .. ... 44,135 43023 39,771
Seconds .. ... e 35,876 37,547 35,192
NIMs/Other ....... ..., 9,305 4,707 —

$596,210  $559,632  $513,473

Year Ended December 31
2005 2004 2003

Financial Guaranty
Balance at January 1 ... ... ... . e $241,380 $276,907 $139,872
Less Reinsurance recoverables . ... ... . i e 2,235 2,317 2,173
Balance at January 1, net . ... ... ... 239,145 274,590 137,699
Add losses and LAE incurred related to:

CUITENE YEAT .« . o\ttt et e e e e e e 47,463 50,684 171,058

Prior years . ... . (15,946) 5,214 (4,276)
Total incurred . . ... 31,517 55,898 166,782
Deduct losses and LAE paid related to:

CUITENt YEAT . . .ottt ettt e e 564 4,981 8,387

Prioryears . ... .. 64,119 88,486 21,504
Total paid . ... .. 64,683 93,467 29,891
Foreign exchange adjustment .. ........... ... ... i i (3,886) 2,124 —
Balance at December 31, net . ... o e 202,093 239,145 274,590
Add Reinsurance recoverables . ........... . . . e 2,699 2,235 2,317
Balance at December 31 . ... ... .. . ... $204,792 $241,380 $276,907

As a result of changes in estimates of insured events in prior years, the provision for losses and LAE in our
mortgage insurance business decreased by $86.8 million in 2005 and increased by $14.0 million in 2004 in most
part due to revised estimates of losses on the non-prime business. The provision for losses and LAE in our
mortgage insurance business decreased by $19.7 million in 2003 due mainly to lower than anticipated aggregate
claim payments compared to the amounts previously reserved, despite higher average claims paid per unit in
2003 that resulted from deeper coverage amounts and larger loan balances.

During 2003, our incurred losses and LAE in the financial guaranty insurance business for prior years were
reduced by $16.0 million mainly related to favorable loss development in trade credit. During 2004, we incurred
losses and LAE in the financial guaranty insurance business of $5.2 million related to prior years due to changes
in estimates in the surety business. The reduction in 2003 reserves was a result of favorable developments in the
public finance reinsurance business.

7. Long-Term Debt

On June 7, 2003, we issued $250 million of unsecured senior notes. These notes bear interest at the rate of
5.375% per annum, payable semi-annually on June 15 and December 15, beginning on December 15, 2005. The
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notes mature on June 15, 2015. We have the option to redeem some or all of the notes at any time with not less
than 30 days’ notice at a redemption price equal to the greater of the principal amount of the notes or the sum of
the present values of the remaining scheduled payments of principal and interest on the notes to be redeemed. We
used a portion of the proceeds from the sale of the notes to redeem at par, on August 1, 2005, all $219.3 million
in aggregate principal amount of our outstanding 2.25% Senior Convertible Debentures due 2022. We intend to
use the balance of the proceeds for general corporate purposes.

In February 2003, we issued $250 million of unsecured senior notes. These notes bear interest at the rate of
5.625% per annum, payable semi-annually on February 15 and August 15 beginning August 15, 2003. These
notes mature in February 2013. We have the option to redeem some or all of the notes at any time with not less
than 30 days’ notice. We used a portion of the proceeds from the offering to repay the $75.0 million in principal
outstanding on the 6.75% debentures due March 1, 2003 issued by EFSG. The remainder was used for general
corporate purposes. In April 2004, we entered into interest-rate swap contracts that effectively converted the
interest rate on this fixed-rate debt to a variable rate based on a spread over LIBOR for the remaining term of the
debt. See Note 2.

In January 2002, we issued $220 million of 2.25% senior convertible debentures due 2022. Approximately
$125 million of the proceeds from the offering were used to increase capital at Radian Asset Assurance. The
remainder was used to redeem our preferred stock, to buy back our common stock and for general corporate
purposes. On January 3, 2005, $663,000 in principal amount of the debentures was redeemed by holders, leaving
$219.3 million in principal amount outstanding. We redeemed all $219.3 million in principal amount outstanding
on August 1, 2005.

In May 2001, we issued $250 million of 7.75% debentures due June 1, 2011. Interest on the debentures is
payable semi-annually on June 1 and December 1. We have the option to redeem some or all of the debentures at

any time with not less than 30 days’ notice.

The composition of long-term debt at December 31, 2005 and 2004 was as follows:

December 31
2005 2004
(In thousands)
5.625% Senior Notes due 2013 ... ... ... . $248,503  $248,339
2.25% Senior Convertible Debentures due 2022 ............... — 220,000
7.75% Debentures due June 1,2011 . ........................ 249,388 249,301
5.375% Senior Notes due 2015 .. ... ... ... ... 249,575 —

$747.466  $717,640

On December 16, 2004, we replaced a $250 million Revolving Credit Facility that expired in December
2004 with a $400 million unsecured facility, comprised of a $100 million 364-day facility and a $300 million
five-year facility. On December 15, 2005, we amended the facility to extend the expiration date of the 364-day
facility from December 15, 2003, to December 14, 2006. The five-year facility expires on December 16, 2009.
There were no drawdowns on the expired facility, and we have not drawn down any amounts under the new
facility through December 31, 2005. This facility bears interest on any amounts drawn at a rate dependent on our
credit rating at the time of such borrowing and will be calculated according to, at our option, a base rate or a
Eurocurrency rate, plus an applicable margin and utilization fee. This facility will be used for working capital
and general corporate purposes. There have been no drawdowns on this facility as of December 31, 2005.

8. Preferred Securities

In September 2003, Radian Asset Assurance completed a transaction for $150 million of money market
committed preferred custodial trust securities, pursuant to which it entered into a series of three perpetual put
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options on its own preferred stock to Radian Asset Securities Inc. (“Radian Asset Securities”), our wholly-owned
subsidiary. Radian Asset Securities in turn entered into a series of three perpetual put options on its own
preferred stock (on substantially identical terms to the Radian Asset Assurance preferred stock). The
counterparties to the Radian Asset Securities put options are three trusts established by two major investment
banks. The trusts were created as a vehicle for providing capital support to Radian Asset Assurance by allowing
Radian Asset Assurance to obtain immediate access to additional capital at its sole discretion at any time through
the exercise of one or more of the put options and the corresponding exercise of one or more corresponding
Radian Asset Securities put options. If the Radian Asset Assurance put options were exercised, Radian Asset
Securities, through the Radian Asset Assurance preferred stock thereby acquired, and investors, through their
equity investment in the Radian Asset Securities preferred stock, would have rights to the assets of Radian Asset
Assurance of an equity investor in Radian Asset Assurance. Such rights would be subordinate to policyholders’
claims, as well as to claims of general unsecured creditors of Radian Asset Assurance, but ahead of ours, through
EFSG, as the owner of the common stock of Radian Asset Assurance. If all the Radian Asset Assurance put
options were exercised, Radian Asset Assurance would receive up to $150 million in return for the issuance of its
own perpetual preferred stock, the proceeds of which would be usable for any purpose, including the payment of
claims. Dividend payments on the preferred stock will be cumulative only if Radian Asset Assurance pays
dividends on its common stock. Each trust will be restricted to holding high-quality, short-term commercial
paper investments to ensure that it can meet its obligations under the put option. To fund these investments, each
trust will issue its own auction market perpetual preferred stock. Each trust is currently rated “A” by each of S&P
and Fitch. The initial costs to issue this facility were recorded as a reduction to additional paid-in capital.
Ongoing costs of the put premium are charged to other operating expenses. Ongoing costs in 2005, 2004 and
2003 were $2.0 million, $1.7 million and $0.2 million, respectively.

9, Income Taxes

The components of our consolidated provision for income taxes are as follows (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31
2005 2004 2003
CUITENT INCOME TAXES .« ot vt et ettt e e et e e e i $ 70,329 $ 71,913 $ 70,887
Deferred inCOME tAXES . . . ..ottt e 147,156 135,026 74,691

$217,485 $206,939 $145,578

The reconciliation of taxes computed at the statutory tax rate of 35% for 2005, 2004 and 2003, to the
provision for income taxes is as follows (in thousands):

2005 2004 2003
Provision for income taxes computed at the statutory tax rate ............. $259,119 $253,957 $186,018
Change in tax provision resulting from:
Tax-exempt municipal bond interest and dividends received deduction
(net of prorating) . ... i (48,573) (49,402) (43,890)
Other, Mt ..o 6,939 2,384 3,450
Provision for inCOME taXes . . . .. oottt it e $217,485 $206,939 $145,578
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The significant components of our net deferred tax assets and liabilities are summarized as follows (in
thousands):

December 31

2005 2004
Deterred tax assets:
LOSS TESEIVES .« v o ot et et e e e e e e $ 38,730 S 35,847
AMT credit carryforward . ... ... . e 2,516 7,862
ACCIUEd BXPENSES . o v ittt e 17,836 18,886
Assignment sales iINCOME .. ... ... . 7,756 4.647
Unearned premitims . . . ..o oo v et e e 2,601 439
Other .. 13.383 19,281

$ 82822 § 86,962

Deferred tax liabilities:

Deduction related to purchase of Tax and Loss (“T&L™)bonds . .............. $ (806,114) $(644,471)
Deferred policy acqUiSItion COSES ..o v it vttt e e e (70,798)  (70,8206)
Net unrealized gain on investments (FAS 113) . ... ... ... ... ..., (63,508) (91,955)
Partnership investments ... ... ... .ttt (32,779)  (53,153)
Contingent debt Interest . . .. .. i — (13,813)
Change in fair value of derivative instruments (FAS 133) ........ ... ... ..... 13714y (11,692)
Depreciation . . ... it e (15,146) (7,980)
Foreign currency exchange . ........ .. ... . . . . . (1.118) (6,058)
Other Lo (41,638)  (35,238)
$(1.044,815) $(935,186)

Net deferred tax liability . ... ... $ (961,993) $(848,224)

Cumulative T&L bonds purchased and subsequent redemptions are reflected in the balance of prepaid
federal income taxes on our consolidated balance sheets. During 2005, we purchased approximately $1254
million of T&L bonds, net of redemptions of T&L bonds purchased in prior years. Prepaid federal income taxes
include T&L bonds of $585.5 million and $460.1 million at December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

10. Stockholders’ Equity and Dividend Restrictions

We act principally as a holding company for our insurance subsidiaries and do not have any significant
operations of our own. Dividends from our subsidiaries and permitted payments to us under our tax-and expense-
sharing arrangements with our subsidiaries, along with income from our investment portfolio and dividends from
our affiliates (C-BASS and Sherman) are our principal sources of cash to pay stockholder dividends and to meet
our obligations. These obligations include our operating expenses and interest and principal payments on debt.
The payment of dividends and other distributions to us by our insurance subsidiaries is regulated by insurance
laws and regulations. In general, dividends in excess of prescribed limits are deemed “extraordinary” and require
insurance regulatory approval. In addition, although we have expense-sharing arrangements in place with our
principal operating subsidiaries that require those subsidiaries to pay their share of holding company-level
expenses, including interest expense on long-term debt, these expense-sharing arrangements are subject to
termination at any time by the applicable state insurance departments. In addition. our insurance subsidiaries’
ability to pay dividends to us, and our ability to pay dividends to our stockholders, is subject to various
conditions imposed by the rating agencies for us to maintain our ratings. If the cash we receive from our
subsidiaries pursuant to expense- and tax-sharing arrangements is insufficient for us to fund our obligations, we
may be required to seek capital by incurring additional debt, by issuing additional equity or by selling assets,
which we may be unable to do on favorable terms, if at all. The need to raise additional capital or the failure to
make timely payments on our obligations could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial
condition and operating results.
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Radian Guaranty’s and Radian Insurance’s ability to pay dividends to us is restricted by certain provisions
of the insurance laws of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, their state of domicile. The insurance laws of
Pennsylvania establish a test limiting the maximum amount of dividends that may be paid by an insurer without
prior approval by the Pennsylvania Insurance Commissioner. Under this test, an insurer may pay dividends
during any 12-month period in an amount equal to the greater of (i) 10% of the preceding year-end statutory
policyholders’ surplus; or (ii) the preceding year’s statutory net income. In accordance with these restrictions,
$451.2 million and $50.0 million would be available for dividends from Radian Guaranty and Radian Insurance,
respectively, in 2006. However, an amendment to the Pennsylvania statute requires that dividends and other
distributions be paid out of an insurer’s unassigned surplus. The Pennsylvania Insurance Commissioner has
approved all distributions by Radian Guaranty since the passage of this amendment. Radian Guaranty and Radian
Insurance have positive unassigned surplus at December 31, 2005 of $198.9 million and $96.2 million,
respectively, which represents the dividend limitations for 2006. Radian Insurance has not paid any dividends to
its immediate parent, Radian Guaranty.

Amerin Guaranty’s ability to pay dividends on its common stock is restricted by certain provisions of the
insurance laws of the State of Illinois, its state of domicile. The insurance laws of Iilinois establish a test limiting
the maximum amount of dividends that may be paid from positive unassigned surplus by an insurer without prior
approval by the Illinois Insurance Commissioner. Under this test, Amerin Guaranty may pay dividends during
any 12-month period in an amount equal to the greater of (i) 10% of the preceding year-end statutory
policyholders’ surplus; or (ii) the preceding year’s statutory net income. In accordance with these restrictions,
$19.7 million is available for dividends in 2006 without prior regulatory approval.

Radian Asset Assurance’s ability to pay dividends is restricted by certain provisions of the insurance laws of
the State of New York, its state of domicile. Under the New York insurance law, Radian Asset Assurance may
only declare or distribute dividends from earned surplus. Unless the company has prior approval from the New
York Superintendent of Insurance, the company can only pay a dividend, which when totaled with all other
dividends declared or distributed by it during the next preceding twelve months, is the lesser of ten percent of its
surplus to policyholders as shown by its last statement on file with the Superintendent, or one hundred percent of
adjusted net investment income. At December 31, 2005, Radian Asset Assurance had $99.5 million available for
dividends that could be paid in 2006 without prior approval. Radian Asset Assurance paid a $100 million
dividend to us in 2005.

RAAL’s ability to pay dividends is restricted by legal provisions in the UK whereby it may only distribute
by way of dividend its accumulated realized profits {not previously distributed) less accumulated realized losses,
and such dividends may not be paid out of capital. In accordance with these restrictions, $10.2 million would be
available to be paid as dividends in 2006.

The Financial Services Authority (“FSA”) requires insurance companies to maintain minimum capital,
calculated with reference to gross written premiums, which for RAAL were $13.8 million and $11.1 million for
the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. RAAL’s equity shareholders’ funds were $83.4
million and $89.6 million at December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. On a U.S. Statutory Accounting basis,
RAAL had statutory policyholders’ surplus of $73.5 million and $71.3 million at December 31, 2005 and 2004,
respectively.

As of December 31, 2005, Radian Guaranty had statutory policyholders’ surplus of $412.7 million and a
contingency reserve of $2.5 billion, for a total of $2.9 billion. As of December 31, 2004, Radian Guaranty had
statutory policyholders’ surplus of $421.8 million, and a contingency reserve of $2.2 billion, for a total of $2.6
billion. During 2001, Radian Guaranty and Amerin Guaranty entered into an assumption agreement whereby
Radian Guaranty assumed 100% of the rights, duties and obligations related to first-lien mortgage guaranty
insurance written by Amerin Guaranty. Amerin Guaranty’s contingency reserve of $310.9 million was
transferred to Radian Guaranty in accordance with the terms of the assumption agreement.
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We prepare our statutory financial statements in accordance with the accounting practices required or
permitted by the insurance departments of the respective states of domicile of our insurance subsidiaries.
Required statutory accounting practices include a variety of publications of the National Association of Insurance
Commissioners (“NAIC™) as well as state laws, regulations and general administrative rules.

Radian Guaranty’s statutory policyholders’ surplus at December 31, 2005 and 2004 was $412.7 million and
$421.8 million, respectively. Radian Guaranty’s statutory net income for 2005, 2004 and 2003 was
$451.5 million, $331.4 million and $261.2 million, respectively.

Radian Insurance’s statutory policyholders’ surplus at December 31, 2005 and 2004 was $131.2 million and
$74.9 million, respectively. Radian Insurance’s statutory net income for 2005, 2004 and 2003 was $50.0 million,
$67.2 million and $31.4 million, respectively.

Under Hlinois insurance regulations, Amerin Guaranty is required to maintain statutory-basis capital and
surplus of $1.5 million. The statutory policyholders’ surplus at December 31, 2005 and 2004 was $197.1 million
and $189.7 million, respectively. Amerin Guaranty’s statutory net income for 2005, 2004 and 2003 was $10.4
million, $8.4 million and $14.4 million, respectively.

New York insurance law requires financial guaranty insurers to maintain minimum policyholders’ surplus
of $65 million. When added to the minimum policyholders’ surplus of $1.4 million separately required for the
other lines of insurance that it is licensed to write, our financial guaranty insurance subsidiaries are required to
have an aggregate minimum policyholders’ surplus of $66.4 million. Radian Asset Assurance had statutory
policyholders’ surplus of $994.5 million and $1,003.7 million at December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively, a
contingency reserve of $271.9 million and $251.7 million at December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively, and
statutory net income of $117.0 million for 2005, $42.4 million for 2004 and $139.4 million for 2003. Under
Statutory Accounting (“STAT™). the $111.0 million provision for the manufactured housing transaction with
Conseco Finance Corp. was recorded in 2004.

New York insurance law establishes single risk limits applicable to all obligations issued by a single entity
and backed by a single revenue source. Under the limit applicable to municipal bonds, the insured average annual
debt service for a single risk, net of reinsurance and collateral, may not exceed 10% of the sum of the insurer’s
policyholders’ surplus and contingency reserves. In addition, insured principal of municipal bonds attributable to
any single risk, net of reinsurance and collateral, is limited to 75% of the insurer’s policyholders’ surplus and
contingency reserves. Additional single risk limits, which generally are more restrictive than the municipal bond
single risk limit, are also specified for several other categories of insured obligations.

The differences between the statutory net income and surplus and the consolidated net income and equity
presented on a GAAP basis represent differences between GAAP and STAT for the following reasons:

(a) Under STAT, mortgage guaranty insurance companies are required to establish each year a contingency
reserve equal to 50% of premiums earned in such year. Such amount must be maintained in the contingency
reserve for 10 years after which time it is released to unassigned surplus. Prior to 10 years, the contingency
reserve may be reduced with regulatory approval to the extent that losses in any calendar year exceed 35% of
earned premiums for such year.

(b) In accordance with New York insurance law, financial guaranty insurance companies are required to
establish a contingency reserve in the amount prescribed by legislation. Such legislation requires that, for
financial guaranty policies written after June 30, 1989, each primary insurer must establish a contingency reserve
equal to the greater of 50% of premiums written or a stated percentage of the principal guaranteed, ratably over
15-20 years dependent upon the category of obligation insured. Reinsurers are required to establish a
contingency reserve equal to their proportionate share of the reserve established by the primary insurer. Also
under STAT, case reserves are required to be established in the year in which the default occurred. We establish
non-specific reserves under GAAP as described in Note 2.
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(c) Under STAT, insurance policy acquisition costs are charged against operations in the year incurred.
Under GAAP, such costs, other than those incurred in connection with the origination of derivative contracts, are
deferred and amortized.

(d) STAT financial statements only include a provision for current income taxes as a component of net
income. Deferred taxes, subject to certain limitations set forth in SAP 10, are recorded in the STAT Balance
Sheets with any changes thereto recognized via a change in statutory surplus. Purchases of tax and loss bonds are
accounted for as investments under STAT. GAAP financial statements provide for current and deferred income
taxes in our consolidated statements of income, and purchases of tax and loss bonds are recorded as prepaid
federal income taxes in our consolidated balance sheets.

(e) Under STAT, fixed-maturity investments are valued at amortized cost. Under GAAP, those investments
that the statutory insurance entities do not have the ability or intent to hold to maturity are considered to be either
available for sale or trading securities, and are recorded at fair value, with the unrealized gain or loss recognized,
net of tax, as an increase or decrease to stockholders’ equity or current operations, as applicable.

(f) Under STAT, certain assets, designated as non-admitted assets, are charged directly against statutory
surplus. Such assets are reflected on our GAAP financial statements.

11. Stock-Based Compensation

We have one stock option plan, the Radian Group Inc. Equity Compensation Plan (the “Plan’), which
provides for the grant of non-qualified stock options, either alone or together with stock appreciation rights,
restricted stock, as well as other forms of equity-based compensation. Options may be granted to our directors,
officers and key employees at a price not less than 100% of the fair market value of our stock at the date of grant.
Each stock option is exercisable for a period of 7 or 10 years from the date of grant, depending on the grant date,
and is subject to a vesting schedule as approved by the Compensation and Human Resources Committee of our
board of directors. On February 7, 2006, our board of directors approved an amendment to the Plan to extend the
expiration date of the Plan from December 31, 2006 to December 31, 2008. We expect to submit this amendment
for stockholder approval at our 2006 Annual Meeting of Stockholders. If the amendment is not approved, the
Plan will expire as scheduled on December 31, 2006. We granted, under the Plan, 40,000 shares of restricted
stock in May 2005 and an additional 10,000 shares of restricted stock in July 2005, in each case vesting over
three years. Deferred compensation was recorded based on the market price at the date of grant. Compensation
expense on the restricted stock is recognized over the vesting period of the shares.
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Information with regard to the Plan is as follows:

Weighted
Average
Number of  Exercise Price

Shares Per Share

Outstanding, January 1,2003 . ... ... . e 4,901,887 $27.69
Granted . .o e e 939,650 35.79
Exercised ... i e (806,443) 21.13
Canceled . ... . e (144,()8_0) 30.55
Outstanding, December 31,2003 ... ... ... .. . . 4,891,014 30.24
Granted . .. ... 787,145 4592
Exercised ... ... e e (934,291) 23.39
Canceled . ... .. . _(%6_0) 34.58
Outstanding, December 31,2004 . ... .. ... e 4,499,09% 34.17
Granted . ... ... 921,530 48.27
BxerCised ... (1,369,421) 27.75
Canceled . ... e (177,379) 43.37
Outstanding, December 31,2005 . ... .. ... e 3,873,7§ 39.37
Exercisable, December 31, 2003 .. ... 2,684,569 29.43
Exercisable, December 31, 2004 . . ... . . 2,578,72~1 31.78
Exercisable, December 31, 2005 .. ... 2,140,45 35.67

Available for grant, December 31,2005 ......... ... ... . . . 3,195,314

The following table summarizes information concerning outstanding and exercisable options at
December 31, 2005:

Options Qutstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted Average
Remaining
Number Contractual Life =~ Weighted Average Weighted Average
Range of Exercise Prices Outstanding (Years) Exercise Price Number Exercisable Exercise Price
$12.34-$16.25 52,403 1.04 $16.16 52,403 $16.16
$20.31-827.66 856,259 4.35 24 .38 735,334 23.92
$30.54-$44.37 1,189,155 6.00 36.23 867,879 36.27
$45.95-$68.18 1,775,921 7.69 49.40 484,843 54.54

3,873,738 2,140,459

We report stock-based compensation in accordance with SFAS No. 123. See Note 2.

On February 8, 2005, our board of directors approved the Radian Group Inc. Performance Share Plan (the
“Performance Share Plan”). Our key employees, who, through their position or performance, can have a
significant, positive impact on our financial results, are eligible to participate in the Performance Share Plan. The
Compensation and Human Resources Committee may grant performance shares to eligible participants with
respect to performance periods of varying and overlapping durations. At the beginning of each performance
period, a target number of performance shares are established for each participant in the plan. The performance
shares are denominated in shares of our common stock and will be settled in stock. Each performance share
award becomes payable at a multiple of the target amount depending on a combination of our growth of earnings
per share, growth of adjusted book value and return on equity over the performance period and comparative
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position within our designated peer companies. For purposes of the deductibility requirements of Section 162(m)
of the Internal Revenue Code, the maximum payout under any performance share award is 250,000 shares of our
common stock or its equivalent market value as of the payment date. A total of 47,900 target performance units
were issued in 2005 with respect to the performance period that began January 1, 2005, and ends December 31,
2007. No other awards are outstanding under the Performance Share Plan.

We apply SFAS No. 123 in accounting for the performance shares granted under the Performance Share
Plan. Compensation cost is accrued over the performance period based on the fair value of the number of awards
that are expected to vest. We recognized $1.2 million of expense in 2005 related to the Performance Share Plan.

We have an Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the “ESPP”). A total of 200,000 shares of our authorized
non-issued common stock have been made available under the ESPP. The ESPP allows eligible employees to
purchase shares of our stock at a discount of 15% of the beginning-of-period or end-of-period (each period being
the first and second six calendar months) fair market value of the stock, whichever is lower. Eligibility under the
ESPP is determined based on standard weekly work hours and tenure with us, and eligible employees are limited
to a maximum contribution of $400 per payroll period toward the purchase of our stock. Under the ESPP, we
sold 17,368, 18,793 and 17,899 shares to employees in 2005 2004, and 2003, respectively. We applied APB 25 in
accounting for the ESPP. The pro forma effect of the issuance of shares under the ESPP on our net income and
earnings per share had compensation cost been determined under SFAS No. 123 was immaterial in 2005, 2004
and 2003. We will apply SFAS No. 123R to shares issued under the ESPP beginning in 2006.

12. Benefit Plans

We currently maintain a noncontributory defined benefit pension plan (the “Pension Plan”) covering
substantially all of our full-time employees. EFSG maintained a defined benefit pension plan, (the “EFSG
Pension Plan”) for the benefit of all eligible employees until its termination on October 31, 2002, at which time
EFSG became a participating employer under the Pension Plan. We granted past service credit for eligibility and
vesting purposes under the Pension Plan for all such service credited under the EFSG Pension Plan on behalf of
the eligible employees of EFSG who were active participants in the EFSG Pension Plan prior to its termination
and who became participants in the Pension Plan effective November 1, 2002. Retirement benefits are a function
of the years of service and the level of compensation. Assets of the plan are allocated in a balanced fashion with
approximately 40% in fixed-income securities and 60% in equity securities.

Plan Assets at December 31

2005 2004
Radian Pension Plan
EQuity SECUTITIES . . oottt ettt e e e e e 62% 61%
Fixed-income SeCUrities ... .. ..o\ttt e ﬁ _BQ
Total . 100% 100%

On August 6, 2002, our board of directors approved amendments to the Pension Plan to (i) revise the
Pension Plan’s definition of “Early Retirement Date™ effective with respect to participants who earn an hour of
service on or after January 1, 2002; and (ii) include such mandatory changes required under the Economic
Growth and Tax Relief Reconciliation Act of 2001. Our Board also amended the Pension Plan to increase the
plan’s normal retirement benefit formula with respect to participants who earn an hour of service after January 1,
2003.

We also provide a nonqualified supplemental executive retirement plan (the “SERP”) for selected senior
officers. The SERP is intended to provide these officers with retirement benefits supplemental to the Pension
Plan. Under the SERP, participants are eligible to receive benefits in addition to those paid under the Pension
Plan if their base compensation is in excess of the current IRS compensation limitation for the Pension Plan.
Retirement benefits under the SERP are a function of the years of service and the level of compensation of
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eligible participants and are reduced by any benefits paid under the Pension Plan. In December 2002, we began
funding the SERP through the purchase of variable life insurance policies pursuant to a split-dollar life insurance
program called the Executive Life Insurance Program. Under this arrangement, we purchase a life insurance
policy, which we own and pay for, on the lives of executive officers who are participants in the SERP. We
endorse to the participant a portion of the death benefit, for which the participant is imputed income each year.
We own the remainder of the death benefit and all of the cash values in the policy. At the participant’s retirement
age, the policy’s cash value is projected to be sufficient for us to pay the promised SERP benefit to the
participant. Non-executive officers who were participants in the Executive Life Insurance Program before the
issuance in 2003 of regulations under the Internal Revenue Code regarding split-dollar plans continue under the
collateral assignment split-dollar policies that were in force at that time. Under this arrangement, the participant
owns the policy, and assigns a portion of the death benefits and cash value to us in amounts sufficient to
reimburse us for all of our premium outlays. The eventual cash values above the aggregate premium amounts are
designed, as in the endorsement method, to be sufficient to provide payment of the participant’s promised SERP
benefit. The participant has imputed income each year for the value of the death benefit provided to him or her,
and also for any incidental benefits as provided under applicable tax law.

The assumed discount rate for our Pension Plan and SERP is determined by examining the yield-rate for
high-quality corporate bonds as of December 31 of the previous year. By matching the yield curve on
investment-grade securities with the expected benefit stream of the Pension Plan, we have found the Moody’s
AA bond yield on December 31 of the previous year to be a sufficient benchmark in setting the assumed discount
rate.

In addition to providing pension benefits, we provide certain healthcare and life insurance benefits to our
retired employees who were hired before January 1, 1990, under a postretirement welfare plan (the
“Postretirement Welfare Plan™). Until its curtailment on August 31, 2002, EFSG had a plan that provided certain
healthcare benefits for retired employees (the “Enhance Postretirement Medical Plan”). The plan was frozen
effective August 31, 2002, so that only employees of EFSG and it subsidiaries hired before February 2, 1990 are
eligible for the retirement benefits available under this plan, and we recorded a gain of approximately $0.7
million in 2002 from the curtailment of this plan. The expense for postretirement benefit costs for 2005 was
$34.8 thousand as compared to $12.1 thousand for 2004, due to the curtailment of the Enhance Postretirement
Medical Plan, and the expense for 2003 was a credit of $82 thousand. We accrue the estimated cost of retiree
medical and life benefits over the period during which employees render the service that qualifies them for
benefits. All of our plans together are referred to in the tables below as the “Radian Plans.”

On December 8, 2003, the Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act (“the Act”) of
2003 was signed into law. FASB Staff Position No. 106-2 “Accounting and Disclosure Requirements Related to
the Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003,” issued in May 2004 provides
guidance on the accounting for the effects of the Act for employers that sponsor postretirement health care plans
that provide prescription drug benefits and requires those employers to provide certain disclosures regarding the
effect of the federal subsidy provided by the Act. The postretirement healthcare obligations contained in this
disclosure do not reflect any impact due to Medicare Part D legislation. Based upon the Radian Group Inc.
Postretirement Welfare Plan’s benefits, the Medicare Modernization Act is not expected to have a significant
effect on the plan costs.
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The funded status of the Pension Plan and SERP, the Postretirement Welfare Plan, and the EFSG Pension

Plan and Restoration Plan were as follows (in thousands):

Radian Plans

Postretirement
Pension Plan/SERP Welfare Plan
2005 2004 2005 2004
Change in Benefit Obligation
Benefit obligation at beginning of year . . ...... ... ... .. oo $32,948 $26,620 $495 §$463
SErvICE COSE . ..ot e 4,770 4,231 9 9
TErESt COSE .« ottt 1,939 1,606 28 26
Plan participants’ contributions . . ... oo e — — 21 15
Actuarial 10SS . ... e 1,325 645 18 14
Benefits paid .. ... .. (1,824) (154) (33) (32)
Benefit obligationatend of year . ... ... ... . ... .. $39,158 $32,948 $538 $495
Change in Plan Assets
Fair value of plan assets at beginningofyear ............................ $ 12006 $ 8655 $— $—
Actual return on plan assets . ........ ... 976 1,079 — —
Employer contributions .. ... ... .. 5,156 2,426 12 17
Plan participants” contributions . . ... ... ... — — 21 15
Benefits paid ... ..o (1,824) (154)  (33) (32)
Fair value of plan assets atend of year .. ........ ... ....... ... .. . ...... $16,314 $12006 $— $—
Underfunded status of the plan .. ........ . ... .. ... i $(22,843) $(20,942) $(538) $(495)
Unrecognized Prior SETVICE COST . v v vttt iie sttt i 8,215 7,097 (56) (62)
Unrecognized net actuarial loss (gain) ........... ... ... oL, 2,680 2,697  (112) (134)
Accrued benefit COSt ...ttt e $(11,948) $(11,148) $(706) $(691)

The accrued benefit cost for our Pension Plan, the SERP, the Restoration Plan and postretirement plans is

included in accounts payable and accrued expenses on our consolidated balance sheets.

The accumulated benefit obligation at December 31, 2005 and 2004 for the Radian Pension Plan/SERP was

$25.5 million and $21.1 million, respectively.

EFSG Plan
Pension
Plan/Restoration Postretirement
Plan Medical Plan
2005 2004 2005 2004
Change in Benefit Obligation
Benefit obligation at beginning of period .. .......... ... .. ... . $ 74 $ 7330  $411 $1,039
SEIVICE COSL . . ..ttt e e — — 1 —
Interest coSt . ... o — 60 34 24
AMENdMENTS . ... e — 74 — —
Actuarial ain ... .. — (32) 522 (629)
Effectof curtailment . . ......... . .. .. . . . . i e e — —_ (320) —
Benefits paid ... ... .. (74) (7,368) (20) (23)
Benefit obligation atend of year .. ........... . $— $ 74 $628 $ 411
Change in Plan Assets
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of period . ........... ... ... ...... $— $5942 $§-— § —
Actual returnon planassets .......... ... . .. i — 101 — —
Employer contributions . . ... . e — 1,325 20 23
Benefitspaid ... ... e —_ (7,368) (20) (23)
Fair value of plan assets atend of year . ................... ... ... .. ... $— $ — $— § —
Under funded status of the plan .. ... .. ... .. . i $ $ (74) $(628) §$ (411)
Unrecognized net actuarial (gain)1oss .......... ... . ... — (62) 2 (524)
Unrecognized transition obligation (asset) ....................... .. ..... — — — 3
Accrued benefit COSt ... oot $— $ (136) $(630) $ (932)

122




There was no accumulated benefit obligation for the EFSG Restoration Plan at December 31, 2005. At
December 31, 2004, the accumulated benefit obligation was $74 thousand.

At December 31, 2005 and 2004, the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation under the EFSG
Postretirement Medical Plan was $0.6 million and $0.4 million, respectively, and was not funded. At
December 31, 2005, the discount rate used in determining the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation was
5.50% and the healthcare trend was 8.00% graded to 5.50% after 5 years.

The components of the Pension Plan/SERP benefit and net period postretirement benefit costs are as follows
(in thousands):

Radian Plans

Postretirement
Pension Plan/SERP Welfare Plan

2005 2004 2003 2005 2004 2003
SEIVICE COSE © v o vttt e e e e $4770 $4231 $3079 $ 9 $ 9 $ 9
Interest COSt .« oottt e 1,939 1,606 1,238 28 27 26
Expected returnon planassets . .......... ... ... ... .. .. (1,123)  (841) (568) — — —_—
Amortization of prior service cost .. ........ ... . ... ... 252 298 298 (6) (6) 6)
Recognized net actuarial loss (gain) .................... 353 334 185 &) A8 12)
Net periodic benefitcost . ....... ... ... $6,191 $5,628 $4232 $26 $12 §$ 17
EFSG Plan

Postretirement
Pension Plan Medical Plan

2005 2004 2003 2005 2004 2003
SEIVICE COST ..o v vttt e e e $— $— $— §$ 1 $— §$21
Interestcost .. ... .. . — 60 431 34 24 60
Expected return on plan assets ........................ — (62) 431 — — —
Amortization of prior service cost ... .. ... — — — — — 1
Recognized net actuarial gain .......... .. ... ... .. ... — — — — 2y —
Net periodic benefit COSt ... ... §— $ 2 $— $35 % 3 %82
Curtailment/settlement charge . ............. ... ... .... — — — 317 — —
Total financial statement impact ....................... $— $ @2 $— 328 % 3 % 82

Assumptions used to determine net pension and net periodic postretirement benefit costs are as follows:

Radian Plans

Postretirement
Pension Plan/SERP Welfare Plan

2005 2004 2003 2005 2004 2003

Weighted average assumptions as of December 31:

DiISCOUNETAte . ..ottt et 375% 6.00% 6.75% 5.75% 6.00% 6.75%
Expected returnonplanassets .............. ... ... ..... 8.50% 8.50% 850% — — —
Rate of compensation increase . .. ....................... 425% 4.25% 4.50% — — —
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EFSG Plan

Postretirement
Medical Plan

2005 2004 2003

Weighted average assumptions as of December 31:

DISCOUNETALE . ..ottt e e e e e 575% 6.00% 6.75%
Expected return on plan @ssets . .. ..ottt e —_ — —_
Rate of compensation INCIease . .. .. ...ttt e — — —

Weighted average assumptions used to determine net pension and net periodic postretirement benefit
obligation at December 31, 2005 and 2004 were as follows:

Radian Plans

Pension Plan/ Postretirement
SERP Welfare Plan
W05 04 205 2004
DiSCOUNt Tate . . . .ottt 550% 5.75% 5.50% 5.75%
Expected return on plan assets ...t 850% 8.50% nfa n/a
Rate of compensation inCrease . . ........c..ouuiiiiennn .. 4.00% 4.25% nla n/a

EFSG Plan
Pension Plan/ Postretirement
Restoration Plan ~ Medical Plan
2005 2004 2005 2004
Discountrate . ... ... n/a n/a 5.50% 5.75%
Expected return on plan assets .............i i n/a n/a n/a n/a
Rate of compensation inCrease . ...t n/a n/a n/a n/a

The selected long-term rate on assets (8.50%) was principally based on the allocation of the Pension Plan’s
assets (approximately 60% equities and 40% fixed-income investments) coupled with the actual expected returns
provided by our investment advisor by asset type. This assumption is a long-term assumption that has been in
place for many years. We have periodically reviewed our assumptions against various capital market simulations
to assure that our assumptions remain reasonable. We believe that an 8.5% long-term return assumption remains
reasonable in calculating pension expense.

The discount rate is established by comparing the projection of expected benefit payments based on the
assumptions used for the actuarial valuation to the Citigroup Pension Discount Curve (published monthly) as of
December 31, of the fiscal year. The expected benefit payments are discounted by each corresponding discount
rate on the yield curve. Once the present value of the string of benefit payments is established, we solve for the
single spot rate to apply to all obligations of the plan that will exactly match the previously determined present
value. This result is rounded to the nearest 25 basis points.

The Citigroup Pension Discount Curve is constructed beginning with a U.S. Treasury par curve that reflects
the entire Treasury and STRIPS market. From the Treasury curve, Citibank produces a double—A corporate par
curve by adding option-adjusted spreads that are drawn from the double-A corporate sector of the Citigroup
Broad Investment-Grade Bond Index. Finally, from the double-A corporate par curve, Citigroup derives the spot
rates that constitute the Pension Discount Curve. For payments beyond 30 years we extend the curve assumiing
that the discount rate derived in year 30 is extended to the end of the plan’s payment expectations.
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Estimated Future Benefit Payments

The following benefit payments, which reflect expected future service, as appropriate, are expected to be
paid according to the following schedule:

Pension Plan/ Postretirement

SERP Welfare Plan

2006 . o $ 323417 $ 55,247
2007 . e 219,269 56,639
2008 L e e 263,212 57,903
2000 . o e e 369,640 61,368
200 . 485,581 62,275
Years 201 1-20015 . oo 5,399,964 362,071

Total $7,061,083 $655,503

Contributions

We expect to contribute $3.0 million to our pension plan and $20 thousand to our other postretirement
benefit plans in 2006. We expect to contribute $36 thousand to EFSG’s other postretirement benefit plan in 2006.

Due to the nature of the Postretirement Welfare Plan, no increase is assumed in our obligation due to any
increases in the per-capita cost of covered healthcare benefits.

In addition to the Pension Plan, the SERP and the Postretirement Welfare Plan, we also maintain a Savings
Incentive Plan, which covers substantially all our full-time and all our part-time employees employed for a
minimum of 90 consecutive days. Participants can contribute up to 25% of their base earnings as pretax
contributions. We will match at least 25% of the first 6% of base earnings contributed in any given year. These
matching funds are subject to certain vesting requirements. Our expense for matching funds for the years ended
December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 was $2.6 million, $2.8 million and $2.7 million, respectively.

13. Commitments, Contingencies and Off-Balance-Sheet Arrangements

In January 2004, a complaint was filed in the United States District Court for the Eastern District of
Pennsylvania against Radian Guaranty by Whitney Whitfield and Celeste Whitfield seeking class action status on
behalf of a nationwide class of consumers who allegedly were required to pay for private mortgage insurance
provided by Radian Guaranty and whose loans allegedly were insured at more than Radian Guaranty’s “best
available rate,” based upon credit information obtained by Radian Guaranty. The action alleged that the Fair
Credit Reporting Act (“FCRA™) requires a notice to borrowers of such “adverse action” and that Radian
Guaranty violated FCRA by failing to give such notice. The action sought statutory damages, actual damages, or
both, for the people in the class, and attorneys’ fees, as well as declaratory and injunctive relief. The action also
alleged that the failure to give notice to borrowers in the circumstances alleged is a violation of state law
applicable to sales practices and sought declaratory and injunctive relief for this alleged violation.

On October 21, 2005, the United States District Court granted Radian Guaranty’s motion for summary
judgment. The court held that mortgage insurance transactions between mortgage lenders and mortgage insurers
are not consumer credit actions and are not subject to the notice requirements of FCRA. On November 8, 2005,
the plaintiffs in this case appealed the district court’s judgment. Similar cases, a number of which are still
pending, have been brought against several other mortgage insurers. We intend to vigorously defend the appeal
of this action and any future actions concerning FCRA that may be brought against us. We cannot assure you that
we will have continued success defending this case on appeal or defending against similar lawsuits that may be
brought against us.
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In addition to the above, we are involved in certain litigation arising in the normal course of our business.
We are contesting the allegations in each such other action and believe, based on current knowledge and
consultation with counsel, that the outcome of such litigation will not have a material adverse effect on our
consolidated financial position or results of operations.

New securities regulations have come into effect that impose enhanced disclosure requirements on issuers of
asset-backed (including mortgaged-backed) securities, including most customers in our structured business. To
allow these customers to comply with the new regulations, we may be required in any given transaction,
depending on the amount of credit enhancement that we are providing, to provide audited financial statements for
the insurance subsidiary participating in the transaction. We are in the process of producing financial statements
(and having them audited) for each of our primary insurance subsidiaries. We anticipate that these financial
statements will be available in the first half of 2006. Until they are available, we will provide full and
unconditional holding-company-level guaranties for our insurance subsidiaries’ obligations in such transactions,
principally on our mortgage insurance business for which financial statements prepared in accordance with
GAAP have never previously been available. To date, we have guarantied two structured transactions for Radian
Guaranty involving approximately $715 million of credit exposure.

We guarantee the payment of up to $25.0 million of a revolving credit facility issued to Sherman that
expires December 21, 2006. There have been no drawdowns on this facility.

We also utilize letters of credit to back assumed reinsurance contracts, medical insurance policies and an
excise tax-exemption certificate used for ceded premiums from our domestic operations to our international
operations. These letters of credit are with various financial institutions, have terms of one-year and will
automatically renew unless we specify otherwise. The letters of credit outstanding at December 31, 2005 and
2004 were $17.1 million and $9.3 million, respectively.

Our mortgage insurance business utilizes its underwriting skills to provide an outsourced underwriting
service to its customers. We give recourse to our customers on loans we underwrite for compliance. Typically,
we agree that if we make a material error in underwriting a loan, we will remedy, indemnify, make whole,
repurchase, or place additional mortgage insurance coverage on the loan. During 2005, we processed requests for
remedies on less than 0.2% of the loans underwritten and sold a number of loans previously acquired as part of
the remedy process. We paid losses for sales and remedies from reserves in 2005 of approximately $11.7 million.
Providing these remedies means we assume some credit risk and interest-rate risk if an error is found during the
limited remedy period in the agreements governing our provision of contract underwriting services. Rising
mortgage interest rates or an economic downturn may expose the mortgage insurance business to higher losses.
In 2004, we had provisions for contract underwriting remedies of $12 million. In 2005, our provisions were
approximately $8 million and our reserve at December 31, 2005, was $3.6 million. We closely monitor this risk
and negotiate our underwriting fee structure and recourse agreements on a client-by-client basis.

Our financial guaranty insurance business enters into reinsurance agreements with our monoline financial
guaranty primary insurance customers. These reinsurance agreements generally are subject to termination
(i) upon written notice (ranging from 90 to 120 days) before the specified deadline for renewal, (ii) at the option
of the ceding company if we fail to maintain certain financial, regulatory and rating agency criteria that are
equivalent to or more stringent than those we are otherwise required to maintain for our own compliance with
New York insurance law and to maintain a specified financial strength rating for the particular insurance
subsidiary; or (iii) upon certain changes of control. Upon termination under the conditions set forth in (ii) and
(ii1) above, we may be required (under some of its reinsurance agreements) to return to the ceding company all
unearned premiums, less ceding commissions, attributable to reinsurance ceded pursuant to such agreements.
Upon the occurrence of the conditions set forth in (ii) above, whether or not an agreement is terminated, we may
be required to obtain a letter of credit or alternative form of security to collateralize our obligation to perform
under such agreement or we may be obligated to increase the level of ceding commission paid.
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We lease office space for use in our operations. Net rental expense in connection with these leases totaled
$8,673,000, $8,124,000 and $9,574,000 in 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively. The commitment for
non-cancelable operating leases in future years is as follows (in thousands):

2000 . e e e e e $ 12,631
2007 o e 11,250
2008 L e 10,888
2000 L e e 10,825
2000 L 10,652
Thereafter .. ... 56,981

$113,227

The commitment for non-cancelable operating leases in future years has not been reduced by future
minimum sublease rental payments aggregating approximately $30.2 million. A portion of these payments relates
to subleases to our affiliates.

14. Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

(In thousands, except per-share information)

2005 Quarters
First Second Third Fourth Year

Net premiums Written .. .. ...vuveveennnrerinn $214,840 $299,218 $313,908 $272,721 $1,100,687
Net premiums earned ........................ 247,025 243,978 265,636 262,031 1,018,670
Netinvestment inCome . ................ou.... 50,862 50,004 53,253 54,303 208,422
Net gains on sales of investments ............... 11,526 8,723 5,194 11,195 36,638
Net change in fair value of derivative

INSLIUMENS . o\ttt e e i an s (8,960) 987 53,274  (36,131) 9,170
Provision forlosses . .....ovvviii i, 109,500 83,827 92,441 104,865 390,633
Policy acquisition and other operating expenses . .. 81,026 83,490 86,858 90,454 341,828
Equity in net income of affiliates ............... 51,296 63,878 46,772 55,746 217,692
Netincome ..........itir .. 115,612 140,224 162,557 104,461 522,854
Diluted net income per share (1) (2) ............. $ 124 $§ 15 $ 188 $ 124 % 5.91
Weighted average shares outstanding (1) ......... 94,258 90,116 86,693 83,917 88,746

2004 Quarters
First Second Third Fourth Year

Net premiums Written . ............ccvveenn... $181,428 $331,269 $282530 $287,260 $1,082,487
Net premiums earned ............. ... oL, 243,420 259,249 264,048 262,767 1,029,484
Net investment income . ..............c.ovvu... 49,705 50,879 51,086 52,679 204,349
Net gains on sales of investments ............... 26,676 5,287 8,993 9,843 50,799
Net change in fair value of derivative

INSIIUMENES .. oot e e 4,647 12 (2,083) 44,559 47,135
Provision forlosses . ..., 114,767 116,560 114,125 111,382 456,834
Policy acquisition and other operating expenses ... 75,442 83,796 83,562 84,717 327,517
Equity in net income of affiliates ............... 32,482 52,172 45,926 49,970 180,550
NetinCOmME .. ...ttt 120,010 120,503 122,171 155,969 518,653
Diluted net income per share (1) (2) .. ........... $ 122 ¢ 123 % 127 § 162 § 5.33
Weighted average shares outstanding (1) ......... 98,888 98,713 97,197 96,832 97,908

(1) Diluted net income per share and average shares outstanding per SFAS No. 128, “Earnings Per Share.”
Amounts for the first three quarters of 2005 and all quarters of 2004 reflect the inclusion of shares
underlying contingently convertible debt. See Note 2.

(2) Net income per share is computed independently for each period presented. Consequently, the sum of the
quarters may not equal the total net income per share for the year.
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15. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The fair value of a financial instrument is the current amount that would be exchanged between two willing
parties, other than in a forced liquidation. Fair value is best determined based upon quoted market prices.
However, in many instances, there are no quoted market prices available. In those cases, fair values are based on
estimates using present value or other valuation methodologies. Significant differences may exist with respect to
the available market information and assumptions used. Considerable judgment is required to interpret available
market data to develop the estimates of fair value. Accordingly, the estimates presented herein are not necessarily
indicative of the amount we could realize in a current market exchange. The use of different market assumptions
or estimation methodologies may have an effect on the estimated fair value amounts.

Fixed-Maturity and Equity Securities—The fair values of fixed-maturity securities and equity securities are
based on quoted market prices or dealer quotes. For investments that are not publicly traded, management has
made estimates of fair value that consider each issuer’s financial results, conditions and prospects, and the values
of comparable public companies.

Trading Securities—The fair values of trading securities are based on quoted market prices, dealer quotes or
estimates using quoted market prices for similar securities.

Short-Term Investments—Fair values of short-term investments approximate amortized cost.

Other Invested Assets—The fair value of other invested assets (residential mortgage-backed securities) is
based on the present value of the estimated net future cash flows, including annual distributions and net cash
proceeds from the exercise of call rights, using relevant market information.

Unearned Premiums—In the mortgage insurance business, because the majority of the premiums received
are cash-basis, the fair value is assumed to equal the book value. The fair value of unearned premiums in the
financial guaranty insurance business, net of prepaid reinsurance premiums, is based on the estimated cost of
entering into a cession of the entire portfolio with third-party reinsurers under current market conditions, adjusted
for commissions based on current market rates.

Reserve for Losses—The carrying amount is a reasonable estimate of the fair value.

Long-Term Debt—The fair value is estimated based on the quoted market prices for the same or similar
issue or on the current rates offered to us for debt of the same remaining maturities.

The carrying value and fair value of selected assets and liabilities on our consolidated balance sheets is as
follows:

December 31
2005 2004
Carrying Estimated Carrying Estimated
Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value

(In thousands)

Assets:
Fixed-maturity and equity securities . ............. $5,039,512 $5,063,804 $4,920,755 $4,929,924
Trading securities ......... ... ... 89,440 89,440 86,342 86,342
Short-term investments . ................c.0v. .. 361,937 361,937 459,718 459,718
Otherinvested aSSets ... ...t 2,825 2,825 3,253 3,253
Liabilities:
Unearned premiums ............cooviiunnen .. 849,360 731,517 770,208 647,032
Reserve forlosses .......... . o, 801,002 801,002 801,012 801,012
Long-termdebt .............. .. ... . .. ... .. 747,466 772,802 717,640 770,762
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16. Capital Stock

Since September 2002, our board of directors has authorized five separate repurchase programs for the
repurchase, in the aggregate, of up to 19.5 million shares of our common stock on the open market. At March 31,
2004, we had repurchased all 2.5 million shares under the initial program (announced September 24, 2002) at a
cost of approximately $87.0 million. At March 31, 2005, we had repurchased an additional 5.0 million shares
under the second program (announced May 11, 2004 and extended September 8, 2004) at a cost of approximately
$235.9 million, and at June 30, 2005, we had repurchased all 5.0 million shares under the third program
(announced February 15, 2005) at a cost of approximately $240.0 million. At December 31, 2005, we had
repurchased all of the 3.0 million shares authorized under the fourth repurchase program (announced August 9,
2005) at a cost of approximately $160.0 million. All share repurchases made to date were funded from available
working capital and were made from time to time depending on market conditions, share price and other factors.

On February 7, 2006, we announced that our board of directors had authorized the repurchase of up to
4.0 million shares of our common stock on the open market under a new repurchase plan. Stock purchases under
this program will be funded from available working capital from time to time, depending on market conditions,
stock price and other factors. The board did not set an expiration date for this program.

We also may purchase shares on the open market to meet option exercise obligations and to fund 401(k)
matches and purchases under our Employee Stock Purchase Plan and may consider additional stock repurchase
programs in the future.

17. Other Related Party Transactions

We have committed $10 million to invest in a fund sponsored and managed by C-BASS. The fund invests in
real estate related securities and had total assets of $262 million at December 31, 2005. C-BASS is also a
co-investor in the fund. We had $5.2 million invested in the fund at December 31, 2005.
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REPORT ON MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY

Management is responsible for the preparation, integrity and objectivity of the consolidated financial
statements and other financial information presented in this annual report. The accompanying consolidated
financial statements were prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America, applying certain estimations and judgments as required.

The board of directors exercises its responsibility for the financial statements through its Audit and Risk
Committee, which consists entirely of independent non-management board members. The Audit and Risk
Committee meets periodically with management and with the independent auditors, both privately and with
management present, to review accounting, auditing, internal control and financial reporting matters.

Deloitte & Touche LLP, independent registered public accounting firm, was retained to audit the
Company’s financial statements. The accompanying reports of Deloitte & Touche LLP are based on its audit,
which it is required to conduct in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States), and which includes the consideration of the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting to establish a basis for reliance thereon in determining the nature, timing and extent of audit tests to be
applied.

Sanford A. Ibrahim
Chief Executive Officer

C. Robert Quint
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

John J. Calamari
Senior Vice President and Corporate Controller
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MANAGEMENT’S ANNUAL REPORT ON
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
Radian Group Inc.’s (“Radian’s”) management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate
“internal control over financial reporting” as that term is defined in Rule 13a-15(f) promuigated under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Radian’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed under
the supervision of Radian’s principal executive and principal financial officers, and affected by Radian’s board of
directors, management and other personnel.

Radian’s management assessed the effectiveness of Radian’s internal control over financial reporting, as of
December 31, 2005, using the Internal Control-Integrated Framework established by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on this assessment, management did not identify
any material weaknesses in Radian’s internal control over financial reporting and believes that, as of
December 31, 2005, Radian’s internal control over financial reporting is effective in providing reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of Radian’s financial reporting and preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

Although Radian’s internal control over financial reporting is effective in providing reasonable assurance
regarding the matters described above, neither Radian’s nor any other system of internal control over financial
reporting can provide absolute assurance regarding those matters. Inherent limitations in any set of internal
controls, such as human failures, present a risk that material misstatements may not be prevented or detected on a
timely basis by internal control over financial reporting.

Deloitte & Touche LLP, the independent registered public accounting firm that audited the financial
statements included in Radian’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005, has issued

an attestation report on management’s Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting. This report
appears on page 132.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Radian Group Inc.
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania

We have audited management's assessment, included in the accompanying Management'sAnnual Report on
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting, that Radian Group Inc. and subsidiaries (the "Company"') maintained
effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2005, based on criteria established in Internal
Control— Integrated Frameworkissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission. The Company's management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial
reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility
is to express an opinion on management's assessment and an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal
control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit
included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating management's
assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing such
other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable
basis for our opinions.

A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the supervision of, the
company's principal executive and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, and
effected by the company's board of directors, management, and other personnel to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may not be
prevented or detected on a timely basis. Also, projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal
control over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the controls may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, management's assessment that the Company maintained effective internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2009, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on the criteria established in
Internal Control— Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission. Also in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2005, based on the criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), the consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2005 of the
Company and our report dated March 9, 2006 expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial statements.

TR
DM N M LLP
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
March 9, 2006
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Radian Group Inc.
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Radian Group Inc. and subsidiaries
(the "Company") as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, and the related consolidated statements of income,
changes in common stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2005. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with-the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Radian Group Inc. and subsidiaries at December 31, 2005 and 2004, and the results of their
operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31,2003, in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States), the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2005, based on the criteria established in Internal Control— Integrated Framework issued
by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated March
9, 2006, expressed an unqualified opinion on management's assessment of the effectiveness of the
Company's internal control over financial reporting and an unqualified opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company's internal control over financial reporting.

Detite * Truche LLP

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
March 9, 2006
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RISK FACTORS
Risks Affecting Our Company

Deterioration in general economic factors may increase our loss experience and decrease demand for
mortgage insurance and financial guaranties.

Our business tends to be cyclical and tends to track general economic and market conditions. Our loss
experience on the mortgage and financial guaranty insurance we write is subject to general economic factors that
are beyond our control, many of which we cannot anticipate, including extended national economic recessions,
interest-rate changes or volatility, business failures, the impact of terrorist attacks or acts of war, or changes in
investor perceptions regarding the strength of private mortgage insurers or financial guaranty providers and the
policies or guaranties they offer. Deterioration of general economic conditions, such as increasing unemployment
rates, negatively affects our mortgage insurance business by increasing the likelihood that borrowers will not pay
their mortgages. Personal factors affecting individual borrowers, such as divorce or illness, also impact the ability
of borrowers to continue to pay their mortgages. Depreciation of home prices also is a leading indication of an
increase in our future losses. Our financial guaranty business also is impacted by adverse economic conditions
due to the impact or perceived impact these conditions may have on the credit quality of municipalities and
corporations. The same events that increase our loss experience in each business also generally lead to decreased
activity in the market for mortgages and financial obligations, leading to decreased demand for our mortgage
insurance or financial guaranties. An increase in our loss experience or a decrease in demand for our products
due to adverse economic factors could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and
operating results.

Deterioration in regional economic factors could increase our losses or reduce demand for our insurance.

We could be affected by weakening economic conditions, catastrophic events, or acts of terrorism in
specific regions of the United States where our business is concentrated. A majority of our primary mortgage
insurance in force is concentrated in ten states, with the highest percentage being in Florida, California, Texas
and New York. A large percentage of our second-lien mortgage insurarce in force is concentrated in California
and Florida. Our financial guaranty business also has a significant portion of its insurance in force concentrated
in a small number of states, principally including California, New York, Texas, Pennsylvania and Florida. A
continued and prolonged weakening of economic conditions, declines in home-price appreciation or catastrophic
events or acts of terrorism in the states where our business is concentrated could have an adverse effect on our
financial condition and results of operations.

Downgrade or potential downgrade of our credit ratings or the insurance financial strength ratings
assigned to any of our operating subsidiaries could weaken our competitive position and affect our financial
condition.

The insurance financial strength ratings assigned to our subsidiaries may be downgraded by one or more of
S&P, Moody’s or Fitch if they believe that we or the applicable subsidiary has experienced adverse
developments in our business, financial condition or operating results. These ratings are important to our ability
to market our products and to maintain our competitive position and customer confidence in our products. A
downgrade in these ratings, or the announcement of a potential for a downgrade, could have a material adverse
effect on our business, financial condition and operating results. OQur principal operating subsidiaries had been
assigned the following ratings as of the date of this report:

MOODY'’S S&P FITCH
MOODY’S OUTLOOK g&il_’ OUTLOOK FITCH OUTLOOK
Radian Guaranty ........................ Aa3 Stable AA Stable  AA Stable
RadianInsurance ........................ Aa3 Stable AA Stable AA Stable
Amerin Guaranty ........................ Aa3 Stable AA Stable  AA Stable
Radian Asset Assurance .................. Aa3 Stable AA Negative AA Negative
Radian Asset Assurance Limited ... ......... — — AA  Negative AA Negative
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If the financial strength ratings assigned to any of our mortgage insurance subsidiaries were to fall below
“Aa3” from Moody’s or the “AA” level from S&P and Fitch, then national mortgage lenders and a large segment
of the mortgage securitization market, including Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac, generally would not purchase
mortgages or mortgage-backed securities insured by that subsidiary. Any downgrade of the ratings assigned to
our financial guaranty subsidiaries would limit the desirability of their respective direct insurance products and
would reduce the value of Radian Asset Assurance’s reinsurance, even to the point where primary insurers may
be unwilling to continue to cede insurance to Radian Asset Assurance at attractive rates. In addition, many of
Radian Asset Assurance’s reinsurance agreements give the primary insurers the right to recapture business ceded
to Radian Asset Assurance under these agreements, and in some cases, the right to increase commissions charged
to Radian Asset Assurance if Radian Asset Assurance’s insurance financial strength rating is downgraded below
specified levels. Accordingly, Radian Asset Assurance’s competitive position and prospects for future financial
guaranty reinsurance opportunities would be damaged by a downgrade in its ratings. For example, downgrades
that occurred in October 2002 and in May 2004 triggered these recapture rights. See “Ratings” in Note 2 to our
Consolidated Financial Statements for more information regarding these downgrades. We cannot be certain that

the impact on our business of any future downgrades would not be worse than the impact resulting from these
prior downgrades.

In addition to the financial strength ratings assigned to our subsidiaries, we have been assigned a senior debt
rating of A+ by Fitch, A by S&P and A2 by Moody’s. The credit ratings generally impact the interest rates that
we pay on money that we borrow. Therefore, a downgrade in our credit ratings could increase our cost of
borrowing which would have an adverse affect on our liquidity, financial condition and results of operations.

An increase in our subsidiaries’ risk-to-capital or leverage ratios may prevent them from writing new
insurance.

Rating agencies and state insurance regulators impose capital requirements on our subsidiaries. These
capital requirements include risk-to-capital ratios, leverage ratios and surplus requirements that limit the amount
of insurance that these subsidiaries may write. For example, Moody’s and S&P have entered into an agreement
with Radian Guaranty that obligates Radian Guaranty to maintain specified levels of capital in Radian Insurance
as a condition of the issuance and maintenance of Radian Insurance’s ratings. A material reduction in the
statutory capital and surplus of any of our subsidiaries, whether resulting from underwriting or investment losses
or otherwise, or a disproportionate increase in risk in force, could increase that subsidiary’s risk-to-capital ratio
or leverage ratio. This in turn could limit that subsidiary’s ability to write new business or require that subsidiary
to lower its ratios by obtaining capital contributions from us, reinsuring existing business or reducing the amount
of new business it writes, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and
operating results.

If the estimates we use in establishing loss reserves for our mortgage insurance or financial guaranty
business are incorrect, we may be required to take unexpected charges to income and our ratings may be
lowered.

We establish loss reserves in both our mortgage insurance and financial guaranty businesses to provide for
the estimated cost of claims. However, our loss reserves may be inadequate to protect us from the full amount of
claims we may have to pay. Setting our loss reserves involves significant reliance on estimates of the likelihood,
magnitude and timing of anticipated losses. The models and estimates we use to establish loss reserves may
prove to be inaccurate, especially during an extended economic downturn. Further, if our estimates are
inadequate, we may be forced by insurance and other regulators or rating agencies to increase our reserves, which
could result in a downgrade of the insurance financial strength ratings assigned to our operating subsidiaries.
Failure to establish adequate reserves or a requirement that we increase our reserves could have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial condition and operating results.

In our mortgage insurance business, in accordance with GAAP, we generally do not establish reserves until
we are notified that a borrower has failed to make at least two payments when due. Upon notification that two
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payments have been missed, we establish a loss reserve by using historical models based on a variety of loan
characteristics, including the status of the loan as reported by the servicer of the loan, economic conditions, the
estimated amount recoverable by foreclosure and the estimated foreclosure period in the area where a default
exists. These reserves are therefore based on a number of assumptions and estimates that may prove to be
inaccurate.

It is even more difficult to estimate the appropriate loss reserves for our financial guaranty business because
of the nature of potential losses in that business. We establish both case and non-specific reserves for losses. We
increase case reserves when we determine that a default has occurred. We also establish non-specific reserves to
reflect deterioration of our insured credits for which we have not provided specific reserves.

In January and February of 2005, we discussed with the SEC staff, both separately and together with other
members of the financial guaranty industry, the differences in loss reserve practices followed by different
financial guaranty industry participants. On June 8, 2005, the FASB added a project to its agenda to consider the
accounting by insurers for financial guaranty insurance. The FASB will consider several aspects of the insurance
accounting model, including claims liability recognition, premium recognition and the related amortization of
deferred policy acquisition costs. In addition, we also understand that the FASB may expand the scope of this
project to include income recognition and loss reserving methodology in the mortgage insurance industry.
Proposed and final guidance from the FASB regarding accounting for financial guaranty insurance is expected to
be issued in 2006. When and if the FASB or the SEC reaches a conclusion on these issues, we and the rest of the
financial guaranty and mortgage insurance industries may be required to change some aspects of our accounting
policies. If the FASB or the SEC were to determine that we should account for our financial guaranty contracts
differently, for example by requiring them to be treated solely as one or the other of short-duration or long-
duration contracts under SFAS No. 60, this determination could impact our accounting for loss reserves,
premium revenue and deferred acquisition costs, all of which are covered by SFAS No. 60. Management is
unable to estimate what impact, if any, the ultimate resolution of this issue will have on our financial condition or
operating results.

Our success depends on our ability to assess and manage our underwriting risks.

Our mortgage insurance and financial guaranty premium rates may not adequately cover future losses. Our
mortgage insurance premiums are based upon our expected risk of claims on insured loans, and take into account,
among other factors, each loan’s LTV, type (e.g., prime vs. non-prime or fixed vs. variable payments), term,
occupancy status and coverage percentage. Similarly, our financial guaranty premiums are based upon our
expected risk of claim on the insured obligation, and take into account, among other factors, the rating and
creditworthiness of the issuer of the insured obligations, the type of insured obligation, the policy term and the
structure of the transaction being insured. In addition, our premium rates take into account expected cancellation
rates, operating expenses and reinsurance costs, as well as profit and capital needs and the prices that we expect
our competitors to offer.

We generally cannot cancel or elect not to renew the mortgage insurance or financial guaranty insurance
coverage we provide, and because we generally fix premium rates for the life of a policy when issued, we cannot
adjust renewal premiums or otherwise adjust premiums over the life of a policy. If the risk underlying a
particular mortgage insurance or financial guaranty coverage develops more adversely than we anticipate, or if
national and regional economies undergo unanticipated stress, we generally cannot increase premium rates on
in-force business, cancel coverage or elect not to renew coverage to mitigate the effects of these adverse
developments. Despite the analytical methods we employ, our premiums earned and the associated investment
income on those premiums may ultimately prove to be inadequate to compensate for the losses that we may
incur. An increase in the amount or frequency of claims beyond the levels contemplated by our pricing
assumptions could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and operating results,
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Our success depends, in part, on our ability to manage risks in our investment portfolio.

Our income from our investment portfolio is one of our primary sources of cash flow to support our
operations and claim payments. If we incorrectly calculate our policy liabilities, or if we improperly structure our
investments to meet those liabilities, we could have unexpected losses, including losses resulting from forced
liquidation of investments before their maturity. Our investments and investment policies and those of our
subsidiaries are subject to state insurance laws. We may be forced to change our investments or investment
policies depending upon regulatory, economic and market conditions and the existing or anticipated financial
condition and operating requirements, including the tax position, of our business segments.

We cannot be certain that our investment objectives will be achieved. Although our portfolio consists
mostly of highly rated investments that comply with applicable regulatory requirements, the success of our
investment activity is affected by general economic conditions, which may adversely affect the markets for
interest-rate-sensitive securities, including the extent and timing of investor participation in these markets, the
level and volatility of interest rates and, consequently, the value of our fixed-income securities. Volatility or
illiquidity in the markets in which we directly or indirectly hold positions could have a material adverse effect on
our business, financial condition and operating results.

As a holding company, we depend on our subsidiaries’ ability to transfer funds to us to pay dividends and to
meet our obligations.

We act principally as a holding company for our insurance subsidiaries and do not have any significant
operations of our own. Dividends from our subsidiaries and permitted payments to us under our expense- and
tax-sharing arrangements with our subsidiaries, along with income from our investment portfolio and dividends
from our affiliates (C-BASS and Sherman), are our principal sources of cash to pay stockholder dividends and to
meet our obligations. These obligations include our operating expenses and interest and principal payments on
debt. The payment of dividends and other distributions to us by our insurance subsidiaries is regulated by
insurance laws and regulations. In general, dividends in excess of prescribed limits are deemed “extraordinary”
and require insurance regulatory approval. In addition, our insurance subsidiaries’ ability to pay dividends to us,
and our ability to pay dividends to our stockholders, is subject to various conditions imposed by the rating
agencies for us to maintain our ratings. If the cash we receive from our subsidiaries pursuant to dividend payment
and tax-sharing arrangements is insufficient for us to fund our obligations, we may be required to seek capital by
incurring additional debt, by issuing additional equity or by selling assets, which we may be unable to do on
favorable terms, if at all. The need to raise additional capital or the failure to make timely payments on our
obligations could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and operating results.

Our reported earnings are subject to fluctuations based on changes in our credit derivatives that require us
to adjust their fair market value as reflected on our income statement.

Our business includes the provision of credit enhancement in the form of derivative contracts. The gains and
losses on these derivative contracts are derived from internally generated models, which may differ from other
models. We estimate fair value amounts using market information, to the extent available, and valuation
methodologies that we deem appropriate. The gains and losses on assumed derivative contracts are provided by
the primary insurance companies. Considerable judgment is required to interpret available market data to develop
the estimates of fair value. Accordingly, our estimates are not necessarily indicative of amounts we could realize
in a current market exchange, due to, among other factors, the lack of a liquid market. Temporary market
changes as well as actual credit improvement or deterioration in these contracts are reflected in the
mark-to-market gains and losses. Because these adjustments are reflected on our income statement, they affect
our reported earnings and create earnings volatility even though they might not have a cash flow effect.

The performance of our strategic investments could harm our financial results.

Part of our business involves strategic investments in other companies, and we generally do not have control
over the way that these companies run their day-to-day operations. In particular, our financial services segment
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consists mostly of our strategic interests in C-BASS and Sherman. At December 31, 2005, we had investments in
affiliates of $446.2 million. Our ability to engage in additional strategic investments is subject to the availability
of capital and maintenance of our insurance financial strength ratings. The performance of our strategic
investments could be harmed by:

» the performance of our strategic partners;

* changes in the financial markets generally and in the industries in which our strategic partners operate,
including increased competition from new entrants in these industries;

« significant litigation involving the companies in which we hold a strategic interest or other significant
costs incurred by such companies in complying with regulatory or other applicable laws; or

» changes in interest rates or other macroeconomic factors that might diminish the profitability of these
businesses.

C-BASS’s results could vary significantly from period to period. As part of its business, C-BASS securitizes
non-conforming mortgages into mortgage-backed securities. As a result, a portion of C-BASS’s income depends
on its ability to sell different tranches of its securities in the capital markets, which can be volatile, depending on
interest rates, credit spreads and liquidity. In addition, C-BASS also owns mortgage-backed securities, some of
which can be called for redemption, particularly in low interest-rate environments. Redemptions can result in
volatility in C-BASS’s quarterly results as can the application of accounting rules that require C-BASS to mark
many components of its balance sheet to market. Although there has been growth in the volume of
non-conforming mortgage originations in recent years, growth in this industry may not continue if interest rates
continue to rise or competition in the industry continues to increase. If C-BASS is unable to continue to
successfully grow its portfolio of non-conforming mortgages, its income could be negatively affected.

Sherman’s results could be adversely impacted by increased pricing competition for the pools of consumer
assets they purchase, as well as a reduction in the success of their collection efforts due to macroeconomic or
other factors. In addition, results of their credit card origination business are sensitive to interest-rate changes,
charge-off losses and the success of their collection efforts.

As a result of their significant amount of collection efforts, there is a risk that either C-BASS or Sherman
could be subject to consumer related lawsuits and other investigations related to fair debt collection practices,
which could have an adverse effect on C-BASS’s or Sherman’s income, reputation and future ability to conduct
business.

Our international operations subject us to numerous risks.

We have committed and may in the future commit additional significant resources to expand our
international operations, particularly in the UK. We also are in the process of applying to commence
international mortgage operations in Hong Kong. Accordingly, we are subject to a number of risks associated
with our international business activities, including:

» risks of war and civil disturbances or other events that may limit or disrupt markets;
* dependence on regulatory and third-party approvals;
+ changes in rating or outlooks assigned to our foreign subsidiaries by rating agencies;

» challenges in attracting and retaining key foreign-based employees, customers and business partners in
international markets;

+ foreign governments’ monetary policies and regulatory requirements;
* economic downturns in targeted foreign mortgage origination markets;

* interest-rate volatility in a vanety of countries;
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» the burdens of complying with a wide variety of foreign regulations and laws, some of which may be
materially different than the regulatory and statutory requirements we face in our domestic business, and
which may change unexpectedly;

* potentially adverse tax consequences;
« restrictions on the repatriation of earnings;
» foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations; and

* the need to develop and market products appropriate to the various foreign markets.

Any one or more of the risks listed above could limit or prohibit us from developing our international
operations profitably. In addition, we may not be able to effectively manage new operations or successfully
integrate them into our existing operations, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial
condition or operating results.

Our business may suffer if we are unable to meet our customers’ technological demands.

Participants in the mortgage insurance and financial guaranty industries rely on e-commerce and other
technologies to provide and expand their products and services. Our customers generally require that we provide
aspects of our products and services electronically, and the percentage of our new insurance written and claims
processing that we deliver electronically has continued to increase. We expect this trend to continue and,
accordingly, we may be unable to satisfy our customers’ requirements if we fail to invest sufficient resources or
otherwise are unable to maintain and upgrade our technological capabilities. This may result in a decrease in the
business we receive, which could impact our profitability.

Qur information technology systems may not be configured to process information regarding new and
emerging products.

Many of our information technology systems have been in place for a number of years, and many of them
originally were designed to process information regarding traditional products. As products such as reduced
documentation or interest-only mortgages with new features emerge, or when we insure structured transactions
with unique features, our systems may require modification in order to recognize these features to allow us to
price or bill for our insurance of these products appropriately. Our systems also may not be capable of recording,
or may incorrectly record, information about these products that may be important to our risk management and
other functions. In addition, our customers may encounter similar technological issues that prevent them from
sending us complete information about the products or transactions that we insure. Making appropriate
modifications to our systems involves inherent time lags and may require us to incur significant expenses. The
inability to make necessary modifications to our systems in a timely and cost-effective manner may have adverse
effects on our business, financial condition and operating results.

Risks Particular to Our Mortgage Insurance Business

A decrease in the volume of high-LTV home mortgage originations or an increase in the volume of
cancellations or non-renewals of our existing policies could have a significant effect on our revenues.

We generally provide private mortgage insurance on high-LTV home mortgages. Factors that could lead to
a decrease in the volume of high-LTV home mortgage originations, and consequently, reduce the demand for our
mortgage insurance products, include:

* adecline in economic conditions generally or in conditions in regional and local economies;
* the level of home mortgage interest rates;
+ adverse population trends, lower homeownership rates and the rate of household formation; and

* changes in government housing policies encouraging loans to first-time homebuyers.
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Most of our mortgage insurance premiums earned each month are derived from the monthly renewal of
policies that we previously have written. As a result, a decrease in the length of time that our mortgage insurance
policies remain in force reduces our revenues and could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial
condition and operating results. Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac generally permit homeowners to cancel their
mortgage insurance when the principal amount of a mortgage falls below 80% of the home’s value. Factors that
are likely to increase the number of cancellations or non-renewals of our mortgage insurance policies include:

+ falling mortgage interest rates (which tends to lead to increased refinancings and associated
cancellations of mortgage insurance);

* appreciating home values; and

* changes in the mortgage insurance cancellation requirements applicable to mortgage lenders and
homeowners.

Because our mortgage insurance business is concentrated among relatively few major customers, our
revenues could decline if we lose any significant customer.

Our mortgage insurance business depends to a significant degree on a small number of customers. Our top
ten mortgage insurance customers are generally responsible for approximately half of both our primary new
insurance written in a given year and our direct primary risk in force. This concentration of business may
increase as a result of mergers of those customers or other factors. Our master policies and related lender
agreements do not, and by law cannot, require our mortgage insurance customers to do business with us. The loss
of business from even one of our major customers could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial
condition and operating results.

A large portion of our mortgage insurance risk in force consists of loans with high-LTV ratios and loans
that are non-prime, or both, which generally result in more and larger claims than loans with lower-LTV
ratios and prime loans.

We generally provide private mortgage insurance on mortgage products that have more risk than
conforming mortgage products. A large portion of our mortgage insurance in force consists of insurance on
mortgage loans with LTVs at origination of more than 90%. Mortgage loans with LTVs greater than 90% are
expected to default substantially more often than those with lower LTVs. In addition, when we are required to
pay a claim on a higher LTV loan, it is generally more difficult to recover our costs from the underlying property,
especially in areas with declining property values.

Due to competition for prime loan business from lenders offering alternative arrangemients, such as
simultaneous second mortgages, a large percentage of our mortgage insurance in force is written on non-prime
loans, which we believe to be the largest area for growth in the private mortgage insurance industry. In 2003,
non-prime business accounted for $17.8 billion or 41.7% of our new primary mortgage insurance written (63.3%
of which was Alt-A), compared to $16.4 billion or 36.6% in 2004 (61.9% of which was Alt-A). At December 31,
2005, non-prime insurance in force was $34.7 billion or 31.7% of total primary insurance in force, compared to
$35.7 billion or 31.0% of primary insurance in force at December 31, 2004. Although we historically have
limited the insurance of these non-prime loans to those made by lenders with good results and servicing
experience in this area, because of the lack of data regarding the performance of non-prime loans, and our
relative inexperience in insuring these loans, we may fail to estimate default rates properly and may incur larger
losses than we anticipate, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and
operating results. In general, non-prime loans are more likely to go into default and require us to pay claims. In
addition, some of our non-prime business, in particular Alt-A loans, tends to have larger loan balances relative to
our other loans. We cannot be certain that the increased premiums that we charge for mortgage insurance on
non-prime loans will be adequate to compensate us for the losses we incur on these products.

We use Smart Home reinsurance arrangements as a way of managing our exposure to non-prime risk. Under
these arrangements, we cede a portion of the risk associated with a portfolio of non-prime residential mortgage
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loans insured by us to an unaffiliated reinsurance company. The reinsurance company in turn issues credit-linked
notes to investors in the capital markets. As a consequence of these arrangements, we are able to effectively
transfer a portion of the non-prime risk that we would otherwise hold to investors that are willing to hold the risk
in exchange for payments of interest and premium on the credit-linked notes. By ceding risk in this manner, we
are able to continue to take on more non-prime risk and the higher premiums associated with insuring these types
of products. As a result, we consider Smart Home arrangements to be very important to our ability to effectively
manage our risk profile and to remain competitive in the non-prime market. Because the Smart Home
arrangement ultimately depends on the willingness of investors to invest in Smart Home securities, we cannot be
certain that Smart Home will always be available to us or will be available on terms that are acceptable to us. If
we are unable to continue to use Smart Home arrangements, our ability to participate in the non-prime mortgage
market could be limited, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and
operating results.

Some of our mortgage insurance products are riskier than traditional mortgage insurance.

We offer pool mortgage insurance, which exposes us to different risks than the risks applicable to primary
mortgage insurance. Our pool mortgage insurance products generally cover all losses in a pool of loans up to our
aggregate exposure limit, which generally is between 1% and 10% of the initial aggregate loan balance of the
entire pool of loans. Under pool insurance, we could be required to pay the full amount of every loan in the pool
within our exposure limits that is in default and upon which a claim is made until the aggregate limit is reached,
rather than a percentage of the loan amount, as is the case with traditional primary mortgage insurance. At
December 31, 2005, $2.7 billion of our mortgage insurance risk in force was attributable to pool insurance.

Approximately 32% of our mortgage insurance risk in force consists of adjustable-rate morigages or ARMs.
Our claim frequency on ARMs has been higher then on fixed-rate loans due to monthly payment increases that
occur when interest rates rise. We believe that claims on ARMs will continue to be substantially higher than for
fixed-rate loans during prolonged periods of rising interest rates. In addition, we insure interest-only mortgages,
where the borrower pays only the interest charge on a mortgage for a specified period of time, usually five to ten
years, after which the loan payment increases to include principal payments. These loans may have a heightened
propensity to default because of possible “payment shocks” after the initial low-payment period expires and
because the borrower does not automatically build equity as payments are made.

We also write credit insurance on non-traditional, mortgage-related assets such as second mortgages, home
equity loans and mortgages with LTVs above 100%, provide credit enhancement to mortgage-related capital
market transactions such as net interest margin securities and credit default swaps, and have in the past and may
again write credit insurance on manufactured housing loans. These types of insurance generally have higher
claim payouts than traditional mortgage insurance products. We have less experience writing these types of
insurance and less performance data on this business, which could lead to greater losses than we anticipate.
Greater than anticipated losses could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and
operating results.

An increasing concentration of servicers in the mortgage lending industry could lead to disruptions in the
servicing of mortgage loans that we insure, resulting in increased delinquencies.

We depend on reliable, consistent third-party servicing of the loans that we insure. A recent trend in the
mortgage lending and mortgage loan servicing industry has been towards consolidation of loan servicers. This
reduction in the number of servicers could lead to disruptions in the servicing of mortgage loans covered by our
insurance policies. This, in turn, could contribute to a rise in delinquencies among those loans and could have a
material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and operating results.

We face the possibility of higher claims as our mortgage insurance policies age.

Historically, most claims under private mortgage insurance policies on prime loans occur during the third
through fifth year after issuance of the policies, and under policies on non-prime loans during the second through
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fourth year after issuance of the policies. Low mortgage interest-rate environments tend to lead to increased
refinancing of mortgage loans and to lower the average age of our mortgage insurance policies. On the other
hand, increased interest rates tend to reduce mortgage refinancings and cause a greater percentage of our
mortgage insurance risk in force to reach its anticipated highest claim frequency years. In addition, periods of
growth in our business tend to reduce the average age of our policies. For example, the relatively recent growth
of our non-prime mortgage insurance business means that a significant percentage of our insurance in force on
non-prime loans has not yet reached its anticipated highest claim frequency years. If the growth of our new
business were to slow or decline, a greater percentage of our total mortgage insurance in force could reach its
anticipated highest claim frequency years. A resulting increase in claims could have a material adverse effect on
our business, financial condition and operating results.

Our delegated underwriting program may subject our mortgage insurance business to unanticipated claims.

In our mortgage insurance business, we enter into agreements with our mortgage lender customers that
commit us to insure loans using pre-established underwriting guidelines. Once we accept a lender into our
delegated underwriting program, we generally insure a loan originated by that lender even if the lender has not
followed our specified underwriting guidelines. Under this program, a lender could commit us to insure a
material number of loans with unacceptable risk profiles before we discover the problem and terminate that
lender’s delegated underwriting authority. Even if we terminate a lender’s underwriting authority, we remain at
risk for any loans previously insured on our behalf by the lender before that termination. The performance of
loans insured through programs of delegated underwriting has not been tested over a period of extended adverse
economic conditions, meaning that the program could lead to greater losses than we anticipate. Greater than
anticipated losses could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and operating results.

We face risks associated with our contract underwriting business.

As part of our mortgage insurance business, we provide contract underwriting services to some of our
mortgage lender customers, even with respect to loans for which we are not providing mortgage insurance. Under
the terms of our contract underwriting agreements, we agree that if we make mistakes in connection with these
underwriting services, the mortgage lender may, subject to certain conditions, require us to purchase the loans or
issue mortgage insurance on the loans, or to indemnify it against future loss associated with the loans.
Accordingly, we assume some credit risk and interest-rate risk in connection with providing these services. In a
rising interest-rate environment, the value of loans that we are required to repurchase could decrease, and
consequently, our costs of those repurchases could increase. In 2005, we underwrote $4.1 billion in principal
amount of loans through contract underwriting. Depending on market conditions, a significant amount of our
underwriting services may be performed by independent contractors hired by us on a temporary basis. If these
independent contractors make more mistakes than we anticipate, the resulting need to provide greater than
anticipated recourse to mortgage lenders could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition
and operating results.

If housing values fail to appreciate or begin to decline, we may be less able to recover amounts paid on
defaulted mortgages.

The amount of loss we suffer, if any, depends in part on whether the home of a borrower who has defaulted
on a mortgage can be sold for an amount that will cover unpaid principal and interest on the mortgage and
expenses from the sale. If a borrower defaults under our standard mortgage insurance policy, generally we have
the option of paying the entire loss amount and taking title to a mortgaged property or paying our coverage
percentage in full satisfaction of our obligations under the policy. In the strong housing market of recent years,
we have been able to take title to the properties underlying certain defaulted loans and to sell the properties
quickly at prices that have allowed us to recover most or all of our losses. If housing values fail to appreciate or
begin to decline, the frequency of loans going to claim and our ability to mitigate our losses on defaulted
mortgages may be reduced, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and
operating results.
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Our mortgage insurance business faces intense competition from other mortgage insurance providers and
Jrom alternative products.

The United States mortgage insurance industry is highly dynamic and intensely competitive. Our
competitors include:

» other private mortgage insurers, some of which are subsidiaries of well-capitalized companies with
stronger insurance financial strength ratings and greater access to capital than we have;

» federal and state governmental and quasi-governmental agencies, principally the VA and the FHA,
which has increased its competitive position in areas with higher home prices by streamlining its down-
payment formula and reducing the premiums it charges; and

« mortgage lenders that demand increased participation in revenue-sharing arrangements such as captive
reinsurance arrangements.

Governmental and quasi-governmental entities typically do not have the same capital requirements that we
and other mortgage insurance companies have, and therefore, may have financial flexibility in their pricing and
capacity that could put us at a competitive disadvantage. In the event that a government-owned or sponsored
entity in one of our markets determines to reduce prices significantly or alter the terms and conditions of its
mortgage insurance or other credit enhancement products in furtherance of social or other goals rather than a
profit motive, we may be unable to compete in that market effectively, which could have an adverse effect on our
financial condition and results of operations.

In addition, there are an increasing number of alternatives to traditional private mortgage insurance, and new
alternatives may develop, which could reduce the demand for our mortgage insurance. Existing alternatives include:

* mortgage lenders structuring mortgage originations to avoid private mortgage insurance, mostly through
“80-10-10 loans” or other forms of simultaneous second loans. The use of simultaneous second loans
has increased significantly during recent years and is likely to continue to be a competitive alternative to
private mortgage insurance, particularly in light of the following factors:

+ the potential lower monthly cost of simultaneous second loans compared to the cost of mortgage
insurance in a low-interest-rate environment;

» the tax deductibility in most cases of interest on second mortgages compared to the
non-deductibility of mortgage insurance payments; and

* possible negative borrower, broker and realtor perceptions about mortgage insurance.

¢ investors using other forms of credit enhancement such as credit default swaps or securitizations as a
partial or complete substitute for private mortgage insurance; and

* mortgage lenders and other intermediaries that forego third-party insurance coverage and retain the full
risk of loss on their high-LTV loans.

Much of the competition described above is directed at prime loans, which has led us to shift more of our
business to insuring riskier, non-prime loans. In addition, the intense competition we face in the mortgage
insurance industry requires that we dedicate time and energy to the development and introduction of competitive
new products and programs. Our inability to compete with other providers and the various alternatives to
traditional mortgage insurance, including the timely introduction of profitable new products and programs, or our
incurring increased losses as a result of insuring more non-prime loans could have a material adverse effect on
our business, financial condition and operating results.

Because many of the mortgage loans that we insure are sold to Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac, changes in
their charters or business practices could significantly impact our mortgage insurance business.

Fannie Mae’s and Freddie Mac’s charters generally prohibit them from purchasing any mortgage with a loan
amount that exceeds 80% of the home’s value, unless that mortgage is insured by a qualified insurer or the
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mortgage seller retains at least a 10% participation in the loan or agrees to repurchase the loan in the event of a
default. As a result, high-LTV mortgages purchased by Fannie Mae or Freddie Mac generally are insured with
private mortgage insurance. Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac are the beneficiaries of the majority of our mortgage
insurance policies.

Changes in the charters or business practices of Fannie Mae or Freddie Mac could reduce the number of
mortgages they purchase that are insured by us and consequently reduce our revenues. Some of Fannie Mae’s
and Freddie Mac’s more recent programs require less insurance coverage than they historically have required,
and they have the ability to further reduce coverage requirements, which could reduce demand for mortgage
insurance and have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and operating results. Fannie
Mae and Freddie Mac also have the ability to implement new eligibility requirements for mortgage insurers and
to alter or liberalize underwriting standards on low-down-payment mortgages they purchase. We cannot predict
the extent to which any new requirements may be implemented or how they may affect the operations of our
mortgage insurance business, our capital requirements and our products.

Additionally, Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac could decide to treat more favorably mortgage insurance
companies rated “AAA” rather than “AA.” Although this has not occurred to date, such a decision could impair
our “AA”-rated subsidiaries’ ability to compete with “AAA”-rated companies (of which there currently is one)
and could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and operating results.

Fannie Mae’s and Freddie Mac’s business practices may be impacted by legislative or regulatory changes
governing their operations and the operations of other government-sponsored enterprises. Fannie Mae and
Freddie Mac currently are subject to ongoing investigations regarding their accounting practices, disclosures and
other matters, and legislation proposing increased regulatory oversight over them is currently under consideration
in the U.S. Congress. The proposed legislation encompasses substantially all of the operations of Fannie Mae and
Freddie Mac and is intended to be a comprehensive overhaul of the existing regulatory structure. Although we
cannot predict whether, or in what form, this legislation will be enacted, the proposed legislation could limit the
growth of Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac, which could reduce the size of the mortgage insurance market and
consequently have an adverse effect on our operations, financial condition and results of operations.

Legislation and regulatory changes and interpretations could harm our mortgage insurance business.

Our business and legal liabilities may be affected by the application of existing federal or state consumer
lending and insurance laws and regulations, or by unfavorable changes in these laws and regulations. For
example, recent regulatory changes have reduced demand for private mortgage insurance by increasing the
maximum loan amount that the FHA can insure and reducing the premiums it charges. Also, we have been
subject to consumer lawsuits alleging violations of the provisions of the RESPA that prohibit the giving of any
fee, kickback or thing of value under any agreement or understanding that real estate settlement services will be
referred.

In addition, proposed changes to the application of RESPA could harm our competitive position. HUD
proposed an exemption under RESPA for lenders that, at the time a borrower submits a loan application, give the
borrower a firm, guaranteed price for all the settlement services associated with the loan, commonly referred to
as “bundling.” In 2003, HUD withdrew the proposed rule and submitted another rule to the Office of
Management and Budget, the contents of which have not yet been made public. If bundling is exempted from
RESPA, mortgage lenders may have increased leverage over us, and the premiums we are able to charge for
mortgage insurance could be negatively affected.
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Risks Particular to Our Financial Guaranty Business

Our financial guaranty business may subject us to significant risks from the failure of a single company,
municipality or other entity whose obligations we have insured.

The breadth of our financial guaranty business exposes us to potential losses in a variety of our products as a
result of credit problems with one counterparty. For example, we could be exposed to an individual corporate
credit risk in multiple transactions if the credit is contained in multiple portfolios of collateralized debt
obligations that we have insured, or if one counterparty (or its affiliates) acts as the originator or servicer of the
underlying assets or loans backing any of the structured securities that we have insured. Although we track our
aggregate exposure to single counterparties in our various lines of business and have established underwriting
criteria to manage aggregate risk from a single counterparty, we cannot be certain that our ultimate exposure to a
single counterparty will not exceed our underwriting guidelines, due to merger or otherwise, or that an event with
respect to a single counterparty will not cause a significant loss in one or more of the transactions in which we
face risk to such counterparty. In addition, because we insure and reinsure municipal obligations, we can have
significant exposures to individual municipal entities, directly or indirectly through explicit or implicit support of
related entities. Even though we believe that the risk of a complete loss on some municipal obligations generally
is lower than for corporate credits because some municipal bonds are backed by taxes or other pledged revenues,
a single default by a municipality could have a significant impact on our liquidity or could result in a large or
even complete loss that could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and operating
results.

Our financial guaranty business is concentrated among relatively few major customers, mecning that our
revenues could decline if we lose any significant customer.,

Our financial guaranty business derives a significant percentage of its annual gross premiums from a small
number of customers. A loss of business from even one of our major customers could have a material adverse
effect on our business, financial condition and operating results. In May 2004, Moody’s downgraded the
financial strength rating of Radian Reinsurance Inc., our principal financial guaranty reinsurance subsidiary. As a
result, one of the few primary insurer customers of our financial guaranty reinsurance business exercised its right,
effective February 28, 2003, to recapture significant reinsurance ceded to us. After giving effect to this recapture,
one single customer of our financial guaranty business accounted for over 19% of the premiums written by our
financial guaranty business in 2005. The May 2004 downgrade followed an earlier downgrade by S&P of the
same reinsurance subsidiary in October 2002 that resulted in the recapture by another of our customers of
substantially all of the financial guaranty reinsurance business it had ceded to us. For more information regarding
these downgrades, see “Ratings” in Note 2 to our Consolidated Financial Statements. Further downgrades could
trigger similar recapture rights in our other primary insurer customers, or we may lose a customer for other
reasons, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and operating results.

Some of our financial guaranty products are riskier than traditional guaranties of public finance
obligations.

In addition to the traditional guaranties of public finance bonds, we write guaranties involving structured
finance transactions that expose us to a variety of complex credit risks and indirectly to market, political and
other risks beyond those that generally apply to financial guaranties of public finance obligations. We issue
financial guaranties connected with certain asset-backed transactions and securitizations secured by one or a few
“classes of assets, such as residential mortgages, auto loans and leases, credit card receivables and other consumer
assets, obligations under credit default swaps, both funded and synthetic, and in the past have issued financial
guaranties covering utility mortgage bonds and multi-family housing bonds. We also have exposure to trade
credit reinsurance (which is currently in run-off), which protects sellers of goods under certain circumstances
against nonpayment of their accounts receivable. These guaranties expose us to the risk of buyer nonpayment,
which could be triggered by many factors, including the failure of a buyer’s business. These guaranties may
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cover receivables where the buyer and seller are in the same country as well as cross-border receivables. In the
case of cross-border transactions, we sometimes grant coverage that effectively provides coverage to losses that
could result from political risks, such as foreign currency controls and expropriation, which could interfere with
the payment from the buyer. Losses associated with these non-public finance financial guaranty products are
difficult to predict accurately, and a failure to properly anticipate those losses could have a material adverse
effect on our business, financial condition and operating results.

We may be forced to reinsure greater risks than we desire due to adverse selection by ceding companies.

A portion of our financial guaranty reinsurance business is written under treaties that generally give the
ceding company some ability to select the risks that they cede to us within the terms of the treaty. There is a risk
under these treaties that the ceding companies will decide to cede to us exposures that have higher rating agency
capital charges or that the ceding companies expect to be less profitable, which could have a material adverse
effect on our business, financial condition and operating results. We attempt to mitigate this risk in a number of
ways, including requiring ceding companies to retain a specified minimum percentage on a pro-rata basis of the
ceded business, but we cannot be certain that our mitigation attempts will succeed.

Our financial guaranty business faces intense competition.

The financial guaranty industry is highly competitive. The principal sources of direct and indirect
competition are:

» other financial guaranty insurance companies;

* multiline insurers that have increased their participation in financial guaranty reinsurance, some of
which have formed strategic alliances with some of the U.S. primary financial guaranty insurers;

* other forms of credit enhancement, including letters of credit, guaranties and credit default swaps
provided in most cases by foreign and domestic banks and other financial institutions, some of which
are governmental enterprises, that have been assigned the highest ratings awarded by one or more of the
major rating agencies or have agreed to post collateral to support their risk position;

« alternate transaction structures that permit issuers to securitize assets more cost-effectively without the
need for credit enhancement of the types we provide; and

» cash-rich investors seeking additional yield on their investments by foregoing credit enhancement.

Competition in the financial guaranty reinsurance business is based on many factors, including overall
financial strength, financial strength ratings, pricing and service. The rating agencies allow credit to a ceding
company’s capital requirements and single risk limits for reinsurance that is ceded. The amount of this credit is in
part determined by the financial strength rating of the reinsurer. Some of our competitors have greater financial
resources than we have and are better capitalized than we are and/or have been assigned higher ratings by one or
more of the major rating agencies. In addition, the rating agencies could change the level of credit they will allow
a ceding company to take for amounts ceded to us and/or similarly rated reinsurers.

In 2004, the laws applicable to New York-domiciled monoline financial guarantors were amended to permit
them to use certain default swaps meeting applicable requirements as statutory collateral (i.e., to offset their
statutory single risk limits, aggregate risk limits, aggregate net liability calculations and contingency reserve
requirements). This regulatory change, which makes credit default swaps a more attractive alternative to
traditional financial guaranty reinsurance, may result in a reduced demand for traditional monoline financial
guaranty reinsurance in the future. An inability to compete for desirable financial guaranty business could have a
material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and operating results.

Legislation and regulatory changes and interpretations could harm our financial guaranty business.

The laws and regulations affecting the municipal, asset-backed and trade credit debt markets, as well as
other governmental regulations, could be changed in ways that subject us to additional legal liability or affect the
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demand for the primary financial guaranty insurance and reinsurance that we provide. Any such change could
have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and operating results.

Changes in tax laws could reduce the demand for or profitability of financial guaranty insurance, which
could harm our business.

Any material change in the U.S. tax treatment of municipal securities, or the imposition of a “flat tax” or a
national sales tax in lieu of the current federal income tax structure in the United States, could adversely affect
the market for municipal obligations and, consequently, reduce the demand for related financial guaranty
insurance and reinsurance. For example, the Jobs and Growth Tax Relief Reconciliation Act of 2003, enacted in
May 2003, significantly reduced the federal income tax rate for individuals on dividends and long-term capital
gains, This tax change may reduce demand for municipal obligations and, in turn, may reduce the demand for
financial guaranty insurance and reinsurance of these obligations by increasing the comparative yield on
dividend-paying equity securities. Future potential changes in U.S. tax laws, including current efforts to eliminate
the federal income tax on dividends, might also affect demand for municipal obligations and for financial
guaranty insurance and reinsurance of those obligations.

We may be unable to develop or sustain our financial guaranty business if it cannot obtain reinsurance or
other forms of capital.

In order to comply with regulatory, rating agency and internal capital and single risk retention limits as our
financial guaranty business grows, we need access to sufficient reinsurance or other capital capacity to
underwrite transactions. The market for reinsurance recently has become more concentrated because several
participants have exited the industry. If we are unable to obtain sufficient reinsurance or other forms of capital,
we may be unable to issue new policies and grow our financial guaranty business.
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MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Our common stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange (“NYSE”) under the symbol “RDN.” On
March 14, 2006, there were 83,290,347 shares outstanding and approximately 108 holders of record. The following
table shows the high and low sales prices of our common stock on the NYSE for the financial quarters indicated:

2005 2004
High Low High Low
ISt QUATET .. ..ot e e e $53.36  $46.15 $51.43 $40.95
20d QUAITET . . oot e 48.08 4290 4877 43.86
3rd QUAITET . .o e 54.58 47.00 48.67 4343
Ath QUAITET . . .ot e 60.38 4740 5400 4230

We declared cash dividends on our common stock equal to $0.02 per share in each quarter of 2005 and
2004. As a holding company, we depend mainly upon our subsidiaries’ ability to transfer funds to us in order to
pay dividends. The payment of dividends and other distributions to us by our insurance subsidiaries is regulated
by insurance rules and regulations. For more information on our ability to pay dividends, see “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Liquidity and Capital Resources”
above and Note 10 to our Consolidated Financial Statements.

In 2005, Radian’s Chief Executive Officer submitted to the NYSE the most recent annual CEQ certification
regarding Radian’s compliance with the NYSE’s corporate governance listing standards, as required by Section
303A.12(a) of the NYSE’s Listed Company Manual. In addition, Radian’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer filed with the SEC all required certifications regarding the quality of Radian’s public disclosure
in its fiscal 2005 reports (including the CEO/CFO certifications required under Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002, which were filed as exhibits to Radian’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2005).
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FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS — SAFE HARBOR PROVISIONS

All statements in this report that address events, developments or results that we expect or anticipate may occur
in the future are “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933,
Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and the U.S. Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995.
In most cases, forward-looking statements may be identified by words such as “may,” “will,” “should,” “expect,”
“intend,” “plan,” “goal,” “contemplate,” “believe,” “estimate,” “predict,” “project,” “potential,” “continue” or the
negative or other variations on these words and other similar expressions. These statements are made on the basis of
management’s current views and assumptions with respect to future events. The forward-looking statements, as well
as our prospects as a whole, are subject to risks and uncertainties, including the following:

ELINTY LEINTS EEINTY

» changes in general financial and political conditions, such as extended national or regional economic
recessions, changes in housing values, population trends and changes in household formation patterns,
changes in unemployment rates, changes or volatility in interest rates, changes in the way investors
perceive the strength of private mortgage insurers or financial guaranty providers, investor concern over
the credit quality of municipalities and corporations and specific risks faced by the particular businesses,
municipalities or pools of assets covered by our insurance;

+ economic changes or catastrophic events in geographic regions where our mortgage insurance or
financial guaranty insurance in force is more concentrated,;

« the loss of a customer for whom we write a significant amount of our mortgage insurance or financial
guaranty insurance;

* increased severity or frequency of losses associated with certain of our products that are riskier than
traditional mortgage insurance or financial guaranty insurance policies;

* changes in persistency rates of our mortgage insurance policies caused by changes in refinancing
activity, appreciating or depreciating home values and changes in the mortgage insurance cancellation
requirements of mortgage lenders and investors;

+ downgrades of, or other ratings actions with respect to, our credit ratings or the insurance financial
strength ratings assigned by the major rating agencies to any of our rated operating subsidiaries at any
time, which actions have occurred in the past;

* heightened competition for our mortgage insurance business from others such as the Federal Housing
Administration and the Veterans’ Administration or other private mortgage insurers, from alternative
products such as “80-10-10” loans or other forms of simultaneous second loan structures used by
mortgage lenders, from investors using forms of credit enhancement other than mortgage insurance as a
partial or complete substitution for private mortgage insurance and from mortgage lenders that demand
increased participation in revenue sharing arrangements such as captive reinsurance arrangements,

» changes in the charters or business practices of Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac, the largest purchasers of
mortgage loans that we insure;

* heightened competition for financial guaranty business from other financial guaranty insurers, from
other forms of credit enhancement such as letters of credit, guaranties and credit default swaps provided
by foreign and domestic banks and other financial institutions and from alternative structures that permit
insurers to securitize assets more cost-effectively without the need for other credit enhancement of the
types we offer;

+ the application of existing federal or state consumer, lending, insurance and other applicable laws and
regulations, or unfavorable changes in these laws and regulations or the way they are interpreted;

* the possibility that we may fail to estimate accurately the likelihood, magnitude and timing of losses in
connection with establishing loss reserves for our mortgage insurance or financial guaranty businesses
or to estimate accurately the fair value amounts of derivative financial guaranty contracts in determining
gains and losses on these contracts;
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* increases in claim frequency as our mortgage insurance policies age; and

+ vulnerability to the performance of our strategic investments.

For more information regarding these risks and uncertainties as well as certain additional risks that we face,
you should refer to the “Risk Factors” section of this report. We caution you not to place undue reliance on these
forward-looking statements, which are current only as of the date of this report. We do not intend to, and we
disclaim any duty or obligation to, update or revise any forward-looking statements made in this report to reflect
new information or future events or for any other reason.
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